
 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 
 
 

 
5:30 pm STUDY SESSION 

 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council/Agency Board on items of interest that are not on 
the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council/Agency Board.  It is recommended that speakers limit their 
comments to between 3 to 5 minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this period on items on the 
Agenda.  Members of the public wishing to address the Council/Agency Board on items on the Agenda should notify the 
Mayor/Chairman when that Agenda item is called.  The Council/Agency Board is prohibited by law from taking any action on 
matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council/Agency Board does not 
respond to public comment at this time.   Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address.  
Prior to addressing the Council/Agency Board, any handouts to be provided to City Clerk/Board Clerk who will distribute to 
Council/Agency Board and appropriate staff. 

 
SS-1 Proposal for Prop 218 Assessment (Simonson)   
SS-2 Discussion - Utilization of Sungard (Pentamation), “eGov” System (Silva) 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT – CLOSED SESSION ITEM(S) 

Council will immediately convene into closed session after hearing any public comment on Closed Session. At 
7:30pm the Council will recess into Open Session and then resume Closed Session at the end of the meeting to 
address outstanding items. 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
This time has been set aside for the City Council to meet in a closed session to discuss matters pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d) (4).  Based on the advice of the City Attorney, discussion in open session 
concerning these matters would prejudice the position of the City in this litigation.  The Mayor will give an additional 
oral report regarding the Closed Session at the beginning of the next regular City Council meeting. 

 
1. Conference with Labor Negotiator, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 

Agency Negotiator: Susan Wells 
Employee Organization: General Association of Service Employees 
 

In the event that not all the items on the closed session agenda have been deliberated in the time provided, the City 
Council may continue the closed session at the end of the regularly scheduled Council Meeting. 

 
 
 
 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

JOINT LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
  LEMOORE REDEVELOPMENT 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY MEETING 

COUNCIL CHAMBER 
429 “C” STREET 

July 15, 2014 
 



Please silence all electronic devices as a courtesy to those in attendance.  Thank you. 
 

 
7:30 pm REGULAR SESSION 

 
a. CALL TO ORDER 
b. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
c. INVOCATION 
d. CLOSED SESSION REPORT(S) 
 

 
CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1 

 
No Ceremonial / Presentations. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

This time is reserved for members of the audience to address the City Council/Agency Board on items of interest that are not on 
the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Council/Agency Board.  It is recommended that speakers limit their 
comments to between 3 to 5 minutes each and it is requested that no comments be made during this period on items on the 
Agenda.  Members of the public wishing to address the Council/Agency Board on items on the Agenda should notify the 
Mayor/Chairman when that Agenda item is called.  The Council/Agency Board is prohibited by law from taking any action on 
matters discussed that are not on the Agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Council/Agency Board does not 
respond to public comment at this time.   Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name.  Prior to 
addressing the Council/Agency Board, any handouts to be provided to City Clerk/Board Clerk who will distribute to Council/Agency 
Board and appropriate staff. 
 
Items denoted with a     are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Board.  Agendas for all City Council/Redevelopment Successor Agency meetings are posted at least 
72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must 
be received by Administrative Services no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chambers is accessible to the physically 
disabled.   If you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 days prior to the meeting. 
 
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  For discussion 
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or any 
person in the audience. 

 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 2 
 
2-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – July 1, 2014 
2-2 Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – July 10, 2014 
2-3  Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – July 10, 2014 
2-4 Approval – Warrant Register 14-15 – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable 

Obligation Payment Schedule – July 10, 2014 
 
 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 3 

 
3-1 Adoption of Amended Urban Water Management Plan 2010 - Resolution 2014-17 

(Wlaschin) 
3-2 Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments within Landscape and Lighting 

Maintenance District No. 1 (LLMD) Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A and 
13 of the City of Lemoore – Resolution 2014-18 (Wlaschin) 



3-3 Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments within Public Facilities Maintenance 
District No. 1 (PFMD) Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the City of Lemoore – Resolution 
2014-19 (Wlaschin) 

3-4 Annexation and Levy Assessments for Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, 
Zone 6A – Resolution 2014-20 (Wlaschin) 

3-5 TEFRA – Resolution 2014-21 (Laws) 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS – Section 4 

 
4-1 Report and Recommendation – Budget Adjustment – Refuse Asset Replacement 

Fund - Purchase of CNG Vehicle (Apone) 
4-2 Report and Recommendation – Planning Update (Holwell) 
4-3 Report and Recommendation - Budget Adjustment – Capital Improvement 

Program - C/O 8 CMC Commercial Kitchen (Simonson) 
4-4 Report and Recommendation – Annexation of City’s Boundary Limits across the 

Main East Canal to 17th Avenue (Laws) 
 

 
DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 5 

 
5-1 Department Reports 
5-2 City Manager Reports 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

 
6-1 City Council Reports 
6-2 City Council Requests 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

NOTICE: Pursuant to Government Code §54954.3(a), public comments may be directed to the legislative body concerning any 
item contained on the agenda for this meeting before or during consideration of the item.  Those wishing to address Council on an 
item shall be limited to between 3-5 minutes and if a large group, the Mayor may request that individuals provide only new 
information not presented by another person. 
 
Any writing or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for 
public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In 
addition, most documents will be posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com.  
 

Tentative Future Agenda Items 
 
August 5th 
Update – Police Dispatch Architecture 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION 
I, Jennifer Scarbrough, Deputy City Clerk for the City of Lemoore, declare under penalty of perjury that I 
posted the above City Council/ Redevelopment Successor Agency Agenda for the meeting of July 15, 2014 
at City Hall, 119 Fox Street St., Lemoore, CA, on July 10, 2014. 
 
 
 
          //s//     
Jennifer Scarbrough 
Deputy City Clerk 

http://www.lemoore.com/


Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Parks and Recreation 

Department 
721 W. Cinnamon Drive 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6767 

FAX  (559) 924-6772 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 
Study 

Session Item SS-1 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director  
Date: July 9, 2014  

Subject: Proposal for Prop 218 Assessment  

 
Discussion: 
 
At the last meeting, Council directed Amber Adams and Matt Hamilton from Quad Knopf 
to describe the scope of work that must occur for the creation of a Benefit Assessment 
District. 
 
Amber Adams is in attendance tonight to answer your questions and go over the 
attached report. 
 
 
Budget Impact: 
 
Based on the study and depending on if the project is expanded, funding will be 
determined at that time. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
None. For Council discussion only. 
 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 



Scope of Work for Creation of Benefit Assessment District 
 

 

  1                                    

Scope of Work  

History 

The Lemoore Golf Course is valued at $3 million, according to an appraiser hired by the Tachi Tribe in 
2013. The City has a liability associated with the Lemoore Golf Course of approximately $3.5 million, 
meaning there is a debt against the property that is currently greater than the appraised value of the 
property.  In 2013, the City had received an offer of $5 million from Tachi Tribe to purchase the golf 
course, but that offer was withdrawn on June 16, 2014. 

The golf course receipts less expenses are used make the annual debt payments. In years that these 
receipts do not cover the debt payment, the City identifies other funding sources to supplement the 
receipts in order to make the required payments.  In the past, the Redevelopment Agency fund was able 
to make those payments.  When the State took away the City Redevelopment Agencies, the only source 
of money to make the debt payments was the City’s General Fund.  The Council has expressed concern 
with maintaining this on-going liability inside the General Fund.  While there are years when the General 
Fund has not been needed to make the payment, the average annual payments over the last seven years 
that have been needed to supplement golf course receipts have been $60,000 per year. 

In addition, there is no asset replacement account to fund repairs or replacement of golf course assets as 
they fail over time, or to make asset improvements to the golf course. It had been assumed that these 
costs, if needed, would be covered by the Redevelopment Agency, and no cost to the General Fund 
would be incurred. However, since the dissolution of the Redevelopment Agency, any asset replacement 
costs would have to come directly from the General Fund or other yet to be identified source.  If the 
asset replacement cost was crucial to maintain the golf course, such as a replacement well, so that it 
could not be avoided, it could negatively affect the ability to pay for other city services, like police and 
fire protection. 

Given the concerns about making the annual debt payment and paying for any asset repair or 
replacement out of the General Fund, the Council asked Quad Knopf on June 16, 2014, to prepare a 
summary of the process and a cost estimate to create a Benefit Assessment District that could be used to 
off-set the current potential liability against the City’s General Fund. 

Project Understanding 

The City of Lemoore Parks and Recreation Department is responsible for coordinating recreational 
activities for all of Lemoore’s citizens.  The Parks and Recreation Department also maintains local parks 
and the Lemoore Municipal Golf Course.  The Parks and Recreation Department is currently funded 
primarily by property tax revenues through the City’s General Fund.  The City Council recently inquired as 
to how the City can offset operating cost liabilities from the General Fund. The City wishes to create a 
Benefit Assessment District and proceed through the Proposition 218 process to obtain the assessment in 
order to ensure the longevity of the golf course.   

Quad Knopf team members met with Joe Simonson to discuss the process associated with Proposition 
218, the needs of the City, and the concerns associated allocating Proposition 218 funds to maintain the 
Lemoore Municipal Golf Course.  



Scope of Work for Creation of Benefit Assessment District 
 

 

  2                                    

Quad Knopf understands that the Parks and Recreation Department and the City Council desire to 
pursue, at minimum, the commencement of the benefit assessment in order to eliminate the operating 
cost liabilities from the General Fund.  The City may choose to expand the scope of the benefit 
assessment during the kick-off process in order to consider the costs of providing other enhanced 
services or infrastructure improvements, which would be detailed in the Proposition 218 Engineer’s 
Report. 

Potential Issues and Obstacles 

 The City of Lemoore, includes approximately 7,500 parcels consisting of residential, business, 
governmental, industrial and an agricultural base similar to other Central Valley mid-sized  communities.  
Within similar areas, recent tax related ballot measures (excluding school related initiatives) have passed 
at a rate below 50 percent (17 – Yes, 20 – No).  Moreover, since 2009, these ballot measures have only 
passed at a rate of 20 percent (1 – Yes, 5 – No).  This period (2009 to present) coincides with the recent, 
highly publicized economic downturn, which has apparently affected the manner in which residents 
consider issues that impact their fiscal situation. 

Therefore, Quad Knopf sees a major potential obstacle for the proposed project as the existing resident 
sentiment towards assessments or taxation of any kind.  The Parks and Recreation Department may not 
garner as much exposure as other essential services, such as the public safety departments (Police and 
Fire), or agencies that involve the delivery of essential, municipal services such as water or sewer service.  
The lack of essential service urgency limits the amount of information that is broadcast to the local 
residents regarding significant issues that affects the fiscal health of the City, but may not be immediately 
understood to be an urgent issue.  Overcoming this issue requires considerable education and public 
outreach on behalf of the Department in order to promote the importance of services that Parks and 
Recreation provide and to justify the need for the origination of the benefit assessment to the voting 
constituency.  

The second potential obstacle is the ability to identify the proposed service as a special benefit to the 
parcel owners.  The overall purpose of Proposition 218, which was sponsored by the Howard Jarvis 
Taxpayers Association, whose primary goal is the protection of taxpayers’ rights, was to limit the methods 
by which local governments can create or increase taxes, fees and charges without taxpayer consent.  
Therefore, with the implementation of Proposition 218, local agencies are required to clearly articulate 
and legitimize any tax, assessment or other charge that funds a service provided to the taxpayers in 
order to garner enough support for an affirmative majority vote.  Due to the previous “general” funding 
of this golf course, it will be particularly important that the City’s legal staff and the contract engineer  
fully research the nexus (or connection) between the proposed assessment and a new special benefit 
that would be received, and to be able to clearly and transparently meet the requirements of Proposition 
218. 

Scope of Work 

The following is Quad Knopf’s proposed Scope of Work based upon our understanding of the request and 
our discussions with the Parks and Recreation Director and subsequently discussions at the City Council 
Meeting on June 17, 2014.  The Quad Knopf team will rely on our comprehensive knowledge of the 
Proposition 218 process, and our experience with similar projects to assist the City in this process. 



Scope of Work for Creation of Benefit Assessment District 
 

 

  3                                    

This scope of work serves to provide a general description of the process that is required for an 
assessment, and also to identify the work that Quad Knopf would perform. 

 

PHASE 1 KICK-OFF MEETING  

Quad Knopf will meet with City staff to establish the proposed assessment schedule of events, and 
procedural and financial considerations; and discuss the proposed existing and potential new services and 
associated costs, the eligibility of those services, and any limitations on the funding of those services.   

During the kick-off, boundaries of the proposed City assessment, proposed project phasing, and the 
scope of responsibilities will be identified and discussed.  Additionally, a program for public notification 
and involvement will be developed.  

Deliverable:  Meeting Agenda and Meeting Minutes  

 

PHASE 2 DATA GATHERING 

Quad Knopf will work with Mr. Simonson and designated City staff to obtain the latest assessor’s parcel 
maps and equalized tax roll information from the Kings County Assessor’s Office for the parcels within the 
existing proposed assessment limits, including Geographic Information System (GIS) shape files for our 
in-house GIS mapping preparation. We assume the City will provide any relevant published information, 
such as previously adopted budgets or other capital facility and operations/maintenance reports. Our 
professional team, consisting of Steve Brandt, AICP, LEED AP, and Ronald Wathen, PE, will review the 
provided information and reports to identify relevant data needed for the Engineer’s Report.  

Deliverable:  GIS Assessment City Map 

 

PHASE 3 REPORT METHODOLOGY  

Quad Knopf will prepare a benefit analysis to determine the direct and/or special benefit compared to the 
general benefit of the proposed assessment continuation/increase.  Quad Knopf will establish a formula 
for equitably distributing the assessment based on the identified benefits (special or general) received by 
each property.  In order to accomplish this task, Quad Knopf will need to prepare the following:  

Task 3.1 Computer Database 

A database will be prepared showing the assessor’s parcel number of each parcel within the City, the land 
use code, the area, the status of development, and assessed values.  From this database a mailing list 
will be prepared.  

Deliverable:  Mailing List 

Assumption:  The City (or County Assessor) will provide the raw data in digital format for this list 

 



Scope of Work for Creation of Benefit Assessment District 
 

 

  4                                    

Task 3.2 Assessment City Study  

Using information gathered for the database preparation, Quad Knopf will prepare preliminary cost 
estimates for the continued and additional service.  The benefit assessment cost will be established by 
identifying costs to continue providing the existing level of service that exceed those covered by the 
annual, estimated receipts that the City receives.  In order to account for year-to-year anomalies, Mr. 
Wathen, will use a three-year rolling average of prior expenses and revenues.   

Quad Knopf understands that the components that make up the continued existing and potential 
additional service are related to staffing and ongoing operations and maintenance.  However, it is also 
understood that improvements to support the facilities are likely required.  As such, bonding may be an 
option for capital expenditures to support this additional service. 

The difference between current and projected annual operations and maintenance costs, plus any capital 
improvements will result in an estimate of the total amount to maintain the City’s current operations and 
service, and the potential additional service.  The total amount for the continued existing, and the 
potential additional services and improvements will include labor and associated expenses, contract labor 
costs, supply acquisition costs, specialty chemicals, materials, parts, inventory, operational contingencies; 
incidental expenses, including assessment engineering costs, and any other costs eligible and incidental 
to the necessary operations of the City.  It is important to note that any funds raised through bonding 
measures may not be used for ongoing operations or maintenance costs. 

Deliverable:  Preliminary Opinion of Probable Costs (POPC) 

Task 3.3 Boundary Map  

Quad Knopf will prepare a Boundary Map that depicts the City boundary and includes all parcels that will 
benefit from the assessment. 

Deliverable:  Boundary Map based on information received from the City. 

 

PHASE 4 PREPARE ENGINEER’S REPORT  

Quad Knopf will prepare a Preliminary Engineer’s Report that contains all items required by code, 
including a description of the proposed services, and an engineer’s estimate of the service costs and 
incidental expenses.  These costs will be based on the preliminary cost information gathered in Phase 2.  
The report will include a narrative description of the assessment distribution methodology, including 
assumptions used for determining benefits; the assessment roll, including the assessor’s parcel number, 
owner’s name, and total assessment amount, as agreed upon by the City.  

Deliverable:  Preliminary Engineer’s Report based on information received from the City and the POPC 
approved from Task 3.2 above. 

Task 4.1 City Review Process  

Quad Knopf will submit the Preliminary Engineer’s Report to the City staff prior to the adoption of the 
Resolution of Intention (ROI), and conduct workshop meetings with City staff to discuss possible report 
revisions after staff and suggested public review.  



Scope of Work for Creation of Benefit Assessment District 
 

 

  5                                    

Task 4.2 Engineer’s Report Review 

Following suggested public outreach, Quad Knopf will make technical and other revisions to the 
Engineer’s Report as necessary, and/or respond to City comments, as requested. 

Deliverable:  Revised Engineer’s Report and/or Response to City Comments memorandum 

Task 4.3 Resolution of Intention Support 

Quad Knopf will coordinate with the City Staff to present the Engineer’s Report with any recommended 
modifications for approval by the City Council.  Quad Knopf will work with Staff to establish a time and 
place for the Public Hearing to be conducted by the City, as required by code.  

Deliverable: Public Hearing Scheduling and Coordination 

 

PHASE 5 PREPARE MAILING 

Quad Knopf will assist the City with preparation and mailing of ballots to all property owners within the 
proposed City assessment.  The City will be responsible for printing and mailing the ballots using first-
class postage.  The ballots will contain the assessor’s parcel number; the owner’s name and mailing 
address, site address, breakdown of assessment by type of service, proposed assessment (lien amount); 
and the explanation of benefit, as required by Proposition 218.   

Quad Knopf will provide the City with a bound copy of all the notices to be mailed, and assist the City in 
correcting any wrong addresses and changed owners to maximize the disclosure process.  Quad Knopf 
will also prepare a spreadsheet to be used to tabulate the returned ballots.  The City will be responsible 
for officially counting the ballots through an appropriate party. 

Quad Knopf will coordinate with City staff to arrange for the publication of the Resolution of Intention in 
the local newspaper.  The City will place the publication in the newspaper.  After the Resolution of 
Intention is adopted, Quad Knopf will record the boundary map with the Kings County Recorder.  

Deliverable:  Design of Ballots, Informational Materials and Envelopes and Tabulation Spreadsheet  

 

PHASE 6 PARTICIPATE IN THE PUBLIC HEARINGS AND BALLOT TABULATION  

Task 6.1 Public Hearing  

Quad Knopf will attend one Public Hearing, at which ballots will be collected and hearing held and closed. 
We will be prepared to give a presentation on the contents of the Engineer’s Report. The presentation 
will describe the proposed services, and explain the assessment methodology, and include a question and 
answer session to respond to questions asked by the City Council or public. The ballot count may occur at 
the end of the meeting.  Typically, this hearing would be continued until the ballots could be counted and 
tabulated.     

Deliverable:  Presentation Materials for Public Hearing 

Task 6.2 Ballot Tabulation 



Scope of Work for Creation of Benefit Assessment District 
 

 

  6                                    

Quad Knopf will assist the City in tabulating returned ballots at the end of the Task 6.1 Public Hearing,  
and in reporting the results to the City Council.  Quad Knopf will also address the inclusion of any 
amendments ordered by the City Council at the Public Hearing.  

Deliverable:  Tabulation Report to the City Council 

 

PHASE 7 Meetings  

Quad Knopf will attend the following meetings throughout the Proposition 218 process.  

Task 7.1 Strategy Meeting 

In addition to the kick-off meeting and Public Hearing, Quad Knopf will attend one additional informal 
meeting with City staff for the purpose of disseminating information and discussing the approach being 
applied for determining the methodology approach.  Additional meetings can be provided upon request of 
the City.    

Deliverable:  Meeting agenda and Follow-up meeting notes with tasks and a schedule 

Task 7.2 Informational Meetings  

Quad Knopf will conduct up to one (1) informational meeting with the public to discuss the proposed new 
services and associated fee increases.  Quad Knopf will prepare and assemble information for the 
purposes of making a complete and factual presentation, and sufficient copies of any written information 
will be made available for public distribution. Additional meetings and support material can be provided 
upon request of the City.    

Deliverable: Presentation materials, public meeting appearance(s) and meeting notes. 

 

PHASE 8 POST FORMATION MEETINGS 

Quad Knopf will attend one (1) additional informal meeting with City staff for the purpose of 
disseminating information and discussing the approach being applied for phasing of the services and 
assessment. 

Deliverable:  Meeting agenda and Follow-up meeting notes with tasks and a schedule 

Task 8.1 Record Assessment Documents  

Quad Knopf will assist the City to coordinate the recordation of the Assessment Diagrams, Assessment 
Roll, and Notice of Assessment with the County Recorder as prescribed by the code. 

Deliverable:  Documents required by County Recorder to record the assessment. 

 

 

 



Scope of Work for Creation of Benefit Assessment District 
 

 

  7                                    

OPTIONAL SUGGESTED SERVICES  

Task A. Public Outreach 

The strategy for public outreach should be discussed further.  As an option, Quad Knopf can assist in this 
service.  Upon request by the City, as needed to support acceptance of the assessment, Quad Knopf, 
with the assistance of VRPA Technologies, will coordinate the communications and outreach program for 
the City’s Proposition 218 process.  

This support will be in addition to our Task 6.1 services, and may include any or all of the following 
services: 

• Preparing and/or reviewing/editing the following: 
o Public notices 
o Public education materials 
o News releases 

 
• Attending public meetings (in addition to the Task 6.1 hearing) to support City staff as requested. 

An effective communications and outreach program will consist of the following elements:  

• Determine the perceived public position in regards to the proposed new services, improvements, 
assessments and fees.  

• With the aid of VRPA Technologies, provide a multi-lingual presence in order to present the 
information to all public outreach participants in a manner that can be understood and 
comprehended. 

• Develop informational pamphlets, handouts and other educational materials to promote existing 
services and highlight the City’s desire to continue the benefit assessment and keep the existing 
(or increased) level of service. 

• Interactive polling of public meeting attendees.  Quad Knopf owns Turning Point Technology 
“clickers” and software that will enable the Consultant Team to gather input even from the least 
vocal of participants at every public outreach workshop or meeting using touch key pads and 
survey questions embedded in PowerPoint presentations.  This input allows everyone in 
attendance a chance to provide valuable insight and opinion on the issues, recommendations, 
and findings. 

• Establish a timeline for the outreach plan and balloting date.  

• Develop an education and outreach plan that builds on the existing communications foundation.  

• Assist City staff — top to bottom — in understanding the underlying premise of a Proposition 218 
assessment process, both technically, as well as the ideology, i.e., the position of the public and 
impact of the City on the balloting process.  

• Strive for clear messaging, and achieve targeted marketing/education through evaluation and 
utilization of the following:  

o Media resources in the region (including statistics on consumer utilization of media)  



Scope of Work for Creation of Benefit Assessment District 
 

 

  8                                    

o Ownership demographics  
o Timeline for outreach activities  
o Available budget  
o Locality of owners  
o Participation of city and community leaders 

 
• Through messaging, empower the public to make a quality decision on behalf of their community 

through education of the facts regarding the assessment increase as a funding mechanism and 
the need for the increased service.  

• Identify the perceived value of the services by the public.  (Perceived value is the value which an 
individual places on a service regardless of the actual cost.)  

• Evaluate the actual costs as compared to the perceived value.  

• Determine actions in response to findings. Actions would include one or more of the following:  
o Initiate balloting  
o Explore supplemental funding options to cover funding gap  
o Increase perceived value through additional outreach and education efforts  
o Develop additional funding strategies, such as City master fee updates, or single use 

rates 

• Carry out identified actions 

  



Scope of Work for Creation of Benefit Assessment District 
 

 

  9                                    

 

Cost Estimate 

Scope of Work (PHASE 1 – PHASE 8) 

Quad Knopf proposes to perform the Proposition 218 processing and assessment engineering as outlined 
above in Phases 1 to 8 on a time-and-material basis for the estimated amount of $22,000.  The 
project would be invoiced as a separate phase under the existing on-call contract for Planning Services. 

Attendance at four (4) meetings with City staff and City Council include: one (1) Kick-off Meeting, one (1) 
Public Hearing and two (2) City staff meetings to discuss approach and strategies.  In addition, one (1) 
informational meeting with property owners has been included in the above scope of work.  Additional 
public outreach, support activities and/or meetings, if necessary, can be performed upon request on a 
time-and-material basis.  

The proposed cost includes only preparation of all ballots and other informational materials and not the 
printing or mailing costs associated with distribution of these materials.  This cost would be calculated in 
coordination with a printing and/or mailing service following completion of the aforementioned ballots 
and information materials and would be in addition to the main scope of work (Phase 1 – 8). 

Optional Services 

Quad Knopf will also perform the Optional Public Outreach Service, if requested, on a not to exceed cost 
as describe in “Task A”.  Note that the additional Optional Public Outreach is not required by law to adopt 
a Benefit Assessment District.  The hours for the optional work will be accounted for as a separate “Task 
A” and billed separately and in addition to the main scope of work (Phases 1 – 8).  The cost for this task 
is dependent on the scope of the outreach that the city desires.  The City may also wish to use a different 
consultant for public outreach.  We would estimate that each public outreach meeting or event would fall 
within the range of $2,500 to $3,500 each and, at minimum, may include, multi-lingual support, Turning 
Point polling services and a detailed presentation outlining the benefit assessment, Engineer’s Report, 
and voting process.  A more specific cost estimate for these optional services can be worked out and 
agreed upon once the scope of the outreach efforts has been defined.  The City has the option to do as 
much or as little optional public outreach to bring about the desired result of the balloting. 



Mayor 
William Siegel  Finance 

Department 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  559)924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
Edward Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 

Staff Report 
 
 ITEM NO. SS-2 

To: City Council  

From: Nancy Vernon, Accountant  
Date: July 9, 2014  

Subject: Utilization of Sungard (Pentamation), “eGov” system 
 

Discussion 
 
When the Sungard software was updated in July 2008, the City of Lemoore purchased 
a module called “eGov”.  This module required its own server, also purchased in 2008, 
and acts as a gateway between the City’s Sungard system and the citizens of Lemoore 
to set up internet access for the purposes of utility billing viewing and payments, and 
business license verification, application, and payments.   
 
Currently, the Finance Department is seeking approval to immediately move forward 
with customizing the “eGov” system with the appropriate City of Lemoore information 
(logo, address, name, photograph on landing page, etc.) and bringing it “Live” and 
available to the citizens of Lemoore to be able to set up their own online access to view 
their utility balances and/or business license information through this portal. Additionally, 
we are seeking direction on whether the council would like to further investigate the 
possibility of utilizing the online payment option of eGov, to include credit card 
acceptance.  
 
 
Budget Impact 
 
There is no budget impact at this time to bring “eGov” online.  Future impact is unknown 
since a new server may be needed and there are unknown costs associated with a 
payment processor. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
We recommend that the City Council direct staff how to proceed. 

“In God We Trust” 
 



Item 2-1 
 

July 1, 2014 Minutes 
Study Session Joint City Council / 

Redevelopment Successor Agency Meeting 
 

CALL TO ORDER: 
At 5:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 

ROLL CALL: Mayor/Chairman: SIEGEL 
 Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair: WYNNE 

 Council/Board Members: NEAL, RODARMEL    
 
City Staff and Contract Employees Present: City Manager Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; Finance 
Director Silva; Police Chief Smith; Program Manager Holwell; Quad Knopf Engineer Tow; Quad 
Knopf Planner Hamilton; Quad Knopf Planner Brandt; City Clerk Venegas. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 
 

 
STUDY SESSION – Section SS 

 
SS-1 2014-2015 Operations and Maintenance Budget – Proposed – Lighting Landscape 
 Maintenance District, Public Facilities Maintenance District and Community 
 Participation 
 
City Manager Laws reviewed with the Council and department heads the proposed 2014-2015 
City Operations and Maintenance Budget for Lighting Landscape Maintenance District (LLMD), 
Public Facilities Maintenance District (PFMD) and Community Participation. 
 
Quad Knopf Engineer Tow spoke on PFMD. 
 
Community Participation speakers: 
Sharon DeMasters with Kings County Commission on Aging 
Jeff Gardner with Kings Community Action Organization 
 
A Public Hearing to discuss/approve the 2014-2015 City Operations and Maintenance Budget is 
scheduled during the regular meeting at 7:30 p.m.  
 
SS-2 Proposal for 218 Assessment 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Simonson introduced Quad Knopf Planner Brandt who presented 
the scope that must occur from the creation of a Benefit Assessment District. 
 
Tom Reed spoke on this issue. 
 
Council directed staff to bring back a study session item with different ideas and estimates. 
 
 
 

1 
 



  
PUBLIC COMMENT – CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 

There was no public comment. 
 
At 6:12 p.m. Council adjourned to Closed Session. 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
1. Conference with Labor Negotiator, Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 
 Agency Negotiator:  Susan Wells 

Employee Organization:  General Association of Service Employees 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
At 6:40 p.m. Council adjourned. 
 

July 1, 2014 Minutes 
Regular Joint City Council / 

Redevelopment Successor Agency Meeting 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER: 

At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ROLL CALL: Mayor/Chairman: SIEGEL 
 Mayor Pro Tem/Vice Chair: WYNNE 

 Council/Board Members: NEAL, RODARMEL 
 

City Staff and contract employees present: City Manager Laws, City Attorney Avedisian; Public 
Works/Planning Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; Finance Director 
Silva; Police Chief Smith; Quad Knopf Planner Hamilton; Quad Knopf Planner Brandt; City Clerk 
Venegas. 
 

 
CEREMONIAL / PRESENTATIONS – Section 1 

There were no Ceremonial / Presentations. 
 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
Jane Dart voiced opinion on golf course hiring. 
Cheryl Wahl spoke of cats in her neighborhood. 
 

Items denoted with a     are Redevelopment Successor Agency items and will be acted upon by the Redevelopment 
Successor Agency Board.  Agendas for all City Council/Redevelopment Successor Agency meetings are posted at least 
72 hours prior to the meeting at the City Hall, 119 Fox St., Written communications from the public for the agenda must 
be received by Administrative Services no less than seven (7) days prior to the meeting date.  The City of Lemoore 
complies with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA of 1990).  The Council Chambers is accessible to the physically 
disabled.   If you need special assistance, please call (559) 924-6705, at least 4 days prior to the meeting. 
 
All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion.  For discussion 
of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the request of any member of the City Council or any 
person in the audience. 

2 
 



 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR – Section 2 
 
2-1 Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – June 17, 2014 
2-2 Approval – Warrant Register 13-14 – June 27, 2014 
2-3 Approval – Second Reading – Ordinance 2014-02 – Amendment to 6-3-12 and 6-4-4 
 of the Lemoore Municipal Code Relating to the Designation of Truck Routes and 
 Parking of Heavy Trucks 
2-4 Approval – Second Reading – Ordinance 2014-03 – Amendment to 3-8-2 of the 
 Lemoore Municipal Code Relating to the Rules and Regulations Applicable to all 
 Sales of Garage and Yard Sales; Fund Raisers 
2-5 Approval – Street Closure – 4th of July Firecracker 5K Run and Kids Fun Run – July 
 4, 2014 
2-6 Approval – Weed Abatement of City Property – APN 024-080-069 
 
Motion by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member Wynne to approve the 
Consent Calendar as presented. 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Neal, Siegel 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS – Section 3 

 
3-1 Adoption of 2014-2015 Operations and Maintenance Budget – Resolution 2014-13 
 
City Manager Laws presented the 2014-2015 Operations and Maintenance Budget for approval. 
 
Connie Wlaschin spoke on the budget. 
 
Motion by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member Rodarmel to approve 
Resolution 2014-13 approving the 2014-2015 Operations and Maintenance Budget as presented 
with typo corrects as discussed. 
 
Ayes: Wynne, Rodarmel, Neal, Siegel 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS – Section 4 

 
4-1 Report and Recommendation – City of Lemoore Council Vacancy 
 
City Manager Laws presented the options available to Council to fill the current vacancy. 
 
Direction given to staff with consensus of Rodarmel, Wynne and Siegel to advertise the vacancy 
and accept resumes in order to appoint a new Council Member at the August 5, 2014 Council 
meeting. 
 
4-2 Report and Recommendation – Annexation of City’s Boundary Limits across the 

Main East Canal to 17th Avenue  
 
City Manager Laws introduced Mr. Loy Wedderburn as he asked to be placed on the agenda to 
discuss the boundary limits across the main east canal.  Mr. Jerry Irons spoke on Mr. 
Wedderburn’s behalf requesting direction from Council regarding crossing the canal. 

3 
 



 
Quad Knopf City Planner Brandt spoke on the process of annexation. 
 
Loy Wedederburn spoke on this item. 
 
Council is willing to look into this request with the consensus of Neal, Wynne and Siegel. 
 
4-3 Report and Recommendation – Appointment to Parks and Recreation Commission 
 
Mayor Siegel, with the consensus of Council Members Wynne, Rodarmel and Neal appointed 
Mariah Ramirez to the Parks and Recreation Commission for a two year term expiring December 
31, 2016. 
 
4-4 Report and Recommendation – Resolution 2014-14 – Intent to Levy and Collect the 

Annual Assessments within Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 
(LLMD) Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A and 13 in the City of Lemoore 

 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin presented the report and stated financial situation and 
accounting practices were disjointed.  Last three years were used as a base line and a clean slate 
was established.  Zones 8, 8A and 9 decreased slightly while all other zones remained the same. 
 
Motion by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member Rodarmel to approve 
Resolution 2014-14 Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments for Landscaping and 
Lighting Maintenance District No. 1 (LLMD) Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A and 
13 of the City of Lemoore with stated corrections. 
 
Ayes: Wynne, Rodarmel, Neal, Siegel 
 
4-5 Report and Recommendation – Resolution 2014-15 – Intent to Levy and Collect the 

Annual Assessments within Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 (PFMD) 
Zones, 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the City of Lemoore 

 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin presented the report.  All zones had slight decrease.  
Adjustments will be made for the lighting changes. 
 
Motion by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member Wynne to approve 
Resolution 2014-15 Intent to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments for Public Facilities 
Maintenance District No. 1 (PFMD) Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the City of Lemoore. 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Neal, Siegel 
 
4-6 Report and Recommendation – Resolution 2014-16 – Intention to Annex and Include 

Zone 6A of Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 in the City of Lemoore and 
Levy and Collect Annual Assessments in such Annexed Territory for Fiscal Year 
2014-2015 and Thereafter 

 
Public Works/Planning Director Wlaschin presented the report. 
 
Motion by Council Member Wynne, seconded by Council Member Rodarmel to approve 
Resolution 2014-16 Declaring the Intention to (i) Annex and Include Additional Territories in Public 
Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 in the City of Lemoore and (ii) Levy and Collect Annual 
Assessments in such Annexed Territories for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 and Thereafter. 
 
Ayes: Wynne, Rodarmel, Neal, Siegel 

4 
 



 
 
 
4-7 Report and Recommendation – Golf Course Contracts 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Simonson informed Council that contracts were not received at 
time of agenda publication but were now available and distributed. 
 
Motion by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member Wynne to direct City 
Manager Laws to execute contracts with Rich Rhoads and Genaro Martinez. 
 
Ayes: Rodarmel, Wynne, Neal, Siegel 
 

 
DEPARTMENT AND CITY MANAGER REPORTS – Section 5 

 
5-1 Department Reports 
 
Parks and Recreation Director Simonson announced the 4th of July celebration Friday, July 4th at 
City Park beginning at 7a.m. 
 
5-2 City Manager Reports 
 
Notice that the City of Lemoore received the 2013 Housing Related Parks grant in the amount of 
$120,000 for 19th Avenue Park. 
 

 
CITY COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS – Section 6 

 
6-1 City Council Reports 
 
No Council Reports. 
 
6-2 City Council Requests 
 
Council Member Rodarmel stated a letter was received with postage due and his name was 
misspelled.  He was curious and paid for postage but after reading, shredded the letter as it was 
not signed. 
 
Council Member Rodarmel stated the sprinklers in the islands near Kmart at Hanford Armona and 
Cinnamon are watering asphalt.  Asked of the possibility of the green paint for the islands. 
 
He also wished everyone a safe 4th of July. 
 
Council Member Wynne attended the recent KCAG meeting.  In April, approval was given for 
scenario two by the group with moderate changes for the Regional Transportation Plan.  AB32 
next phase of bill has an Alliance called California Driver’s Alliance.  If not stopped, the gas tax 
could go up $0.70 per gallon. 
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENT from Closed Session 

Council completed Closed Session discussions after earlier study session. 
There was no announcement. 

5 
 



 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
At 9:02 p.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
             
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk    William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 

6 
 



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 07/10/2014 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4213 − CITY MANAGER

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
13/14 07/10/14 21 07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C 5.00 .00 EDC MTG/J. HOLWELL
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES .00 5.00 .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
13/14 07/10/14 21 0000155057   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL 158.99 .00 PUBLIC NOTICE
13/14 07/10/14 21 0000155265   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL 55.68 .00 PUBLIC NOTICE
13/14 07/10/14 21 00000155267  0199 HANFORD SENTINEL 82.72 .00 PUBLIC NOTICE
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS .00 297.39 .00

4340     UTILITIES
13/14 07/10/14 21 000005513170 5516 AT&T 108.66 .00 559−925−8544
13/14 07/10/14 21 000005513172 5516 AT&T 12.60 .00 05/25/2014−06/24/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES .00 121.26 .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES
13/14 07/10/14 21 8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN 61.20 .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES .00 61.20 .00

TOTAL    CITY MANAGER .00 484.85 .00

RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:27 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 2-2



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4215 − FINANCE                  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513172 5516 AT&T                             15.75               .00 05/25/2014−06/24/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             15.75               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 11.02               .00 TRAINING/J. JOHNSON      
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00             11.02               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                166.42               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            166.42               .00

TOTAL    FINANCE                                                 .00            193.19               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:27                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4216 − PLANNING                 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513172 5516 AT&T                             10.50               .00 05/25/2014−06/24/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             10.50               .00

TOTAL    PLANNING                                                .00             10.50               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:27                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             386347       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                  7.19               .00 WIRE                     
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180192      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 71.35               .00 DGRYGLS COATING          
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200021      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 15.66               .00 2PK 6"ROLL REFILL        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200667      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 12.12               .00 MASK TAPE                
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179403      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 51.85               .00 DEMOLITION BLADE         
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200964      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                254.15               .00 STEP LADDER/GA WIRE      
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179571      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 17.18               .00 MORTAR MIX               
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201213      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 28.79               .00 TURBO DIAM BLADE         
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201148      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 32.23               .00 8PK−ALK BATTERY          
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201277      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 19.31               .00 60LB CONCRETE MIX        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201271      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  7.51               .00 NUMB/LETT STENCIL SET    
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179665      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                115.99               .00 HOSE BIBB/2WY CONNECT    
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201303      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                253.66               .00 WTR COOLER/WHEELBAROW    
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201351      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 32.99               .00 PASTEL BASE              
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179764      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                204.97               .00 LAMP/PASTEL BASE         
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201404      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.26               .00 4PK−BULB                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179971      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.69               .00 BARS BARREL BOLT         
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180074      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 42.99               .00 SOCK BOOT                
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180044      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                159.61               .00 LOCK LINK CHAIN          
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201787      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 51.18               .00 PLEAT FUR FILTER         
13/14 07/10/14 21             57776        0149 EVANGELHO SEED C                365.29               .00 KLEENUP CONCEN           
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201808      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 27.38               .00 PREPLEAT FILTER          
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180117      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                243.27               .00 60LB CONCRETE MIX        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201756      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 82.62               .00 PLEAT AIR FILTER         
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180290      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  1.92               .00 BLNK WALL PLATE          
13/14 07/10/14 21             B202279      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  8.05               .00 REPLACE FLUO BULB        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B202378      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  6.54               .00 LL ACCESS FITTING        
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180644      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                   .82               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180656      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.36               .00 A/C FILTER               
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200951      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                549.11               .00 WTR COOLER/DUST PAN      
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200456      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 17.19               .00 WHITE NYLON CORD         
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200579      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.26               .00 POLO PASS LOCKSET        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200651      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 32.72               .00 BURN BLANKET/FURN CAP    
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200639      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.91               .00 FOAM MOUNTING TAPE       
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200634      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 25.79               .00 HOLE SAW                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200794      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.90               .00 FELT BELT                
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179186      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                197.69               .00 PIPE WRENCH/KNEE PAD     
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179135      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 71.47               .00 DUCT TAPE                
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179159      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 11.07               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
13/14 07/10/14 21             713301870001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     58.27               .00 FOLDERS, FILES           
13/14 07/10/14 21             717566792001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                    211.76               .00 BOARD,CORK,ALUM.FRAME    
13/14 07/10/14 21             717561742001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     83.51               .00 BOARD/LABEL              
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          3,461.58               .00

4220S    STREETS−OPERATING SUPPLIE
13/14 07/10/14 21             2014471      5306 T&T PAVEMENT MAR              1,424.35               .00 GAGE SQUARE POST         

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:28                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220S    STREETS−OPERATING SUPPLIE (cont’d)
13/14 07/10/14 21             2877−440258  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY                 30.34               .00 2−SCREW DRIVERS          
13/14 07/10/14 21             2877−440139  5333 MEDALLION SUPPLY              1,103.96               .00 RELAY PHOTOCONTROL       
TOTAL    STREETS−OPERATING SUPPLIE                               .00          2,558.65               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
13/14 07/10/14 21             73702        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                164.95               .00 DURALIFE ACTUATOR        
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180676      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 22.54               .00 V BELT                   
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200965      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                337.49               .00 STEP LADDER/HAMMER       
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179374      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 30.07               .00 POWER NOZZLE             
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179483      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                122.23               .00 HOSE/STAIN KILLER        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201219      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.84               .00 WHITE TEE                
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179664      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                122.52               .00 HEAD 17LB TAMPER         
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180000      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 48.86               .00 CABLE CLAMP              
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180119      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                348.27               .00 WHEELBAROW               
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−97581   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  2.71               .00 COPPER PLUS SPRK PLUG    
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180627      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 28.72               .00 ZINC DOOR PULL           
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200527      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 74.06               .00 CYLINDER DEADBOLT        
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179205      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 17.19               .00 EVERGREEN REFUSE CAN     
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179154      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                119.12               .00 RUBBER HOSE              
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200717      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 15.57               .00 LOBBY BROOM/SANITIZER    
13/14 07/10/14 21             IN−554858    5092 MITY−LITE, INC.               2,387.92               .00 RECTANGULAR TABLE        
13/14 07/10/14 21             129760       6436 WEST COAST TELCO                686.70               .00 RING TOP,BANDS           
13/14 07/10/14 21             129801       6436 WEST COAST TELCO              1,376.43               .00 DELINEATOR,T−TOP         
13/14 07/10/14 21             73620        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                759.62               .00 DURALIFE ACTUATOR        
13/14 07/10/14 21             73603        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 50.19               .00 CONCRETE ROUND FRAME     
13/14 07/10/14 21             73605        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 50.19               .00 CONCRETE ROUND LID       
13/14 07/10/14 21             73653        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                106.91               .00 PVC HAND PUMP            
13/14 07/10/14 21             73668        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 70.79               .00 SOLENOID ADAPTER         
13/14 07/10/14 21             73667        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                103.01               .00 DURALIFE ACTUATOR        
13/14 07/10/14 21             255666       0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                281.61               .00 OC KEY, ACME THREAD      
13/14 07/10/14 21             73760        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 72.76               .00 COUPLING KEY             
13/14 07/10/14 21             73873        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 12.84               .00 FIP HOSE BIB             
13/14 07/10/14 21             73838        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 57.38               .00 HOSE SWIVEL              
13/14 07/10/14 21             73857        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                236.50               .00 HUNTER P/C               
13/14 07/10/14 21             73920        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 23.60               .00 SOLENOID ADAPTER         
13/14 07/10/14 21             73915        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                126.60               .00 DURALIFE ACTUATOR        
13/14 07/10/14 21             73912        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 12.19               .00 T PLUG/GOLF COURSE       
13/14 07/10/14 21             73910        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 27.85               .00 PVC PIPE/HOT GLUE        
13/14 07/10/14 21             73978        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                  5.16               .00 TT RB                    
13/14 07/10/14 21             73977        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 47.76               .00 PVC PIPE/HOT GLUE        
13/14 07/10/14 21             74044        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 47.09               .00 ARC NOZZLE               
13/14 07/10/14 21             144680601    6081 ALL AMERICAN POO                 23.62               .00 SHAFT SEAL ASSEMBLY      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          8,024.86               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501134647   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       59.08               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:28                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC (cont’d)
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501139669   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       60.58               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501144163   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       59.08               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501148917   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       59.08               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             07022014     T1595 HANNSSELTHILL CA               327.50               .00 WKEND RENTAL ATTENDNT    
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            565.32               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*80455329 0363 P G & E                         147.99               .00 06/02/2014−06/30/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*04648353 0363 P G & E                          31.00               .00 06/02/2014−06/30/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513168 5516 AT&T                               .83               .00 559−925−2806             
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513168 5516 AT&T                               .83               .00 559−925−2806             
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513168 5516 AT&T                               .82               .00 559−925−2806             
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN609636901 0363 P G & E                       4,487.01               .00 05/21/2014−06/19/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             MAY−JUN14*   0423 THE GAS COMPANY                  88.80               .00 05/22/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          4,757.28               .00

4340S    STREETS−UTILITIES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN839922818 0363 P G & E                          56.76               .00 05/24/2014−06/24/2014    
TOTAL    STREETS−UTILITIES                                       .00             56.76               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
13/14 07/10/14 21             382,238      5372 FRANCHISE TAX BO                147.22               .00 GARNISHMENT              
13/14 07/10/14 21             382,238      0227 INGRAM DIGITAL E                441.66               .00 PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL        
13/14 07/10/14 21             637958       6317 CALDWELL SURFACE                555.00               .00 CONCRETE                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             5449796      0242 JORGENSEN COMPAN                 52.21               .00 RECHARGE EXTINGUISHER    
13/14 07/10/14 21             25029        0520 WINDTAMER TARPS                  50.00               .00 SHADE TARP REPAIR        
13/14 07/10/14 21             22744        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   279.48               .00 RUN CONDUIT AND WIRE     
13/14 07/10/14 21             22808        0388 REED ELECTRIC                 1,066.21               .00 TRACE WIRES              
13/14 07/10/14 21             22741        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   691.91               .00 INSTALL CONDUCT/WIRES    
13/14 07/10/14 21             22827        0388 REED ELECTRIC                    97.50               .00 CHK POWER/REPAIR WIRE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             22608        0388 REED ELECTRIC                    74.01               .00 INSTALL  REC. FOR TV     
13/14 07/10/14 21             22609        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   883.66               .00 INSTALL HDMI CABLES      
13/14 07/10/14 21             22742        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   130.00               .00 WIRELESS ROUTER          
13/14 07/10/14 21             1252337      5287 RES COM PEST CON                 38.00               .00 411 W. "D" ST            
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          4,506.86               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             074764807    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 42.88               .00 PRINTER−JUNE             
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  2.16               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             45.04               .00

4825     MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT    
13/14 07/10/14 21             W32492−0614  5436 CHEVRON ENERGY S             47,025.00               .00 SOLAR/MAINT PYMT7        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201111      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 19.34               .00 GOOSE WRECK BAR          
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179575      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.74               .00 ZINC NOZZLE              
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200763      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  8.05               .00 REB TY WIRE              

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:29                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4825     MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT     (cont’d)
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179157      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.84               .00 SPADE DRILL BIT          
TOTAL    MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                                   .00         47,073.97               .00

4850AR   CIP ASSET REPLACEMENTS   
13/14 07/10/14 21             637958       6317 CALDWELL SURFACE             13,200.00               .00 CIP10− CMC FLOOR         
TOTAL    CIP ASSET REPLACEMENTS                                  .00         13,200.00               .00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00         84,250.32               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:29                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 20.93               .00 INTERVIEW/B. AUSTIN      
13/14 07/10/14 21             XJF92NPX2    2454 DELL COMPUTER CO                 15.96               .00 8−OUTLET SURGE PROTEC    
13/14 07/10/14 21             XJF9FFFP26   2454 DELL COMPUTER CO              1,148.38               .00 COMPUTER                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             4854         3010 THE ANIMAL HOUSE                 85.41               .00 DOG FOOD/CALMING AID     
13/14 07/10/14 21             300979       1817 C.A. REDING COMP                376.91               .00 PD TONER                 
13/14 07/10/14 21 6793    −03 5486142      6418 OPTICSPLANET.COM                222.00           −222.00 HELMET MOUNT             
13/14 07/10/14 21 6799    −01 0004919      6430 BOBS GUN SHOP                   665.12           −665.12 SMITH & WESSON RIFLE     
13/14 07/10/14 21 6799    −02 0004919      6430 BOBS GUN SHOP                    25.00            −25.00 DROS                     
13/14 07/10/14 21 6799    −03 0004919      6430 BOBS GUN SHOP                    49.88            −49.88 TAX                      
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          2,609.59           −962.00

4220U    OPERAT SUPPLIES− UNIFORMS
13/14 07/10/14 21             4/22−6/27PD  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 27.51               .00 COSPER/COVERALLS         
TOTAL    OPERAT SUPPLIES− UNIFORMS                               .00             27.51               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501134648   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       10.50               .00 MAT                      
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501139671   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       10.50               .00 MAT                      
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501144164   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       10.50               .00 MAT                      
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501148919   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       10.50               .00 MAT                      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             42.00               .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES          
13/14 07/10/14 21             4/22−6/27PD  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 28.00               .00 SANTOS/BREWER/TRAIN      
13/14 07/10/14 21             4/22−6/27PD  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  5.40               .00 OCHOA/ABC DETAIL         
13/14 07/10/14 21             4/22−6/27PD  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 30.00               .00 ROCHA/CLEARS RGSTRTN     
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES                                         .00             63.40               .00

4330     PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS  
13/14 07/10/14 21             0000155266   0199 HANFORD SENTINEL                 82.72               .00 PUBLIC NOTICE            
TOTAL    PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS                                 .00             82.72               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             9727823123   0116 VERIZON WIRELESS                912.97               .00 JUNE02−JULY01            
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513169 5516 AT&T                            309.01               .00 559−925−6800             
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513167 5516 AT&T                             64.67               .00 05/25/2014−06/24/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          1,286.65               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             25450        6417 THOMAS CONSULTIN                848.88               .00 FACILITY RENTAL          
13/14 07/10/14 21             4/22−6/27PD  0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 45.00               .00 JOHNS/SWAT TRNING FEE    
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            893.88               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             301151       1817 C.A. REDING COMP                 27.33               .00 PD PRINTER               
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                111.05               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:29                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4221 − POLICE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES          (cont’d)
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00            138.38               .00

TOTAL    POLICE                                                  .00          5,144.13           −962.00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:29                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   10
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4222 − FIRE                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180583      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 12.88               .00 WIRE SCRATCH BRUSH       
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201055      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.15               .00 MICROBAN CAULK           
13/14 07/10/14 21             9476821112   0521 GRAINGER                      2,208.43               .00 CORDLESS COMBO KIT       
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−97510   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 22.45               .00 RATCHET                  
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200017      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  7.51               .00 SAFETY GLASSES           
13/14 07/10/14 21             A178215      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.69               .00 PLEAT FUR FILTER         
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200118      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 17.19               .00 BULLDOZER                
13/14 07/10/14 21             A178861      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 70.87               .00 FILTER CARTRIDGE         
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179091      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.56               .00 PLAS PUTTY KNIFE         
13/14 07/10/14 21             A186623      0068 GARY BURROWS, IN                 37.63               .00 FARM NOZZLE              
13/14 07/10/14 21 6800    −01 51227        2161 CASCADE FIRE                  1,630.00         −1,630.00 HOSE 15X50               
13/14 07/10/14 21 6800    −02 51227        2161 CASCADE FIRE                    360.00           −360.00 BOOSTER HOSE             
13/14 07/10/14 21 6800    −03 51227        2161 CASCADE FIRE                    248.00           −248.00 HIT HOSE                 
13/14 07/10/14 21 6800    −04 51227        2161 CASCADE FIRE                    167.85           −167.85 TAX                      
13/14 07/10/14 21 6800    −05 51227        2161 CASCADE FIRE                    100.00           −100.00 SHIPPING                 
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          4,896.21         −2,505.85

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
13/14 07/10/14 21             147046       4048 HI−TECH E V S, I                203.67               .00 BALL/INJECTION VALVE     
13/14 07/10/14 21             5596         0370 PHIL’S LOCKSMITH                 18.00               .00 REPAIR LOCK              
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179964      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 34.82               .00 JAWS METAL BENDER        
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179996      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 35.91               .00 COOLER PAD               
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180027      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 92.82               .00 CONCENTRIC PUMP          
13/14 07/10/14 21             08587        0061 BOB’S AUTO PARTS                424.57               .00 STARTER                  
13/14 07/10/14 21             08663        0061 BOB’S AUTO PARTS                 11.77               .00 SCREWDRIVERS             
13/14 07/10/14 21             08651        0061 BOB’S AUTO PARTS                 11.72               .00 WIRE LOOM/WIRE TIES      
13/14 07/10/14 21             08622        0061 BOB’S AUTO PARTS                 11.22               .00 WD−40 SPRAY              
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−96282   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                140.20               .00 LED STOP TAIL TURN       
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−96284   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  2.15               .00 BULLET TERMINAL          
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180135      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 27.94               .00 URINAL PARTS KIT         
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201860      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.15               .00 SCRUB BUBBLES FIZZ       
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−96927   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 17.18               .00 ALL WHEEL CLEANER        
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−97107   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  4.09               .00 AUVE CO PAK              
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200355      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 34.15               .00 CHR KICKDOWN/NUT,BOLT    
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          1,075.36               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUNE2014     0313 LEMOORE VOLUNTEE              9,130.00               .00 JUN 2014 MONTHLY CALL    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501134659   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       51.39               .00 SHIRT/PANTS/MATS         
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501144168   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       51.39               .00 SHIRT/PANTS/MATS/MOP     
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501148927   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       23.70               .00 SHIRT/PANTS/MATS         
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501139680   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       23.70               .00 SHIRT/PANTS/MATS/MOP     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          9,280.18               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513172 5516 AT&T                             10.50               .00 05/25/2014−06/24/2014    

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:29                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   11
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4222 − FIRE                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4340     UTILITIES                 (cont’d)
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             10.50               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  7.17               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00              7.17               .00

TOTAL    FIRE                                                    .00         15,269.42         −2,505.85

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:29                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   12
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4224 − BUILDING INSPECTION      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 21.53               .00 INTERVIEW/B. AUSTIN      
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             21.53               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513168 5516 AT&T                              2.50               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              2.50               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  3.50               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
13/14 07/10/14 21             074764807    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 27.74               .00 PRINTER−JUNE             
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             31.24               .00

TOTAL    BUILDING INSPECTION                                     .00             55.27               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:29                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   13
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4230 − PUBLIC WORKS             

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             712980125001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     30.97               .00 FOLDERS,FILELABEL        
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             30.97               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76142        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                189.07               .00 GENERAL ENGINEERING      
13/14 07/10/14 21             76137        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              2,059.74               .00 GENERAL PLANNING SRVC    
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          2,248.81               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513168 5516 AT&T                              3.33               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              3.33               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             074764807    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 27.74               .00 PRINTER−JUNE             
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 24.40               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  2.62               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             54.76               .00

TOTAL    PUBLIC WORKS                                            .00          2,337.87               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:30                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   14
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4242 − RECREATION               

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             06272014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 12.06               .00 DILLON DAUGHERTY         
13/14 07/10/14 21             06272014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 70.00               .00 LAUNDRY LAND/S.TAYLOR    
13/14 07/10/14 21             06272014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 35.44               .00 KMART/E.FERREIRA         
13/14 07/10/14 21             06272014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 12.90               .00 DILLON DAUGHERTY         
13/14 07/10/14 21             314981       0301 LEMOORE UNION SC              2,187.19               .00 JUN TRIPS SUMMER CAMP    
13/14 07/10/14 21             713992993001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                    136.42               .00 OFFICE SUPPLIES          
13/14 07/10/14 21             708918439001 5396 OFFICE DEPOT                     29.55               .00 TAPE,SCISSORS,PEN        
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          2,483.56               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513172 5516 AT&T                              6.32               .00 05/25/2014−06/24/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              6.32               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             06072014     6434 MORGAN WEBB                      46.48               .00 TRAINING/MILEAGE         
13/14 07/10/14 21             06072014     6433 CAITLYN CARDOZA                  46.48               .00 TRAINING/MILEAGE         
13/14 07/10/14 21             04262014     6432 JESSICA KRISTENS                 34.16               .00 TRAINING/MILEAGE         
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00            127.12               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 40.54               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             40.54               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00          2,657.54               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00        110,403.09         −3,467.85

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:30                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   15
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 027 − TE/STP(RTPA)EXCHANGE FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4727C − SLURRY SEALS 14/15       

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
13/14 07/10/14 21             76147        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                996.50               .00 CIP3−SLURRY SEAL         
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00            996.50               .00

TOTAL    SLURRY SEALS 14/15                                      .00            996.50               .00

TOTAL    TE/STP(RTPA)EXCHANGE FUND                               .00            996.50               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:30                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   16
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 029 − GAS TAX  SECTION 2105    
BUDGET UNIT − 4729 − GAS TAX  SECTION 2105    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
13/14 07/10/14 21             7728         6399 DISPENSING TECHN              1,792.51               .00 OPTIMAX BLOWER           
13/14 07/10/14 21             7729         6399 DISPENSING TECHN              4,891.25               .00 RENTAL MAGMA             
13/14 07/10/14 21             7797         6399 DISPENSING TECHN              2,957.36               .00 CRACK SEALANT            
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          9,641.12               .00

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
13/14 07/10/14 21             76138        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                662.67               .00 CIP5−STREET MAINT.       
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00            662.67               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX  SECTION 2105                                   .00         10,303.79               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX  SECTION 2105                                   .00         10,303.79               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:30                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   17
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 033 − LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4723C − RECLAMITE SEALING 14/15  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
13/14 07/10/14 21             76148        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              1,241.97               .00 CIP1−RECLAMITE PROJ.     
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          1,241.97               .00

TOTAL    RECLAMITE SEALING 14/15                                 .00          1,241.97               .00

TOTAL    LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND                               .00          1,241.97               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:30                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   18
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 034 − GAS TAX SECTION 2103     
BUDGET UNIT − 4734D − STREET OVERLAYS 14/15    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
13/14 07/10/14 21             76146        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                985.50               .00 CIP2−STREET OVERLAYS     
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00            985.50               .00

TOTAL    STREET OVERLAYS 14/15                                   .00            985.50               .00

TOTAL    GAS TAX SECTION 2103                                    .00            985.50               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:30                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   19
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             61473        6146 HANFORD CHRYSLER                265.87               .00 WHEEL SENSOR             
13/14 07/10/14 21             61465        6146 HANFORD CHRYSLER                696.60               .00 WHEEL STEER              
13/14 07/10/14 21             50021659     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                545.03               .00 TIRE RACKS               
13/14 07/10/14 21             5022657      2671 KELLER MOTORS                 1,073.97               .00 WHEELS                   
13/14 07/10/14 21             386574       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                  8.90               .00 SWITCH                   
13/14 07/10/14 21             5348667162   6145 AUTO ZONE                         8.39               .00 OIL FILTER               
13/14 07/10/14 21             5348667194   6145 AUTO ZONE                        16.77               .00 OIL FILTERS              
13/14 07/10/14 21             312145       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                442.84               .00 STOCK TIRE RACKS         
13/14 07/10/14 21             312230       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                637.00               .00 TIRE/MOUNT               
13/14 07/10/14 21             386167       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                291.38               .00 AIR FILTER               
13/14 07/10/14 21             386570       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                112.77               .00 WIPER BLADE              
13/14 07/10/14 21             386543       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 11.55               .00 WASHER FLUID             
13/14 07/10/14 21             CALEM11858   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                127.56               .00 SPLIT KEY RING/FUSE      
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          4,238.63               .00

4220F    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL  
13/14 07/10/14 21             630027       0043 BURROWS & CASTAD             11,665.83               .00 CARDLOCK STATMENT        
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES FUEL                                 .00         11,665.83               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
13/14 07/10/14 21             F651546      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                842.46               .00 MODULE, INLET            
13/14 07/10/14 21             F651363      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                157.95               .00 SWITCH BINARY            
13/14 07/10/14 21             61559        6146 HANFORD CHRYSLER                676.87               .00 SHOCK SUSPENSION         
13/14 07/10/14 21             F651424      0799 GOLDEN STATE PET                 93.75               .00 SWITCH*FAN CLUTCH        
13/14 07/10/14 21             H124347      3099 NVB EQUIPMENT, I                 72.62               .00 AIR DIFFUSE              
13/14 07/10/14 21             385887       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 52.33               .00 SERPENTINE BELT          
13/14 07/10/14 21             385990       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                  3.97               .00 RETAINER                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             386023       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 54.09               .00 SPARK PLUG               
13/14 07/10/14 21             386027       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                  4.91               .00 VALVE                    
13/14 07/10/14 21             386046       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 53.95               .00 WIRE SET                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             311886       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                833.95               .00 RECAP TIRE/ AXLES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             312006       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                833.95               .00 RECAP TIRE/ AXLE         
13/14 07/10/14 21             311880       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                656.34               .00 ALIGN LIGHTS/BALANCE     
13/14 07/10/14 21             311843       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                331.50               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT/MOUNT      
13/14 07/10/14 21             311711       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                425.65               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT/MOUNT      
13/14 07/10/14 21             311451       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                162.61               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT/MOUNT      
13/14 07/10/14 21             310969       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                416.98               .00 RECAP TIRE               
13/14 07/10/14 21             310957       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                420.48               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT/MOUNT      
13/14 07/10/14 21             310801       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                663.00               .00 TIRE/MOUNT/DISMOUNT      
13/14 07/10/14 21             310781       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                833.95               .00 RECAP TIRE               
13/14 07/10/14 21             312078       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                710.92               .00 TIRE/MOUNT/DISMOUNT      
13/14 07/10/14 21             312215       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                412.96               .00 TIRE/MOUNT/DISMOUNT      
13/14 07/10/14 21             312174       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE              1,613.73               .00 TIRE/DISMOUNT/MOUNT      
13/14 07/10/14 21             310935       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                285.99               .00 RECAP TIRE               
13/14 07/10/14 21             386098       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 70.05               .00 FUEL/OIL FILTER          
13/14 07/10/14 21             386102       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 17.82               .00 BLADE                    

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:30                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   20
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES     (cont’d)
13/14 07/10/14 21             386129       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 58.28               .00 AIR FILTER               
13/14 07/10/14 21             386310       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                164.73               .00 SPRAK PLUG/WIRE SET      
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−97049   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  2.46               .00 FUSE                     
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−97050   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 85.33               .00 HOSE                     
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−96253   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 18.22               .00 HOSE                     
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−96269   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 37.61               .00 WIRE 10LB SPOOL          
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−96579   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 19.33               .00 TAILGATE HANDLE          
13/14 07/10/14 21             386345       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                  6.12               .00 THRD ROD                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             386499       0252 KINGS AUTO SUPPL                 12.58               .00 AIR FILTER               
13/14 07/10/14 21             PC150077601  6323 QUINN COMPANY                    29.28               .00 CHARGER CORD             
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00         11,136.72               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501134645   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       44.42               .00 SHIRTS/EMPLOYEE/PANTS    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501139665   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       44.42               .00 SHITS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE     
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501144159   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       40.58               .00 SHITS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE     
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501148916   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       40.58               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            170.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             074764807    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 42.88               .00 PRINTER−JUNE             
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513168 5516 AT&T                              2.08               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             44.96               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
13/14 07/10/14 21             800806       0649 DAVE’S UPHOLSTRY                125.00               .00 REPAIR BUCKET SEAT       
13/14 07/10/14 21             312007       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 18.50               .00 REPAIR                   
13/14 07/10/14 21             311385       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 18.50               .00 REPAIR                   
13/14 07/10/14 21             311153       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 20.00               .00 REPAIR                   
13/14 07/10/14 21             310966       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 18.50               .00 REPAIR                   
13/14 07/10/14 21             311027       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 18.50               .00 REPAIR                   
13/14 07/10/14 21             311551       0056 BILLINGSLEY TIRE                 75.00               .00 REPAIR                   
13/14 07/10/14 21             LEMOORE 6−14 6085 COUNTY OF KINGS                 150.00               .00 CLEANING TRUCK 109       
13/14 07/10/14 21             696085       6385 STEREO WORKZ                    279.50               .00 WINDOW TINT 115/116      
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            723.50               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         27,979.64               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00         27,979.64               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:31                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   21
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  6.54               .00 INTERVIEW/B. AUSTIN      
13/14 07/10/14 21             C584360      5223 HD SUPPLY WATERW                184.56               .00 METER SPUD WRENCH        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201409      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 19.20               .00 PVC/GASKET MAKER         
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201646      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.70               .00 SAFETY TREAD             
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179990      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.49               .00 HOLE SAW                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             F0802778     6058 UNIVAR                        1,638.05               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201778      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.35               .00 WASP SPRAY               
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201855      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 56.39               .00 SHOVEL/HAND TROWEL       
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201900      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 18.04               .00 7’MED DLX                
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180570      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.85               .00 BUNGEE CORD              
13/14 07/10/14 21             F0802574     6058 UNIVAR                          729.63               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
13/14 07/10/14 21             F0802575     6058 UNIVAR                        1,960.61               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
13/14 07/10/14 21             A178401      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.36               .00 LUBRICANT                
13/14 07/10/14 21             A178431      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 10.73               .00 LUBRICANT                
13/14 07/10/14 21             A179435      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.75               .00 FAST CAULK               
13/14 07/10/14 21             73527        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 56.92               .00 PVC PIPE CUTTER          
13/14 07/10/14 21             91996        0428 STONEY’S SAND &                 151.35               .00 CONCRETE MIX             
13/14 07/10/14 21             F0803085     6058 UNIVAR                        2,665.43               .00 SODIUM,FUEL,MILL FEE     
13/14 07/10/14 21             I−041218     1116 GOLDEN STATE FLO              1,765.53               .00 SEN−7045 METERS          
13/14 07/10/14 21 6794    −01 2014−4235    6419 G3 ENGINEERING,               7,154.00         −7,154.00 METERING PUMPS−ENCORE 700
13/14 07/10/14 21 6794    −02 2014−4235    6419 G3 ENGINEERING,                 536.55           −536.55 SALES TAX                
13/14 07/10/14 21 6794    −03 2014−4235    6419 G3 ENGINEERING,                 400.00           −400.00 FREIGHT                  
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00         17,404.03         −8,090.55

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−95816   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  3.44               .00 HEAT SHRINK TUBING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             B199944      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  7.83               .00 SHRINK TUBING            
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200974      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.56               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−95805   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                 10.11               .00 NUT,WASHER,SCREW         
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−95734   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                  9.98               .00 SCREW,WASHER,NUT         
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201755      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 23.57               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180162      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.39               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180134      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 21.49               .00 GRAPHTURRET NOZZLE       
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180579      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 45.86               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
13/14 07/10/14 21             A180663      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  2.88               .00 MINI CLAMP               
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−97277   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                338.79               .00 MARINE DPCYCLE BATT      
13/14 07/10/14 21             7459−97239   0314 LEMOORE AUTO SUP                203.02               .00 COM & TRACTOR BAT        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200025      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 80.45               .00 NUTS & BOLTS             
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200397      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  3.44               .00 NUTS & BLOTS             
13/14 07/10/14 21             73507        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 25.96               .00 BALL VALVE               
13/14 07/10/14 21             73539        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                224.43               .00 BALL VALVE/ELEC. TAPE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             73674        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 45.26               .00 1’ SCH80 F/A             
13/14 07/10/14 21             73852        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 15.02               .00 BALL VALVE, LO−TORQUE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             73980        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 56.09               .00 UNION BALL CHK VLV       
13/14 07/10/14 21             CM083051     0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR               −251.67               .00 MULLER REPAIR KIT        
13/14 07/10/14 21             1006684      0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR                298.65               .00 MJ BURY ELL              

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:31                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   22
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES     (cont’d)
13/14 07/10/14 21             1003745      0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR                651.41               .00 8 WIDE RANGE COUP        
13/14 07/10/14 21             1005185      0188 FERGUSON ENTERPR              1,039.32               .00 COUP LINKS/BOLTS         
13/14 07/10/14 21             CALEM11844   5866 FASTENAL COMPANY                 28.07               .00 LOUV DIVIDER             
13/14 07/10/14 21             9475666138   0521 GRAINGER                        188.86               .00 2−AXIAL FANS             
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00          3,077.21               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             14214        2498 DAVI LABORATORIE                342.00               .00 WELL WATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             76139        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                500.76               .00 URBAN WATER MANG PLAN    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501134652   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       43.05               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501139674   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       43.05               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501144165   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       43.05               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501148922   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       43.05               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             76142        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                189.07               .00 GENERAL ENGINEERING      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          1,204.03               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*82600119 0363 P G & E                       9,031.82               .00 05/23/2014−06/19/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513168 5516 AT&T                              2.92               .00 559−925−2806             
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513171 5516 AT&T                             16.72               .00 559−925−9481             
13/14 07/10/14 21             MAY−JUN14*   0423 THE GAS COMPANY                  50.00               .00 05/22/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          9,101.46               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
13/14 07/10/14 21             382,237      5372 FRANCHISE TAX BO                430.35               .00 GARNISHMENT              
13/14 07/10/14 21             382,237      0227 INGRAM DIGITAL E              1,318.04               .00 SOFTWARE CHANGES         
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          1,748.39               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  8.27               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
13/14 07/10/14 21             074764807    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 42.88               .00 PRINTER−JUNE             
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             51.15               .00

4825     MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT    
13/14 07/10/14 21             W32492−0614  5436 CHEVRON ENERGY S            722,000.00               .00 SOLAR/WATER PYMT7        
TOTAL    MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                                   .00        722,000.00               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00        754,586.27         −8,090.55

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:31                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   23
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4251 − UTILITY OFFICE           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             81501        5546 INFOSEND                      3,734.06               .00 JUNE BILLS               
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,734.06               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513172 5516 AT&T                             11.55               .00 05/25/2014−06/24/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             11.55               .00

4360     TRAINING                 
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 11.01               .00 TRAINING/J. JOHNSON      
TOTAL    TRAINING                                                .00             11.01               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                 47.31               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             47.31               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00          3,803.93               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00        758,390.20         −8,090.55

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:31                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   24
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 056 − REFUSE                   
BUDGET UNIT − 4256 − REFUSE                   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  6.76               .00 INTERVIEW/B. AUSTIN      
13/14 07/10/14 21             1779         6426 INDEPENDENT SALE                 82.43               .00 PROFESSIONAL WASH        
13/14 07/10/14 21             B201891      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 59.10               .00 IRON PIPE WRENCH         
13/14 07/10/14 21             A178878      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 32.22               .00 LED POCKET LIGHT         
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200544      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 14.60               .00 LED POCKET LIGHT         
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            195.11               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501134663   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       38.95               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501139682   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       42.85               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501144169   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       36.35               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501148931   2653 AMERIPRIDE                      127.77               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             009          2905 COSTA, PAUL                      79.00               .00 REIMBURSE/COSTA/DMV      
13/14 07/10/14 21             1128         T908 YGNACIO CARRILLO                 79.00               .00 REMBURSE/CARILLO/DMV     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            403.92               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513168 5516 AT&T                              1.67               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              1.67               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  3.38               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
13/14 07/10/14 21             074764807    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 27.74               .00 PRINTER−JUNE             
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             31.12               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00            631.82               .00

TOTAL    REFUSE                                                  .00            631.82               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:32                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   25
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                  6.54               .00 INTERVIEW/B. AUSTIN      
13/14 07/10/14 21             A178228      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                 31.16               .00 8PC T−HANDLE KEY SET     
13/14 07/10/14 21             B200637      0304 LEMOORE HARDWARE                  5.15               .00 WASP/HORNET SPRAY        
13/14 07/10/14 21             A185868      0068 GARY BURROWS, IN               −157.91               .00 CHEVRON RANDO HD46       
13/14 07/10/14 21             A186525      0068 GARY BURROWS, IN                 78.96               .00 CHEVRON RANDO 46         
13/14 07/10/14 21             A185869      0068 GARY BURROWS, IN                 78.96               .00 CHEVRON RANDO 46         
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             42.86               .00

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
13/14 07/10/14 21             73610        0474 WEST VALLEY SUPP                 42.33               .00 SAW PVC/ABS              
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00             42.33               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             4126620      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4126702      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                200.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4126717      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                335.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4126788      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                110.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127039      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                 40.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127157      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127166      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                200.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127168      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                685.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127197      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127276      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                110.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127304      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                210.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127535      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                 40.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127594      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                100.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127806      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                200.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             4127810      6245 MOORE TWINING AS                335.00               .00 WASTEWATER TESTING       
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501134657   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       35.48               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501139679   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       33.48               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501144167   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       35.48               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             1501148925   2653 AMERIPRIDE                       31.98               .00 SHIRTS/PANTS/EMPLOYEE    
13/14 07/10/14 21             76142        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                189.06               .00 GENERAL ENGINEERING      
13/14 07/10/14 21             76241        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                517.40               .00 LEPRINO                  
13/14 07/10/14 21             76141        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                234.18               .00 INDSTRL WW RATE SRVCS    
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,942.06               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN489007642 0363 P G & E                      30,003.49               .00 05/15/2014−06/13/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513434 5516 AT&T                             16.37               .00 559−925−8587             
13/14 07/10/14 21             000005513168 5516 AT&T                              1.68               .00 559−925−2806             
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         30,021.54               .00

4380     RENTALS & LEASES         
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                  1.78               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
13/14 07/10/14 21             074764807    0483 XEROX CORPORATIO                 40.35               .00 PRINTER−JUNE             

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:32                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   26
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 060 − SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE
BUDGET UNIT − 4260 − SEWER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4380     RENTALS & LEASES          (cont’d)
TOTAL    RENTALS & LEASES                                        .00             42.13               .00

4825     MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT    
13/14 07/10/14 21             W32492−0614  5436 CHEVRON ENERGY S            218,500.00               .00 SOLAR/SEWER PYMT 7       
13/14 07/10/14 21 6785    −01 119476       5055 SHAPE INC.                    6,129.75         −6,129.75 19TH AVE LIFT PUMP       
13/14 07/10/14 21 6785    −02 119476       5055 SHAPE INC.                      459.73           −459.73 SALES TAX                
13/14 07/10/14 21 6785    −03 119476       5055 SHAPE INC.                      222.22           −222.22 FREIGHT                  
TOTAL    MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT                                   .00        225,311.70         −6,811.70

TOTAL    SEWER                                                   .00        259,402.62         −6,811.70

TOTAL    SEWER& STROM WTR DRAINAGE                               .00        259,402.62         −6,811.70

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:32                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   27
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 065 − STREETS CAP − EAST       
BUDGET UNIT − 4721E − RECONSTRUCT 14/15        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
13/14 07/10/14 21             76149        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.              6,028.98               .00 CIP4−BUSH ST.            
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          6,028.98               .00

TOTAL    RECONSTRUCT 14/15                                       .00          6,028.98               .00

TOTAL    STREETS CAP − EAST                                      .00          6,028.98               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:32                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   28
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 074 − PARKS & RECREATION CAP   
BUDGET UNIT − 4730E − INSULATION & HVAC        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
13/14 07/10/14 21             5884         6252 BROKEN DRUM INSU              2,340.00               .00 CIP4− MATERIALS/HVAC     
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00          2,340.00               .00

TOTAL    INSULATION & HVAC                                       .00          2,340.00               .00

TOTAL    PARKS & RECREATION CAP                                  .00          2,340.00               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:32                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   29
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 075 − FACILITY/INFRASTRUCTURE  
BUDGET UNIT − 4775E − CONCESSION STAND − 19 AVE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4317     CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA. 
13/14 07/10/14 21             22810        0388 REED ELECTRIC                   365.31               .00 CIP 3− CONC. STAND       
TOTAL    CONSTRUCTION/IMPLEMENTA.                                .00            365.31               .00

TOTAL    CONCESSION STAND − 19 AVE                               .00            365.31               .00

TOTAL    FACILITY/INFRASTRUCTURE                                 .00            365.31               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:32                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   30
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4800 − LLMD−UNALLOCATED         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             8802614−JN14 0373 PITNEY BOWES, IN                   .20               .00 POSTAGE/4TH QRT          
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00               .20               .00

TOTAL    LLMD−UNALLOCATED                                        .00               .20               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:32                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   31
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4801 − LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 48.00               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
13/14 07/10/14 21             16097        6414 PRIMOW LANDSCAPE                275.00               .00 ALLEY/WEED REMOVAL       
13/14 07/10/14 21             16085        6414 PRIMOW LANDSCAPE                277.50               .00 SPRINKLER REPLACEMENT    
13/14 07/10/14 21             16111        6414 PRIMOW LANDSCAPE              1,950.00               .00 IRRIGATION WORK          
13/14 07/10/14 21             406938       5637 ELITE MAINTENANC                375.00               .00 ADD SOD & SPRINKLERS     
13/14 07/10/14 21             22822        0388 REED ELECTRIC                    97.50               .00 FIREHOUSE SPRINLKLER     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          3,023.00               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 174.60               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                   5.40               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  18.00               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  23.40               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  36.90               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  12.60               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                   2.70               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  77.40               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  29.70               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  55.80               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  71.10               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 375.30               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  37.80               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          66.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.54               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.76               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00          1,061.06               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 1 WESTFIELD                                   .00          4,084.06               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   32
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4803 − LLMD ZONE3 SILVA ESTATES 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  8.33               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              8.33               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  21.60               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                   8.10               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  32.40               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  39.60               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            154.25               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE3 SILVA ESTATES                                .00            162.58               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   33
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4805 − LLMD ZONE 5 WILDFLOWER   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                   .93               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00               .93               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                    .90               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00               .90               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 5 WILDFLOWER                                  .00              1.83               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   34
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4806 − LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  1.02               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              1.02               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  24.30               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             24.30               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 6 CAPISTRANO                                  .00             25.32               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   35
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4807 − LLMD ZONE 7 SILVERADO    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  2.13               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              2.13               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 117.90               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            117.90               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 7 SILVERADO                                   .00            120.03               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   36
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4808 − LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 14.27               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             14.27               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  60.30               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  60.30               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            120.60               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 8 CTRY.CLB.VILL                               .00            134.87               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   37
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4809 − LLMD ZONE 9 LA DANTE ROSE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  3.22               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              3.22               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                   9.90               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00              9.90               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 9 LA DANTE ROSE                               .00             13.12               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   38
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4810 − LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  9.78               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              9.78               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 225.90               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  11.70               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  35.10               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            283.21               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 10 AVALON                                     .00            292.99               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   39
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4811 − LLMD ZONE 11 SELF HELP EN

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                   .99               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00               .99               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  30.60               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             30.60               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 11 SELF HELP EN                               .00             31.59               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   40
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4812 − LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 41.29               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
13/14 07/10/14 21             22823        0388 REED ELECTRIC                    65.00               .00  POWER TO SPRINKLER      
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            106.29               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 153.90               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  16.20               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  31.50               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.54               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          12.95               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            225.09               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 12 SUMMERWIND                                 .00            331.38               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   41
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4813 − LLMD ZONE 13 CORNERSTONE 

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                  2.55               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              2.55               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  54.90               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             54.90               .00

TOTAL    LLMD ZONE 13 CORNERSTONE                                .00             57.45               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   42
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815A − PFMD ZONE 1 THE LANDING  

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 41.79               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             41.79               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  74.70               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             74.70               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 1 THE LANDING                                 .00            116.49               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   43
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815B − PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                127.86               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            127.86               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  36.90               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  62.10               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  75.60               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  73.80               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                 117.90               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  89.10               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.66               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.67               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.65               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          95.90               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.66               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            593.94               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE                                     .00            721.80               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   44
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815C − PFMD ZONE 3 SILVA 10     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 36.70               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             36.70               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  39.60               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  21.60               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.62               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             71.82               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 3 SILVA 10                                    .00            108.52               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:33                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   45
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815D − PFMD ZONE 4 PARKVIEW     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 10.33               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             10.33               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  59.40               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          10.51               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00             69.91               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 4 PARKVIEW                                    .00             80.24               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:34                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   46
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815E − PFMD EAST VILLAGE PARK   

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 53.13               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             53.13               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
13/14 07/10/14 21             07252014     2320 CITY OF LEMOORE                  86.40               .00 MAY−JUNE SERVICES        
13/14 07/10/14 21             JUN*47290573 0363 P G & E                          99.98               .00 05/23/2014−06/23/2014    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00            186.38               .00

TOTAL    PFMD EAST VILLAGE PARK                                  .00            239.51               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:34                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   47
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815F − SAGECREST ESTATES        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             76140        0876 QUAD KNOPF, INC.                 10.98               .00 ENGINEERING SERVICES     
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00             10.98               .00

TOTAL    SAGECREST ESTATES                                       .00             10.98               .00

TOTAL    LLMD/PFMD                                               .00          6,532.96               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:34                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:   48
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 09:37:27                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 085 − PBIA                     
BUDGET UNIT − 4270 − PBIA                     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 28.96               .00 FRI. MRKET/J. HOLWELL    
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 21.48               .00 FRI. MRKET/J. HOLWELL    
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00             50.44               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
13/14 07/10/14 21             140602       6337 LEON SECURITY CO                240.00               .00 FRIDAY MRKET SECURITY    
13/14 07/10/14 21             07072014     5563 RUSTY DEROUIN                   300.00               .00 JUNE SERVICES            
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            540.00               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            590.44               .00

TOTAL    PBIA                                                    .00            590.44               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00      1,186,192.82        −18,370.10

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:37:34                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 09:43:45                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.batch=’MJ715P13
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   13/14 07/10/14  21              T1868 CUB SCOUT PACK 425                                    25.00  REFUND/CUB SCOUT PACK    
   13/14 07/10/14  21              6007 SPEEDO CHECK                                          594.00  SPEEDOMETER CHECK        
   13/14 07/10/14  21              0300 LEM CITY−PETTY CASH                                    36.00  JIM MATTINGLY            
   13/14 07/10/14  21              T1755 BURKE, MIKE                                           35.00  REFUND/M.BURKE           
   13/14 07/10/14  21              T1863 TOCHO FANTACY                                         25.00  REFUND/T.FANTACY         
   13/14 07/10/14  21              T1862 JUAN SANCHEZ                                          50.00  REFUND/J.SANCHEZ         
   13/14 07/10/14  21              2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC                                1,035.00  FINGERPRINTS             
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00          1,800.00

2248     RECREATION  IN/OUT       
   13/14 07/10/14  21              0300 LEM CITY−PETTY CASH                  36.00                    JIM MATTINGLY            
TOTAL    RECREATION  IN/OUT                                                  36.00               .00

2248B    REC 4TH OF JULY          
   13/14 07/10/14  21              T1868 CUB SCOUT PACK 425                  25.00                    REFUND/CUB SCOUT PACK    
   13/14 07/10/14  21              T1755 BURKE, MIKE                         35.00                    REFUND/M.BURKE           
   13/14 07/10/14  21              T1863 TOCHO FANTACY                       25.00                    REFUND/T.FANTACY         
   13/14 07/10/14  21              T1862 JUAN SANCHEZ                        50.00                    REFUND/J.SANCHEZ         
TOTAL    REC 4TH OF JULY                                                    135.00               .00

2279     STORED VEH. FINES/TRF.OFF
   13/14 07/10/14  21              6007 SPEEDO CHECK                        594.00                    SPEEDOMETER CHECK        
TOTAL    STORED VEH. FINES/TRF.OFF                                          594.00               .00

2285     LIFE SCAN DEPOSITS−−PD   
   13/14 07/10/14  21              2399 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTIC              1,035.00                    FINGERPRINTS             
TOTAL    LIFE SCAN DEPOSITS−−PD                                           1,035.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                     1,800.00          1,800.00

TOTAL REPORT                                                              1,800.00          1,800.00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 09:43:46                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT31
TIME: 08:57:55                                      REVENUE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’14’ and transact.period=’13’ and transact.account between ’3000’ and ’3999’ and transact.batch=’MJ7
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C RECEIVE REFERENCE   PAYER/VENDOR        BUDGET          RECEIPTS       RECEIVABLES DESCRIPTION

3625     CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL  
   13/14 07/10/14 21 0        06272014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                −25.00                   MARIA PIMENTEL           
   13/14 07/10/14 21 0        12647        T1866 STACY AISPURO                 −250.00                   REFUND/S.AISPURO         
   13/14 07/10/14 21 0        12864        T1865 AMBER ARIAS                   −150.00                   REFUND/A.ARIAS           
   13/14 07/10/14 21 0        12921/12102  T1864 CLAUDIA LLAMAS                −237.50                   REFUND/C.LLAMAS          
   13/14 07/10/14 21 0        13204        T1867 MARIA GOMEZ                   −200.00                   REFUND/M.GOMEZ           
TOTAL    CIVIC AUDITORIUM RENTAL                                 .00           −862.50               .00

3681     RECREATION FEES          
   13/14 07/10/14 21 0        12962        T1869 RITA MORENO                   −180.00                   REFUND/R.MORENO          
   13/14 07/10/14 21 0        06272014     0300 LEM CITY−PETTY C                 −8.00                   VICTORIA MARTINEZ        
TOTAL    RECREATION FEES                                         .00           −188.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00         −1,050.50               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00         −1,050.50               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00         −1,050.50               .00

                   RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 08:57:55  PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 07/10/2014 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 10:34:01 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4215 − FINANCE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
1 /15 07/10/14 21 2−707−58722  0157 FEDERAL EXPRESS 47.17 .00 OVERNIGHT MAILING
1 /15 07/10/14 21 82496 5927 SUNGARD PUBLIC S 2,387.30 .00 MAINTENANCE SVCS
1 /15 07/10/14 21 82439 5927 SUNGARD PUBLIC S 18,156.58 .00 MAINTENANCE SVCS
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC .00 20,591.05 .00

4320     MEETINGS & DUES
1 /15 07/10/14 21 0190684 5308 GOVERNMENT FINAN 190.00 .00 MEMBERSHIP FEE
TOTAL    MEETINGS & DUES .00 190.00 .00

TOTAL    FINANCE .00 20,781.05 .00

RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:34:02 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 2-3



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    2
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:34:01                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4220 − MAINTENANCE DIVISION     

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
1 /15 07/10/14 21             526197       5573 CENTRAL SANITARY                226.13               .00 TP JUMBO 2PLY            
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00            226.13               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
1 /15 07/10/14 21             140702       5231 SUNDANCE WATER D              3,684.49               .00 FOUNTAIN MAINT.          
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00          3,684.49               .00

TOTAL    MAINTENANCE DIVISION                                    .00          3,910.62               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:34:02                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    3
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:34:01                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             
BUDGET UNIT − 4242 − RECREATION               

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
1 /15 07/10/14 21             1448         6099 BOCKYN,LLC                      250.00               .00 JULY MAINTENANCE         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00            250.00               .00

TOTAL    RECREATION                                              .00            250.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                            .00         24,941.67               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:34:02                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    4
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:34:01                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 028 − CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ   
BUDGET UNIT − 4726R − 19 1/2 SIDEWALKS WESTSIDE

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4318     ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL
1 /15 07/10/14 21             07012014     6446 SAN JOAQUIN VALL              9,768.00               .00 19 1/2 AVENUE DESIGN     
TOTAL    ENGINEERING/PLANNED DEVEL                               .00          9,768.00               .00

TOTAL    19 1/2 SIDEWALKS WESTSIDE                               .00          9,768.00               .00

TOTAL    CITY GRANTS−  CAP PROJ                                  .00          9,768.00               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:34:02                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    5
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:34:01                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 040 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        
BUDGET UNIT − 4265 − FLEET MAINTENANCE        

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4230     REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES    
1 /15 07/10/14 21             50022170     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                748.95               .00 CONTROL                  
1 /15 07/10/14 21             50022235     0458 KELLER FORD LINC                158.35               .00 SEAT BELT                
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SUPPLIES                                   .00            907.30               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00            907.30               .00

TOTAL    FLEET MAINTENANCE                                       .00            907.30               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:34:02                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    6
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:34:01                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 045 − GOLF COURSE − CITY       
BUDGET UNIT − 4245 − GOLF COURSE−CITY         

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4000K    COST OF REVENUE−KITCHEN  
1 /15 07/10/14 21             407031033    6440 SYSCO                           435.24               .00 TOMATOES                 
1 /15 07/10/14 21             8000448      6442 SLUSH PUPPIE PRO                344.95               .00 SUPREME FRENCH 2/5LB     
1 /15 07/10/14 21             8048         1628 LEMOORE FOOD LOC                561.34               .00 TRI−TIP                  
TOTAL    COST OF REVENUE−KITCHEN                                 .00          1,341.53               .00

4000P    COST OF REVENUE−PRO SHOP 
1 /15 07/10/14 21             5688043      6444 FOOTJOY                       2,090.58               .00 MENS BLK/WHT SHOES       
1 /15 07/10/14 21             5700590      6444 FOOTJOY                          60.70               .00 MENS BLK/WHT SHOES       
1 /15 07/10/14 21             5700050      6444 FOOTJOY                          40.22               .00 MENS BLK/WHT SHOES       
1 /15 07/10/14 21             5698132      6444 FOOTJOY                          70.56               .00 WHT/TAUPE SHOES          
1 /15 07/10/14 21             22404578     6443 TAYLOR MADE GOLF                 57.41               .00 SHIRTS                   
1 /15 07/10/14 21             22396821     6443 TAYLOR MADE GOLF                566.27               .00 23ADIDAS SHIRTS          
TOTAL    COST OF REVENUE−PRO SHOP                                .00          2,885.74               .00

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
1 /15 07/10/14 21             A428595      6445 GARY V. BURROWS,                430.47               .00 100 GAL. UNLEADED GAS    
1 /15 07/10/14 21             A428594      6445 GARY V. BURROWS,                315.62               .00 80 GAL. DIESEL FUEL      
1 /15 07/10/14 21             80452451     6438 PEPSI BEVERAGES                 549.95               .00 33 CASES OF SODA         
1 /15 07/10/14 21             407031033    6440 SYSCO                           202.25               .00 TOWELS                   
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          1,498.29               .00

4291     MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES   
1 /15 07/10/14 21             204886       6441 COURSE TRENDS, I                295.00               .00 MARKETING SRVC/JULY      
TOTAL    MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES                                  .00            295.00               .00

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
1 /15 07/10/14 21             06092014     6439 BOBBY MAHAFFEY                  350.00               .00 DEGREASE/HOOD CLEAN      
1 /15 07/10/14 21             15825400     6447 PNC EQUIPMENT FI              4,554.88               .00 EQUIPMENT                
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00          4,904.88               .00

4340     UTILITIES                
1 /15 07/10/14 21             JUNE−GOLF    0363 P G & E                      13,821.22               .00 7439240444−3   7/8/14    
1 /15 07/10/14 21             JUNE−GOLF    0363 P G & E                         813.08               .00 8366977818−1   7/1/14    
1 /15 07/10/14 21             JUNE−GOLF    0363 P G & E                         210.81               .00 7208107707−4  6/30/14    
TOTAL    UTILITIES                                               .00         14,845.11               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE−CITY                                        .00         25,770.55               .00

TOTAL    GOLF COURSE − CITY                                      .00         25,770.55               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:34:02                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    7
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:34:01                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4250 − WATER                    

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4220     OPERATING SUPPLIES       
1 /15 07/10/14 21             535058       2109 SPOLSDOFF ENTERP              1,816.32               .00 110 GALLONS PUMP OIL     
TOTAL    OPERATING SUPPLIES                                      .00          1,816.32               .00

4350     REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES    
1 /15 07/10/14 21             764644       6002 R&R BACKFLOW                    402.55               .00 BACKFLOW TEST/REPAIR     
TOTAL    REPAIR/MAINT SERVICES                                   .00            402.55               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00          2,218.87               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:34:02                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    8
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:34:01                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 050 − WATER                    
BUDGET UNIT − 4251 − UTILITY OFFICE           

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
1 /15 07/10/14 21             82496        5927 SUNGARD PUBLIC S              2,387.30               .00 MAINTENANCE SVCS         
1 /15 07/10/14 21             82439        5927 SUNGARD PUBLIC S             26,696.27               .00 MAINTENANCE SVCS         
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00         29,083.57               .00

TOTAL    UTILITY OFFICE                                          .00         29,083.57               .00

TOTAL    WATER                                                   .00         31,302.44               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:34:02                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    9
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT11
TIME: 10:34:01                                    EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.fund between ’001’ and ’099’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 078 − LLMD/PFMD                
BUDGET UNIT − 4815B − PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE      

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR              BUDGET      EXPENDITURES      ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

4310     PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC
1 /15 07/10/14 21             5601         0370 PHIL’S LOCKSMITH                  7.85               .00 DEEP KEY/RINGS           
TOTAL    PROFESSIONAL CONTRACT SVC                               .00              7.85               .00

TOTAL    PFMD ZONE 2 DEVANTE                                     .00              7.85               .00

TOTAL    LLMD/PFMD                                               .00              7.85               .00

TOTAL REPORT                                                     .00         92,697.81               .00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:34:02                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI                                                                                                                PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 07/10/2014                                          CITY OF LEMOORE                                          AUDIT311
TIME: 10:44:34                                  GENERAL LEDGER TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: account.acct between ’2000’ and ’2999’AND transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.batch=’MJ0715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 001 − GENERAL FUND             

ACCOUNT    DATE   T/C  REFERENCE  VENDOR/PAYER                              DEBIT            CREDIT  DESCRIPTION

2020     ACCOUNTS PAYABLE         
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6422 MACY BUHL                                             250.00  AQUA JETS INTRUCTOR      
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              1468 LUKE BROWN                                            250.00  AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6275 SOMER KRICK                                           250.00  AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6423 THOMAS RHOADS                                         250.00  AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6421 EMMA SOUZA                                            250.00  AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6280 CASEY VENEMA                                          250.00  AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6437 GUILLERMO VARELA                                      250.00  AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T495 KINGS CHRISTIAN THRI                                  100.00  REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T1201 LEM CHIEF PETTY OFFI                                 100.00  REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T895 LEMOORE YOUTH SOCCER                                  100.00  REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T255 ASSEMBLY OF GOD, LEM                                  100.00  REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T777 LEMOORE YOUTH CHEER                                   100.00  REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T1001 LAST DAYS MINISTRIES                                 100.00  REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T493 LHS BAND BOOSTERS                                     100.00  REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T254 ASSOCIATION OF AAO#0                                  100.00  REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T249 KINGS CO FIRE DEPT C                                  100.00  REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6279 HANNAH DENNEY                                         250.00  AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
TOTAL    ACCOUNTS PAYABLE                                                      .00          2,900.00

2291     AQUA JETS                
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6422 MACY BUHL                           250.00                    AQUA JETS INTRUCTOR      
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              1468 LUKE BROWN                          250.00                    AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6275 SOMER KRICK                         250.00                    AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6423 THOMAS RHOADS                       250.00                    AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6421 EMMA SOUZA                          250.00                    AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6280 CASEY VENEMA                        250.00                    AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6437 GUILLERMO VARELA                    250.00                    AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              6279 HANNAH DENNEY                       250.00                    AQUA JETS INSTRUCTOR     
TOTAL    AQUA JETS                                                        2,000.00               .00

2315     SUSPENSE                 
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T495 KINGS CHRISTIAN THRI                100.00                    REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T1201 LEM CHIEF PETTY OFFI               100.00                    REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T895 LEMOORE YOUTH SOCCER                100.00                    REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T255 ASSEMBLY OF GOD, LEM                100.00                    REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T777 LEMOORE YOUTH CHEER                 100.00                    REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T1001 LAST DAYS MINISTRIES               100.00                    REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T493 LHS BAND BOOSTERS                   100.00                    REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T254 ASSOCIATION OF AAO#0                100.00                    REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
   1 /15 07/10/14  21              T249 KINGS CO FIRE DEPT C                100.00                    REFUND/FIREWORK DEPOS    
TOTAL    SUSPENSE                                                           900.00               .00

TOTAL    GENERAL FUND                                                     2,900.00          2,900.00

TOTAL REPORT                                                              2,900.00          2,900.00

         RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 10:44:35                                                          PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING



PEI PAGE NUMBER:    1
DATE: 07/10/2014 CITY OF LEMOORE AUDIT11
TIME: 08:44:48 EXPENDITURE TRANSACTION ANALYSIS

SELECTION CRITERIA: transact.yr=’15’ and transact.period=’1’ and transact.batch=’RDA715P1’
ACCOUNTING PERIOD:  1/15

FUND − 150 − RDA RETIREMENT OBLIG FUND
BUDGET UNIT − 4951 − RDA RETIREMENT OBLIG FUND

ACCOUNT DATE   T/C  ENCUMBR     REFERENCE VENDOR BUDGET EXPENDITURES ENCUMBRANCES DESCRIPTION

9000     OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT  
1 /15 07/10/14 21 06102014     6104 US BANK 806,776.05 .00 2011 TAX BOND
TOTAL    OPERATING TRANSFERS OUT .00 806,776.05 .00

TOTAL    RDA RETIREMENT OBLIG FUND .00 806,776.05 .00

TOTAL    RDA RETIREMENT OBLIG FUND .00 806,776.05 .00

TOTAL REPORT .00 806,776.05 .00

RUN DATE 07/10/2014 TIME 08:44:48 PEI − FUND ACCOUNTING

Item 2-4



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Public Works  

Department 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3-1 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works/Planning  
Date: July 8, 2014  

Subject: Public Hearing – Adoption of Amended Urban Water Management Plan 
2010 – Resolution No. 2014-17 

 
Discussion: 
Staff has been working with the Department of Water Resources on the adoption of the 
2010 Urban Water Management Plan.  (See Attachment A, staff report dated July 10, 
2013.) The Plan has been revised to meet all of the State’s requirements and is ready 
for adoption. 
 
I have included a memo from the City Engineer (Attachment B) outlining the changes 
that were requested by the State Department of Water Resources dated June 24, 2014.  
You will also find included, a letter of approval from Gwen Huff (Attachment C) from the 
Department of Water Resources requesting the need to hold to a public hearing to 
adopt the amended Urban Water Management Plan dated May 2014. 
 
The procedure is that Council hold a public hearing, adopt the attached resolution and 
authorize Staff to forward amended Urban Water Management Plan with any public 
comments and resolution to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for review.  
The City may have to take additional action after the DWR reviews and implement any 
required changes. 
 
Budget Impact: 
$11,495 from Water Capital Fund. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that Council: 
 

1. Hold a Public Hearing for adoption of the amended Urban Water Management 
Plan 2010. 

2. Authorize, by motion, the amended Urban Water Management Plan be forwarded 
to the Department of Water Resources. 

3. Authorize the transfer of $11,495 from Water Capital Fund for cost of updated 
plan. 

4. Pass Resolution No. 2014-17 adopting the amended Urban Water Management 
Plan 2010.  

“In God We Trust” 



Item 3-1 Attachment A



Item 3-1 Attachment B





Item 3-1 Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF LEMOORE 

 
URBAN WATER 

MANAGEMENT PLAN 
2010 – Revised   

 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 

 
5110 W. Cypress Avenue 

Visalia, CA  93277 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 2014 
 
 
 

L130009 



 i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
Chapter One - Introduction 
 
 1.1 Plan Organization................................................................................................. 1-1 
 1.2 The Urban Water Management Planning Act ...................................................... 1-1 
 1.3 Previous City Urban Water Management Plans/ 
   The City Water Supply System...................................................................... 1-2 
 1.4 Public Participation, Plan Adoption ..................................................................... 1-4 
 1.5 UWMP Amendments ........................................................................................... 1-5 
 1.6 Agency Coordination ........................................................................................... 1-5 
 
Chapter Two - Service Area 
 
 2.1 Location ............................................................................................................... 2-1 
 2.2 Climate ................................................................................................................. 2-1 
 2.3 Land Use .............................................................................................................. 2-3 
 2.4 Current and Projected Population ........................................................................ 2-3 
 2.5 Demographics ...................................................................................................... 2-6 
 2.6 Service Area Boundaries...................................................................................... 2-6 
 
Chapter Three - Water Supply (Groundwater) 
 
 3.1 Groundwater Management Plan .......................................................................... 3-1 
 3.2 The Groundwater Subbasin.................................................................................. 3-3 
 3.3 The City Water Supply ........................................................................................ 3-5 
 3.4 The Industrial Water System ............................................................................. 3-13 
 3.5 The Municipal Golf Course Irrigation System .................................................. 3-14 
 3.6 Projected Groundwater Usage ........................................................................... 3-15 
 
Chapter Four - Water Demand and Water Supply 
 
 4.1 Water Demand ..................................................................................................... 4-1 
 4.2 Water Supply ....................................................................................................... 4-7 
 4.3 Low-Income Housing Water Demand ................................................................. 4-8 
 4.4 Expansion Projects ............................................................................................... 4-9 
 4.5 Water Shortage Expectations ............................................................................... 4-9 
 4.6 Other Water Uses ............................................................................................... 4-10 
 
Chapter Five - Reliability Planning 
 
 5.1 Water Supply Reliability...................................................................................... 5-1 
 5.2 Groundwater Quality Reliability Concerns ......................................................... 5-3 
 5.3 Catastrophic Interruption Concerns ..................................................................... 5-4 
 



 ii 

Chapter Six- Supply and Demand Comparison 
 
 6.1 Supply and Demand Comparison ........................................................................ 6-1 
 
Chapter Seven- Water Demand Management Measures 
 
 7.1 DMM 1 - Water Survey Programs for Single-Family Residential and 
   Multi-Family Residential Customers ............................................................. 7-2 
 7.2 DMM 2 - Residential Plumbing Retrofit ............................................................. 7-2 
 7.3 DMM 3 - System Water Audits, Leak Detection and Repair .............................. 7-3 
 7.4 DMM 4 - Metering with Commodity Rates for all New Connections and 
   Retrofit of Existing Connections ................................................................... 7-3 
 7.5 DMM 5 - Large Landscape Conservation Programs and Incentives ................... 7-4 
 7.6 DMM 6 - High Efficiency Washing Machine Rebate Program .......................... 7-4 
 7.7 DMM 7 - Public Information Programs............................................................... 7-4 
 7.8 DMM 8 - School Education Program .................................................................. 7-5 
 7.9 DMM 9 - Conservation Programs for Commercial, Industrial, and  
   Institutional Accounts .................................................................................... 7-5 
 7.10 DMM 8 - School Education Program .................................................................. 7-5 
 7.11 DMM 11 - Conservation Pricing ......................................................................... 7-5 
 7.12 DMM 12 - Water Conservation Coordinator ....................................................... 7-5 
 7.13 DMM 13 - Residential Ultra-Low Flush Toilet Replacement Programs ............. 7-6 
 7.14 DMM 14 - Water Conservation Ordinance ......................................................... 7-6 
 
Chapter Eight- Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
 
 8.1 Stages of Actions ................................................................................................. 8-1 
 8.2 Water Shortage Contingency Ordinance or Resolution ....................................... 8-5 
 8.3 Mandatory Prohibitions on Water Wasting ......................................................... 8-5 
 8.4 Revenue and Expenditure Impacts/Measures to Overcome Impacts ................... 8-6 
 8.5 Actions during a Catastrophic Interruption.......................................................... 8-7 
 8.6 Reduction Measuring Mechanism ....................................................................... 8-7 
 
Chapter Nine- Water Recycling 
 
 9.1 Recycling Programs ............................................................................................. 9-1 
 9.2 Olam ..................................................................................................................... 9-1 
 9.3 Existing City Wastewater Treatment and Recycling Facilities ........................... 9-2 
 9.4 Leprino Foods ...................................................................................................... 9-2 
 9.5 Projected Direct Recycling .................................................................................. 9-2 
 
  



 iii 

LIST OF TABLES 
 
Table    Page 
No.  Title No. 
 
2.2-1  Climate ................................................................................................................. 2-3 
2.3-1  Lemoore General Plan Land Use Acreage at Plan Buildout (2030+) .................. 2-4 
2.4-1  Population Projections, 2005-2025 ...................................................................... 2-6 
3.3-1  Municipal and Industrial Water System Wells .................................................. 3-11 
3.3-2  Total Water Pumped to Customers, 2006-2010 ................................................. 3-11 
3.3-3  Total Annual Industrial Water Usage from  
   Domestic Municipal Water System ............................................................. 3-14 
3.3-4  Surface Water Utilized on the City of Lemoore Municipal Golf Course 
   2006-2010 .................................................................................................... 3-14 
4.1-1  Baseline per Capita Water Use (gallons) ............................................................. 4-2 
4.1-2  Water Service Connections .................................................................................. 4-2 
4.1-3  Projected “Domestic” Water Use ......................................................................... 4-6 
4.1-4  Projected Total Water Demands .......................................................................... 4-6 
4.1-5  Maximum Day Demand Ratios ........................................................................... 4-7 
4.2-1  Required Maximum Day Water Supply Needed ................................................. 4-7 
4.2-2  Additional Well Needs ......................................................................................... 4-8 
4.2-3  Total Volume of Groundwater Pumped (gallons) ............................................... 4-8 
4.3-1  Projected Low-Income Water Demand ............................................................... 4-9 
8.1-1  Guide for Declaring Water Shortage Stages ........................................................ 8-2 
8.1-2  Water Usage Reduction Objectives ..................................................................... 8-2 
8.4-1  Guide for Rate Adjustment .................................................................................. 8-6 
 
LIST OF FIGURES 
 
Figure    Page 
No.  Title No. 
 
1-1  Water District Boundaries Kings County ............................................................ 1-6 
1-2  Kings River Conservation District Area "C" ....................................................... 1-7 
2-1  Regional Location ................................................................................................ 2-2 
2-2  Lemoore City Limits and Service Area ............................................................... 2-5  
2-3  Population Projections, 2010-2025 ...................................................................... 2-7 
3-1  Subbasins, Tulare Lake Hydrologic Region ........................................................ 3-4 
3-2  Groundwater Elevation Contours in Spring 1989 ................................................ 3-6 
3-3  Groundwater Elevation Contours in Spring 2001 ................................................ 3-7 
3-4  Lower Kings Basin GWMP Update Groundwater Trends for Area C ................ 3-8 
3-5  Well Locations ................................................................................................... 3-10 
4-1  California Hydrologic Regions and 2020 Water Conservation Goals ................. 4-4 
4-2  Method 3 Urban Water Use Targets for Hydrologic Regions ............................. 4-5 
8-1  Water Shortage Program Organizational Structure ............................................. 8-3 
  



 iv 

LIST OF ACRONYMS 
 
AAWF   average annual water flow 
AF   acre feet 
AFY   acre-feet per year 
Act   Urban Water Management Planning Act 
BMPs   Best Management Practices 
City   City of Lemoore 
Contingency Plan Urban Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
County   Kings County 
CUWCC  California Urban Water Conservation Council 
DHS   California Department of Health Services 
DMMs   Demand Management Measures 
DWR   California Department of Water Resources 
EDU   Equivalent Dwelling Unit 
EPA   U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
ETo   Evapotranspiration-based 
°F   Degrees Fahrenheit 
GMP   Groundwater Management Program 
gpcd   gallons per capita per day 
gpd   gallons per day 
gpm   gallons per minute 
GWR   Groundwater Rule 
KCWEC  Kings County Water Education Committee 
KCWD  Kings County Water District 
KRCD   Kings River Conservation District 
LID   Laguna Irrigation District 
MCL   Maximum Contaminant Limit 
MDD   Maximum Day Demand 
MG   million gallons 
MGD   million gallons per day 
MOU   Memorandum of Understanding 
Plan   Urban Water Management Plan 
RCP   reinforced concrete pipe 
RWQCB  Regional Water Quality Control Board 
taf   thousand acre-feet 
UGB   Urban Growth Boundary 
UWMP  Urban Water Management Plan 
UWMPA  Urban Water Management Plan Act 
ULFT   Ultra Low Flush Toilet 
WWTF  Waste Water Treatment Facility 
 
  



 v 

 
Appendices 
 
 Appendix A – State Code - Urban Water Management Planning Act 
 Appendix B – UWMP Checklist 
 Appendix C – Abbreviations 
 Appendix D – Public Notice 
 Appendix E – Adoption Resolution 
 Appendix F – Adopted Resolution 
 Appendix G – UWMP Distribution Plan 
 Appendix H – Agreement, City of Lemoore and Laguna Irrigation District 
 Appendix I – Historical Groundwater Elevation Maps, Tulare Lake Subbasin 
 Appendix J – Water Conservation Ordinance, City of Lemoore 
 Appendix K – City of Lemoore Water Rate Ordinance 
 Appendix L – Water Shortage Contingency Resolution 
 Appendix M – Appointment of Water Conservation Coordinator 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHAPTER ONE 
 

INTRODUCTION 
  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  1 - 1 

CHAPTER ONE – INTRODUCTION 
 
This is the City of Lemoore's 2010 Urban Water Management Plan as required by the Urban 
Water Management Planning Act (Act).  It was prepared in cooperation with City Staff to 
address the requirements stipulated in California Water Code Division 6, Part 2.6, Sections 
10610 through 10657.  Italicized text quoting specific requirements of the Act appear preceding 
sections relevant to the quoted portion of the act as an aid to the reader.  A copy of the Act is in 
Appendix A.  The Department of Water Resources (DWR) has created a checklist of items based 
on the Act that each Plan must address.  The complete checklist is provided in Appendix B.  
Abbreviations used in the plan are in Appendix C. 
 
1.1 Plan Organization 
 
This Plan is organized into the following chapters: 
 
 Chapter One provides an overview of the City's water supply system and the Urban Water 

Management Act requirements; 
 

 Chapter Two provides a description of the service area, climate, water supply facilities, 
projected population, and service area demographics; 
 

 Chapter Three describes the City's water demands and water supply resources; 
 

 Chapter Four provides historical (baseline) water use and both interim and targeted water 
demands; 
 

 Chapter Five addresses reliability planning and groundwater quality; 
 

 Chapter Six provides a water supply and water demand comparison; 
 

 Chapter Seven addresses water conservation and demand management measures; 
 

 Chapter Eight is a water shortage contingency plan; 
 

 Chapter Nine addresses water recycling; and 
 

 Appendices A through L provide relevant supporting documents. 
 
1.2 The Urban Water Management Planning Act 
 
LAW 
 
Water Code Section 10610-10610.4 
 
10610.  This part shall be known and may be cited as the "Urban Water Management Planning 
Act." 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  1 - 2 

 
10610.2  This Legislature finds and declares…: 
 
…This part is intended to provide assistance to water agencies in carrying out their long-term  
resource planning responsibilities to ensure adequate water supplies to meet existing and future 
demands for water. 
 
10610.4  The Legislature finds and declares that it is the policy of the state as flows: 
 

(a) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of water shall be actively 
pursued to protect both the people of the state and their water resources. 
 

(b) The management of urban water demands and efficient use of urban water supplies shall 
be a guiding criterion in public decisions. 
 

(c) Urban water suppliers shall be required to develop water management plans to actively 
pursue the efficient use of available supplies. 
 

The California Water Code, Division 6, Section 10610 et seq requires all urban water suppliers 
within the state to prepare Urban Water Management Plans (UWMPs) and update them every 
five years.  Such plans satisfy the requirements of the Urban Water Management Planning act 
(UWMPA) of 1983, including amendments that have been made to the act (see Appendix A).  
This report constitutes the City of Lemoore 2010 UWMP. 
 
The Code requires that a UWMP must include historic, current and future supplies and demands 
for water; address conservation measures, and describe potential supply deficiencies during 
drought conditions and the ability to mitigate these conditions; compare total projected water use 
and supply sources over 20 years in 5-year increments, for a single dry water year and for 
multiple dry water years; and provisions for recycled water use, demand management measures, 
and a water shortage contingency plan.  A copy of the governing Code sections is included in 
Appendix A hereto; pertinent excerpts therefrom precede and are included in the Chapters in this 
Plan. 
 
In addition to some changes in the Act since the last UWMP was submitted in 2006, Governor 
Schwarzenegger established the 20x2020 Plan.  This Plan determines that for California to 
continue to have enough water to support its growing population, the State needs to reduce the 
amount of water each person uses per day (per capita daily consumption, which is measured in 
gallons per capita per day).  This reduction of 20 percent per capita use by the year 2020 is 
supported by legislation passed in November 2009, SB x 7_7 (Steinberg) Water Conservation.  
As a result, new changes have amended and repealed some sections of the Water Code and affect 
the reporting requirements under the act and other government codes. 
 
1.3 Previous City Urban Water Management Plans/The City Water Supply System 
 
The City adopted Urban Water Management Plans in 1998 and 2000, an Amended Plan in 2004, 
and in 2006 for 2005. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  1 - 3 

The initial 2000 Plan included a general description of the City's current water system and a brief 
overview of the history of the system.  An updated excerpt of that description and overview is 
included here to provide perspective for the detailed, Code-required, data and analysis in 
succeeding Chapters of this Plan. 
 
The heart of the modern City of Lemoore domestic water system was constructed in 1972, when 
several shallow supply wells within the City were taken out of service in lieu of three new wells 
constructed in an 80-acre well field located six miles north of Lemoore, adjacent to the Kings 
River.  Where the water produced by the older wells was characterized by taste, odor, and a 
prominent green-brown color, the water from the well field is absent many of these negative 
aesthetic qualities although it is periodically non-compliant with arsenic standards.  After 
litigations by an irrigation district, the City has been legally prohibited from expansion of this 
well field supply. 
 
Along with the new wells, an 18-inch transmission main was constructed to a new water 
distribution plant located in the central city at G Street west of Lemoore Avenue.  This 
distribution plant included a 1-million gallon storage tank, five distribution pumps, and an 
electronic control and telemetry system.  Additional ground-level storage has since been added 
to the system in three additional tanks, for a total current storage capacity of 4.4 million gallons. 
 
In 1977, federal Drought Relief funds allowed construction of a fourth well at the well field, and 
a second 1-million gallon storage tank.  These improvements added greatly to the ability of the 
system to support a growing urban population, and provided a greater degree of protection 
against an operational problem at the well field or a problem with the transmission main. 
 
In the late 1980's, the telemetry and control systems were completely replaced through a series 
of projects.  In addition, the capacities of the individual wells at the well field were increased, 
and in-city distribution-pumping capacity was increased by replacement and addition of 
distribution pumps.   
 
In 1995, the City constructed a deep well within the City limits (Well No. 10). 
 
In 1996, two of the original wells at the river were removed from service.  One of them was 
replaced during Spring, 1997. 
 
In 2000, two additional wells were constructed within the City limits, Wells No. 11 and 12, in the 
northeast and southwest quadrants of the community, respectively.  An additional 1 million 
gallon storage tank was constructed near the westerly terminus of the water system (at the site of 
Well No. 7 which was added to the system in 2005). 
 
All of the main domestic water supply system water is chlorinated via hypochlorite systems.  
These injection systems are located near the junction point of the three individual well discharge 
lines at the well field, near the point of service for Olam, and on the discharge lines for Wells 
No. 7, 10, 11 and 12.  This is done mostly for disinfection and aesthetic reasons.  The water that 
is pumped has been of acceptable quality to meet state current primary drinking water standards 
with the exception of marginally non-compliant arsenic levels from some wells.  A mitigation 
system for arsenic non-compliance is under construction in 2010, to be completed in 2012.  It 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  1 - 4 

consists of additional wells with compliant arsenic levels, a cross-town distribution pipeline and 
automated well usage/storage controls to assure total system arsenic compliance via blending. 
 
All of the City's wells have been constructed by reverse rotary methods.  Well No. 2 has 
perforations both above and below the "E" Clay, but is sealed above the "A" Clay.  Wells No. 3 
and 5 take water from beneath the "A" Clay but above the "E" Clay.  Wells No. 4, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 
11 and 12 take water exclusively from beneath the "E" Clay. 
 
In addition to the main domestic water supply system, the City operates a separate water system 
which supplies water to a major Olam tomato processing plant in (SK/Olam) south Lemoore 
(Wells No. 8 and 9).  This plant principally operates between July 1 and September 25 annually, 
consuming 200 to 500 million gallons of water per year.  Each well pumps into surge tanks and 
then to the plant.  This water system normally operates completely apart from the main system, 
although connections exist which allow the City to interconnect the two systems in an emergency 
such as a major fire demand or other abnormally high system demand.  (In addition to this 
separate supply, the plant uses water from the municipal water system, particularly during the 
high-demand, 3 to 4 month, processing season.) 
 
 

This water is treated on site after it is used in the tomato process, and is then discharged to a 
nearby farm where it is used as irrigation water and, in lesser part, to the City's wastewater 
reclamation facility. 
 
1.4 Public Participation, Plan Adoption 
 
LAW 
 
10642.  Each urban water supplier shall encourage the active involvement of diverse social, 
cultural, and economic elements of the population within the service area prior to and during the 
preparation of the plan.  Prior to adopting a plan, the urban water supplier shall make the plan 
available for public inspection and shall hold a public hearing thereon.  Prior to the hearing, 
notice of the time and place of hearing shall be published…After the hearing, the plan shall be 
adopted as prepared or as modified after the hearing. 
 
In accordance with the UWMP Act, the City held a public hearing regarding the 2010 UWMP 
for Council consideration.  Fourteen days prior to Council consideration, a notice of the public 
hearing was published in the local newspaper to notify interested parties that the Draft 2010 
UWMP is available at various City facilities for review.  A copy of the public notice is located in 
Appendix D. 
 
After Council and public comments were addressed, the Council adopted a Draft UWMP for 
submittal to the Department of Water Resources (DWR) for Review.  A copy of the proposed 
resolution adopting the Draft UWMP is located in Appendix E.  After the submittal to the DWR, 
the City submitted a copy of the UWMP to the California State Library and to local pertinent 
agencies.  The UWMP distribution plan is located in Appendix G.   
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  1 - 5 

After submittal to DWR and corrections are made in accord with the recommendations of that 
review, the City will make the Final Draft UWMP available for public review at the City Hall for 
30 days as required by §10645.   
 
The resulting Final UWMP will then be adopted by Council resolution (Appendix E).   
 
The City will utilize the conceptual timeline that is located in Appendix G as a guide for UWMP 
implementation.   
 
1.5 UWMP Amendments 
 
LAW 
 
10641(c).  The amendments to, or change in, the plan shall be adopted and filed in the manner 
set forth in Article 3 (commencing with Section 10640). 
 
Any amendments or changes to the final UWMP will be incorporated into a revised UWMP and 
made available from the City Hall upon request.   
 
1.6 Agency Coordination 
 
LAW 
 
10620 (d) (2).  Each urban water supplier shall coordinate the preparation of its plan with other 
appropriate agencies in the area, including other water suppliers that share a common source, 
water management agencies, and relevant public agencies, to the extent practicable. 
 
The City of Lemoore 2010 UWMP is intended to address those aspects of the Act which are 
under the control of the City, specifically water supply and water use.  While preparing the 2010 
UWMP, the City coordinated its efforts with relevant local agencies to ensure that the data and 
issues are presented accurately. 
 
The City's consultants contacted the Department of Water Resources (DWR) to discuss the 
requirements of the UWMP and obtain a checklist and other guidelines.   
 
The City has furnished copies of a draft Plan to and requested comments by Kings River 
Conservation District, Kings County Water District and Laguna Irrigation District, as entities 
providing water management in the northwest portion of Kings County.  Although the City is not 
included within District boundaries (see Figures 1-1 and 1-2 on the following pages) they are 
adjacent to or near the City and their activities affect the groundwater basin from which the City 
draws its water supply.  A copy of the draft Plan was also furnished to, and comments requested 
from the Lemoore Canal and Irrigation Company which serves an area north of the City.  The 
City has met the 60 day local agency notification requirement of §10621(b). 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  1 - 6 

 

WATER DISTRICT BOUNDARIES 
KINGS COUNTY 

Figure 
1 - 1 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  1 - 7 

 

KINGS RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
AREA "C" 

Figure 
1 - 2 



CHAPTER TWO 
 

SERVICE AREA 
  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  2 - 1 

CHAPTER TWO – SERVICE AREA 
 
LAW 
 
10631.  A plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter and shall do all of the 
following:   
 

(a) Describe the service area of the supplier, including current and projected population, 
climate, and other demographic factors affecting the supplier's water management 
planning.  The projected population estimates shall be based upon data from the state, 
regional, or local service agency population projections within the service area of the 
urban water supplier and shall be in five-year increments to 20 years or as far as data is 
available. 
 

The City’s existing water facilities, and the recent history of their development, are described in 
Section 1.3 of Chapter One of this Plan. 
 
2.1 Location  
 
The City of Lemoore is located in Kings County approximately 200 miles north of Los Angeles 
and 210 miles south of San Francisco.  The City is situated at the intersection of State Highway 
198, which connects coastal Highway 101 with Sequoia National Park, and State Highway 41 
connecting Pacific Coast Highway 1 with Yosemite National Park (see Figure 2-1). 
 
2.2 Climate  
 
The climate of the Lemoore area is characteristic of that of the Southern San Joaquin Valley.  
The summer climate is hot and dry, while winters are cool and periodically humid.  Mean daily 
maximum temperatures range from a low of approximately 57 degrees F in December and 
January to a high of about 99 degrees F in July. Rainfall is concentrated during the six months 
from November to April.  December and January typically experience heavy fog, mostly 
nocturnal, caused when moist cool air is trapped in the valley by high pressure systems.  In 
extreme cases, this fog may last continuously for two or three weeks.  Its depth is usually less 
than 3,000 feet. 
 
The Valley area is subject to characteristic seasonal air flows.  During the summer, air currents 
from the Pacific Ocean enter the Valley through the San Francisco Bay and Delta region and are 
forced down the valley.  These air movements are primarily to the southeast at velocities of six to 
ten miles per hour.  During the winter, cold air flowing off the surrounding mountains results in 
currents toward the northwest and velocities ranging from zero to five miles per hour. These 
airflows result in extensive horizontal mixing of air masses in the Valley.  However, vertical 
dispersion is constrained by temperature inversions, an increase in air temperature in a stable 
atmospheric layer, which may occur throughout the year. 
 

 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  2 - 2 

 
 

 
 

REGIONAL LOCATION Figure 
2 - 1 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  2 - 3 

Climatic data pertinent to system operation and design are summarized as follows [Checklist #9, 
§10631(a)]: 

Table 2.2-1 
Climate 

 
 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June  

Standard Monthly Average ETo* 0.92 1.94 3.19 4.62 6.04 7.34  
Average Rainfall (inches) 1.66 1.60 1.76 0.63 0.26 0.08  
Average Temperature (Fahrenheit) 44.7 50.2 55.0 60.6 68.3 75.0  
        
 July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Annual 
Standard Monthly Average ETo* 8.23 7.18 4.94 3.24 1.67 1.08 50.39 
Average Rainfall (inches) 0.01 0.01 0.25 0.44 0.82 1.06 8.58 
Average Temperature (Fahrenheit) 79.6 78.4 73.3 64.5 52.4 44.1 62.2 
*Evaporation/transpiration, inches 
 
2.3 Land Use 
 
The City of Lemoore is surrounded by agricultural development, with smaller parcels north and 
east of the community and large holdings west and south.  A major economic factor in the 
community’s economy is Lemoore Naval Air Station located west of the Kings River and of the 
City. 
 
The 2030 Land Use Element of the Lemoore General Plan shows a current area of approximately 
7.08 square miles or 4,533 acres inside the City limits (see Figure 2-2).  The 2030 General Plan 
assumes a City growth to 8,270 acres.   
 
Fifty percent, 2,297 acres, of the current City land area is designated for residential use, with 
industrial as the next largest category at 896 acres representing 20 percent of the land area (see 
Table 2.3-1).   
 
2.4 Current and Projected Population  
 
Recognized as a community in 1873 the town was initially called Latache.  In 1893 the small 
settlement was renamed Lemoore, and by the turn of the century, Lemoore reached a population 
of just less than 1,000 residents.  Incorporated in July of 1900, the City prospered as a small 
agricultural service center. 
 
Lemoore has experienced increases in population in every decade since 1970.  Between 1970 
and 1980 the population increased 109 percent reflecting the expansion of the Lemoore Naval 
Air Station and industrial development in northern Kings County. 
 
The City's 2030 General Plan projected a 3.1% population growth rate of the expanded City to 
the year 2030. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  2 - 4 

Table 2.3-1 
Lemoore General Plan Land Use Acreage at Plan Buildout (2030+) 

 
Land Use Total GP Land Use in 

Planning Area 
Buildout by Land Use in 

Planning Area 
Residential   
Agriculture/Rural Residential 2,113 26% 
Very Low Density Residential 213 3% 
Low Density Residential 515 6% 
Low-Medium Density Residential 1,111 13% 
Medium Density Residential 200 2% 
High Density Residential 74 1% 
Mixed Use 0 0% 
Mixed Use 165 2% 
Mixed Use 118 1% 
Neighborhood Commercial 48 1% 
Commercial/Office/Industrial 1,361 16% 
Commercial 170 2% 
Professional Office 78 1% 
Industrial 715 9% 
Business, Technology and Industrial Reserve* 398 5% 
Other 4,630 56% 
Parks/Recreation 208 3% 
Community Facilities  218 3% 
Agriculture 3,352 41% 
Greenway/Basin 198 2% 
Wetlands 655 8% 
Total 8,270 100% 
Source: City of Lemoore, Dyett & Bhatia, 2007, General Plan 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  2 - 5 

 
 

LEMOORE CITY LIMITS AND SERVICE AREA Figure 
2 - 2 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  2 - 6 

Actual population in 2010, according to the U.S. Census, was 24,351.  Table 2.4-1 and Figure 2-
3 show a population project based on the General Plan's estimated 3.1% annual increase and on 
the actual 2010 population after adjusting for anticipated slow growth from 2010 to 2015 (1% 
from 2010 to 2102, 2% from 2012 to 2015).  These projections will be used as a basis for this 
Plan's analysis.  (Continued expansion of Lemoore Naval Air Station, as a principal employer 
near the community is assumed.)  [Checklist #'s 10 and 11, §10631(a)] 
 

Table 2.4-1 
Population Projections, 2005-2025 

 
Years Population 
2010 24,351 
2015 26,353 
2020 30,701 
2025 35,767 
2030 41,668 

 
2.5 Demographics 
 
There are no unique or pertinent community demographic characteristics which will influence 
future population growth or water usage.   
 
2.6 Service Area Boundaries 
 
The City of Lemoore’s water system serves only the incorporated area of the City (see Figure 2-
2).  The City sells no water to any other agencies nor to any water users outside the City’s 
corporate limits.   



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  2 - 7 

 
 
 

 

POPULATION PROJECTIONS, 2010-2025 Figure 
2 - 3 

Note:  Assumes 3.1%/year population growth after 2012. 

24,351 
26,353 

30,701 

35,767

41,668

15000

20000

25000

30000

35000

40000

45000

50000

55000

Po
pu

la
tio

n

Year

Projected Population



CHAPTER THREE 
 

WATER SUPPLY (GROUNDWATER) 
  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 1 

CHAPTER THREE – WATER SUPPLY (GROUNDWATER) 
 
LAW 
 
10631(b).  Identify and quantify, to the extent practicable, the existing and planned sources of 
water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments described in subdivision 
(a)…Provide: 
 
(1) A copy of any groundwater management plan adopted by the urban water supplier. 

 
(2) A description of any groundwater basin or basins from which the urban water supplier 

pumps groundwater…information as to whether the department has identified the basin or 
basins as overdrafted or has projected that the basin will become overdrafted…and a 
detailed description of the efforts being undertaken by the urban water supplier to eliminate 
the long-term overdraft condition. 
 

(3) A detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of groundwater 
pumped by the urban water supplier for the past five years. 
 

(4) A detailed description and analysis of the amount and location of groundwater that is 
protected to be pumped by the urban water supplier. 
 

3.1 Groundwater Management Plans 
 
The City of Lemoore has not adopted a City groundwater management plan.  A plan for the area 
of the groundwater subbasin in which the City is located has been adopted by the Kings River 
Conservation District (KRCD).  A copy of that plan is on file with the City Clerk, Lemoore City 
Hall.  A plan has also been adopted by the Kings County Water District (KCWD). 
 
3.1.1 KINGS RIVER CONSERVATION DISTRICT PLAN 
 
KRCD was formed in 1951 under the County Water District Act to provide a legal entity for 
water management in the Lower Kings Basin.  KRCD has prepared the Groundwater 
Management Plan Update (GWMP), which provides an understanding of KRCD groundwater 
management role in the Basin.  It also documents the existing activities of KRCD and formalizes 
other proposed programs in a plan that will be used in implementing a monitoring and 
management program for conjunctive use, replenishment and preservation of groundwater of the 
basin.  The following are excerpts from the GMP. 
 
The overall goal of the GWMP adopted by the District is: 
 
To document the local approach to stopping overdraft, sustaining the local economy, and 
ensuring a sustainable groundwater system through development of specific projects and 
facilities to capture unallocated floodwater for groundwater storage and conjunctive use, 
whenever and wherever such water is available consistent with existing agreements, rights, and 
entitlements. 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 2 

 
The objectives were crafted to reflect the community's values and priorities for meeting the 
GWMP goal. 
 
1. Identify and build near-term groundwater recharge projects within each Water Management 

Area to capture flood flows; begin to stabilize the basin; and demonstrate project feasibility, 
benefits, and cost effectiveness; 
 

2. Establish rational and attainable Best Management Objectives, both regionally and for 
specific Water Management Areas, to measure and track progress; 
 

3. Formulate long-term regional strategies to take advantage of groundwater storage space in 
the Lower Kings Basin; 
 

4. Maintain local control of the groundwater basin by developing agreements and institutional 
arrangements that promote the responsible management of groundwater resources by 
overlying cities, water districts, agencies, companies, and landowners; 
 

5. Continue to track progress, and coordinate, GWMP implementation; 
 

6. Research and define financing strategies and program oversight to implement the GWMP 
projects and programs; 
 

7. Implement monitoring programs that increase the understanding of Lower Kings Basin 
operations, track progress toward meeting goals, and evaluate and forecast conditions; and 
 

8. Prevent degradation of groundwater quality. 
 
3.1.2 KINGS COUNTY WATER DISTRICT PLAN 
 
Kings County Water District (KCWD) was formed in 1954 under the County Water District Act 
(District Act) to provide a legal entity for water management in the Northeast portion of Kings 
County.  KCWD has prepared a Groundwater Management Program (GMP), which provides an 
understanding of KCWD groundwater management role within the County.  It also documents 
the existing activities of KCWD and formalizes other proposed programs in a plan that will be 
used in implementing a monitoring and management program for conjunctive use, 
replenishment, and preservation of groundwater of the basin.  The following are excerpts from 
the GMP. 
 
Since its creation, KCWD has worked to minimize subsidence and protect the groundwater 
resources of the County under the direction of the District Act.  KCWDS objectives related to 
groundwater management are to recharge the groundwater basins, conserve water, increase 
water supply, and to prevent waste or diminution of KCWD's water supply. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 3 

KCWD has effectively managed the groundwater basins to fulfill the objectives of the District Act 
and its mission.  The goal of these groundwater management efforts have been, and continues to 
be, to ensure that groundwater resources are sustained and protected. 
 
The GMP formally documents KCWD's groundwater management goals and describes programs 
in place that are designed to meet those goals.  The following programs are documented in the 
plan: 
 
 Conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater has been practiced within the KCWD 

since its formation in 1954.  Through the purchase of slough channels and other appropriate 
sites for the recharge basins, and by the purchase and importation of available surplus water 
and flood release water, the KCWD has reduced the decline of groundwater levels within the 
District.   
 

 Since 1963, the KCWD has engaged in a cooperative program with the State Department of 
Water Resources for the monitoring and sampling of groundwater in the District.  Water 
level measurements are annually obtained from approximately 200 wells in both the spring 
and the fall.  The data obtained in the spring (normally the last of January) reflects the 
"seasonal high" water table, as the measurements are made prior to pumping for pre-
irrigation.  The fall measurements (normally obtained in the first part of October) are taken 
after the season of crop irrigation pumping. 
 

 The cooperative program between DWR and the KCWD has been expanded to include 
monitoring of groundwater quality.  Water samples from selected wells were collected in 
those years and delivered to the DWR and private laboratories for analysis. 

 
3.2 The Groundwater Subbasin 
 
The groundwater subbasin underlying the City is the Tulare Lake Basin, which is part of the 
Tulare Lake Hydrologic Region (Figure 3-1).  This region contains multiple interconnected 
subbasins that transmit, filter, and store water:  the Kings, Kern, Kaweah, Tulare Lake, Tule, 
Westside, and Pleasant Valley subbasins.  The City of Lemoore is immediately adjacent to the 
south boundary of the Kings subbasin. 
 
The Tulare Lake Basin is not an adjudicated groundwater basin, as defined by the California 
Water Plan Update, Bulletin 160-98, Figure 3-28 on page 3-54 and Table 3-16 page 3-55. 
 
The California Water Plan Update, Bulleting 160-98, page 3-50, Table 3-15, lists the 1995 
overdraft for the Tulare Lake Hydrologic Region at 820 thousand acre feet (taf).  As shown in 
Table 3-15, groundwater overdraft was expected to decline to 670 taf during 2020.  However, the 
overdraft from 1998 to 2005 average 1,392 taf, during a period of approximately normal average 
precipitation (California Water Plan, Tulare Lake, 2009 Update).   
 
During drought periods, water levels in the subbasin may decline.  However, during wet periods, 
they recover, thus making area overdraft or perennial yield models less reliable than desired, 
particularly in subbasin boundary areas. 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 4 

SUBBASINS, TULARE LAKE HYDROLOGIC REGION Figure 
3 - 1 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 5 

The Tulare Lake Subbasin is bounded on the south by the Kings-Kern county line, on the west 
by the California Aqueduct, by the easterly boundary of Westside Groundwater Subbasin, and by 
the Tertiary marine sediments of the Kettleman Hills.  It is bounded on the north by the southern 
boundary of the Kings Groundwater Subbasin, and on the east by the westerly boundaries of the 
Kaweah and Tule Groundwater Subbasins.  The southern half of the Tulare Lake Subbasin 
consists of lands in the former Tulare Lakebed in Kings County. 
 
According to DWR, estimations of the total storage capacity of the Tulare Lake Subbasin and the 
amount of water storage as of 1995 were calculated using an estimated specific yield of 8.5 
percent and water levels collected by DWR and cooperators.  According to these calculations, 
the total storage capacity of the Tulare Lake Subbasin is estimated to be 17,100,000 acre feet to a 
depth of 300 feet and 82,500,000 acre feet to the base of fresh groundwater. 
 
Information obtained from DWR indicates that, on average, the Tulare Lake Subbasin water 
levels declined nearly 17 feet from 1970 to 2000.  The period from 1970 through 1978, showed 
moderate declines with many fluctuations, totaling about 12 feet.  The ten-year period from 1978 
to 1988 saw more fluctuations and a general increase of about 24 feet, bringing water levels up to 
12 feet above the 1970 water levels.  1988 through 1993 showed steep declines, bottoming out in 
1993 at 23 feet below the 1970 level.  From 1999 to 2000, water levels dropped another 7 feet, 
bringing the water levels to about 17 feet below the 1970 water levels.  Fluctuations in water 
levels have been most exaggerated in the lakebed area of the subbasin.  This area has the steepest 
decrease in water levels as well as some of the strongest increases in water levels. 
 
Groundwater generally flows southwest, toward the Tulare Lakebed.  Based on current and 
historical groundwater elevation maps, horizontal groundwater barriers do not appear to exist in 
the subbasin.  Water-level maps obtained from DWR for Spring 1989 and Spring 2001 (Figures 
3-2 and 3-3) indicate a very minor decline in groundwater elevations in the portion of the 
subbasin underlying the City.  (Additional water-level maps are provided in Appendix H.) 
 
Nevertheless, the relative stability in the lower portion of the Tule Lake Subbasin is depicted in 
these Figures.  It is further illustrated in the Kings River Conservation District Lower Kings 
Basin Groundwater Management Plan Update.  Figure 3-4, from the Plan, depicts groundwater 
trends for the area.  The Plan summarizes (p. 3-8) the projections for this (the Lemoore) area of 
the Subbasin:  "Water levels in Area C are relatively stable and expected to remain within their 
operating zone in the future". 
 
3.3 The City Water Supply 
 
The City municipal (and industrial) water systems currently utilize local groundwater as their 
sole source of supply.  The City systems extract water from underground aquifers via ten active 
groundwater wells within, and in a well field five miles north of the City (Figure 3-5).  The 
pumping capacities of, the City wells are shown on Table 3.1-1.  Water is conveyed from the 
wells to the consumers via a distribution system with pipe sizes between 4 and 14 inches in 
diameter.  The City maintains four ground-level storage reservoirs within the municipal 
distribution system, with a total capacity of 4,400,000 gallons.  Table 3.3-1 summarizes existing 
wells, their capacity, and their emergency capacity characteristics. 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 6 

GROUNDWATER ELEVATION CONTOURS IN 
SPRING 1989 

Figure 
3 - 2 

Source: Department of Water Resources 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 7 

GROUNDWATER ELEVATION CONTOURS IN 
SPRING 2001 

Figure 
3 - 3 

Source:  Department of Water Resources 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 8 

LOWER KINGS BASIN GWMP UPDATE 
GROUNDWATER TRENDS FOR AREA C 

Figure 
3 - 4 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 9 

3.3.1 THE RESOURCE AND ITS USAGE 
 
While several strata of groundwater can be found beneath both the City's wellfield and the City 
itself, only certain of the strata have proven to be useful for domestic water supply.  These strata 
are below the "A" Clay and below the "E" Clay.  The "A" Clay is at a depth below the ground 
surface of approximately 70 feet at the wellfield and approximately 400 feet within the City.  
The "E" Clay is at a depth below the ground surface of approximately 500 feet at the City's 
wellfield and approximately 800 feet within the City.  The aquifers below the "A" Clay have 
been described in hydrogeological reports as "semi-confined," and the aquifer below the "E" 
Clay has been described as "confined".  These aquifers are fed by percolating surface water 
along the east side of the San Joaquin Valley, west of the Sierra Nevada watershed.  That water 
then migrates south and west under much of the San Joaquin Valley, forming a groundwater pool 
over 2 million acres in area. 
 
The overall health of the local groundwater resource, from which the City pumps its water, has 
shown some consistent trends since the late 1950's.  Data from the City wells at the well field 
used to evaluate the effect of the City's wells on the basin show that there has been a consistent 
decline of 0.5 feet per year in groundwater levels in the semi-confined aquifer (below the "A" 
Clay) and no decline in levels in the confined aquifer below the ("E" Clay).  The City removes 
approximately 0.19 percent from the groundwater basin.  There has been no significant change in 
the historic trends of the local subbasin after construction of the City's wells; the City's continued 
use of such wells apparently does not lead to a decline of the portion of the groundwater basin 
below the "E" Clay. 
 
The litigation brought by the nearby Laguna Irrigation District (L.I.D.) regarding the possibility 
of the City increasing the capacity of its well field by construction of a parallel water main in 
1992 prompted several studies to be undertaken related to existing and future groundwater 
conditions in and near the City.  A study completed by Provost & Pritchard on behalf of the 
irrigation district concluded that the groundwater basin within the L.I.D. boundaries was being 
overdrafted by 500 acre feet per year, approximately one percent of the total groundwater inflow 
of 50,000 acre feet per year.  This was with the then configuration of four wells at the well field. 
 
Both the Provost & Pritchard study and a study conducted by Geometric Consultants, Inc. (on 
behalf of the City, related to the litigation) concluded that groundwater elevations closely 
correspond to weather conditions.  When there are years of drought, the groundwater levels 
lower due to lack of percolation of rainfall and increased groundwater pumping to meet 
agricultural water demands.  Correspondingly, when there is more rainfall and Sierra snowpack, 
groundwater levels rise as more surface water is available, lessening the reliance on 
groundwater, and the rainfall is able to percolate into the basin. 
 
Since the conclusion of that litigation with its attendant, corroborating, studies the City has 
drilled, and will drill, all its water supply wells within the City unless it is necessary to replace 
existing out-of-City wells. 
 
The City’s wells are described in Table 3.3-1.  Their locations are depicted on Figure 3-5. 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 10 

WELL LOCATIONS Figure 
3 - 5 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 11 

Table 3.3-1 
Municipal and Industrial Water System Wells 

 
Well 
No. 

Status H.P. Well Capacity 2010 Emergency 
Capacity 

  Generator Diesel 
(GPM) (MGD) (GPM) (MG) 

Well 2 Active 250 2100 3.024 0 0 
Well 4 Active 250 2200 3.168 22001 3.1681 
Well 5 Active 250 2100 3.024 0 0 
Well 6 Active 150 1150 1.656 11502 1.6562 

Well 7 Active 250 900 1.296 9002 1.2962 

Well 10 Active 300 2200 3.168 0 0 
Well 11 Active 200 1000 1.441 0 0 
Well 12 Active 200 1200 1.728 12002 1.7282 

Subtotals 12850 18.505 5450 7.848 
Well 83 Active 150 1000 1.441 0 0 
Well 93 Active 150 1200 1.728 0 0 

Totals 15050 21.674 5450 7.848 
 
1Diesel 
2Generator (3 on hand) 
3Industrial supply only; not part of domestic water systems 

 
The ten wells have a total supply capacity of 21,674,000 gallons per day (MGD) or 15,050 
gallons per minute (gpm).  The non-industrial firm capacity, which is defined as the total non-
industrial well capacity (all wells other than Wells 8 and 9) less one of the largest wells out of 
service, is approximately 15,335,000 MGD.  The City's water systems have no current 
interconnections to any other water system. 
 

Table 3.3-2  
Total Water Pumped to Customers, 2006-2010 

 
 Domestic 

Distribution System 
Industrial 

Wells 8 and 9 
Total Pumped 

2006 2,301,018,000 175,690,000 2,476,708,000 gal 
7,599.6 ac/ft/yr 

2007 2,411,456,800 191,470,000 2,602,926,800 gal 
7,986.9 ac/ft/yr 

2008 2,442,161,000 187,953,000 2,630,114,000 gal 
8,070.3 ac/ft/yr 

2009 2,390,323,000 134,475,000 2,524,798,000 gal 
7,747.2 ac/ft/yr 

2010 2,296,037,000 143,201,000 2,439,238,000 gal 
7,484.6 ac/ft/yr 

 
The City’s major industrial water user, a cheese plant (Leprino Foods) with two facilities, is 
supplied from the municipal water system.  That supply, plus the domestic water system demand 
by SK/Olam supplementing its supply from industrial water system Wells 8 and 9, is 
summarized in Table 3.3-3. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 12 

3.3.2 RECHARGE 
 
Recharge sources protecting the City's groundwater supply include: 
 
 Groundwater recharge in the Subbasin is primarily from stream recharge and, ultimately 

from deep percolation of applied irrigation water. 
 

 The Kings River Water Conservation District's Water Management Plan and its recharge 
facilities for the area. 
 

 The Laguna Irrigation District operates six recharge basins in the Subbasin. 
 

 The Lemoore Canal and Irrigation Company, although not a "District" or public agency, 
owns, maintains and operates surface water canals near and within the City of Lemoore.  The 
activities of this Company affect groundwater levels and usage in the Lemoore area; the City 
of Lemoore discharges stormwater to the Company's canals for transport to a wetlands 
facility and to agricultural areas.   
 

 An agreement between the City and Laguna Irrigation District governs joint recharge 
activities.  It sets up a jointly held fund, to be used to purchase recharge water, which each 
party agrees to fund at the rate of $62,500 annually, to a maximum fund amount of $500,000. 

 
The agreement is broadly drawn with regard to how recharge is to be accomplished, allowing 
land application in the Laguna Irrigation District, in the Kings River channel itself, in the 
District canal system, or at other mutually acceptable locations (see Appendix H). 

 
 The Kings County Water District (KCWD) manages surface water supply in the area east of 

and upgradient of the City.  The water utilized by the KCWD comes from a variety of 
sources.  A major portion is obtained from the Kings River through ownership of shares of 
stock in the Peoples Ditch Company and the Last Chance Water Ditch Company.  Water is 
also obtained from the Kaweah River through shares of Lakeside Ditch Company stock.  
Conjunctive use of surface water and groundwater has been practiced within the KCWD 
since its formation in 1954, through the purchase of slough channels and other sites for use as 
surface water recharge basins and by the importation of available surface water and flood 
release water. 
 

 The City of Lemoore utilizes storm drain basins within the City, totaling approximately 100 
acres, providing surface water runoff percolation.  The City additionally, initiated the 
creation of a wildlife conservation area (wetlands) of approximately 700 acres west of the 
City which provides percolation accommodating about 70% of the City's storm drainage 
runoff.  These facilities recharge groundwater in the Lemoore area and to the southwest. 
 

 The City's wastewater treatment facility discharges 650 million gallons per year to an unlined 
canal transporting this recharge to a downstream agricultural area.  The City's largest 
industry discharges approximately 1,020 million gallons of effluent to the same canal.  The 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 13 

second largest industry's discharge of 200 to 500 million gallons per year is discharged 
directly to irrigated agriculture. 
 

3.3.3 MUNICIPAL WATER SYSTEM CAPACITIES 
 
In accord with industry standard practices and the California Department of Health Services 
(DHS) criteria for "Adequate Source Capacity" regarding water supply, the source should be 
sized to serve the Maximum Day Demand (MDD). On the day of maximum demand, it is 
desirable to maintain a water supply rate equal to the MDD rate.  Water required for peak hour 
demands or for fireflows would come from storage. 
 
Standby production capacity is required for system reliability.  Under normal operating 
conditions, it is possible that one or even two of the City's wells can be out of service during 
MDD conditions due to equipment malfunction, for servicing, or for water quality concerns.  The 
DHS criteria recommends calculating the system capacity with the largest well being out of 
service.  To mitigate the potential impact of lost production capabilities, the City should thus 
have wells with a capacity of 3.17 mgd (2,200 gallons per minute) in surplus of MDD demand. 
 
The City's current (2010) MDD is approximately 12 mgd.  Supply availability with one of the 
two largest wells out of service is 15.335 mgd.  The City has recently increased water supply and 
storage facilities to assure such adequate redundancy for standby production and source 
reliability.  The two industrial wells (#8 and #9) provide nearly 3.0 mgd of additional reserve 
production capacity during the period from October through June and about 1 million gallons per 
day of such capacity during the period of probable maximum day demand (July through 
September) although the water quality has secondary compliance (taste and odor) problems. 
 
3.4 The Industrial Water System 

 
It is pertinent to note here that Wells 8 and 9 (see Figure 3-5) are not normally connected to the 
City’s municipal water system, although such connection can be effected in a major fire flow 
emergency.  They serve only a tomato processing industry (Olam).  The water quality is not 
suitable (taste, odor, color) for residential and institutional usage.  They are, in reality, “private”, 
single purpose wells.  Their total production of shallower-aquifer, essentially non-potable/non-
compliant water, averages 166,557,000 gallons annually (see Table 3.3-2), of which an estimated 
95% is process water.  (Non-process water usage is calculated as 1,500 employees @ 25 gpcd x 
120 days + 400 employees @ 25 gpcd x 240 days, a total of 6,900,000 gallons per year.) 
 
Additionally, the relationship of the City’s municipal water system to its industrial water supplies 
is illustrated in Table 3.3-3.   



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 14 

Table 3.3-3 
Total Annual Industrial Water Usage from Domestic Municipal Water System 

 
 Leprino East, 

(MG) 
Leprino West 

(MG) 
SK/Olam*  

(MG) 
Total (MG) 

2006 192,473,000 323,230,205 272,919,768 (SK) 788,622,973 
2007 212,124,000 328,935,130 324,570,040 (SK) 865,629,130 
2008 194,798,000 341,590,235 193,319,000 (Olam) 729,707,235 
2009 220,163,000 430,723,000 75,757,106 (Olam) 726,643,106 
2010 235,301,000 455,080,000 119,181,608 (Olam) 809,562,610 

     
Average 210,800,000 375,800,000 177,000,000 784,400,000 

*Usage in excess of Well 8 and Well 9 supply. 
 

Non-process water for the two Leprino cheese facilities is calculated as [300 employees @ 25 
gpcd x 365 days + 1,000 employees @ 25 gpcd x 365 days, 2,737,500 + 9,125,000], 11,862,500 
gallons per year.  This usage is approximately 1.8% of the total Leprino flow, making Leprino’s 
2010 average process water demand approximately 678,000,000 gallons per year. 
 
No reduction from the SK/Olam industrial figures in Table 3.3-3 is needed to establish non-
process flow; such non-process flows are accounted for in the Well 8 and Well 9 flow 
calculations. 
 
3.5 The Municipal Golf Course Irrigation System 
 
Another, totally separate, supply system serves the Municipal Golf Course.  The course is 
irrigated in part with surface water provided by the, private Lemoore Canal and Irrigation 
Company from its Kings River diversion.  The City owns ten shares of the Company’s stock and 
is entitled to a quantity determined annually (up to 356 acre feet per year, dependent upon the 
Company’s total diversion rights for that year). 
 
The purchased quantities from 2006 through 2010 were: 
 

Table 3.3-4 
Surface Water Utilized on the City of Lemoore Municipal Golf Course 

2006-2010 
 

 Total, a/f Share 
Entitlement 

Additional, a/f 
Purchased 

Total, a/f  Total, Million 
Gallons 

2006 115.0 243.1 358.1 116,695,000 
2007 75.9 73.9 149.8 48,816,000 
2008 64.4 102.9 167.3 54,518,000 
2009 48.3 98.3 146.6 47,773,000 
2010 98.9 273.1 372.0 121,114,000 

   Total 389,026,000 
   Average 77,805,000 

 
Absent any Company-provided projections, but assuming continued Kings River diversions 
similar to those for the 2005-2010 period of record, an average-year surface water supply 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 15 

available to the golf course of 77,805,000 gallons per year may be assumed.  If, in multiple dry 
years no surface water diversion was available all golf course irrigation would necessarily be 
supplied by groundwater. 
 
Available surface water is supplemental from a well located on the course which is utilized only 
for the golf course (not for general City domestic water supply).  It is not operated or maintained 
by the City’s Water Diversion or by the City Public Works Department.  There are no records 
available as to the amount of golf course irrigation water supplied from this well during the 
2005-2010 period (or any other period). 
 
It is estimated that the 120 acre golf course requires approximately 3 acre feet of water per acre 
per year, a total of 360 acre feet per year, 117,314,000 gallons.  The average estimated annual 
groundwater usage is therefore (117,341,000 – 77,805,000, 39,536,000 gallons. 
 
Although full compliance with the projection and reporting requirements of Water-Code 
Division 6, Part 2.6 and Section 1063J(K) therein is not feasible, it may be noted that: 
 
a) The City has no intention of using this restricted surface water supply, nor any means of 

treating it, for municipal purposes. 
 

b) The amount of this water supply source has averaged less than 5% of the City water system’s 
maximum annual production during 2006-2010. 
 

c) The groundwater utilized by the golf course, which is probably of a quality not usable in the 
municipal water system and is not connected thereto, is less than 2% of the maximum 
municipal water system usage during the 2006-2010 period. 
 

3.6 Projected Groundwater Usage 
 
The City's supply source, the Tulare Lake Subbasin is more than adequate to meet the City's 
long-term water supply needs.  The City will continue to rely exclusively on groundwater wells 
with a combined capacity, with its largest well out of service, to meet Maximum Day Demand 
(MDD), as well as to provide sufficient ground-level storage and well backup power to serve the 
community during power outages and natural disasters.  There are no currently planned future 
water supply programs other than the continued development of the City's groundwater supply.  
(There is no need for, and there are no opportunities for, development and usage of brackish 
water desalination projects.) 
 
The quantitative scope of necessary future water supply needs will be based upon demand, 
considering State law-required per capita water goals, projected population increases, continued 
water usage at the same level by Olam and Agusa (tomato processing plants) and increased 
usage by Leprino Foods, a cheese plant. 
 
Quantitative supply requirements, based on demand, are provided in Chapter Four of this 
UWMP. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  3 - 16 

(To include any of the non-municipal water system water usage, surface or groundwater 
(Sections 3.4 and 3.6, industrial and golf course systems), in the City’s existing and projected 
water demands would distort the analysis of the UWMP and obfuscate its usage as a planning 
document designed to project City water demand, water supply, water storage and water 
treatment needs.  This data is, however, informative. 

 
 



CHAPTER FOUR 
 

WATER DEMAND AND WATER SUPPLY 
  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 1 

CHAPTER FOUR – WATER DEMAND AND WATER SUPPLY 
 
LAW 
 
10631.  A plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter and shall do all of the 
following: 
 
10631 (b) (3)  A detailed description and analysis of the location, amount, and sufficiency of 
groundwater pumped by the urban water supplier for the past five years.  The description and 
analysis shall be based on information that is reasonably available, including, but not limited to, 
historic records. 
 
10631 (e) (1)  Quantify, to the extent records are available, past and current water use, over the 
same five-year increments described in subdivision (a), and projected water use, identifying the 
uses among water use sectors including, but not necessarily limited to, all of the following uses: 
 

A) Single-family residential; (B) Multifamily; (C) Commercial; (D) Industrial (E) 
Institutional and government; (F) Landscape; (G) Sales to other agencies; (H) Saline 
water intrusion barriers, groundwater recharge, or conjunctive use, or any combination 
thereof; and (I) Agricultural. 

 
(2) The water use projections shall be in the same 5-year increments to 20 years or as far as 

data is available. 
 

4.1 Water Demand 
 
4.1.1 HISTORIC WATER USAGE 
 
Eliminating industrial process water demand1, historic water usage, and corresponding per capita 
usage, in the Lemoore water system are illustrated in Table 4.1-1. 
 

                                                 
1 Annual industrial non-process water demand by Leprino has been estimated as 11,862,500 gallons per year and by 
Olam as 6,900,000 gallons per year (see pages 3-13 and 3-14) 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 2 

Table 4.1-1 
Baseline per Capita Water Use (gallons) 

 
Year (A) Annual 

Total 
Groundwater 

(B) Annual 
Process Water 

Deduction 

(C) = (A) – (B) 
Annual Gross 

Water 

(D) Population (E) = (C*)/(D) 
Gallons per 

Capita per Day 
(GPCD) 

2001 1,776,477,000 277,997,000 1,498,480,000 20,021 205 
2002 2,033,484,000 680,892,000 1,352,592,000 20,487 181 
2003 2,411,481,000 669,975,000 1,741,506,000 20,714 230 
2004 2,401,659,000 763,321,000 1,638,336,000 21,340 210 
2005 2,475,101,000 911,866,000 1,563,235,000 21,893 196 
2006 2,476,708,000 945,551,000 1,531,157,000 22,607 186 
2007 2,602,927,000 1,024,630,000 1,584,297,000 23,331 186 
2008 2,630,114,000 885,662,000 1,744,452,000 23,520 203 
2009 2,524,798,000 848,356,000 1,676,442,000 23,839 192 
2010 2,498,968,000 939,378,000 1,559,590,000 24,351 175 

*Converting annual gross water to gallons per day 
• 10 Year Average Baseline (2001 – 2010) 196 GPCD 
• 5 Year Average Baseline (2006 -2010) 188 GPCD 
 
4.1.2 WATER SERVICES CONNECTIONS 
 
The City of Lemoore requires metering of all public, domestic, commercial and industrial water 
connections.  Table 4.1-2 summarizes the City's water service connections as of December 2010. 
 
Data regarding the distribution of water use among domestic, commercial and small industrial 
water connections has been estimated for this report by the City staff.  There are only two major 
industrial facilities with significant water use:  Leprino Foods, a year-round cheese production 
facility and Olam, a seasonal tomato processing facility. 

 
Table 4.1-2 

Water Service Connections 
 

Single family 5,924 
Multi-family 220 
Commercial 157* 
Industrial 10 
Institutional/government 12 
Irrigation  47 
Total Active Connections 6,370 
*It should be noted that 67 non-meter billed 
commercial services are for small downtown 
establishments.  Their water usage is so 
minimal that the cost of conversion to 
metered services has been deemed infeasibly 
costly.  However, the City will comply with 
the Urban Water Management Planning Act, 
Water Code Section 525, which requires 
water meters and billings based thereon for 
all service connections by 2025. 

 

 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 3 

4.1.3 STATE WATER CONSERVATION PER CAPITA 
 
LAW 
 
10608.20 (B) An urban retail water supplier shall adopt one of the following methods for 
determining its urban water use target pursuant to subdivision (a): 
 
(1) Eighty percent of the urban retail water supplier's baseline per capita daily water use. 
 
10608.12 (b) "Base daily per capita water use" means any of the following: 
 
(3) For the purposes of Section 10608.22, the urban retail water supplier's estimate of its 
average gross water use, reported in gallons per capita per day and calculated over a 
continuous five-year period ending no earlier than December 31, 2007, and no later than 
December 31, 2010. 
 
10608.22.  Notwithstanding the method adopted by an urban retail water supplier pursuant to 
Section 10608.20, an urban retail water supplier's per capita daily water use reduction shall be 
no less than 5 percent of base daily per capita water use as defined in paragraph (3) of 
subdivision (b) of Section 10608.12.  This section does not apply to an urban retail water 
supplier with a base daily per capita water use at or below 100 gallons per capita per day. 
 
4.1.4 INTERIM URBAN WATER USE TARGET 
 
10608.12 (j) "Interim urban water use target" means the midpoint between the urban retail 
water supplier's base daily per capita water use and the urban retail water supplier's urban 
water use target for 2020. 
 
Figure 4-1, on the following page, shows the state's water conservation per capita water usage 
goals.  Lemoore is located in the Tulare Lake Hydrologic Region.  Figure 4-2 shows the urban 
water use target for 2020 (95% of the goal), 179 gallons per capita per day.  The City’s 2015 
target, the midpoint between the City’s 10 year baseline (196) and the 2020 target (179) is 185 
gallons per capita per day. 
 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 4 

CALIFORNIA HYDROLOGIC REGIONS AND 2020 
WATER CONSERVATION GOALS 

Figure 
4 - 1 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 5 

 

METHOD 3 URBAN WATER USE TARGETS FOR 
HYDROLOGIC REGIONS 

Figure 
4 - 2 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 6 

4.1.5 PROJECTED WATER DEMAND 
 
Lemoore's projected water demand has two components - industrial process and “domestic” 
(residential, commercial, institutional, and non-process industrial). 
 
The total industrial process water demand to be supplied by the basic municipal system during 
the study period (2011-2030) is expected to increase to 1,600 million gallons per year by 2015 as 
a result of continuing expansion by Lemoore's largest industrial employer, Leprino Foods. 
 
The calculated total “domestic” water demand from 2011 through 2030 is based on growth at 1% 
per year through 2012, 2% per year from 2012 to 2015, and on the City's General Plan-predicted 
growth of 3.1% per year after 2015; on decreases from existing per capita use to the State 
required target during the period from 2015 to 2020, and on state-required per capita use from 
2020 through 2030, as illustrated in Table 4.1-3. 
 

Table 4.1-3 
Projected “Domestic” Water Use 

 
Year Population Per Capita Usage Usage(1) 

2010 24,351 190 1,688,700,000 
2015 26,353 190(2) 1,827,500,000 
2020 30,701 179(3) 2,005,850,000 
2025 35,767 179 2,336,837,000 
2030 41,668 179 2,722,379,000 

(1.)  Gallons per year, actual 
(2.)  Five-year average (2005-2010) gallons per capita per day (gpcd), Lemoore usage 
(3.)  State required gpd target 

 
The total projected water demands for the City are depicted in Table 4.1-4. 
 

Table 4.1-4 

Projected Total Water Demands(4) 
 

Year Annual “Domestic” 
Demand 

Annual Industrial 
Process Water 

Demand 

Total Annual 
Demand 

Average Day 
Demand 

2015 1,688,700,000 1,600,000,000 3,289,000,000 9,010,000 
2020 1,827,500,000 1,600,000,000 3,427,000,000 9,389,000 
2025 2,336,837,000 1,600,000,000 4,136,837,000 11,331,000 
2030 2,722,379,000 1,600,000,000 4,522,379,000 12,390,000 

(4.) Gallons per year 
 

4.1.6 MAXIMUM DAY DEMAND 
 
Maximum Day Demand ratios have been calculated on the basis of total flow requirements. 

 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 7 

Table 4.1-5  
Maximum Day Demand Ratios(1) 

 
(A) (B) (C) (D) 

Year Average Day 
Demand (gal.) 

Maximum Day 
Demand (gal.)(2) 

Increment 
Ratio (C/A) 

2006 6,304,000 11,325,000 1.80 
2007 6,606,000 11,996,000 1.82 
2008 6,690,000 10,422,000 1.56 
2009 6,549,000 10,548,000 1.61 
2010 6,290,000 10,235,000 1.63 

  Average 1.69 
(1.) Not including golf course usage or Well 8 and 9 pumpage 
(2.) From well meter records 
 
Future maximum day demand ratio to average day demand will be slightly less as the industrial 
demand increases, slightly more as residential demand increases.  A ratio of 1.8 will 
conservatively be used in calculating water supply (well capacity) needs because of the critical 
nature of, and increasing demand for, the industrial water supply. 
 
4.2 Water Supply 
 
4.2.1 PROJECTED WELL CAPACITY NEEDS 
 
Table 4.2-1 shows the required Average Day water demands in years 2015, 2020, 2025 and 
2030.  The corresponding Maximum Day supply needs are depicted in Table 4.2-2. 
 

Table 4.2-1 
Required Maximum Day Water Supply Needed 

 
Year Average Day 

Demand (gal.) 
Maximum 
Day Ratio 

Maximum Day 
Demand (gal.) 

2015 9,010,000 1.8 16,210,000 
2020 9,389,000 1.8 16,900,000 
2025 11,331,300 1.8 20,396,000 
2030 12,390,000 1.8 22,302,000 

 
4.2.2 EXISTING WELL CAPACITY 
 
The existing (2010) City wells have a total capacity of 18,505,000 gallons per day.   
 
Each new in-City well provides about 1,000 gallons per minute of capacity, 1,440,000 gallons 
per day.  Required additional wells to meet Maximum Day Demands from 2015 to 2030 will 
thus be: 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 8 

Table 4.2-2 
Additional Well Needs 

 
Year Required Well 

Capacity(1) 

(gal/day) 

Existing Well 
Capacity 

(2010)(1) (gal/day) 

Number of 
Additional 

Wells(2) Needed 
2015 16,210,000  1 
2020 16,900,000 15,335,000 2 
2025 20,396,000  3.5 
2030 22,302,000  4.8 

(1.)  With largest existing well at 2,200 gpm (3,168,000 gpd) out of service 
(2.)  Wells with 1,000 gpm capacity 1,440,000 gpd 

 
For comparison purposes, the total volumes of groundwater pumped by the City from years 2006 
through 2010 were: 
 

Table 4.2-3 
Total Volume of Groundwater Pumped (gallons) 

 
Year Total Volume Industrial Wells 

#8 and #9 
Total Domestic 
System Volume 

Metered 

2006 2,476,708,000 175,690,000 2,301,018,000 Yes 
2007 2,602,926,000 191,470,000 2,411,456,000 Yes 
2008 2,630,114,000 187,953,000 2,442,161,000 Yes 
2009 2,524,798,000 134,475,000 2,390,323,000 Yes 
2010 2,438,968,000 142,931,000 2,296,031,000 Yes 

 
4.3 Low-Income Housing Water Demand 
 
Kings County and four cities within the County, Avenal, Corcoran, Hanford, and Lemoore, had 
chosen to collectively prepare a joint countywide 2007-2014 Housing Element, which was 
released in June 2010.  This collective approach captured the regional planning aspect of SB375 
and a cost savings for the participants from sharing resources.  Multiple sources of information 
including data from the 2000 decennial Census, housing condition surveys, California DOF, and 
the California Employment Development Department (EDD) were used to prepare that 
document.  A copy of the collective Housing Element is on file at the City Hall. 
 
The State of California income thresholds identifies low-income as 51% to 80% of the area 
median income.  According to the joint housing element, 1,232 households in Lemoore fall into 
the low-income category or lower.  According to 2010 California Census data, the average 
number of people per housing unit in Lemoore is 3.14.  This value of 3.14 people per household 
was used with the projected use targets to project the water demand for all low-income housing 
in the community.  The results are presented in Table 4.3-1.  [Checklist #34, §10631.1(a)] 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 9 

Table 4.3-1 
Projected Low-Income Water Demand 

 
Year Low-Income 

Population2 
Per Capita 
Daily Usage 

(gallons) 

Total Annual 
Usage (gallons) 

2015 4,184 199 303,390,000 
2020 4,875 179 318,769,000 
2025 5,680 179 371,103,000 
2030 6,617 179 432,322,000 

 
4.4 Expansion Projects 
 
LAW 
 
10910.(a)  Any city or county that determines that a project, as defined in Section 10912, is 
subject to the California Environmental Quality Act X …shall comply with this part. 
 
10912.  For the purpose of this part, the following terms have the following meanings: 
 
(a) "Project" means any of the following: 
 

(1) A proposed residential development of more than 500 dwelling units. 
 
(2) A proposed shopping center or business establishment employing more than 1,000 

persons or having more than 500,000 square feet of floor space. 
 
(3) A proposed commercial office building employing more than 1,000 persons or having 

more than 250,000 square feet of floor space. 
 
(4) A proposed hotel or motel, or both, having more than 500 rooms. 
 
(5) A proposed industrial, manufacturing or processing plan, or industrial park planned to 

house more 1,000 persons, occupying more than 40 acres of land, or having more than 
650,000 square feet of floor area. 

 
(6) A mixed-use project that includes one or more of the projects specified in this 

subdivision. 
 
(7) A project that would demand an amount of water equivalent to, or greater than, the 

amount of water required by a 500 dwelling unit project. 
 

The City has no knowledge regarding any proposed projects of the sizes or water demands 
defined in the law.  It is unlikely that such projects will be proposed or built within the 2030 

                                                 
2 Calculated as current (2010) percentage of total population x projected population (Table 4.1-3)  
Existing (2010) total population = 1,332 x 3.14/24,351 = 15.88% 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  4 - 10 

planning horizon.  If so proposed, project compliance with Sections 10910 through 10914 will be 
required. 
 
4.5 Water Shortage Expectations 
 
In general, demands during droughts increase to compensate for the lack of rainfall that was 
benefiting landscape irrigation.  The water use projections in Table 4.3-1 assume any potential 
increase will be offset by the increased and more stringent water conservation measures that will 
be activated by the City during such droughts. 
 
4.6 Other Water Uses 
 
The City has no, and does not anticipate having any, water uses other than those described herein 
(saline barriers, groundwater recharge, conjunctive use, etc.). 



CHAPTER FIVE 
 

RELIABILITY PLANNING 
  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  5 - 1 

CHAPTER FIVE – RELIABILITY PLANNING 
 
LAW 
 
10631.  A plan shall be adopted in accordance with this chapter and shall do all of the 
following: 
 
10631 (c) Describe the reliability of the water supply and vulnerability to seasonal or climatic 
shortage, to the extent practicable. 
 
10631 (c) For any water source that may not be available at a consistent level of use, given 
specific legal, environmental, water quality or climatic factors, describe plans to replace that 
source with alternative sources or water demand management measures, to the extent 
practicable. 
 
10631 (c) Provide data for each of the following:  (1) An average water year, (2) A single dry 
water year, (3) Multiple dry water years. 
 
10632 (a).  The plan shall provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis which includes 
each of the following elements which are within the authority of the urban water supplied: 
 
(a)(2)  An estimate of the minimum water supply available during each of the next three water 
years based on the driest three-year historic sequence for the agency's water supply. 
 
(a)(3)  Actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier to prepare for, and implement 
during, a catastrophic interruption of water supplies including, but not limited to, a regional 
power outage, an earthquake, or other disaster. 

 
10634  The plan shall include information, to the extent practicable, relating to the quality of 
existing sources of water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments as 
described in subdivision (a) of Section 10631, and the manner in which water quality affects 
water management strategies and supply reliability. 
 
10635 (a)  Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management 
plan, an assessment of the reliability of its water service to its customers during normal, dry, and 
multiple dry water years.  This water supply and demand assessment shall compare the total 
water supply sources available to the water supplier with the total projected water use over the 
next 20 years, in five-year increments, for a normal water year, a single dry water year, and 
multiple dry water years.  The water service reliability assessment shall be based upon the 
information compiled pursuant to Section 10631, including available data from state, regional or 
local agency population projections within the service area of the urban water supplier. 

 
5.1 Water Supply Reliability 
 
Two aspects of supply reliability are considered for both near-term needs (present to 2015) and 
long term needs (2030).  The first relates to emergency reliability needs and is primarily a 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  5 - 2 

function of the availability and adequacy of supply facilities.  The second aspect is climate-
related, and involves the availability of water during mild or severe drought periods. 
 
5.1.1 STANDBY PRODUCTION 
 
As described in the previous chapter, standby production capacity is required for system 
reliability.  Under normal operating conditions, it is possible that one of the City's wells can be 
out of service during maximum day demand conditions due to equipment malfunction, for 
servicing, or for water quality concerns. 
 
The California Department of Health Services (DHS) criteria recommends counting the capacity 
of the largest well as out of service.  To mitigate the potential impact of lost production 
capabilities, the City should thus have a well or wells with a capacity of 3.17 million gallons per 
day (MGD) in surplus of the maximum day demand requirements. 
 
The City's projected MDD is approximately 10.3 mgd and City staff indicates the current, 2010, 
supply availability is 15.3 MGD.  The City will in 2011 and 2012 add two wells and before 
2015, another (see Table 4.2-2) to meet maximum day demands. 
 
5.1.2 CLIMATE-RELATED RELIABILITY CONCERNS 
 
Not all hydrologic dry years lead to water supply shortages and groundwater overdraft.  The 
annual quantity of groundwater available to the City will not vary significantly in relation to wet 
or dry years.  During extended drought periods, groundwater levels generally decline, and will 
require more aggressive demand management practices.  The reliability of the City's water 
supply, however, remains constant despite seasonal or climatic changes. 
 
In terms, therefore, of water supply reliability, the City's system reliability is such that alternative 
sources consideration is not necessary, and adopted water shortage contingency planning has not 
thus far been required to be implemented (but see Chapter Eight of this Plan).  Water 
conservation demand regulations are, however, incorporated in a City ordinance (Appendix J) 
and discussed in Chapter Seven of this report. 
 
The City of Lemoore has never suffered any shortage in groundwater production even in driest 
or multiple-dry years.  The extent and nature of the deep aquifer groundwater supply is such that 
a shortage is extremely unlikely.  Any shortage that might be experienced would be due to 
failure to plan for increased demand due to population and industrial growth, or from 
catastrophic well or equipment failure.  Any droughts in the past have not required the City to 
modify well depths or designs and have not been detrimental to the City's water supply.  It is 
emphasized here that the reliability of Lemoore's groundwater supply is not drought-dependent, 
thus negating the need for dry year calculations. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  5 - 3 

5.2 Groundwater Quality Reliability Concerns 
 
LAW 
 
10634.  The plan shall include information, to the extent practicable, relating to the quality of 
existing sources of water available to the supplier over the same five-year increments as 
described in subdivision (a) of Section 10631 and the manner in which water quality affects 
management strategies and supply reliability. 
 
5.2.1 LOCAL GROUNDWATER QUALITY 
 
The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has implemented and is currently 
considering implementing several new or revised drinking water standards.  The State 
Department of Health Services provides regulations to protect against bacteria and viruses in 
drinking water from groundwater sources.  It specifies when corrective action (including 
disinfection) is required to further protect consumers serviced by groundwater systems from 
bacteria and viruses.  The City currently disinfects its supply water, although its groundwater has 
long been considered free of sanitary contamination.  Such disinfection (with hypochlorite) has 
the corollary effect of mitigation of sulfur-related color and odor.  The City is faced with two 
water quality conditions that are the result of the natural deposition that formed the valley fill, 
arsenic and hydrogen sulfide.  Each successive layer of material deposited on the valley floor 
carried with it a portion of the minerals that are present in the surrounding mountains and these 
became a part of the geology of the Valley. 
 
Many of these minerals contribute to the quality of the soils and to the quality of the 
groundwater.  Most of the minerals are in concentrations that do not affect the suitability of the 
water for domestic use.  Arsenic however, is concentrated in water-bearing strata in the Lemoore 
area in sufficient quantity that water for domestic consumption must often be treated, blended or 
otherwise modified in order to meet new and more restrictive water quality standards. 
 
Plants in deltaic and lacustrine environments in the ancient San Joaquin Valley utilized the 
mineral-rich water and bioaccumulated arsenic in plant tissue.  Over time, the accumulation of 
dead vegetative material in which the arsenic had bioaccumulated formed interbedded layers 
within the finer grained deposits. 
 
These fine-grained deposits (usually silts and clays) became enriched in arsenic and were 
eventually buried.  Chemical analyses of well samples reported maximum soluble arsenic 
concentrations of 16 to 25 µg (in wells located in the well field north of the community) and 
lesser maximum amounts, 3 to 11 µg/l, in wells drilled within the community. 
 
The majority of the City's municipal wells are completed in aquifers that have a moderately 
reducing chemical environment which enables the presence of arsenic, iron oxides and sulfate-
reducing bacteria.  The bacteria utilize subsurface organic matter, and cause the release of 
hydrogen sulfide gas, H2S, creating a mild "rotten egg" odor.  In addition it is possible that the 
mixing of H2S and soluble iron form ferrous monosulfide, which can create a slightly "iced tea" 
colored water. 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  5 - 4 

 
Water from the three active wells in the well field north of the community, although higher in 
arsenic, does not have color or excessive sulfide problems.  Wells drilled in the community have 
lower arsenic levels but must be carefully developed (in terms of which aquifer levels are 
utilized) to avoid or minimize color and sulfide taste or odor problems. 
 
5.2.2 ARSENIC/TRIHALOMETHANE (TTHM) 
 
The United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has established a Maximum 
Contaminate Level of 10 µg/L for arsenic.  This MCL was effective February 22, 2002 and the 
State Department of Health Services (DHS) set a compliance date of January 23, 2006.  To meet 
for the new arsenic standard, the City designed and is constructing with funding assistance from 
the State Department of Health Services, a pipeline interconnection system between wells and 
storage tanks to permit blending which provides arsenic-compliant water service to all users.  
The system is to be automatically controlled, on a flow/demand basis, to assure such compliance. 
 
Although not out of compliance, "borderline" but not non-compliant TTHM results in one area 
of the City's distribution system have warranted consideration of seeking grant funding to 
analyze the potential problem and to assure continuing water quality standards compliance. 
 
No treatment in addition to hypochlorite is anticipated at this time to be necessary to meet 
primary drinking water standards for existing or future in-community wells.  It may, however, be 
necessary to modify the existing wellfield chlorination point to reduce detention of disinfected 
water to avoid potential trihalomethane criteria violations. 
 
It is, again, emphasized here that the quality of Lemoore's groundwater supply is, and has been, 
consistent, thus negating the need for five-year period water quality assessments.  Only 
unpredictable regulatory changes in required water quality require quality-related actions. 
 
5.3 Catastrophic Interruption Concerns 
 
Such concerns have been identified by the Water Code Section 1063(c) as involving regional 
power outages, earthquakes or other disasters. 
 
The availability of Diesel power on one of the system's largest wells, of portable emergency 
generation availability for three of the in-town wells, and of backup power for 3.5 million 
gallons of the system's 4.4 million gallon storage capacity mitigates the potential impact of such 
catastrophic emergencies.  The City is planning additional emergency generator hookup 
capabilities for additional in-town wells and storage reservoir pumps. 



CHAPTER SIX 
 

SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON 
  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  6 - 1 

CHAPTER SIX – SUPPLY AND DEMAND COMPARISON 
 
LAW 
 
10635 (a) Every urban water supplier shall include, as part of its urban water management plan, 
an assessment of the reliability of its water service to its customers during normal, dry, and 
multiple dry water years.  This water supply and demand assessment shall compare the total 
water supply sources available to the water supplier with the total projected water use over the 
next 20 years, in five-year increments, for a normal water year, a single dry water year, and 
multiple dry water years.  The water service reliability assessment shall be based upon the 
information compiled pursuant to Section 10631, including available data from the state, 
regional, or local agency population projections within the service area of the urban water 
supplier. 
 
6.1  Supply and Demand Comparison 

 
Comparisons of projected supplies and demands are shown in Tables 4.1-2, 4.1-3, 4.1-4, and 4.2-
1.  The City currently has, and will with the timely addition of new wells have, the water supply 
capabilities to meet MDD and to provide standby production capabilities (see Table 4.2-2).   
 
Table 4.2-2 indicates 22,300,000 million gallon maximum demand day in year 2030 compared 
with a required supply capability for that same year of the same amount.  The projected demands 
for 2030, as well as the projected demands for five-year increments until 2030, are the same for 
normal water years, single dry water years, and multiple dry water years except that domestic use 
demand control measures could, although not required in dry years to protect the supply 
resource, reduce demand by some arbitrary amount, in addition to the State-required target per 
capita per day reductions which are included in this Plan's water demand calculations (see 
Chapters Seven and Eight). 
 



CHAPTER SEVEN 
 

WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 
  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  7 - 1 

CHAPTER SEVEN – WATER DEMAND MANAGEMENT MEASURES 
 
LAW 
 
10631 (f) Provide a description of the supplier's water demand management measures.  This 
description shall include all of the following: 
 
(1) A description of each water demand management measure that is currently being 

implemented, or scheduled for implementation, including the steps necessary to implement 
any proposed measures, including, but not limited to, all of the following… 

 
(a) Water survey programs for single-family residential and multi-family residential 

customers. 
 

(b) Residential plumbing retrofit. 
 

(c) System water audits, leak detection, and repair. 
 

(d) Metering with commodity rates for all new connections and retrofit of existing 
connections. 
 

(e) Large landscape conservation programs and incentives. 
 

(f) High-efficiency washing machine rebate programs. 
 

(g) Public information programs. 
 

(h) School education programs. 
 

(i) Conservation programs for commercial, industrial, and institutional accounts. 
 

(j) Wholesale agency programs. 
 

(k) Conservation pricing. 
 

(l) Water conservation coordinator. 
 

(m) Water waste prohibitions. 
 

(n) Residential ultra-low-flush toilet replacement programs. 
 

In 1991, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) regarding Urban Water Conservation in 
California formed the California Urban Water Conservation Council (CUWCC).  The City is not 
currently a signatory of the MOU and is therefore not a member of CUWCC. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  7 - 2 

However, the City realizes the importance of Best Management Practices (BMPs) to ensure a 
reliable future water supply.  The City is committed to implementing water conservation and 
water recycling programs to maximize sustainability in meeting future water needs for its 
customers. 
 
The California Department of Water Resources (DWR) has termed such Best Management 
Practices (BMPs) as Demand Management Measures (DMMs).  Accordingly, this chapter will 
refer to them as Demand Management Measures (DMMs). 
 
Section 4.1.2 of this Plan has referred to the State's region-pertinent water conservation goals 
(Figure 4-1), targets (Figure 4-2) and target compliance calculation methodologies.  
Methodology 3 was utilized in the selection of 2015 and 2020 targets in the Plan. 
 
The City will undertake and implement Demand Management Measures as required to assure 
full compliance in 2015 and 2020 with the State-required maximum per capita usage targets. 
 
7.1  DMM 1 - Water Survey Programs for Single-Family Residential and Multi-Family 

Residential Customers 
 

This program consists of offering water audits to residential customers.  Audit components 
include reviewing water usage history with the customer, identifying leaks inside and outside, 
and recommending improvements. 
 
The City will, in 2015, initiate a program offering such audits.  The City will target the top one 
percent of single-family residential users.  A similar program for multi-family residential users 
will be developed for 2017 implementation.  Water bills will be reviewed pre and post audit to 
evaluate program effectiveness. 
 
7.2  DMM 2 - Residential Plumbing Retrofit 
 
This program consists of installing physical devices to reduce the amount of water used or to 
limit the amount of water, which can be served to the customer.  In accordance with State Law, 
low flow fixtures have been required on all new construction since 1978.  In addition, State 
legislation enacted in 1990 required all new buildings after January 1, 1992 to install Ultra-Low 
Flush Toilets (ULFT).  The City's Water Waste Ordinance (see subsection 7.13 of this Chapter) 
will provide that in 2013 residential remodeling must be accompanied by low-water use fixture 
retrofitting.  State law now requires plumbing retrofit with any building permit-controlled 
remodeling. 
 
Several studies suggest that savings resulting from miscellaneous interior retrofit fixtures can 
range between 25 and 65 gpd per housing unit.  The studies also suggest that installation of 
retrofit fixtures in older single-family homes tends to produce more savings, while newer multi-
family homes tend to produce fewer savings per housing unit.   
 
Since 1986, the City has participated in an informal booth at the Kings District Fair.  Water saver 
kits have been distributed that contain low-flow plumbing fixtures, toilet dam, dye tablets, and 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  7 - 3 

water-saving tips.  The City is a member of the Kings County Water Education Committee 
(KCWEC).  Representatives of the KCWEC go to public schools and make presentations on 
water safety and water conservation.  Information is published in the local newspaper reminding 
people to conserve water.  Book covers that provide water conservation and water safety 
information are purchased and distributed to local schools.   
 
7.3  DMM 3 - System Water Audits, Leak Detection and Repair 
 
As a result of leak detection, and of engineering analyses, the City spends $50,000 per year 
replacing outdated, undersized, and leaking water mains in the distribution system.  The City's 
capital improvement program provides funding for major water main replacement.  (A water 
audit is a process of accounting for water use throughout a water system in order to quantify 
unaccounted-for water.  Unaccounted-for water is the difference between metered production 
and metered usage on a system wide basis).  Water losses due to pipe leakage are considered, 
however to be minimal; the majority of the City's water system is less than thirty-five years old.  
The high (4 to 6 feet) perched water table under the City permits essentially immediate 
cognizance of pipe leakage through surface indications; a formal leak protection program is not 
required. 
 
The City will, in 2016, initiate a program for comparison of metered well production and 
metered usage, utilizing that program as guidance for system analysis and any needed repairs or 
replacement.  Comparisons of succeeding-year figures will permit evaluation of program 
effectiveness. 
 
7.4  DMM 4 - Metering with Commodity Rates for all New Connections and Retrofit 

of Existing Connections 
 
This DMM requires water meters for all new construction and billing by volume of use, as well 
as establishing a program for retrofitting any existing unmetered connections. 
 
Ninety-nine percent of all City connections are metered, with unmetered facilities principally 
consisting of downtown, low-usage, commercial service connections.  These connections are 67 
in number.  With respect to such connections, however, the City will comply with the Urban 
Water Management Planning Act, Water Code Section 325, which requires water meters and 
billings based thereon for all service connections by 2025. 
 
There are no seasonal rates; the present rate structure is an increasing rate 0.95 structure.   For 
single family residences, the first 700 cubic feet of water costs $13.20, the next 2,100 cubic feet 
is $0.90 per 100 cubic feet, the next 2,800, $0.95 per 100 cubic feet, and all usage thereafter 
$1.00 per 100 cubic feet.  Comparable charges are made for other users (see Appendix K).  
Water meters are read every month, and consumers are billed monthly. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  7 - 4 

7.5  DMM 5 - Large Landscape Conservation Programs and Incentives 
 
This DMM calls for agencies to commence assigning reference evapotranspiration-based (Eto) 
water budgets to accounts with dedicated irrigation meters and provide water-use audits to 
accounts with mixed-use meters. 
 
The City in December 2009 adopted a Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance in accordance with 
Assembly Bill 325:  The Water Conservation in Landscaping Act.  This ordinance limits the 
amount of turf in landscaping, requires plant groupings according to water needs, and provides 
some flexibility to the landscape designer while promoting landscape efficiency.  The Parks 
Superintendent reviews all commercial landscaping plans for compliance prior to permits being 
issued.  The City assists with setting irrigation controller clocks for water efficiency landscape 
watering. 
 
To ensure that the intent of such regulations is carried out, the applicant for a building permit is 
required to submit landscape plans for review to the City. 
 
After the approved landscape is installed, it is the responsibility of the Public Works Department 
to inspect the project to confirm that the landscaping for the project was installed in accordance 
with the approved plans.  The landscape designer must certify that the project is in compliance 
with these regulations by signing and submitting a completed certificate of compliance.  The 
Director of Public Works, or his designated representative, can authorize the deferral of 
landscape completion for good and valid reasons, subject to the posting of appropriate security 
with the City.   
 
The City will, prior to submittal of a 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, devise and 
implement a program for provision of free irrigation system inspections for large landscapes 
such as schools and of training for water use efficiencies for irrigation managers for such 
landscapes. 
 
7.6  DMM 6 - High-Efficiency Washing Machine Rebate Program 
 
A $35 rebate (So. California Gas) or a $50 rebate (PG&E), is available to customers who 
purchase a high-efficiency washing machine.  An efficient washing machine can reportedly save 
the user up to $650 in energy and water costs over the life of the machine.  To qualify, the unit 
must be installed with a water-heating source using natural gas distributed by Southern 
California Gas Company or electricity distributed by Pacific Gas and Electric Company. 
 
7.7  DMM 7 - Public Information Programs 
 
This program consists of distributing information to the public through a variety of methods 
including brochures, radio and television, school presentations and videos, and web sites. 
 
The City participates in the KCWEC.  Members of the committee make public presentations at 
local schools throughout the County and participate in the water awareness week campaign.  
Water-saving reminders are published in local newspapers. 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  7 - 5 

 
The City also, through KCWEC, has an informational booth at the Kings District Fair.  The 
City's relatively low per capita water use is evidence of the success of these programs coupled 
with the near-total metering of City water services. 
 
7.8  DMM 8 - School Education Program 
 
This DMM requires water suppliers to implement a school education program that includes 
providing educational materials and instructional assistance. 
 
The KCWEC sponsors a poster contest for all schools in Kings County, provides book covers 
with water safety and conservation tips, and makes presentations pertaining to water safety and 
conservation, all in accord with state education framework requirements.  The City will, 
beginning in 2008, supplement KCWEC presentations with City staff.  Follow-up questionnaires 
to teachers will assist in evaluation of program effectiveness. 
 
7.9  DMM 9 - Conservation Programs for Commercial, Industrial, and Institutional 

Accounts 
 
Commercial, industrial and institutional accounts are currently metered and charged in 
accordance with the quantity of water used on an increasing rate basis for increased water usage.  
The City periodically undertakes usage analysis of its major industrial accounts (Leprino and 
Olam).  Metered usage comparisons provide an evaluation of program effectiveness.  An initial, 
trial, usage analysis of commercial and institutional accounts will be undertaken in 2015 as a 
basis for development of a long-range program. 
 
7.10 DMM 8 - School Education Program 
 
This DMM applies to wholesale agencies and defines a wholesaler's role in terms of financial, 
technical, and programmatic assistance to its retail agencies in implementing DMMs.  The City 
is not a water wholesaler. 
 
7.11 DMM 11 - Conservation Pricing 
 
There are no seasonal rates; the present rate structure is an increasing rate structure (see DMM 4, 
Section 7.5).  For single family residences, the first 700 cubic feet of water costs $13.20, the next 
2,100 cubic feet is $0.90 per 100 cubic feet, the next 2,800 cubic feet is $0.95 per 100 cubic feet, 
and all usage thereafter is charged at $1.00 per 100 cubic feet. 
 
7.12 DMM 12 - Water Conservation Coordinator 
 
The City Manager has appointed a conservation coordinator, the Public Works Superintendent.  
The conservation coordinator is responsible for coordinating and expanding the City's water 
conservation program and providing residents with useful water conservation information. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  7 - 6 

7.13 DMM 13 - Residential Ultra-Low-Flush Toilet Replacement Programs 
 
State legislation requires the installation of efficient plumbing in new construction, and effective 
in 1994 required that only ULFT be sold in California.  Homes constructed since 1994 in the 
City have ULFT.  The City's Water Conservation Ordinance (adopted in April 2003) requires 
that residential modeling be accompanied by retrofitting with low-flow fixtures.  (Please see 
DMM 2 regarding new State law requirements.) 
 
The City will, prior to submittal of a 2015 Urban Water Management Plan, aggressively seek 
grant funding for rebates for the replacement of high-flow fixtures with low-flow fixtures. 
 
7.14 DMM 14 - Water Conservation Ordinance 
 
This Ordinance (see Appendix J) provides the following requirements: 
 
(1) "No person shall keep, maintain, operate, or use any water connection, hose, faucet, hydrant, 

pipe, outlet or plumbing fixture which is not tight and free from leakage, dripping or waste of 
water." 
 

(2) "No person shall allow excessive water to run or waste from his property onto streets or 
highways." 
 

(3) "No person shall willfully or negligently waste water in any manner." 
 

(4) Outdoor watering for those with even numbered addresses is permitted on Tuesday, 
Thursday and Saturday, while odd numbered addresses may water on Wednesday, Friday and 
Sunday.  Monday is a day on which no outdoor watering is allowed. 
 

(5) Regulates and constrains the drainage of swimming pools. 
 

(6) Prohibits washdown of exterior asphalt or concrete areas. 
 

(7) Restricts water usage for washing cars, boats or other vehicles. 
 

(8) Requires remodeling replacement of fixtures with low-flow units. 
 

It provides for increasing fines, and ultimately for service flow restrictions, for repeated 
violations of the Ordinance. 
 
The Ordinance has been, and will continue to be, effective.  Its effectiveness is evaluated on a 
continuing basis by the Public Works Superintendent. 
 



CHAPTER EIGHT 
 

WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 
  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  8 - 1 

CHAPTER EIGHT – WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN 
 
8.1 Stages of Actions 
  
LAW  
 
10632.  The plan shall provide an urban water shortage contingency analysis which includes 
each of the following elements which are within the authority of the urban water supplier: 
 
10632. (a)  Stages of action to be undertaken by the urban water supplier in response to water 
supply shortages, including up to a 50 percent reduction in water supply and an outline of 
specific water supply conditions which are applicable to each stage.  
 
(a) (4)  Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific water use practices during water 
shortages, including, but not limited to, prohibiting the use of potable water for street cleaning. 
 
(a) (5)  Consumption reduction methods in the most restrictive stages.  Each urban water 
supplier may use any type of consumption reduction methods in its water shortage contingency 
analysis that would reduce water use, are appropriate for its area, and have the ability to 
achieve a water use reduction consistent with up to a 50 percent reduction in water supply. 
 
(a) (6)  Penalties or charges for excessive use, where applicable. 
 
(a) (7)  An analysis of the impacts of each of the actions and conditions described in paragraphs 
(1) to (6), inclusive, on the revenues and expenditures of the urban water supplier, and proposed 
measures to overcome those impacts, such as the development of reserves and rate adjustments. 
 
(a) (8)  A draft water shortage contingency resolution or ordinance. 
 
(a) (9)  A mechanism for determining actual reductions in water use pursuant to the urban water 
shortage contingency analysis. 
 
8.1.1 WATER SHORTAGE STAGES AND REDUCTION OBJECTIVES  
 
Supply capacity must be designed to meet MDD plus standby and thus meet demands through 
the planning horizon of 2030.  The 2030 standby capacity, reserved for emergency conditions 
such as equipment malfunctions, is estimated at 15 percent (3.17 mgd). 
 
Water agencies relying solely on groundwater, such as the City, are much less likely to 
experience water shortages than those agencies relying primarily on surface water. 
 
8.1.2 WATER REDUCTION STAGE TRIGGERING MECHANISMS  
 
Emergency response actions should take effect when the City Manager declares that the City is 
unable to provide sufficient water supply to meet ordinary demands, to the extent that 
insufficient supplies would be available for human consumption, sanitation and fire protection.  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  8 - 2 

The declaration would be based on his/her judgment as to the degree of the immediate or future 
supply deficiency.  Table 8.1-1 provides guidelines to assist in declaring water shortage stages. 
 

Table 8.1-1 
Guide for Declaring Water Shortage Stages 

 
Stage Condition 

1  Below average rainfall in the previous 12-24 months 
 10 percent or more of municipal wells out of service due to noncompliance with drinking water 

standards or other emergency  
 Warm weather patterns typical of summer months 
 

2  Below average rainfall in the previous 24-36 months 
 Prolonged periods of low water pressure 
 10 percent or more of municipal wells out of service due to noncompliance with drinking water 

standards or other emergency 
 Warm weather typical of summer months 
 

3  Below average rainfall in the previous 36 months 
 Prolonged periods of low water pressure 
 10 percent or more of municipal wells out of service due to noncompliance with drinking water 

standards or other emergency 
 Warm weather patterns typical of summer months 
 

 
A combination of voluntary and mandatory water conservation measures would be used to 
reduce water usage in the event of water shortages. 

 
Table 8.1-2 outlines reduction objectives for each stage. 

 
Table 8.1-2 

Water Usage Reduction Objectives 
 

Stage Description Reduction Objective 
1 (Minor Shortage Potential) 10-20% reduction in total water demands from baseline 
2 (Moderate Shortage Potential) 20-35% reduction in total water demands from baseline 
3 (Critical Shortage Potential) 35-50% reduction in total water demands from baseline 

 
8.1.3  ADMINISTRATION OF WATER SHORTAGE PROGRAM  
 
The administration of a water shortage program as described in this section would involve 
coordination among a number of City departments.  It is anticipated that the Public Works 
Department would have primary responsibility for managing the program, since it is responsible 
for the City’s water system.  The Public Works Director would be the Program Manager and thus 
the primary coordinator of water shortage activities. 
 
An appropriate organizational structure for a water shortage management team would be 
determined based on the actual situation.  Figure 8-1 presents an example of a typical 
organization structure.  Specific individuals would be designated to fill the identified roles.  The 
City would not have to hire additional staff or outside contractors to implement the program. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  8 - 3 

Water Shortage Program Organizational Structure 
Figure 8-1 

 

City Manager

Public Works Director -
Program Manager

City Engineer

Mayor 
& 

City Council

Operations
Manager

Finance 
Department

Representative

Planning
Representative

Water System
Operations

Track Well
Pumping Capacity

Monitoring
Groundwater Levels

Flow Restrictions
(if necessary)

New Wells

Well
Modifications

New
Development

Media
Relations

Revenue
Tracking

Public
Information

Coordination 
w/State DWR
and KCWD

Compliance
Monitoring

Enforcement

Water
Billing

Rate
Structure

Tracking
Water Use

 
 

The major elements to be considered in administering and implementing the program would 
include: 
 
Identifying the City staff members to fill the key roles on the water shortage management team.   



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  8 - 4 

 
Intensifying the public information program to provide comprehensive information on necessary 
actions that must be undertaken by the City and by the public.  The scope of the public 
information program can be developed by reviewing published references, especially those 
published by DWR, and researching successful aspects of current programs conducted by 
neighboring water agencies.  
 
A public information hotline may be advisable to answer any questions regarding the program. 
 
Monitoring program effectiveness:  Ongoing monitoring will be needed to track supply 
availability and actual water user reductions.  This procedure will allow the City to continuously 
re-evaluate the situation and make informal decisions as to whether another reduction level is 
needed. 
 
Enforcing program requirements:  For the 35 to 50 percent reduction program, enforcement of 
water use prohibitions and water use allocations would be important in achieving the program 
goals.  Inspectors and enforcement personnel could be identified among City staff that are in the 
community on other business, such as police, park department staff, street maintenance staff, 
meter readers, etc. 

 
Dealing with equity issues that might arise from the mandatory restrictions or higher water rates:  
Depending on the level of restriction, there may be a need to address concerns of individual 
customers who might have special conditions or extenuating circumstances and are unduly 
affected by the program.  A procedure should be identified for dealing with such special requests 
and/or for reviewing specific accounts. 
 
Coordinating with relevant local entities:  Since the Lemoore Canal and Irrigation Company and 
the Lemoore Irrigation District are the principal water management agencies affecting 
Lemoore’s water supply, it is critical to have ongoing coordination with contact persons at these 
entities who will be aware of the City’s needs. 
 
Adjusting water rates:  Revenues from water sales should be reviewed periodically to determine 
whether an increase in rates might be needed to cover revenue shortfalls due to the decrease in 
demand. 
 
Addressing new development proposals:  During periods of severe water shortage, it may be 
necessary to impose additional requirements on new development to reduce new demand or to 
temporarily curtail new hook-ups. 
 
It is essential that the water shortage contingency plan, as a component of the Urban Water 
Management Plan, undergoes a formal public review process including a public hearing.  A 
thorough public review process will help minimize future objections when mandatory 
prohibitions are needed. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  8 - 5 

8.2 Water Shortage Contingency Ordinance or Resolution 
  
The City Council will, by Resolution adopted at a regular or special, noticed, Council meeting 
adopt a Resolution declaring a water shortage when advised to do so by the City Manager.  A 
draft copy of such a Resolution is included in this Plan as Appendix L. 
 
8.3 Mandatory Prohibitions on Water Wasting 
 
Mandatory compliance measures enacted during a water shortage are more severe than voluntary 
measures, produce greater savings, and are less costly to the utility.  The principal drawback to 
these measures is customer resentment if the measures are not seen as equitable.  Therefore, such 
measures need to be accompanied by a good public relations campaign. 
 
Mandatory measures may include: 
 
 Ordinances making water waste illegal (Stage 1 shortage); 
 Ordinances controlling landscape irrigation (Stage 1 shortage); 
 Ordinances restricting non-irrigation outdoor water uses (Stage 2 shortage); 
 Prohibitions on new connections or the incorporation of new areas (Stage 2 shortage); and 
 Rationing (Stage 3 shortage). 
 
Prohibitions on new development may conflict with other policies and needs.  However, if 
existing customers are called upon to make sacrifices during a drought period, they may feel that 
water agencies should concentrate on fulfilling current obligations rather than taking on new 
customers.  Such prohibitions may need to be considered in the event of a critical shortage, such 
as the 50 percent reduction program.  If necessary, an offset program might be considered 
whereby developers demonstrate that they will implement measures to conserve at least as much 
water in the existing community as their new project will use.  In some cases, a two to one offset 
might be required of the new development. 
 
The City currently enforces Municipal Code Section 7-7A-8, Title 7.  The provisions of that 
Code section are summarized in Section 7.13 of this Plan; the full Code section is contained in 
Appendix J. 
 
Customers violating the regulations and restrictions on water use set forth in the Code are 
penalized as follows: 
 
1. First Violation.  A written notice of such violation shall be issued by the Public Works 

Department personnel or Police Department personnel. 
 
2. Second Violation.  A written notice of such violation shall be given of a second violation, and 

a charge of Fifteen and No/100 Dollars ($15.00) shall be added to the water bill of such 
person as a one-time penalty. 

 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  8 - 6 

3. Third Violation.  A written notice of such violation shall be given and a penalty of Twenty-
five and No/100 ($25.00) shall be added to the water bill of such person as a one-time 
penalty. 

 
4. Fourth Violation.  A written notice of such violation shall be given and a charge of Fifty and 

No/100 Dollars ($50.00) shall be added to the water bill of such person as a one-time 
penalty. 
 

5. Fifth Violation.  A written notice shall be given of a fifth violation and the consumer shall 
have a flow restrictor placed in their service until such time that they can assure the Public 
Works Director that no more waste will occur.  All costs, including overhead, for this 
installation shall be billed to the customer. 

 
8.4 Revenue and Expenditure Impacts/Measures to Overcome Impacts 
  
The majority of operating costs for most water agencies are fixed rather than a function of the 
amount of water sold.  As a result, when significant conservation programs are undertaken, it is 
frequently necessary to raise water rates because the revenue generated is based on lower total 
consumption while the costs, and resulting revenue required, are basically fixed.  Typically water 
rates need to be increased when the indicated stages are implemented.  However, reductions in 
water demands, especially peak demands, can delay the need to develop costly new water 
sources in growing communities. 
 
The City does not currently have an emergency fund but will consider establishing such a fund to 
mitigate the impacts of a water shortage.  The fund would then be used to stabilize water rates 
during periods of water shortage or disasters affecting the water supplies.  Excess water revenues 
collected as a result of shortage rate adjustments would be used to enhance the emergency fund. 
 

Table 8.4-1 
Guide for Rate Adjustment 

 
Stage Rate Adjustment 

1 25 percent increase over pre-shortage rates 
2 50 percent increase over pre-shortage rates 
3 100 percent increase over pre-shortage rates 

End of Water 
Shortage Emergency 

15 percent increase over pre-shortage rates.  (This rate increase is implemented based on 
historical information from communities that experienced water shortage and found that 
consumption rate (gpcd) does not return to pre-shortage levels.  In anticipation of reduced 
sales, the City rates would be set for one year at 115 percent of the pre-shortage rates.  This 
rate increase should be re-evaluated every two years.) 

 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  8 - 7 

8.5  Actions during a Catastrophic Interruption 
  
During declared shortages, or when a shortage declaration appears imminent, the City Manager 
will activate a water shortage response team.  The team includes: public utilities, water, fire, 
planning, health and emergency services.  Other actions and procedures to be followed during 
catastrophic events will be developed. 
 
8.6  Reduction Measuring Mechanism  
 
The City’s water system is supplied by groundwater wells.  Each well includes a flow-
monitoring device that records the amount of water entering the City’s distribution system.  The 
City would use these devices to monitor actual citywide reductions in water use.  
 
 



CHAPTER NINE 
 

WATER RECYCLING 
  



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  9 - 1 

CHAPTER NINE – WATER RECYCLING 
 
LAW  
 
10633.  The plan shall provide, to the extent available, information on recycled water and its 
potential for use as a water source in the service area of the urban water supplied.  To the extent 
practicable, the preparation of the plan shall be coordinated with local water, wastewater, 
groundwater, and planning agencies and shall include all of the following: 
 
10633 (a).  A description of the wastewater collection and treatment systems in the supplier's 
service area, including quantification of the amount of wastewater collected and treated and the 
methods of wastewater disposal. 
 
10633 (b).  A description of the recycled water currently being used in the supplier's service 
area, including but not limited to, the type, place and quantity of use. 
 
10633 (c).  A description and quantification of the potential uses of recycled water, including, 
but not limited to, agricultural irrigation, landscape irrigation, wildlife habitat enhancement, 
wetlands, industrial reuse determination with regard to the technical and economic feasibility of 
serving those uses, groundwater recharge, and other appropriate use… 
 
10633 (d).  The projected use of recycled water within the supplier's service area at the end of 5, 
10, 15, and 20 years. 
 
10633 (e).  A description of actions, including financial incentives, which may be taken to 
encourage the use of recycled water, and the projected results of these actions in terms of acre-
feet of recycled water used per year. 
 
10633 (f).  A plan for optimizing the use of recycled water in the supplier's service area, 
including actions to facilitate the installation of dual distribution systems and to promote 
recirculating uses. 
 
9.1 Recycling Programs 
  
The City of Lemoore, and the industries supplied by the City's water system, employ recycling 
procedures to minimize City water supply impacts on the groundwater basin.  This Plan section 
describes the existing, and planned, recycling programs. 
 
9.2 Olam 
  
This industry, a tomato products processing facility, discharges approximately 90 percent of its 
total annual water usage directly to agricultural land previously supplied by groundwater, and 
surface water entitlements, for crop irrigation.  The balance of the industry's effluent is 
discharged to the City's wastewater treatment and recycling facility.  Thus essentially 100% of 
the industry's water usage is recycled. 
 



 
City of Lemoore  May 2014 
Urban Water Management Plan  9 - 2 

9.3 Existing City Wastewater Treatment and Recycling Facilities 
 
The City of Lemoore provides wastewater services to its residential, commercial, and industrial 
water users.  The Waste Water Treatment Facility operates under Waste Discharge Order No. 96-
050, issued by the RWQCB. 
 
The WWTF was completed in 1974 and consisted of four aerated lagoons with diffused air 
systems, and a fifth pond for emergency storage of effluent.  In 1987, the diffused air system was 
removed and replaced with floating surface aerators.  The project site includes a 
holding/treatment pond used solely by Leprino Food Inc.  
 
The existing facility has a permitted domestic waste/industrial waste design capacity of 4.5 mgd.  
The existing 30-inch diameter outfall line limits the ability of the WWTF to discharge water to a 
maximum of 5.7 mgd.  The treatment facility includes:  a pumping station and three treatment 
ponds, followed by gas chlorination prior to discharge to receiving waters. 
 
A new headworks facility was constructed in 2004.  The new headworks facility has an initial 
design capacity of 3.9 mgd and can be expanded to a design flow of 9.6 mgd.  (Treated industrial 
wastes from the Leprino Foods facilities do not enter the treatment plant through the headworks 
but are discharged to the outfall downstream from the plant.  Domestic flows average only 1.8 
mgd.) 
 
Effluent from the combined domestic and Leprino Foods waste discharges is conveyed via a 6-
mile pipeline to the Westlake Canal.  The recycled water is then used to supplement irrigation of 
about 50,000 acres of animal feed grains and cotton on Westlake Farms.  Discharge to Westlake 
Canal was approximately 25 percent of the water utilized by domestic consumers and Leprino. 
 
9.4 Leprino Foods 
 
This industry pre-treats its process wastes before discharge to the downstream end of the City's 
wastewater treatment facilities.  These wastes, approximately 2.8 million gallons per day, are 
transported through the City's 30-inch outfall line to Westlake Farms' irrigated agriculture 
acreage.  In excess of 50% of the industry's water usage is recycled, the balance being evaporated 
in the cheese production process. 
 
9.5 Projected Direct Recycling  
 
It is anticipated that the effluent recycled by Olam will remain constant during the planning 
horizon and that Leprino's effluent will increase by 25%.  The City's recycled domestic effluent 
will increase proportionate to anticipated population growth, essentially doubling during the 
planning period (through 2030). 
 
The effectiveness of the existing and projected agricultural irrigation recycling program 
precludes the necessity of evaluating other recycling programs such as dual distribution systems.  
The two major industries, as cost-saving measures, fully recycle and multi-use water within their 
plants prior to discharge. 



APPENDICES 
  



Appendix A 
 

State Code - Urban Water Management Planning Act 
  

































Appendix B 
 

UWMP Checklist 
  



vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 3.11, 3.12; pages3-1 to 3-3; Appendix G;see attached correspondenceSection 1.6, page 1-5

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Appendix G; see attachedcorrespondence

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 1.3, pages 1-1 to1-3; Section 1.5, page 1-5

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Appendix G; see attachedcorrespondence

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Appendix G and Appendix D;Section 1.4, page 1-4

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Appendix G; Appendix Dand attached correspondence;Section 1.4, pages 1-4 and 1-5

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Appendix F

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Chapters 4 to 9



vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Appendix G

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 1.4, page 1-5

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 2.6, page 2-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 2.2, page 2-1

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 2.4, pages 2-3 to 2-5

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 2.4, pages2-3 to 2-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 2.5, page 2-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 4, pages 4-2 to 4-8

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
N/A



vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Sections 4.1.4 and 4.1.5,pages 4-1 to 4-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 4.1.5, page 4-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
N/A

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 4.3, page 4-8

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 4.2.2, pages 4-7 and 4-8

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 3, pages3-1 to 3-13

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Sections 3.1, 3.1.1,3.1.2, pages 3-1 to 3-3

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 3.2, pages 3-3 to 3-8

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
      Not adjudicated 



vanessaw
Typewritten Text
N/A

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 3.2, pages 3-3 to 3-8

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 4.1.1, pages4-1, 4-2

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Sections 4.1.5 and4.1.6, page 4-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 4.6, page 4-10

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 8

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
N/A

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 9, pages9-1 and 9-2

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 9, page 9-2



vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 9, page 9-2

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 9, page 9-2

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 9, pages 9-1 and 9-2

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
N/A

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
N/A

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 9, pages9-1 and 9-2

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 7, pages7-1 to 7-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 5, pages5-1 to 5-4

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
N/A

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 8, pages8-1 to 8-7



vanessaw
Typewritten Text
N/A

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 5.3, page 5-4

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 8, pages8-1 to 8-7

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 8.3, pages 8-5 and 8-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 8.4, page 8-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Appendix E

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 8.1.2, pages8-1 and 8-2

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 5.2, pages5-3 and 5-4



vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Sections 4.15 and5.1.1, pages 4-6 to4-8 and 5-2

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 7, pages7-1 to 7-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 7, pages7-1 to 7-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 4.1.1, Table 4.1-1, pages4-1 and 4-2

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
Section 7, pages7-1 to 7-6

vanessaw
Typewritten Text
N/A



Appendix C 
 

Abbreviations 
  



AAWF   average annual water flow 
AF   acre feet 
AFY   acre-feet per year 
Act   Urban Water Management Planning Act 
BMPs   Best Management Practices 
City   City of Lemoore 
Contingency Plan Urban Water Shortage Contingency Plan 
County   Kings County 
CUWCC  California Urban Water Conservation Council 
DHS   California Department of Health Services 
DMMs   Demand Management Measures 
DWR   California Department of Water Resources 
EDU   Equivalent Dwelling Unit 
EPA   U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
ETo   Evapotranspiration-based 
°F   Degrees Fahrenheit 
GMP   Groundwater Management Program 
gpcd   gallons per capita per day 
gpd   gallons per day 
gpm   gallons per minute 
GWR   Groundwater Rule 
KCWEC  Kings County Water Education Committee 
KCWD  Kings County Water District 
KRCD   Kings River Conservation District 
LID   Laguna Irrigation District 
MCL   Maximum Contaminant Limit 
MDD   Maximum Day Demand 
MG   million gallons 
MGD   million gallons per day 
MOU   Memorandum of Understanding 
Plan   Urban Water Management Plan 
RCP   reinforced concrete pipe 
RWQCB  Regional Water Quality Control Board 
taf   thousand acre-feet 
UGB   Urban Growth Boundary 
UWMP  Urban Water Management Plan 
UWMPA  Urban Water Management Plan Act 
ULFT   Ultra Low Flush Toilet 
WWTF  Waste Water Treatment Facility 
 



Appendix D 
 

Public Notice 
  



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 

The City of Lemoore will conduct on     at 7:30 p.m. at the Council 

Chambers, 429 "C" Street, Lemoore a public hearing on the adoption of an updated 

Urban Water Management Plan. 

 

This Plan, required by the State of California Water Code to be periodically updated, 

projects City water system supply and demand and includes plans to be adopted for water 

conservation and for water supply emergencies. 

 

Copies of the draft updated Plan are available for inspection at the City Hall at 119 Fox 

Street, the office of the City Clerk and at the Lemoore Public Library at 457 "C" Street. 

 

 

      

City Clerk 

 

 

 

      

Date 



Appendix E 
 

Adoption Resolution 
  



Resolution No.     
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE, ADOPTING AN URBAN 
WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore, duly called and held on    
 , at    P.M., it was moved by Council Member    , and seconded 
by Council Member     , and duly carried that the following resolution be 
adopted: 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Assembly Bill 797, Water Code Section 10610, et. seq., the City of Lemoore 
has prepared an Urban Water Management Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council scheduled a public hearing for     to accept 
testimony regarding the Urban Water Management Plan; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the public hearing has been held as scheduled and any and all testimony has been 
received and considered regarding the Plan, and said Plan has been submitted in draft format to the 
Department of Water Resources, and minimally modified in accord with comments therefrom. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Lemoore approves and 

adopts the Urban Water Management Plan, incorporating therein the appointment of the Public 
Works Director as the City's Program Manager for water shortage activities and authorizing the City 
Manager to declare a water shortage should one occur and to implement or recommend thereafter, if 
necessary, the water shortage measures described in Chapter Eight of said Plan. 

 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held 
on   day of   ,   , by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   Council Member        
     
              
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
NOES   Council Member        
 
              
 
              
 
              
 
              



Appendix F 
 

Adopted Resolution 
  



Appendix G 
 

UWMP Distribution Plan 
  





Appendix H 
 

Agreement, City of Lemoore and Laguna Irrigation District 
  















Appendix I 
 

Historical Groundwater Elevation Maps, Tulare Lake Subbasin 
  

















Appendix J 
 

Water Conservation Ordinance, City of Lemoore 
  















Appendix K 
 

City of Lemoore Water Rate Ordinance 
  













Appendix L 
 

Water Shortage Contingency Resolution 
  



DRAFT 
 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE  
DECLARING A WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY AND  

AUTHORIZING STAFF ACTIONS BASED THEREON 
 

At a    meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on 
 , 20  at   p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member   , 
seconded by Council Member   , and carried, that the following Resolution be 
adopted; 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has reported to the City Council that the City’s municipal water 
system is experiencing a water shortage as defined in Chapter Eight of the City’s duly adopted 
Urban Water Management plan, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Manager has reported that the water shortage is a Stage   contingency 
as defined in the Plan, 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council based on the foregoing recitals 
and any information on testimony presented at the duly noticed and called meeting of the City 
Council at which this matter was considered that: 
 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to implement and enforce the actions described 
for Stage   in the Urban Water Management Plan, and 
 

2. To report to the Council the status of the water shortage at such times as the City 
Manager deems appropriate, and 
 

3. To recommend to the Council the termination of all or any Stage-related measures at such 
time as the water shortage no longer exists, and 
 

4. Adoption of the Stage   emergency measures necessitated by the water shortage are 
exempt from environmental review and processing in accord with California 
Environmental Quality Statues (Public Resources Code, Division 13), Section 21172 
(CEQA Guidelines Section 15268(c)) CEQA California Public Resources Code Section  
 . 



Appendix M 
 

Appointment of Water Conservation Coordinator 





 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-17 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 

ADOPTING AN URBAN WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
 
 

 At a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore, duly called and 
held on July 15, 2014 at 7:30 p.m., it was moved by Councilmember 
_________________, and seconded by Councilmember _________________, and 
duly carried that the following resolution be adopted: 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Assembly Bill 797, Water Code Section 10610 et. seq., 
the City of Lemoore has prepared an Urban Water Management Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council scheduled a public hearing for July 15, 2014 to 
accept testimony regarding the amended Urban Water Management Plan; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the public hearing has been held as scheduled and any an all 
testimony has been received and considered regarding the Plan, and said Plan has 
been submitted to the Department of Water Resources, and minimally modified in 
accord with comments therefrom. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore approves and adopts the Urban Water Management Plan, incorporating 
therein the appointment of the Public Works Director as the City’s Program Manager 
for water shortage activities and authorizing the City Manager to declare a water 
shortage should one occur and to implement or recommend thereafter, if necessary, 
the water storage measures described in Chapter Eight of said Plan. 
 
 Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Lemoore held on the 15th day of July, 2014, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
      _____________________________ 
      WILLIAM SIEGEL, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________ 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CERTIFICATE 

 
 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )   ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE ) 
 
 
 I, MARY J. VENEGAS, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore, do hereby certify the 
foregoing Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was passed and 
adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held on the 15th day of July, 2014. 
 
 
Dated: __________________ 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Public Works  

Department 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3-2 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works/Planning 
Date: July 8, 2014  

Subject: Public Hearing – Resolution – 2014-18 – Confirming Diagram and 
Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal year 2014-2015 for Landscaping 
and Lighting Maintenance District No 1, Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 
11, 12, 12A, & 13 

 
Discussion: 
The Engineer’s report documenting the need for and costs of the proposed 2014-2015 annual 
assessments was presented to the City Council on July 1, 2014 as the basis for adoption of the 
Resolution of Intention to Levy and Collect Annual Assessments.   
 
The levies for fiscal year 2014-2015 differ from zone to zone due to varying amounts of 
landscape to be maintained and differing ratios between the amount of landscaping and other 
facilities and the number of housing units responsible for maintenance.  Listed below by zone 
are the current 2013-2014 levies and the proposed 2014-2015 levies.  No changes are being 
made in the existing improvements for the maintenance of which the assessments are being 
proposed.  There is a decrease in assessments for two zones from the previous fiscal year.  
 
               2013-2014  2014-2015 
1   Westfield          $135.00   $135.00 
2   Cambridge Park 3 Phase 2 
   Windsor Count 5 Phase 2       $135.00   $135.00 
3   Silva Estates 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9    $  55.42   $  55.42 
5   Wildflower Meadows        $  62.32   $  62.32 
6   Capistrano          $  15.78   $  15.78 
7    Silverado Estates         $  78.23   $  78.23 
8   Country Club Villas Phase 1      $139.94   $107.92 
8A   Country Club Villas Phase 2      $139.94   $107.92 
9   Manzanita at Lemoore        
   La Dante Rose Subdivision      $  46.62   $  42.24 
10   Avalon Phase 1, 2 and 3       $125.76   $125.76 
11   Self Help          $  52.32   $  53.32 
12   Summerwind and College Park 
   Phase 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6       $145.00   $145.00 
12A   College Park Phase 7        $145.00   $145.00 
13   Covington Place         $150.00   $150.00  
 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 



Budget Impact: 
Slight decrease due to the reduction in assessments in two of the zones.  
 
Recommendation: 
That the Council hold the Public Hearing and at the conclusion of the Public Hearing, adopt, by 
motion, Resolution 2014-18 confirming the Diagram and Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal 
year 2014-2015 for Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No 1, Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 
8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, & 13. 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 



Engineer’s Report and Assessment 
For Zones 1 - 13 

 

 
 
 

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Lemoore 
 

Kings County, California 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 
Visalia, California 93278 
 

June 2014 Submitted to: 
 
City Council 
City of Lemoore 
Park and Recreation Department 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, California 93245 

 



© Copyright by Quad Knopf, Inc. 
 Unauthorized use prohibited. 
L140206 

 
 

ENGINEER’S REPORT AND ASSESSMENT 
 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, 

ZONES 1 – 13 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Mayor – William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem – Lois Wynne 

 
 

Council Members 
 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 

Visalia, CA  93278 
Tel. No:  (559) 733-0440 
Fax No:  (559) 733-7821 

harryt@quadknopf.com 
 
 
 

June 2014 
 

mailto:harryt@quadknopf.com


M E M O 

 

To: City Council, City of Lemoore 

 

From: Harry A. Tow, P.E. 

Engineer of Work 

 

Date: July 1, 2014 

 

Re: Landscape & Lighting Maintenance District No. 1. 

2014-15 Annual Report 

 

At your July 1 meeting, staff will be presenting the Engineer’s Report and the Resolution of Intention 

to levy annual assessments for fiscal year 2014-2015 for Landscape and Lighting Maintenance 

District No. 1, Zones 1 through 13. 

 

Thereafter, if the Resolution of Intention is adopted, staff will publish notices regarding a public 

hearing on the proposed annual assessment.  

 

The levies, for fiscal year 2014-2015, differ from Zone to Zone due to varying amounts of landscape 

to be maintained and differing ratios between the amount of landscaping, lighting and other facilities 

and the number of housing units responsible for the maintenance.  Listed below, by Zone, are the 

current 2013-2014 levies and the proposed 2014-2015 levies.  No substantial changes are being made 

in the existing improvements for the maintenance of which the assessments are being proposed, and 

no new improvements are proposed for these Zones.  It should be noted that per Resolution No. 

2007-37, Zone 4 was dissolved and assessments will no longer be collected.  This Resolution was 

passed on September 18, 2007. 

 

Zone  Areas Included     2013-14 2014-15 

1  Westfield Park     $135.00 $135.00 

2  Cambridge Park 3 Phase 2     

  Windsor Court 5 Phase 2    135.00 135.00 

3  Silva Estates 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9  55.42 55.42 

5  Wildflower Meadows     62.32 62.32 

6  Capistrano      15.78 15.78 

7  Silverado Estates     78.23 78.22 

8  Country Club Villas Phase 1    139.94 107.92 

8A  Country Club Villas Phase 2    139.94 107.92 

9  Manzanita at Lemoore 

  La Dante Rose Subdivision    46.62 42.24 

10  Avalon Phase 1, 2 and 3    125.76 125.76 

11  Self Help      53.32 53.32 

12  Summerwind and College Park Phase 1, 2, 3 

  4, 5 and 6       145.00 145.00 

12A  College Park Phase 7     145.00 145.00 

13  Covington Place     150.00 150.00 

 





 i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

Engineer's Report 
 Certificates of Filing  ..............................................................................................................1 

 Introduction .............................................................................................................................2 

 Engineer of Work Statement  ..................................................................................................4 

 

Exhibit A 
 Description of Improvements .................................................................................................5 

 

Exhibit B 
 Engineer's Estimate  ..............................................................................................................11 

 

Exhibit C 
 Method of Assessment ..........................................................................................................17 

 

Exhibit D 
 Assessment Roll ....................................................................................................................23 

 

Exhibit E 
 Assessment District and Zone Location; Assessment Diagram  ..........................................84 

 

 

 



ENGINEER'S REPORT 





 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 2 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore adopted its General Plan with various elements to provide guidelines 

for orderly development within the community.  The City Council further adopted ordinances and regulations 

governing the development of land providing for the installation and construction of certain lighting, 

landscaping and appurtenant facilities to enhance the quality of life and to benefit the value of property. 

 

The requirement for the installation of lighting, landscaping and appurtenant facilities is a condition of 

development provided for in the City's Subdivision Ordinance and is a requirement of issuance of a permit for 

construction of commercial, residential, and planned unit development.  Lighting, landscaping and appurtenant 

facilities generally include street lights, trees, shrubs, plants, turf, irrigation systems and necessary 

appurtenances including monumentations, fencing located in public rights-of-ways, medians, parkways, and/or 

easements adjacent to public rights-of-ways, in and along major thoroughfares, primary and secondary arterials 

as defined in the General Plan's Circulation Element. 

 

The installation of street lights, landscaping and appurtenant facilities is the responsibility of the property 

owner/applicant, triggered by the approval of a development application.  When on any given street of the 

approved system, a majority of the required landscaping has been provided, and it has been determined that 

landscaping in front of, or adjacent to certain already developed properties is required to bridge missing gaps, 

and/or where the future development or redevelopment of existing property is not likely to occur in a 

foreseeable future, the City Council may deem it appropriate to retrofit or fill such gaps. 

 

After installation, it is City policy that servicing, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the 

lighting, landscaping and appurtenant facilities in turn become the financial responsibility of the properties that 

specially benefit from the facilities. 

 

The City's lighting, landscape, local street paving and parks maintenance and replacement program is 

administered according to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets and Highways Code Part 2, 

Division 15) (the "Act"), including if applicable provisions of Proposition 218 (Article XIIID of the California 

Constitution), the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Section 53750 through 

53754). 

 

The City cannot feasibly fund by any other method the maintenance and required periodic replacement of such 

facilities which must be installed with new development.  Therefore, the City has determined that such 

maintenance, operation, repair and replacement should be funded through levy and collection of the 

assessments on the various lots and parcels in the benefit Zones in this District.  The property owners in each 

Zone of said District enjoy a particular, distinct special benefit from these facilities and the assessments levied 

under this District thereby fund such benefit. 

 

Payment of the assessments will be made in the same manner and at the same time in as the ad valorem 

property tax for each lot and parcel. 

 

The annual assessment proceedings will be conducted under the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, 

Sections 22500 through 22679, Part 2, Division 15, of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of 

California. 

 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore will set times and places for the public hearing in the Resolution of 

Intention. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 3 

There are no changes in or additions to the improvements to be maintained.  Notice of the public meeting and 

public hearing will be given by one publication of the Resolution of Intention at least 10 days before the 

hearing, as authorized by the Act. 

 

After reviewing testimony, as well as the current and projected year's costs for the servicing, maintenance, 

repair and replacement of the facilities in Zones 1 through 13 of the District as herein described, the City 

Council will set the assessment for fiscal year 2014-2015, which runs between July 1 and June 30. 

 

This report contains the necessary data required to conduct the proceedings and is submitted to the Clerk of the 

City for filing. 





EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Improvements 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 5 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 

LANDSCAPE and LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1 – 13 
 

(Pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972) 

 

 

Locations of Landscaping, Lighting and Appurtenant Improvements 

 

The location of lighting, landscaping and appurtenant improvements are depicted on the Assessment Diagram 

as shown in Exhibit "E" herein, which diagram includes the following subdivisions, lots and/or parcels: 

 

Zone 1 

 

Boundaries of Zone 1 include the following properties: 

 

Parcel 18 as recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 38, Kings County Records 

(Alderwood Apartments). 

 

Parcels 1 through 7 and 10 through 16 as recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 38, 

Kings County Records (Lemoore Plaza Shopping Center). 

 

Tract No. 616, Windsor Court Unit No. 1, recorded in Volume 14 of Licenses Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 68, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 640, Windsor Court Unit No. 2, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 33, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 630, Cambridge Park, recorded in Volume 15 of Licenses Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 32, Kings 

County Records. 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM Lot 54 of said Cambridge Park.   

 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM all of Tract No. 630, Cambridge Park Unit No. 2, recorded in 

Volume 15 of the Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 62, Kings County Records, lying within the 

boundaries of said Cambridge Park. 

 

Tract No. 630, Cambridge Park Unit No. 2, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

62, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 685, Windsor Court Unit No. 3, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 10, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 686, Windsor Court Unit No. 4, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 13, 

Kings County Records. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 6 

Tract No. 691, Cambridge Park Unit No. 3, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

27, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 707, Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 66, Kings County Records. 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all of Tract No. 707, Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 2, recorded in 

Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 32, Kings County Records, lying within the 

boundaries of said Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 1. 

 

Zone 2 

 

Boundaries of Zone 2 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 707, Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 19, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 692, Cambridge Park Unit No. 3, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, 

at Page 47, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 3 

 

Boundaries of Zone 3 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 639, Silva Estates Unit No. 1, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 28, 

Kings County Records. 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all of Tract No. 639, Silva Estates Unit 2, recorded in Volume 15 of 

Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 34, Kings County Records, lying within the boundaries of said Silva 

Estates Unit No. 1. 

 

Tract No. 639, Silva Estates Unit No. 2, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 34, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 666, Silva Estates Unit No. 3, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 28, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 731, Silva Estates Unit No. 5, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 60, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 714, Silva Estates Unit No. 4, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 75, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 748, Silva Estates, Unit No. 6, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 6, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 773, Unit No. 7, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 52, Kings County 

Records. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 7 

Tract No. 781, Silva Estates, Unit No. 8, recorded in Volume 20 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page , 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 793, Silva Estates, Unit No. 9, recorded in Volume 23 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 53, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 5 

 

Boundaries of Zone 5 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 668, Wildflower Meadows, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 35, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 6 

 

Boundaries of Zone 6 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 700, Capistrano, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 38, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Tract No. 700, Capistrano, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 67, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Tract No. 700, Capistrano, Phases 3 and 4, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

95, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 7 

 

Boundaries of Zone 7 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 687, Silverado Estates, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 87, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Zone 8 

 

Boundaries of Zone 8 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 704, Country Club Villas, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

56, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 758, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 20 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 10, Kings County 

Records. 

 

Tract No. 758, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 20 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at page 52, Kings County 

Records. 

 

Tract No.783 Country Club Villas 2 – Phase 1, recorded in Volume 20 of Licensed Surveyor’s Plats, at 

page 61, Kings County Records. 

 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 8 

Zone 8A 

 

Boundaries of Zone 8A include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 783, Country Club Villas 2, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 75, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 9 

 

Boundaries of Zone 9 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 369, Manzanita at Lemoore, Phase 1A, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 99, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 369, Manzanita at Lemoore, Unit No. 2, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 67, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 369, Manzanita at Lemoore, Unit No. 3, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 18, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 763, La Dante Rose Subdivision, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats,  

at Page 75, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 10 

 

Boundaries of Zone 10 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 717, Avalon, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 2, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Tract No. 717, Avalon, Phase 2A, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 11 and 

Page 55, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 717, Avalon, Phase 2B, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats at Page 11 and Page 

55, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 717, Avalon Phase 3, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyor’s Plats at Page 42, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Zone 11 

 

Boundaries of Zone 11 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 656, Self Help, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 95, Kings 

County Records. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 9 

Zone 12 

 

Boundaries of Zone 12 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 751, Summerwind Subdivision, Unit 1, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 6, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 739, College Park, Phase I, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 76, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 739, College Park, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyor’s Plat, at Page 36, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 782, College Park, Phase 3, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 65, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 789, Unit 4, College Park, Phase 4, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

73, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 789, Unit 5, College Park, Phase 5, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Pages 

74 and 75, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 789, Unit 6, College Park, Phase 6, recorded in Volume 20 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at page 

43, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 12A 

 

Boundaries of Zone 12A include the following properties: 

 

County Tract No. 789, Unit 7, College Park, Phase 7 recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, 

at Page 75, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 13 

 

Boundaries of Zone 13 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 733, Covington Place, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 85, Kings  

County Records. 

 

Plans and Specifications 

 

The plans and specifications for the landscaping, lighting and appurtenant improvements to be maintained by 

the Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore are incorporated herein by reference.  Said plans are a 

part of the improvement plans which are required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of approval of each 

development.  Such detailed plans have been prepared by the various project developers and are on file with 

the City of Lemoore, and are incorporated herein by reference.  Where landscaping plans are not available, the 

areas to be landscaped and the associated maintenance costs have been estimated. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 10 

Description of Work  

 

The work includes maintaining and servicing landscaping, street lights and appurtenant improvements 

described as follows: 

 

Plants, shrubbery, trees, turf, irrigation systems, entry monuments, hardscapes, walls, fencing,  street lights and 

appurtenant improvements in public rights-of-way and easements within the proposed boundary of Zones 1 

through 13 of said Assessment District.  The location of such improvements, as previously described, are 

within the boundaries of the District, and within or appurtenant to the boundaries of the assessed Zones in 

accord with this Report, as shown on the Assessment Diagram, Exhibit "E" herein. 

 

Maintenance means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation 

and servicing of the lighting, landscaping and appurtenant improvements.  Maintenance for landscaping means, 

but is not limited to, the repair, removal or replacement of landscaping and walls providing for the life, growth, 

health and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing and treating 

for disease or injury and the removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris and other solid waste.  Maintenance for 

street lights means, but is not limited to the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual 

maintenance and repair of street lights including poles, lenses and bulb replacement.  Operating and servicing 

for landscaping improvements means but is not limited to the furnishing of water and electricity for irrigation 

of the landscaping and the maintenance of any of the appurtenant facilities.  For lighting facilities, operating 

means but is not limited to furnishing the utility power necessary for energizing of electroliers. 

 

For purposes of apportioning the assessments, the Assessment District is divided into benefit Zones.  The areas 

included in Zones 1 through 13 of the District which are the subject of this Engineer's Report, are depicted on 

the diagrams prepared for each Zone and apportioned separately as described in Exhibit “C”, Method of 

Assessment, herein. 



EXHIBIT B 
 

Engineer's Estimate 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 11 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE 
 

Actual costs of maintenance and required periodic replacement of improvements have been determined by the 

Engineer of Work in consultation with the city staff. Such costs are reflected to the extent currently feasible in 

the proposed unchanged assessments for Zones 1 through 13.  It should be noted that, based on these unit cost 

assessments and the improvements to be maintained, serviced and operated in these Zones, the actual costs 

during the past fiscal year and projected for this fiscal year are greater than the proposed unchanged 

assessments.  The excess costs will have to be funded from sources, if any, available to the City other than the 

assessments. 

 

Table 1 shows the total costs to be assessed to each Zone.  Table 2 estimates the incidental costs required 

to process the assessments for these Zones. 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 12 

TABLE 1 

ESTIMATED COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

2014-2015  
 

Zone EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

1 611.5 475 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $36,319.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $32,200.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $3,338.00  

   5. Noticing $475.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $475.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $72,807.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment (w/ EDU’s)  $81,060.10  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 1   $81,060.10  

        

        

                

Zone EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

2 90 90 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $6,881.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $4,800.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $633.00  

   5. Noticing $90.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $90.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $12,494.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $12,150.00  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 2   $12,150.00  

        

        

                

Zone EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

3 349 292 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $9,996.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $6,416.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $2,053.00  

   5. Noticing $292.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $292.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $19,049.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment (w/ EDU’s)  $19,341.58  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 3   $19,341.58  

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 13 

               

Zone EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

5 29 29 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $3,625.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $0.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $204.00  

   5. Noticing $29.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $29.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $3,887.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $1,807.28  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 5   $1,807.28  

        

        

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

6 126 126 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $2,856.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $0.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $885.00  

   5. Noticing $126.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $126.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $3,993.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $1,988.28  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 6   $1,988.28  

        

       

 

 

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

7   53 53 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $8,568.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $0.00  

   4. Incidental Costs( See Table 2) $371.00  

   5. Noticing $53.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $53.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $9,045.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $4,145.66  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 7   $4,145.66  

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        

        



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 14 

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

8 153 153 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $6,621.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $8,510.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $1,074.76  

   5. Noticing and Ballots $153.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $153.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $16,511.76 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $21,410.82  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 8   $16,511.76  

        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

8A 45 45 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $1,947.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $2,503.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $316.40  

   5. Noticing $45.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $45.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $4,856.40 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $6,297.30  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 8A   $4,856.40  

        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

9 134 134 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $2,100.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $2,350.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $942.16  

   5. Noticing  $134.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $134.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $5,660.16 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $6,247.08  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 9   $5,660.16  

        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

10  151 151 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $12,248.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $7,548.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $1,061.00  

   5. Noticing $151.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $151.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $21,159.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $18,989.76  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 10   $18,989.76  



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 15 

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

11 36 36 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $1,428.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $730.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $254.00  

   5. Noticing $36.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $36.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $2,484.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $1,919.52  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 11   $1,919.52  
        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

12 457 457 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $37,067.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $26,415.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $3,213.00  

   5. Noticing $457.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $457.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $67,609.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $66,265.00  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 12   $66,265.00  
        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

12A 96 96 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $7,787.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $5,549.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $675.00  

   5. Noticing $96.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $96.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $14,203.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $13,920.00  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 12A   $13,920.00  
        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Previous Year Carryover $0.00  

13 33 33 2. Landscape Contract Costs (Maintenance) $4,200.00  

   3. Replacement Costs $1,977.00  

   4. Incidental Costs (See Table 2) $232.00  

   5. Noticing $33.00   

   

6. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) $33.00   

   Actual Costs to Assessment  $6,475.00 

   Allowable Cost to Assessment  $4,950.00  
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 13   $4,950.00  
        

TOTAL EDU Lots      

  2,306.5 2,170      



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 16 

TABLE 2 

ESTIMATED INCIDENTAL COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

APRIL 2014 THROUGH MARCH 2015 

 
 Estimated Cost 

Engineering Fees, Legal Fees, and 

City Administrative Costs 

$15,252.32 

 



EXHIBIT C 
 

Method of Assessment 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 17 

EXHIBIT C 

METHOD OF ASSESSMENT 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
LANDSCAPE and LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1 – 13 

 

 

General Discussion 

 

The improvements described in Exhibit “A” are provided for the particular, distinct, special benefit directly 

received by each lot or parcel in Zones 1 through 13 of the Assessment District, above the benefit received by 

the public generally.  Each lot or parcel has been determined to directly and specially benefit proportionally by 

Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).  

 

City noticing and County administrative expenses will be apportioned equally to each assessment. 

 

The annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs of the improvements benefiting the 

Zones of the District described in Exhibit A of this Report, are estimated in Exhibit “B.” 

 

The City is unable to provide funds for such maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the 

described improvements.  The facilities and improvements and their maintenance, operation, repair and 

periodic replacement provide equally for each lot and parcel in Zones 1 through 13 essential safety, lighting, 

security and aesthetically-pleasing public right-of-way landscaping not available to the general community.  

The value, appearance, safety and use of each lot and parcel in Zones 1 through 13 are significantly and 

directly enhanced by regular maintenance and periodic replacement of these improvements.  These are special 

benefits distinct and particular to the lots and parcels in Zones 1 through 13 and not realized by the general 

community.  Therefore, annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the described 

improvements, and the funding thereof, provide direct special benefits to the lots and parcels in Zones 1 

through 13, over and above general benefits conferred on real property in the District or to the public at large. 

 

Moreover, the Engineer has determined that each individual lot and parcel or equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) 

is benefited equally in each Zone by such annual maintenance and periodic replacement.  Each lot and parcel 

contains, or will contain in accord with the City's development approvals, a single dwelling unit or equivalent 

dwelling units.  Each lot and parcel or equivalent dwelling unit, therefore derives the same proportionate 

special benefit from the assessed improvements and their regular maintenance and periodic replacement. 

 

Accordingly, the individual annual assessment for fiscal year 2014-15 for each lot and parcel in Zones 1 

through 13 is determined by dividing the total estimated costs of annual maintenance and replacement and 

related notice and processing fees (for fiscal year 2014-15, set forth in Exhibit “B”) by the total number of lots 

and parcels or equivalent dwelling units in these Zones in the District. 

 

The proposed assessment for fiscal year 2014-15 on each lot and parcel in these Zones of the District is set 

forth in Exhibit “D” of this Report.  The proposed assessments are not increased above the annual assessments 

on these lots and parcels for fiscal year 2013-2014 or any previous fiscal year. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 18 

Benefits in Each Zone 

 

The following are summaries of the special benefits in each Zone for which assessments are levied.  Inasmuch 

as no revision in assessments is proposed, the assessment for the preceding year is utilized. Analysis of these 

Zones’ assessments reveals that in every case the actual costs of maintenance were higher than the assessment.  

 

Zone 1 Westfield Park Development and Shopping Center 

 

Within Zone 1, there are 475 parcels and lots.  460 of them are single family residential, 10 acres is 

commercial and one parcel is multiple-family residential.  A listing of these parcels is as follows: 

 

Property Name Parcels Zone 

Tract 616, Windsor Court, Unit 1 95 Single Family 

Tract 640, Windsor Court, Unit 2 111 Single Family 

Tract 685, Windsor Court, Unit 3 47 Single Family 

Tract 686, Windsor Court, Unit 4 25 Single Family 

Tract 707, Windsor Court, Unit 5, Phase 1 82 Single Family 

Tract 630, Cambridge Park, Units 1 & 2 53 Single Family 

Tract 691, Cambridge Park, Unit 3 47 Single Family 

Assessor’s Parcel Map Vol. 21 Pg. 38 14 Commercial 

Assessor’s Parcel Map Vol. 21 Pg. 38, 80 Units 1 Multi Family 

 

Summarized below is a description of special benefits for which assessments are levied in Zone 1. 

 

 The landscaped areas along Hanford-Armona Road, Fox Drive and Lemoore Avenue fronting the 

commercial parcels were required as a condition of site plan review for those parcels and are considered to 

benefit only those commercial areas.  The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and 

their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these 

boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or the public at 

large. The costs for maintenance of that portion of the landscaping were assessed entirely to the 

commercial parcels on the basis of EDU's.  The City’s expense for this work is minimal, as most of the 

work is privately contracted by the shopping center owners, and the work has so far been done in a manner 

satisfactory to the City.  Should that situation change, the City will assume the work, and assessments will 

be increased accordingly. 

 

 The commercial properties pay for maintenance of their frontage along Hanford-Armona Road, Fox Drive 

and Lemoore Avenue.  The Zone’s expense for this work is currently minimal, as most of the work is 

privately contracted by the shopping center owners, and the work has so far been done in a manner 

satisfactory to the City. 

 

 Maintenance of the remainder of Fox Drive, Lemoore Avenue (south of the commercial development), 

Cinnamon Drive, the entries into the Westfield development, (Brentwood Drive, Coventry Drive and Eton 

Drive), Hanford-Armona Road west of Fox Drive, and Fallenleaf Drive is assessed to the residential 

property owners within the Westfield Park development.  The Engineer of Work has determined that these 

improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special benefit to the property 

owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within these 

boundaries or to the public at large. 

 

 Twenty-five percent (25%) of the cost of the maintenance of the linear park area between Windsor Court 

Unit 3 and Windsor Court Unit 5, will be borne by the City of Lemoore.  The City has determined this 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 19 

amount reflects a general public benefit conferred by the park.  It will be useful as recreation and as a safe 

route to school for students attending Liberty Middle School. 

 

 No portion of the cost of maintenance of Westfield Park is included in the levies.  The entire cost of 

developing and maintaining the park is being borne by the City of Lemoore. 

 

For multiple residential properties, one equivalent dwelling unit will be assigned to each multiple family 

dwelling unit. 

 

For commercial or individual properties, equivalent dwelling units are calculated by multiplying the gross 

acreage x 3-1/2. 

 

Zone 2  

 

There are 52 lots in Tract 707 and 38 lots in Tract 691.  The property owners are assessed for maintenance as 

described within Zone 1, along with their portion of the costs of maintenance of Liberty Drive, Cinnamon 

Drive and Hanford-Armona Road.  Maintenance of the improvements described for Zone 1, as well as 

maintenance of the improvements in Liberty Drive, Cinnamon Drive and Hanford-Armona Road, provides a 

particular and special benefit to the lots and parcels in Zone 2, over and above general benefits to the lots and 

parcels within the boundaries or to the public at large. 

 

Zone 3 Silva Estates 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Silverado Drive and within the west right-of-way and landscape easement of 19
th
 Avenue were included as a 

condition of approval of plans for Silva Estates Tracts 639, 666, 714, 731, 781 and 793.  The Engineer of 

Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and special benefit to 

the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within 

these boundaries or to the public at large. Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries are assessed 

their proportionate share of the maintenance costs. 

 

There are 95 lots within Tract 639, 22 lots within Tract 666, 21 lots within Tract 731, 26 lots within Tract 714, 

and 16 lots within Silva Estates, Phase 6, 39 lots within Silva Estates, Phase 7, 20 lots within Silva Estates, 

Phase 8, and 52 lots within Silva Estates, Phase 9, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance 

of the above improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 5 Wildflower Meadows 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Cinnamon Drive were included as a condition of approval of plans for Wildflower Meadows, Tract 668.  

The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and 

special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and 

parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners within these 

boundaries are assessed a proportionate share of the maintenance costs.  However, Lot 16 is not being assessed 

due to the fact that it fronts G Street on the south and backs up to the lots within the subdivision.  This lot 

receives no benefits from the landscaping on Cinnamon Drive. 

 

There are 29 assessed lots within Tract 668, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the 

above improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 20 

Zone 6 Capistrano 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Bush Street were included as a condition of approval of plans for Capistrano, Tract 700.   The Engineer of 

Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special 

benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels 

within these boundaries or the public at large. Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries will be 

assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance costs. 

 

There are 126 lots with Tract 700, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above 

improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 7 Silverado Estates 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the north right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Silverado Drive and within the west right-of-way and landscape easement of 19
th
 Avenue were included as a 

condition of approval of plans for Silverado Estates, Tract 687.  The Engineer of the Work has determined that 

these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special benefit to the property 

owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries 

or the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries will be assessed a proportionate 

share of the maintenance costs. 

 

There are 53 lots within Tract 687, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above 

improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 8 Country Club Villas 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the north right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Golf Links Drive, the median island in Golf Links Drive, and the entrance features on 18
th
 Avenue and Iona 

Avenue were included as a condition of approval of plans for Country Club Villas, Tract 704.  The Engineer of 

Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special 

benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels 

within these boundaries or to the public at large. Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries are 

assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost.  

 

There are 50 lots within Tract 704, 66 lots within Tract 758, Phase 1 and 2, and 37 lots within Tracts 783, 

Villas, Phase 1, all single-family residential. Assessments for maintenance of the above improvements have 

been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot.  

 

Zone 8A  Country Club Villas II 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the north right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Golf Links Drive, the median island in Golf Links Drive, and the entrance features on 18
th
 Avenue and Iona 

Avenue were included as a condition of approval of plans for Country Club Villas, Tract 783. The Engineer of 

the Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct 

special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and 

parcels within these boundaries or the public at large. Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries 

will be assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 21 

There are 45 lots within Tract 783, Phase 2, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the 

above improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 9 Manzanita at Lemoore (a.k.a. La Dante Rose) 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the north right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Hanford-Armona Road were included as a condition of approval of plans for Manzanita at Lemoore, Tract 

369.  The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a 

particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general 

benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners 

within these boundaries are assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

There are 95 lots within Tract 369, Phases 1, 2 and 3 and 39 lots within Tract No. 763,  all single-family 

residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above improvements have been spread based upon one unit of 

assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 10 Avalon 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Cinnamon Drive and the maintenance of the ponding basin were included as a condition of approval of 

plans for Avalon, Tract 717. The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and their 

maintenance provide a particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, 

over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.   

Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries are assessed a proportionate share of the maintenance 

cost. 

 

There are 151 lots within Tract 717, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above 

improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 11 Self Help 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the west right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Vine Street were included as a condition of approval of plans for Self Help, Tract 656.  The Engineer of 

Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special 

benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels 

within these boundaries or the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries will be 

assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

There are 36 lots within Tract 656, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above 

improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 12  Summerwind and College Park 

 

Construction and long term maintenance and landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape 

easement of Cinnamon Drive and the west right-of-way of 19
th
 Avenue was a condition of approval for the 

subdivision.  The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a 

particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general 

benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners 

within the boundaries are assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 22 

There are 64 lots within Tract 751 and 163 lots within Tract 739, Phases 1, 2 and 3 and 230 lots within Tract 

789, Phases 4, 5 and 6.  All are single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance have been spread 

based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 12A  College Park 

 

Construction and long term maintenance and landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape 

easement of Cinnamon Drive and the west right-of-way of 19
th
 Avenue was a condition of approval for the 

subdivision.  The Engineer of the Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide 

a particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general 

benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners 

within the boundaries will be assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

There are 61 lots within Tract 789, Phase 7 and 35 lots within Tract 751, Phase 1.  All are single-family 

residential.  Assessments for maintenance have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each 

residential lot. 

 

Zone 13  Covington Place 

 

Construction and long term maintenance and landscaping within the landscape easement adjacent to the north 

right of way of Hanford-Armona Road and within the landscape easement adjacent to the west right of way of 

Liberty Drive were included as a condition of approval for plans for Covington Place, Tract 733. The Engineer 

of Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct 

special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and 

parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners within these 

boundaries are assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

Individual Assessments 

 

Individual assessments within each Zone are the sum of the assessments for Landscape Maintenance Costs and 

Engineering, Legal, Admistrative and County Processing Fees for that Zone, apportioned to each lot or parcel.  

Total assessments have been rounded to allow even splits to individual parcels. 

 

Hearing Date 

 

A hearing will be held at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on July 15, 2014.  Any individuals will 

be allowed to give testimony.  At this meeting, after closing the hearing and considering all written and oral 

testimony, the Council will take action with respect to confirming the assessments as proposed or as they may 

be amended by the Council.  The County will be notified of the final assessment amounts. 



EXHIBIT D 
 

Assessment Roll 



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 1 021-510-002-000 $135.00

01 2 021-600-009-000 135.00

01 3 021-360-001-000 135.00

01 4 021-360-002-000 135.00

01 5 021-360-003-000 135.00

01 6 021-360-004-000 $135.00

01 7 021-360-005-000 135.00

01 8 021-360-006-000 135.00

01 9 021-360-007-000 135.00

01 10 021-360-008-000 135.00

01 11 021-360-052-000 $135.00

01 12 021-360-053-000 135.00

01 13 021-360-054-000 135.00

01 14 021-360-055-000 135.00

01 15 021-360-056-000 135.00

01 16 021-360-057-000 $135.00

01 17 021-360-058-000 135.00

01 18 021-360-059-000 135.00

01 19 021-360-060-000 135.00

01 20 021-360-061-000 135.00

01 21 021-360-062-000 $135.00

01 22 021-360-063-000 135.00

01 23 021-360-064-000 135.00

01 24 021-360-065-000 135.00

01 25 021-360-066-000 135.00

01 26 021-360-067-000 $135.00

01 27 021-360-068-000 135.00

01 28 021-370-001-000 135.00

01 29 021-370-002-000 135.00

01 30 021-370-003-000 135.00

01 31 021-370-004-000 $135.00

01 32 021-370-005-000 135.00

01 33 021-370-006-000 135.00

01 34 021-370-007-000 135.00

01 35 021-370-008-000 135.00

01 36 021-370-009-000 $135.00

01 37 021-370-010-000 135.00

01 38 021-370-011-000 135.00

01 39 021-370-012-000 135.00

01 40 021-370-013-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

23



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 41 021-370-014-000 $135.00

01 42 021-370-015-000 135.00

01 43 021-370-016-000 135.00

01 44 021-370-017-000 135.00

01 45 021-370-018-000 135.00

01 46 021-370-019-000 $135.00

01 47 021-370-020-000 135.00

01 48 021-370-021-000 135.00

01 49 021-370-022-000 135.00

01 50 021-370-023-000 135.00

01 51 021-370-024-000 $135.00

01 52 021-370-025-000 135.00

01 53 021-370-026-000 135.00

01 54 021-370-027-000 135.00

01 55 021-370-028-000 135.00

01 56 021-370-029-000 $135.00

01 57 021-370-030-000 135.00

01 58 021-370-031-000 135.00

01 59 021-370-032-000 135.00

01 60 021-370-033-000 135.00

01 61 021-370-034-000 $135.00

01 62 021-370-035-000 135.00

01 63 021-370-036-000 135.00

01 64 021-370-037-000 135.00

01 65 021-370-038-000 135.00

01 66 021-370-039-000 $135.00

01 67 021-370-040-000 135.00

01 68 021-370-041-000 135.00

01 69 021-370-042-000 135.00

01 70 021-370-043-000 135.00

01 71 021-370-044-000 $135.00

01 72 021-370-045-000 135.00

01 73 021-370-046-000 135.00

01 74 021-370-048-000 135.00

01 75 021-370-049-000 135.00

01 76 021-370-050-000 $135.00

01 77 021-370-051-000 135.00

01 78 021-370-052-000 135.00

01 79 021-370-053-000 135.00

01 80 021-370-054-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

24



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 81 021-370-055-000 $135.00

01 82 021-370-056-000 135.00

01 83 021-370-057-000 135.00

01 84 021-370-058-000 135.00

01 85 021-370-059-000 135.00

01 86 021-370-060-000 $135.00

01 87 021-370-061-000 135.00

01 88 021-370-062-000 135.00

01 89 021-370-063-000 135.00

01 90 021-370-064-000 135.00

01 91 021-370-065-000 $135.00

01 92 021-370-066-000 135.00

01 93 021-370-067-000 135.00

01 94 021-370-068-000 135.00

01 95 021-370-069-000 135.00

01 96 021-370-070-000 $135.00

01 97 021-370-071-000 135.00

01 98 021-370-072-000 135.00

01 99 021-370-073-000 135.00

01 100 021-370-074-000 135.00

01 101 021-370-075-000 $135.00

01 102 021-370-076-000 135.00

01 103 021-370-077-000 135.00

01 104 021-370-078-000 135.00

01 105 021-370-079-000 135.00

01 106 021-370-080-000 $135.00

01 107 021-370-081-000 135.00

01 108 021-370-082-000 135.00

01 109 021-370-083-000 135.00

01 110 021-370-084-000 135.00

01 111 021-370-086-000 $135.00

01 112 021-370-087-000 135.00

01 113 021-370-088-000 135.00

01 114 021-370-089-000 135.00

01 115 021-370-090-000 135.00

01 116 021-370-091-000 $135.00

01 117 021-370-092-000 135.00

01 118 021-370-093-000 135.00

01 119 021-370-094-000 135.00

01 120 021-370-095-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

25



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 121 021-370-096-000 $135.00

01 122 021-370-097-000 135.00

01 123 021-370-098-000 135.00

01 124 021-370-099-000 135.00

01 125 021-370-100-000 135.00

01 126 021-370-101-000 $135.00

01 127 021-370-102-000 135.00

01 128 021-370-103-000 135.00

01 129 021-380-001-000 274.05

01 130 021-380-002-000 3,595.73

01 131 021-380-003-000 $326.03

01 132 021-380-004-000 359.10

01 133 021-380-005-000 1,809.68

01 134 021-380-006-000 141.75

01 135 021-380-007-000 198.45

01 136 021-380-010-000 $203.18

01 137 021-380-011-000 141.75

01 138 021-380-012-000 56.70

01 139 021-380-013-000 141.75

01 140 021-380-014-000 363.83

01 141 021-380-015-000 $302.40

01 142 021-380-016-000 245.70

01 143 021-380-018-000 10,800.00

01 144 021-470-001-000 135.00

01 145 021-470-002-000 135.00

01 146 021-470-003-000 $135.00

01 147 021-470-004-000 135.00

01 148 021-470-005-000 135.00

01 149 021-470-006-000 135.00

01 150 021-470-007-000 135.00

01 151 021-470-008-000 $135.00

01 152 021-470-009-000 135.00

01 153 021-470-010-000 135.00

01 154 021-470-011-000 135.00

01 155 021-470-012-000 135.00

01 156 021-470-013-000 $135.00

01 157 021-470-014-000 135.00

01 158 021-470-015-000 135.00

01 159 021-470-016-000 135.00

01 160 021-470-017-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

26



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 161 021-470-018-000 $135.00

01 162 021-470-019-000 135.00

01 163 021-470-020-000 135.00

01 164 021-470-021-000 135.00

01 165 021-470-022-000 135.00

01 166 021-470-023-000 $135.00

01 167 021-470-024-000 135.00

01 168 021-470-025-000 135.00

01 169 021-470-026-000 135.00

01 170 021-470-027-000 135.00

01 171 021-470-028-000 $135.00

01 172 021-470-029-000 135.00

01 173 021-470-030-000 135.00

01 174 021-470-031-000 135.00

01 175 021-470-032-000 135.00

01 176 021-470-033-000 $135.00

01 177 021-470-034-000 135.00

01 178 021-470-035-000 135.00

01 179 021-470-036-000 135.00

01 180 021-470-037-000 135.00

01 181 021-470-038-000 $135.00

01 182 021-470-039-000 135.00

01 183 021-470-040-000 135.00

01 184 021-470-041-000 135.00

01 185 021-470-042-000 135.00

01 186 021-470-043-000 $135.00

01 187 021-470-044-000 135.00

01 188 021-470-045-000 135.00

01 189 021-480-001-000 135.00

01 190 021-480-002-000 135.00

01 191 021-480-003-000 $135.00

01 192 021-480-004-000 135.00

01 193 021-480-005-000 135.00

01 194 021-480-006-000 135.00

01 195 021-480-007-000 135.00

01 196 021-480-008-000 $135.00

01 197 021-480-009-000 135.00

01 198 021-480-010-000 135.00

01 199 021-480-011-000 135.00

01 200 021-480-012-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

27



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 201 021-480-013-000 $135.00

01 202 021-480-014-000 135.00

01 203 021-480-015-000 135.00

01 204 021-480-016-000 135.00

01 205 021-480-017-000 135.00

01 206 021-480-018-000 $135.00

01 207 021-480-019-000 135.00

01 208 021-480-020-000 135.00

01 209 021-480-021-000 135.00

01 210 021-480-022-000 135.00

01 211 021-480-023-000 $135.00

01 212 021-480-024-000 135.00

01 213 021-480-025-000 135.00

01 214 021-480-026-000 135.00

01 215 021-480-027-000 135.00

01 216 021-480-028-000 $135.00

01 217 021-480-029-000 135.00

01 218 021-480-030-000 135.00

01 219 021-480-031-000 135.00

01 220 021-480-032-000 135.00

01 221 021-480-033-000 $135.00

01 222 021-480-034-000 135.00

01 223 021-480-035-000 135.00

01 224 021-480-036-000 135.00

01 225 021-480-037-000 135.00

01 226 021-480-038-000 $135.00

01 227 021-480-039-000 135.00

01 228 021-480-040-000 135.00

01 229 021-480-041-000 135.00

01 230 021-480-042-000 135.00

01 231 021-490-001-000 $135.00

01 232 021-490-002-000 135.00

01 233 021-490-003-000 135.00

01 234 021-490-004-000 135.00

01 235 021-490-005-000 135.00

01 236 021-490-006-000 $135.00

01 237 021-490-007-000 135.00

01 238 021-490-008-000 135.00

01 239 021-490-009-000 135.00

01 240 021-490-010-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

28



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 241 021-490-011-000 $135.00

01 242 021-490-012-000 135.00

01 243 021-490-013-000 135.00

01 244 021-490-014-000 135.00

01 245 021-490-015-000 135.00

01 246 021-490-016-000 $135.00

01 247 021-490-017-000 135.00

01 248 021-490-018-000 135.00

01 249 021-490-019-000 135.00

01 250 021-490-020-000 135.00

01 251 021-490-021-000 $135.00

01 252 021-490-022-000 135.00

01 253 021-490-023-000 135.00

01 254 021-490-024-000 135.00

01 255 021-490-025-000 135.00

01 256 021-490-026-000 $135.00

01 257 021-490-027-000 135.00

01 258 021-490-028-000 135.00

01 259 021-490-029-000 135.00

01 260 021-490-030-000 135.00

01 261 021-490-031-000 $135.00

01 262 021-490-032-000 135.00

01 263 021-490-033-000 135.00

01 264 021-490-034-000 135.00

01 265 021-490-035-000 135.00

01 266 021-490-036-000 $135.00

01 267 021-490-037-000 135.00

01 268 021-490-038-000 135.00

01 269 021-490-039-000 135.00

01 270 021-490-040-000 135.00

01 271 021-490-041-000 $135.00

01 272 021-490-042-000 135.00

01 273 021-490-043-000 135.00

01 274 021-490-044-000 135.00

01 275 021-490-045-000 135.00

01 276 021-490-046-000 $135.00

01 277 021-490-047-000 135.00

01 278 021-490-048-000 135.00

01 279 021-490-049-000 135.00

01 280 021-490-050-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

29



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 281 021-490-051-000 $135.00

01 282 021-490-052-000 135.00

01 283 021-490-053-000 135.00

01 284 021-490-054-000 135.00

01 285 021-490-055-000 135.00

01 286 021-490-056-000 $135.00

01 287 021-490-057-000 135.00

01 288 021-490-058-000 135.00

01 289 021-490-059-000 135.00

01 290 021-490-060-000 135.00

01 291 021-490-061-000 $135.00

01 292 021-490-062-000 135.00

01 293 021-490-063-000 135.00

01 294 021-510-004-000 135.00

01 295 021-510-005-000 135.00

01 296 021-510-006-000 $135.00

01 297 021-510-008-000 135.00

01 298 021-510-009-000 135.00

01 299 021-510-010-000 135.00

01 300 021-510-011-000 135.00

01 301 021-510-012-000 $135.00

01 302 021-510-013-000 135.00

01 303 021-510-014-000 135.00

01 304 021-510-015-000 135.00

01 305 021-510-016-000 135.00

01 306 021-510-017-000 $135.00

01 307 021-510-018-000 135.00

01 308 021-510-019-000 135.00

01 309 021-510-020-000 135.00

01 310 021-510-022-000 135.00

01 311 021-510-023-000 $135.00

01 312 021-510-024-000 135.00

01 313 021-510-025-000 135.00

01 314 021-510-026-000 135.00

01 315 021-510-027-000 135.00

01 316 021-510-028-000 $135.00

01 317 021-510-029-000 135.00

01 318 021-510-030-000 135.00

01 319 021-510-031-000 135.00

01 320 021-510-033-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

30



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 321 021-510-034-000 $135.00

01 322 021-510-035-000 135.00

01 323 021-510-036-000 135.00

01 324 021-510-037-000 135.00

01 325 021-510-038-000 135.00

01 326 021-510-039-000 $135.00

01 327 021-510-040-000 135.00

01 328 021-510-041-000 135.00

01 329 021-510-043-000 135.00

01 330 021-510-044-000 135.00

01 331 021-510-045-000 $135.00

01 332 021-510-046-000 135.00

01 333 021-510-047-000 135.00

01 334 021-510-048-000 135.00

01 335 021-510-049-000 135.00

01 336 021-510-050-000 $135.00

01 337 021-510-051-000 135.00

01 338 021-510-052-000 135.00

01 339 021-510-053-000 135.00

01 340 021-530-001-000 135.00

01 341 021-530-002-000 $135.00

01 342 021-530-003-000 135.00

01 343 021-530-004-000 135.00

01 344 021-530-005-000 135.00

01 345 021-530-006-000 135.00

01 346 021-530-009-000 $135.00

01 347 021-530-010-000 135.00

01 348 021-530-011-000 135.00

01 349 021-530-012-000 135.00

01 350 021-530-013-000 135.00

01 351 021-530-015-000 $135.00

01 352 021-530-016-000 135.00

01 353 021-530-017-000 135.00

01 354 021-530-018-000 135.00

01 355 021-530-019-000 135.00

01 356 021-530-020-000 $135.00

01 357 021-530-021-000 135.00

01 358 021-530-022-000 135.00

01 359 021-530-023-000 135.00

01 360 021-530-024-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

31



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 361 021-530-025-000 $135.00

01 362 021-530-026-000 135.00

01 363 021-530-027-000 135.00

01 364 021-530-028-000 135.00

01 365 021-530-029-000 135.00

01 366 021-530-030-000 $135.00

01 367 021-530-031-000 135.00

01 368 021-530-032-000 135.00

01 369 021-530-033-000 135.00

01 370 021-530-034-000 135.00

01 371 021-530-035-000 $135.00

01 372 021-530-036-000 135.00

01 373 021-530-037-000 135.00

01 374 021-580-027-000 135.00

01 375 021-580-028-000 135.00

01 376 021-580-029-000 $135.00

01 377 021-580-030-000 135.00

01 378 021-580-031-000 135.00

01 379 021-580-064-000 135.00

01 380 021-580-033-000 135.00

01 381 021-580-034-000 $135.00

01 382 021-580-035-000 135.00

01 383 021-580-036-000 135.00

01 384 021-580-037-000 135.00

01 385 021-580-038-000 135.00

01 386 021-580-039-000 $135.00

01 387 021-580-040-000 135.00

01 388 021-580-041-000 135.00

01 389 021-580-042-000 135.00

01 390 021-580-043-000 135.00

01 391 021-580-044-000 $135.00

01 392 021-580-053-000 135.00

01 393 021-580-054-000 135.00

01 394 021-580-055-000 135.00

01 395 021-600-002-000 135.00

01 396 021-600-003-000 $135.00

01 397 021-600-004-000 135.00

01 398 021-600-005-000 135.00

01 399 021-600-006-000 135.00

01 400 021-600-007-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

32



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 401 021-600-008-000 $135.00

01 402 021-600-013-000 135.00

01 403 021-600-014-000 135.00

01 404 021-600-015-000 135.00

01 405 021-600-016-000 135.00

01 406 021-600-017-000 $135.00

01 407 021-600-018-000 135.00

01 408 021-600-019-000 135.00

01 409 021-600-020-000 135.00

01 410 021-600-023-000 135.00

01 411 021-600-024-000 $135.00

01 412 021-600-025-000 135.00

01 413 021-600-026-000 135.00

01 414 021-600-027-000 135.00

01 415 021-600-028-000 135.00

01 416 021-600-029-000 $135.00

01 417 021-600-030-000 135.00

01 418 021-600-031-000 135.00

01 419 021-600-032-000 135.00

01 420 021-600-033-000 135.00

01 421 021-600-034-000 $135.00

01 422 021-600-035-000 135.00

01 423 021-600-036-000 135.00

01 424 021-600-037-000 135.00

01 425 021-600-038-000 135.00

01 426 021-600-039-000 $135.00

01 427 021-600-040-000 135.00

01 428 021-600-041-000 135.00

01 429 021-600-042-000 135.00

01 430 021-600-043-000 135.00

01 431 021-600-045-000 $135.00

01 432 021-600-046-000 135.00

01 433 021-600-047-000 135.00

01 434 021-600-048-000 135.00

01 435 021-600-049-000 135.00

01 436 021-600-050-000 $135.00

01 437 021-600-051-000 135.00

01 438 021-600-052-000 135.00

01 439 021-600-053-000 135.00

01 440 021-600-054-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

33



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 441 021-600-055-000 $135.00

01 442 021-600-056-000 135.00

01 443 021-600-057-000 135.00

01 444 021-600-058-000 135.00

01 445 021-600-059-000 135.00

01 446 021-600-060-000 $135.00

01 447 021-600-061-000 135.00

01 448 021-600-064-000 135.00

01 449 021-600-065-000 135.00

01 450 021-600-066-000 135.00

01 451 021-600-067-000 $135.00

01 452 021-600-068-000 135.00

01 453 021-600-069-000 135.00

01 454 021-600-070-000 135.00

01 455 021-600-071-000 135.00

01 456 021-600-072-000 $135.00

01 457 021-600-073-000 135.00

01 458 021-600-074-000 135.00

01 459 021-600-075-000 135.00

01 460 021-600-076-000 135.00

01 461 021-600-077-000 $135.00

01 462 021-600-078-000 135.00

01 463 021-600-079-000 135.00

01 464 021-600-080-000 135.00

01 465 021-600-081-000 135.00

01 466 021-600-082-000 $135.00

01 467 021-600-083-000 135.00

01 468 021-600-084-000 135.00

01 469 021-600-085-000 135.00

01 470 021-600-086-000 135.00

01 471 021-600-087-000 $135.00

01 472 021-600-088-000 135.00

01 473 021-600-089-000 135.00

01 474 021-600-090-000 135.00
01 475 022-910-092-000 135.00

Total Assessment Zone 1 $81,060.10

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

34



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

02 1 021-580-001-000 $135.00

02 2 021-580-002-000 135.00

02 3 021-580-003-000 135.00

02 4 021-580-004-000 135.00

02 5 021-580-005-000 135.00

02 6 021-580-006-000 $135.00

02 7 021-580-007-000 135.00

02 8 021-580-008-000 135.00

02 9 021-580-009-000 135.00

02 10 021-580-010-000 135.00

02 11 021-580-011-000 $135.00

02 12 021-580-012-000 135.00

02 13 021-580-013-000 135.00

02 14 021-580-014-000 135.00

02 15 021-580-015-000 135.00

02 16 021-580-016-000 $135.00

02 17 021-580-017-000 135.00

02 18 021-580-018-000 135.00

02 19 021-580-019-000 135.00

02 20 021-580-062-000 135.00

02 21 021-580-063-000 $135.00

02 22 021-580-022-000 135.00

02 23 021-580-023-000 135.00

02 24 021-580-024-000 135.00

02 25 021-580-025-000 135.00

02 26 021-580-026-000 $135.00

02 27 021-580-045-000 135.00

02 28 021-580-046-000 135.00

02 29 021-580-047-000 135.00

02 30 021-580-050-000 135.00

02 31 021-580-051-000 $135.00

02 32 021-580-052-000 135.00

02 33 021-580-056-000 135.00

02 34 021-580-057-000 135.00

02 35 021-580-058-000 135.00

02 36 021-580-059-000 $135.00

02 37 021-580-060-000 135.00

02 38 021-580-061-000 135.00

02 39 021-610-001-000 135.00

02 40 021-610-002-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

35



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

02 41 021-610-003-000 $135.00

02 42 021-610-004-000 135.00

02 43 021-610-005-000 135.00

02 44 021-610-006-000 135.00

02 45 021-610-007-000 135.00

02 46 021-610-008-000 $135.00

02 47 021-610-009-000 135.00

02 48 021-610-010-000 135.00

02 49 021-610-011-000 135.00

02 50 021-610-012-000 135.00

02 51 021-610-013-000 $135.00

02 52 021-610-014-000 135.00

02 53 021-610-016-000 135.00

02 54 021-610-017-000 135.00

02 55 021-610-018-000 135.00

02 56 021-610-019-000 $135.00

02 57 021-610-020-000 135.00

02 58 021-610-021-000 135.00

02 59 021-610-022-000 135.00

02 60 021-610-023-000 135.00

02 61 021-610-024-000 $135.00

02 62 021-610-025-000 135.00

02 63 021-610-026-000 135.00

02 64 021-610-027-000 135.00

02 65 021-610-028-000 135.00

02 66 021-610-029-000 $135.00

02 67 021-610-030-000 135.00

02 68 021-610-031-000 135.00

02 69 021-610-032-000 135.00

02 70 021-610-033-000 135.00

02 71 021-610-034-000 $135.00

02 72 021-610-035-000 135.00

02 73 021-610-037-000 135.00

02 74 021-610-038-000 135.00

02 75 021-610-039-000 135.00

02 76 021-610-040-000 $135.00

02 77 021-610-041-000 135.00

02 78 021-610-042-000 135.00

02 79 021-610-043-000 135.00

02 80 021-610-044-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

36



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

02 81 021-610-045-000 $135.00

02 82 021-610-046-000 135.00

02 83 021-610-047-000 135.00

02 84 021-610-048-000 135.00

02 85 021-610-049-000 135.00

02 86 021-610-050-000 $135.00

02 87 021-610-051-000 135.00

02 88 021-610-052-000 135.00

02 89 021-610-053-000 135.00
02 90 021-610-054-000 135.00

Total Assessment Zone 2 $12,150.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

37



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 1 023-330-001-000 $55.42

03 2 023-330-002-000 55.42

03 3 023-330-003-000 55.42

03 4 023-330-004-000 55.42

03 5 023-330-005-000 55.42

03 6 023-330-006-000 $55.42

03 7 023-330-007-000 55.42

03 8 023-330-008-000 55.42

03 9 023-330-009-000 55.42

03 10 023-330-010-000 55.42

03 11 023-330-011-000 $55.42

03 12 023-330-012-000 55.42

03 13 023-330-013-000 55.42

03 14 023-330-014-000 55.42

03 15 023-330-015-000 55.42

03 16 023-330-016-000 $55.42

03 17 023-330-017-000 55.42

03 18 023-330-018-000 55.42

03 19 023-330-019-000 55.42

03 20 023-330-020-000 55.42

03 21 023-330-021-000 $55.42

03 22 023-330-022-000 55.42

03 23 023-330-023-000 55.42

03 24 023-330-024-000 55.42

03 25 023-330-025-000 55.42

03 26 023-330-026-000 $55.42

03 27 023-330-027-000 55.42

03 28 023-330-028-000 55.42

03 29 023-330-029-000 55.42

03 30 023-330-030-000 55.42

03 31 023-330-031-000 $55.42

03 32 023-330-032-000 55.42

03 33 023-330-033-000 55.42

03 34 023-330-034-000 55.42

03 35 023-330-035-000 55.42

03 36 023-330-036-000 $55.42

03 37 023-330-037-000 55.42

03 38 023-330-038-000 55.42

03 39 023-330-039-000 55.42

03 40 023-330-040-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

38



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 41 023-330-041-000 $55.42

03 42 023-330-042-000 55.42

03 43 023-330-043-000 55.42

03 44 023-330-044-000 55.42

03 45 023-330-045-000 55.42

03 46 023-330-046-000 $55.42

03 47 023-330-047-000 55.42

03 48 023-330-048-000 55.42

03 49 023-330-049-000 55.42

03 50 023-330-050-000 55.42

03 51 023-330-051-000 $55.42

03 52 023-330-052-000 55.42

03 53 023-330-053-000 55.42

03 54 023-330-054-000 55.42

03 55 023-330-055-000 55.42

03 56 023-330-056-000 $55.42

03 57 023-330-057-000 55.42

03 58 023-330-058-000 55.42

03 59 023-330-059-000 55.42

03 60 023-330-060-000 55.42

03 61 023-330-061-000 $55.42

03 62 023-330-062-000 55.42

03 63 023-330-063-000 55.42

03 64 023-330-064-000 55.42

03 65 023-330-065-000 55.42

03 66 023-330-066-000 $55.42

03 67 023-330-067-000 55.42

03 68 023-330-068-000 55.42

03 69 023-330-069-000 55.42

03 70 023-330-070-000 55.42

03 71 023-330-071-000 $55.42

03 72 023-330-072-000 55.42

03 73 023-330-073-000 55.42

03 74 023-330-074-000 55.42

03 75 023-330-075-000 55.42

03 76 023-330-076-000 $55.42

03 77 023-330-077-000 55.42

03 78 023-330-078-000 55.42

03 79 023-330-079-000 55.42

03 80 023-330-080-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

39



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 81 023-330-081-000 $55.42

03 82 023-330-082-000 55.42

03 83 023-330-083-000 55.42

03 84 023-330-084-000 55.42

03 85 023-330-085-000 55.42

03 86 023-330-086-000 $55.42

03 87 023-330-087-000 55.42

03 88 023-330-088-000 55.42

03 89 023-330-089-000 55.42

03 90 023-330-090-000 55.42

03 91 023-330-091-000 $55.42

03 92 023-330-092-000 55.42

03 93 023-330-093-000 55.42

03 94 023-330-094-000 55.42

03 95 023-330-095-000 55.42

03 96 023-340-003-000 $55.42

03 97 023-340-004-000 55.42

03 98 023-340-005-000 55.42

03 99 023-340-006-000 55.42

03 100 023-340-007-000 55.42

03 101 023-340-008-000 $55.42

03 102 023-340-009-000 55.42

03 103 023-340-010-000 55.42

03 104 023-340-011-000 55.42

03 105 023-340-012-000 55.42

03 106 023-340-013-000 $55.42

03 107 023-340-014-000 55.42

03 108 023-340-015-000 55.42

03 109 023-340-016-000 55.42

03 110 023-340-017-000 55.42

03 111 023-340-018-000 $55.42

03 112 023-340-019-000 55.42

03 113 023-340-020-000 55.42

03 114 023-340-021-000 55.42

03 115 023-340-022-000 55.42

03 116 023-340-023-000 $55.42

03 117 023-340-024-000 55.42

03 118 023-350-003-000 55.42

03 119 023-350-004-000 55.42

03 120 023-350-005-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

40



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 121 023-350-006-000 $55.42

03 122 023-350-007-000 55.42

03 123 023-350-008-000 55.42

03 124 023-350-009-000 55.42

03 125 023-350-010-000 55.42

03 126 023-350-011-000 $55.42

03 127 023-350-012-000 55.42

03 128 023-350-013-000 55.42

03 129 023-350-014-000 55.42

03 130 023-350-015-000 55.42

03 131 023-350-016-000 $55.42

03 132 023-350-017-000 55.42

03 133 023-350-018-000 55.42

03 134 023-350-019-000 55.42

03 135 023-350-020-000 55.42

03 136 023-350-021-000 $55.42

03 137 023-350-022-000 55.42

03 138 023-350-023-000 55.42

03 139 023-350-028-000 55.42

03 140 023-350-029-000 55.42

03 141 023-350-030-000 $55.42

03 142 023-350-031-000 55.42

03 143 023-350-032-000 55.42

03 144 023-350-033-000 55.42

03 145 023-350-034-000 55.42

03 146 023-350-035-000 $55.42

03 147 023-350-036-000 55.42

03 148 023-350-037-000 55.42

03 149 023-350-038-000 55.42

03 150 023-350-039-000 55.42

03 151 023-350-040-000 $55.42

03 152 023-350-041-000 55.42

03 153 023-350-042-000 55.42

03 154 023-350-043-000 55.42

03 155 023-350-046-000 55.42

03 156 023-350-047-000 $55.42

03 157 023-350-048-000 55.42

03 158 023-350-049-000 55.42

03 159 023-350-050-000 55.42

03 160 023-350-051-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

41



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 161 023-350-052-000 $55.42

03 162 023-350-053-000 55.42

03 163 023-350-054-000 55.42

03 164 023-350-055-000 55.42

03 165 023-350-056-000 55.42

03 166 023-350-057-000 $55.42

03 167 023-350-058-000 55.42

03 168 023-350-059-000 55.42

03 169 023-350-060-000 55.42

03 170 023-350-061-000 55.42

03 171 023-350-062-000 $55.42

03 172 023-350-063-000 55.42

03 173 023-350-064-000 55.42

03 174 023-350-065-000 55.42

03 175 023-350-066-000 55.42

03 176 023-350-067-000 $55.42

03 177 023-350-068-000 55.42

03 178 023-350-069-000 55.42

03 179 023-350-070-000 55.42

03 180 023-350-071-000 55.42

03 181 023-350-072-000 $55.42

03 182 023-350-077-000 55.42

03 183 023-530-001-000 55.42

03 184 023-530-002-000 55.42

03 185 023-530-003-000 55.42

03 186 023-530-004-000 $55.42

03 187 023-530-005-000 55.42

03 188 023-530-006-000 55.42

03 189 023-530-007-000 55.42

03 190 023-530-008-000 55.42

03 191 023-530-009-000 $55.42

03 192 023-530-010-000 55.42

03 193 023-530-011-000 55.42

03 194 023-530-012-000 55.42

03 195 023-530-013-000 55.42

03 196 023-530-014-000 $55.42

03 197 023-530-015-000 55.42

03 198 023-530-016-000 55.42

03 199 023-530-017-000 55.42

03 200 023-530-018-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

42



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 201 023-530-019-000 $55.42

03 202 023-530-020-000 55.42

03 203 023-530-021-000 55.42

03 204 023-530-022-000 55.42

03 205 023-530-023-000 55.42

03 206 023-530-024-000 $55.42

03 207 023-530-025-000 55.42

03 208 023-530-026-000 55.42

03 209 023-570-001-000 55.42

03 210 023-570-002-000 55.42

03 211 023-570-003-000 $55.42

03 212 023-570-004-000 55.42

03 213 023-570-005-000 55.42

03 214 023-570-006-000 55.42

03 215 023-570-007-000 55.42

03 216 023-570-008-000 $55.42

03 217 023-570-009-000 55.42

03 218 023-570-010-000 55.42

03 219 023-580-001-000 55.42

03 220 023-580-002-000 55.42

03 221 023-580-003-000 $55.42

03 222 023-580-004-000 55.42

03 223 023-580-005-000 55.42

03 224 023-580-006-000 55.42

03 225 023-580-007-000 55.42

03 226 023-580-008-000 $55.42

03 227 023-580-009-000 55.42

03 228 023-580-010-000 55.42

03 229 023-580-011-000 55.42

03 230 023-580-012-000 55.42

03 231 023-580-013-000 $55.42

03 232 023-580-014-000 55.42

03 233 023-580-015-000 55.42

03 234 023-580-016-000 55.42

03 235 023-580-017-000 55.42

03 236 023-580-018-000 $55.42

03 237 023-580-019-000 55.42

03 238 023-580-020-000 55.42

03 239 023-580-021-000 55.42

03 240 023-580-022-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

43



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 241 023-580-023-000 $55.42

03 242 023-580-024-000 55.42

03 243 023-580-025-000 55.42

03 244 023-580-026-000 55.42

03 245 023-580-027-000 55.42

03 246 023-580-028-000 $55.42

03 247 023-580-029-000 55.42

03 248 023-580-030-000 55.42

03 249 023-580-031-000 55.42

03 250 023-580-032-000 55.42

03 251 023-580-033-000 $55.42

03 252 023-580-034-000 55.42

03 253 023-580-035-000 55.42

03 254 023-580-036-000 55.42

03 255 023-580-037-000 55.42

03 256 023-580-038-000 $55.42

03 257 023-580-039-000 55.42

03 258 023-580-040-000 55.42

03 259 023-580-041-000 55.42

03 260 023-580-042-000 55.42

03 261 023-580-043-000 $55.42

03 262 023-580-044-000 55.42

03 263 023-580-045-000 55.42

03 264 023-580-046-000 55.42

03 265 023-580-047-000 55.42

03 266 023-580-048-000 $55.42

03 267 023-580-049-000 55.42

03 268 023-580-050-000 55.42

03 269 023-580-051-000 55.42

03 270 023-580-052-000 55.42

03 271 023-590-003-000 $221.68

03 272 023-590-004-000 221.68

03 273 023-590-005-000 221.68

03 274 023-590-006-000 221.68

03 275 023-590-007-000 221.68

03 276 023-590-008-000 $221.68

03 277 023-590-009-000 221.68

03 278 023-590-010-000 221.68

03 279 023-590-011-000 221.68

03 280 023-590-012-000 221.68

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

44



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 281 023-590-013-000 $221.68

03 282 023-590-014-000 221.68

03 283 023-590-015-000 221.68

03 284 023-590-016-000 221.68

03 285 023-590-017-000 221.68

03 286 023-590-018-000 $221.68

03 287 023-590-019-000 221.68

03 288 023-590-020-000 221.68

03 289 023-590-021-000 221.68

03 290 023-360-040-000 55.42

03 291 023-360-041-000 $55.42
03 292 023-360-042-000 55.42

Total Assessment Zone 3 $19,341.58

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

45



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

05 1 021-360-019-000 $62.32

05 2 021-360-020-000 62.32

05 3 021-360-021-000 62.32

05 4 021-360-022-000 62.32

05 5 021-360-023-000 62.32

05 6 021-360-024-000 $62.32

05 7 021-360-027-000 62.32

05 8 021-360-028-000 62.32

05 9 021-360-029-000 62.32

05 10 021-360-030-000 62.32

05 11 021-360-031-000 $62.32

05 12 021-360-032-000 62.32

05 13 021-360-033-000 62.32

05 14 021-360-034-000 62.32

05 15 021-360-035-000 62.32

05 16 021-360-036-000 $62.32

05 17 021-360-037-000 62.32

05 18 021-360-038-000 62.32

05 19 021-360-039-000 62.32

05 20 021-360-040-000 62.32

05 21 021-360-041-000 $62.32

05 22 021-360-043-000 62.32

05 23 021-360-044-000 62.32

05 24 021-360-045-000 62.32

05 25 021-360-046-000 62.32

05 26 021-360-047-000 $62.32

05 27 021-360-048-000 62.32

05 28 021-360-049-000 62.32
05 29 021-360-050-000 62.32

Total Assessment Zone 5 $1,807.28

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

46



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

06 1 023-050-002-000 $15.78

06 2 023-050-003-000 15.78

06 3 023-050-004-000 15.78

06 4 023-050-005-000 15.78

06 5 023-050-006-000 15.78

06 6 023-050-007-000 $15.78

06 7 023-050-008-000 15.78

06 8 023-050-009-000 15.78

06 9 023-050-010-000 15.78

06 10 023-050-011-000 15.78

06 11 023-050-012-000 $15.78

06 12 023-050-013-000 15.78

06 13 023-050-014-000 15.78

06 14 023-050-015-000 15.78

06 15 023-050-016-000 15.78

06 16 023-050-017-000 $15.78

06 17 023-050-018-000 15.78

06 18 023-050-019-000 15.78

06 19 023-050-020-000 15.78

06 20 023-050-021-000 15.78

06 21 023-050-022-000 $15.78

06 22 023-050-023-000 15.78

06 23 023-050-024-000 15.78

06 24 023-050-025-000 15.78

06 25 023-050-026-000 15.78

06 26 023-050-027-000 $15.78

06 27 023-050-028-000 15.78

06 28 023-050-029-000 15.78

06 29 023-050-030-000 15.78

06 30 023-060-001-000 15.78

06 31 023-060-002-000 $15.78

06 32 023-060-003-000 15.78

06 33 023-060-004-000 15.78

06 34 023-060-005-000 15.78

06 35 023-060-006-000 15.78

06 36 023-060-007-000 $15.78

06 37 023-060-008-000 15.78

06 38 023-060-009-000 15.78

06 39 023-060-010-000 15.78

06 40 023-060-011-000 15.78

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

47



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

06 41 023-060-012-000 $15.78

06 42 023-060-013-000 15.78

06 43 023-060-014-000 15.78

06 44 023-060-015-000 15.78

06 45 023-060-016-000 15.78

06 46 023-060-017-000 $15.78

06 47 023-060-018-000 15.78

06 48 023-060-019-000 15.78

06 49 023-060-020-000 15.78

06 50 023-060-021-000 15.78

06 51 023-060-022-000 $15.78

06 52 023-060-023-000 15.78

06 53 023-060-024-000 15.78

06 54 023-060-025-000 15.78

06 55 023-060-026-000 15.78

06 56 023-060-027-000 $15.78

06 57 023-060-028-000 15.78

06 58 023-060-029-000 15.78

06 59 023-060-030-000 15.78

06 60 023-060-031-000 15.78

06 61 023-060-032-000 $15.78

06 62 023-060-033-000 15.78

06 63 023-060-034-000 15.78

06 64 023-060-035-000 15.78

06 65 023-060-036-000 15.78

06 66 023-060-037-000 $15.78

06 67 023-060-038-000 15.78

06 68 023-060-039-000 15.78

06 69 023-060-040-000 15.78

06 70 023-060-041-000 15.78

06 71 023-060-042-000 $15.78

06 72 023-060-043-000 15.78

06 73 023-060-044-000 15.78

06 74 023-060-045-000 15.78

06 75 023-060-046-000 15.78

06 76 023-070-002-000 $15.78

06 77 023-070-003-000 15.78

06 78 023-070-004-000 15.78

06 79 023-070-005-000 15.78

06 80 023-070-006-000 15.78

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

48



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

06 81 023-070-007-000 $15.78

06 82 023-070-008-000 15.78

06 83 023-070-009-000 15.78

06 84 023-070-010-000 15.78

06 85 023-070-011-000 15.78

06 86 023-070-012-000 $15.78

06 87 023-070-013-000 15.78

06 88 023-070-014-000 15.78

06 89 023-070-015-000 15.78

06 90 023-070-016-000 15.78

06 91 023-070-017-000 $15.78

06 92 023-070-018-000 15.78

06 93 023-070-019-000 15.78

06 94 023-070-020-000 15.78

06 95 023-070-021-000 15.78

06 96 023-070-022-000 $15.78

06 97 023-070-023-000 15.78

06 98 023-070-024-000 15.78

06 99 023-070-025-000 15.78

06 100 023-070-026-000 15.78

06 101 023-070-027-000 $15.78

06 102 023-070-028-000 15.78

06 103 023-070-029-000 15.78

06 104 023-070-030-000 15.78

06 105 023-070-031-000 15.78

06 106 023-070-032-000 $15.78

06 107 023-070-033-000 15.78

06 108 023-070-034-000 15.78

06 109 023-070-035-000 15.78

06 110 023-070-036-000 15.78

06 111 023-070-037-000 $15.78

06 112 023-070-038-000 15.78

06 113 023-070-039-000 15.78

06 114 023-070-040-000 15.78

06 115 023-070-041-000 15.78

06 116 023-070-042-000 $15.78

06 117 023-070-043-000 15.78

06 118 023-070-044-000 15.78

06 119 023-070-045-000 15.78

06 120 023-070-046-000 15.78

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

49



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

06 121 023-070-047-000 $15.78

06 122 023-070-048-000 15.78

06 123 023-070-049-000 15.78

06 124 023-070-050-000 15.78

06 125 023-070-051-000 15.78
06 126 023-070-052-000 $15.78

Total Assessment Zone 6 $1,988.28

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

50



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

07 1 023-370-002-000 $78.22

07 2 023-370-003-000 78.22

07 3 023-370-004-000 78.22

07 4 023-370-005-000 78.22

07 5 023-370-006-000 78.22

07 6 023-370-007-000 $78.22

07 7 023-370-008-000 78.22

07 8 023-370-009-000 78.22

07 9 023-370-010-000 78.22

07 10 023-370-011-000 78.22

07 11 023-370-012-000 $78.22

07 12 023-370-013-000 78.22

07 13 023-370-014-000 78.22

07 14 023-370-015-000 78.22

07 15 023-370-016-000 78.22

07 16 023-370-017-000 $78.22

07 17 023-370-018-000 78.22

07 18 023-370-019-000 78.22

07 19 023-370-020-000 78.22

07 20 023-370-021-000 78.22

07 21 023-370-023-000 $78.22

07 22 023-370-024-000 78.22

07 23 023-370-025-000 78.22

07 24 023-370-026-000 78.22

07 25 023-370-027-000 78.22

07 26 023-370-028-000 $78.22

07 27 023-370-029-000 78.22

07 28 023-370-030-000 78.22

07 29 023-370-031-000 78.22

07 30 023-370-032-000 78.22

07 31 023-370-033-000 $78.22

07 32 023-370-034-000 78.22

07 33 023-370-035-000 78.22

07 34 023-370-036-000 78.22

07 35 023-370-037-000 78.22

07 36 023-370-038-000 $78.22

07 37 023-370-039-000 78.22

07 38 023-370-040-000 78.22

07 39 023-370-041-000 78.22

07 40 023-370-042-000 78.22

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

51



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

07 41 023-370-043-000 $78.22

07 42 023-370-044-000 78.22

07 43 023-370-045-000 78.22

07 44 023-370-046-000 78.22

07 45 023-370-047-000 78.22

07 46 023-370-048-000 $78.22

07 47 023-370-049-000 78.22

07 48 023-370-050-000 78.22

07 49 023-370-051-000 78.22

07 50 023-370-052-000 78.22

07 51 023-370-053-000 $78.22

07 52 023-370-054-000 78.22
07 53 023-370-055-000 78.22

Total Assessment Zone 7 $4,145.66

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

52



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

08 1 024-340-001-000 $107.92

08 2 024-340-002-000 107.92

08 3 024-340-003-000 107.92

08 4 024-340-004-000 107.92

08 5 024-340-005-000 107.92

08 6 024-340-006-000 $107.92

08 7 024-340-007-000 107.92

08 8 024-340-008-000 107.92

08 9 024-340-009-000 107.92

08 10 024-340-010-000 107.92

08 11 024-340-011-000 $107.92

08 12 024-340-012-000 107.92

08 13 024-340-013-000 107.92

08 14 024-340-014-000 107.92

08 15 024-340-015-000 107.92

08 16 024-340-016-000 $107.92

08 17 024-340-017-000 107.92

08 18 024-340-018-000 107.92

08 19 024-340-019-000 107.92

08 20 024-340-020-000 107.92

08 21 024-340-021-000 $107.92

08 22 024-340-022-000 107.92

08 23 024-340-023-000 107.92

08 24 024-340-024-000 107.92

08 25 024-340-025-000 107.92

08 26 024-340-026-000 $107.92

08 27 024-340-027-000 107.92

08 28 024-340-028-000 107.92

08 29 024-340-029-000 107.92

08 30 024-340-030-000 107.92

08 31 024-340-031-000 $107.92

08 32 024-340-032-000 107.92

08 33 024-340-033-000 107.92

08 34 024-340-034-000 107.92

08 35 024-340-035-000 107.92

08 36 024-340-036-000 $107.92

08 37 024-340-037-000 107.92

08 38 024-340-038-000 107.92

08 39 024-340-039-000 107.92

08 40 024-340-040-000 107.92

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

53



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

08 41 024-340-041-000 $107.92

08 42 024-340-042-000 107.92

08 43 024-340-043-000 107.92

08 44 024-340-044-000 107.92

08 45 024-340-045-000 107.92

08 46 024-340-046-000 $107.92

08 47 024-340-047-000 107.92

08 48 024-340-048-000 107.92

08 49 024-340-049-000 107.92

08 50 024-350-001-000 107.92

08 51 024-350-002-000 $107.92

08 52 024-350-003-000 107.92

08 53 024-350-004-000 107.92

08 54 024-350-005-000 107.92

08 55 024-350-006-000 107.92

08 56 024-350-007-000 $107.92

08 57 024-350-008-000 107.92

08 58 024-350-009-000 107.92

08 59 024-350-010-000 107.92

08 60 024-350-011-000 107.92

08 61 024-350-012-000 $107.92

08 62 024-350-013-000 107.92

08 63 024-350-014-000 107.92

08 64 024-350-015-000 107.92

08 65 024-350-016-000 107.92

08 66 024-350-017-000 $107.92

08 67 024-350-018-000 107.92

08 68 024-350-019-000 107.92

08 69 024-350-020-000 107.92

08 70 024-350-021-000 107.92

08 71 024-350-022-000 $107.92

08 72 024-350-023-000 107.92

08 73 024-350-024-000 107.92

08 74 024-350-025-000 107.92

08 75 024-350-026-000 107.92

08 76 024-350-027-000 $107.92

08 77 024-350-028-000 107.92

08 78 024-350-029-000 107.92

08 79 024-350-030-000 107.92

08 80 024-350-031-000 107.92

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

54



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

08 81 024-350-032-000 $107.92

08 82 024-350-033-000 107.92

08 83 024-360-001-000 107.92

08 84 024-360-002-000 107.92

08 85 024-360-003-000 107.92

08 86 024-360-004-000 $107.92

08 87 024-360-005-000 107.92

08 88 024-360-006-000 107.92

08 89 024-360-007-000 107.92

08 90 024-360-008-000 107.92

08 91 024-360-009-000 $107.92

08 92 024-360-010-000 107.92

08 93 024-360-011-000 107.92

08 94 024-360-012-000 107.92

08 95 024-360-013-000 107.92

08 96 024-360-014-000 $107.92

08 97 024-360-015-000 107.92

08 98 024-360-016-000 107.92

08 99 024-360-017-000 107.92

08 100 024-360-018-000 107.92

08 101 024-360-019-000 $107.92

08 102 024-360-020-000 107.92

08 103 024-360-021-000 107.92

08 104 024-360-022-000 107.92

08 105 024-360-024-000 107.92

08 106 024-360-025-000 $107.92

08 107 024-360-026-000 107.92

08 108 024-360-027-000 107.92

08 109 024-360-028-000 107.92

08 110 024-360-029-000 107.92

08 111 024-360-030-000 $107.92

08 112 024-360-031-000 107.92

08 113 024-360-032-000 107.92

08 114 024-360-033-000 107.92

08 115 024-360-034-000 107.92

08 116 024-370-002-000 $107.92

08 117 024-370-003-000 107.92

08 118 024-370-004-000 107.92

08 119 024-370-005-000 107.92

08 120 024-370-006-000 107.92

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

55



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

08 121 024-370-007-000 $107.92

08 122 024-370-008-000 107.92

08 123 024-370-009-000 107.92

08 124 024-370-010-000 107.92

08 125 024-370-011-000 107.92

08 126 024-370-012-000 $107.92

08 127 024-370-013-000 107.92

08 128 024-370-014-000 107.92

08 129 024-370-015-000 107.92

08 130 024-370-016-000 107.92

08 131 024-370-018-000 $107.92

08 132 024-370-019-000 107.92

08 133 024-370-020-000 107.92

08 134 024-370-021-000 107.92

08 135 024-370-022-000 107.92

08 136 024-370-023-000 $107.92

08 137 024-370-024-000 107.92

08 138 024-370-025-000 107.92

08 139 024-370-026-000 107.92

08 140 024-370-027-000 107.92

08 141 024-370-028-000 $107.92

08 142 024-370-029-000 107.92

08 143 024-370-031-000 107.92

08 144 024-370-032-000 107.92

08 145 024-370-033-000 107.92

08 146 024-370-034-000 $107.92

08 147 024-370-035-000 107.92

08 148 024-370-036-000 107.92

08 149 024-370-037-000 107.92

08 150 024-370-038-000 107.92

08 151 024-370-039-000 $107.92

08 152 024-370-040-000 107.92
08 153 024-370-041-000 107.92

Total Assessment Zone 8 $16,511.76

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

56



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

8A 1 024-380-002-000 $107.92

8A 2 024-380-003-000 107.92

8A 3 024-380-004-000 107.92

8A 4 024-380-005-000 107.92

8A 5 024-380-006-000 107.92

8A 6 024-380-007-000 $107.92

8A 7 024-380-008-000 107.92

8A 8 024-380-009-000 107.92

8A 9 024-380-010-000 107.92

8A 10 024-380-011-000 107.92

8A 11 024-380-012-000 $107.92

8A 12 024-380-013-000 107.92

8A 13 024-380-014-000 107.92

8A 14 024-380-015-000 107.92

8A 15 024-380-016-000 107.92

8A 16 024-380-017-000 $107.92

8A 17 024-380-018-000 107.92

8A 18 024-380-019-000 107.92

8A 19 024-380-020-000 107.92

8A 20 024-380-021-000 107.92

8A 21 024-380-022-000 $107.92

8A 22 024-380-023-000 107.92

8A 23 024-380-024-000 107.92

8A 24 024-380-025-000 107.92

8A 25 024-380-026-000 107.92

8A 26 024-380-027-000 $107.92

8A 27 024-380-028-000 107.92

8A 28 024-380-030-000 107.92

8A 29 024-380-031-000 107.92

8A 30 024-380-032-000 107.92

8A 31 024-380-033-000 $107.92

8A 32 024-380-034-000 107.92

8A 33 024-380-035-000 107.92

8A 34 024-380-036-000 107.92

8A 35 024-380-037-000 107.92

8A 36 024-380-038-000 $107.92

8A 37 024-380-039-000 107.92

8A 38 024-380-040-000 107.92

8A 39 024-380-041-000 107.92

8A 40 024-380-042-000 107.92

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

57



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

8A 41 024-380-043-000 $107.92

8A 42 024-380-044-000 107.92

8A 43 024-380-045-000 107.92

8A 44 024-380-046-000 107.92
8A 45 024-380-047-000 107.92

Total Assessment Zone 8A $4,856.40

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

58



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

09 1 021-170-001-000 $42.24

09 2 021-170-002-000 42.24

09 3 021-170-003-000 42.24

09 4 021-170-004-000 42.24

09 5 021-170-005-000 42.24

09 6 021-170-006-000 $42.24

09 7 021-170-007-000 42.24

09 8 021-170-008-000 42.24

09 9 021-170-009-000 42.24

09 10 021-170-010-000 42.24

09 11 021-170-011-000 $42.24

09 12 021-170-012-000 42.24

09 13 021-170-013-000 42.24

09 14 021-170-014-000 42.24

09 15 021-170-015-000 42.24

09 16 021-170-034-000 $42.24

09 17 021-170-035-000 42.24

09 18 021-170-036-000 42.24

09 19 021-170-037-000 42.24

09 20 021-170-038-000 42.24

09 21 021-170-039-000 $42.24

09 22 021-170-040-000 42.24

09 23 021-170-041-000 42.24

09 24 021-170-042-000 42.24

09 25 021-170-043-000 42.24

09 26 021-170-044-000 $42.24

09 27 021-170-045-000 42.24

09 28 021-170-046-000 42.24

09 29 021-170-047-000 42.24

09 30 021-170-048-000 42.24

09 31 021-170-049-000 $42.24

09 32 021-170-050-000 42.24

09 33 021-680-001-000 42.24

09 34 021-680-002-000 42.24

09 35 021-680-003-000 42.24

09 36 021-680-004-000 $42.24

09 37 021-680-006-000 42.24

09 38 021-680-007-000 42.24

09 39 021-680-008-000 42.24

09 40 021-680-009-000 42.24

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

59



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

09 41 021-680-010-000 $42.24

09 42 021-680-011-000 42.24

09 43 021-680-012-000 42.24

09 44 021-680-013-000 42.24

09 45 021-680-014-000 42.24

09 46 021-680-015-000 $42.24

09 47 021-680-016-000 42.24

09 48 021-680-017-000 42.24

09 49 021-680-018-000 42.24

09 50 021-680-019-000 42.24

09 51 021-680-020-000 $42.24

09 52 021-680-021-000 42.24

09 53 021-680-022-000 42.24

09 54 021-680-023-000 42.24

09 55 021-680-024-000 42.24

09 56 021-680-025-000 $42.24

09 57 021-680-026-000 42.24

09 58 021-680-027-000 42.24

09 59 021-680-028-000 42.24

09 60 021-680-029-000 42.24

09 61 021-680-030-000 $42.24

09 62 021-680-031-000 42.24

09 63 021-680-032-000 42.24

09 64 021-680-033-000 42.24

09 65 021-680-035-000 42.24

09 66 021-680-036-000 $42.24

09 67 021-680-037-000 42.24

09 68 021-680-038-000 42.24

09 69 021-680-039-000 42.24

09 70 021-680-040-000 42.24

09 71 021-680-041-000 $42.24

09 72 021-680-042-000 42.24

09 73 021-680-043-000 42.24

09 74 021-680-044-000 42.24

09 75 021-680-045-000 42.24

09 76 021-680-046-000 $42.24

09 77 021-680-047-000 42.24

09 78 021-680-048-000 42.24

09 79 021-680-049-000 42.24

09 80 021-680-050-000 42.24

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

60



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

09 81 021-680-051-000 $42.24

09 82 021-680-052-000 42.24

09 83 021-680-053-000 42.24

09 84 021-680-054-000 42.24

09 85 021-680-055-000 42.24

09 86 021-680-056-000 $42.24

09 87 021-680-057-000 42.24

09 88 021-680-058-000 42.24

09 89 021-680-059-000 42.24

09 90 021-680-060-000 42.24

09 91 021-680-061-000 $42.24

09 92 021-680-062-000 42.24

09 93 021-680-063-000 42.24

09 94 021-680-064-000 42.24

09 95 021-680-065-000 42.24

09 96 021-080-053-000 $42.24

09 97 021-080-054-000 42.24

09 98 021-080-055-000 42.24

09 99 021-080-056-000 42.24

09 100 021-080-057-000 42.24

09 101 021-080-058-000 $42.24

09 102 021-080-059-000 42.24

09 103 021-080-060-000 42.24

09 104 021-080-061-000 42.24

09 105 021-080-062-000 42.24

09 106 021-080-063-000 $42.24

09 107 021-080-064-000 42.24

09 108 021-080-065-000 42.24

09 109 021-080-066-000 42.24

09 110 021-080-067-000 42.24

09 111 021-080-068-000 $42.24

09 112 021-080-069-000 42.24

09 113 021-080-071-000 42.24

09 114 021-080-072-000 42.24

09 115 021-080-073-000 42.24

09 116 021-080-074-000 $42.24

09 117 021-080-075-000 42.24

09 118 021-080-076-000 42.24

09 119 021-080-077-000 42.24

09 120 021-080-078-000 42.24

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

61



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

09 121 021-080-079-000 $42.24

09 122 021-080-080-000 42.24

09 123 021-080-081-000 42.24

09 124 021-080-082-000 42.24

09 125 021-080-083-000 42.24

09 126 021-080-084-000 $42.24

09 127 021-080-085-000 42.24

09 128 021-080-086-000 42.24

09 129 021-080-087-000 42.24

09 130 021-080-088-000 42.24

09 131 021-080-089-000 $42.24

09 132 021-080-090-000 42.24

09 133 021-080-091-000 42.24
09 134 021-080-092-000 42.24

Total Assessment Zone 9 $5,660.16

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

62



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

10 1 023-550-001-000 $125.76

10 2 023-550-002-000 125.76

10 3 023-550-003-000 125.76

10 4 023-550-004-000 125.76

10 5 023-550-005-000 125.76

10 6 023-550-006-000 $125.76

10 7 023-550-007-000 125.76

10 8 023-550-008-000 125.76

10 9 023-550-009-000 125.76

10 10 023-550-010-000 125.76

10 11 023-550-011-000 $125.76

10 12 023-550-012-000 125.76

10 13 023-550-013-000 125.76

10 14 023-550-014-000 125.76

10 15 023-550-015-000 125.76

10 16 023-550-016-000 $125.76

10 17 023-550-017-000 125.76

10 18 023-550-018-000 125.76

10 19 023-550-019-000 125.76

10 20 023-550-020-000 125.76

10 21 023-550-021-000 $125.76

10 22 023-550-022-000 125.76

10 23 023-550-023-000 125.76

10 24 023-550-024-000 125.76

10 25 023-550-025-000 125.76

10 26 023-550-026-000 $125.76

10 27 023-550-027-000 125.76

10 28 023-550-028-000 125.76

10 29 023-550-029-000 125.76

10 30 023-550-030-000 125.76

10 31 023-550-031-000 $125.76

10 32 023-550-032-000 125.76

10 33 023-550-033-000 125.76

10 34 023-550-035-000 125.76

10 35 023-550-036-000 125.76

10 36 023-550-037-000 $125.76

10 37 023-550-038-000 125.76

10 38 023-550-039-000 125.76

10 39 023-550-040-000 125.76

10 40 023-550-041-000 125.76

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

63



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

10 41 023-550-042-000 $125.76

10 42 023-550-043-000 125.76

10 43 023-550-044-000 125.76

10 44 023-550-045-000 125.76

10 45 023-550-046-000 125.76

10 46 023-550-047-000 $125.76

10 47 023-550-048-000 125.76

10 48 023-550-049-000 125.76

10 49 023-550-050-000 125.76

10 50 023-550-051-000 125.76

10 51 023-550-052-000 $125.76

10 52 023-550-053-000 125.76

10 53 023-550-054-000 125.76

10 54 023-550-055-000 125.76

10 55 023-550-056-000 125.76

10 56 023-550-057-000 $125.76

10 57 023-550-058-000 125.76

10 58 023-550-059-000 125.76

10 59 023-550-060-000 125.76

10 60 023-550-061-000 125.76

10 61 023-550-062-000 $125.76

10 62 023-440-001-000 125.76

10 63 023-440-002-000 125.76

10 64 023-440-003-000 125.76

10 65 023-440-004-000 125.76

10 66 023-440-005-000 $125.76

10 67 023-440-006-000 125.76

10 68 023-440-007-000 125.76

10 69 023-440-008-000 125.76

10 70 023-440-009-000 125.76

10 71 023-440-010-000 $125.76

10 72 023-440-011-000 125.76

10 73 023-440-012-000 125.76

10 74 023-440-013-000 125.76

10 75 023-440-014-000 125.76

10 76 023-440-015-000 $125.76

10 77 023-440-016-000 125.76

10 78 023-440-017-000 125.76

10 79 023-440-018-000 125.76

10 80 023-440-019-000 125.76

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

64



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

10 81 023-440-020-000 $125.76

10 82 023-440-021-000 125.76

10 83 023-440-022-000 125.76

10 84 023-440-023-000 125.76

10 85 023-440-024-000 125.76

10 86 023-440-025-000 $125.76

10 87 023-440-026-000 125.76

10 88 023-440-027-000 125.76

10 89 023-440-028-000 125.76

10 90 023-440-029-000 125.76

10 91 023-440-030-000 $125.76

10 92 023-440-031-000 125.76

10 93 023-440-032-000 125.76

10 94 023-440-033-000 125.76

10 95 023-440-034-000 125.76

10 96 023-440-035-000 $125.76

10 97 023-440-036-000 125.76

10 98 023-440-037-000 125.76

10 99 023-440-038-000 125.76

10 100 023-440-039-000 125.76

10 101 023-440-040-000 $125.76

10 102 023-440-041-000 125.76

10 103 023-440-042-000 125.76

10 104 023-440-043-000 125.76

10 105 023-440-045-000 125.76

10 106 023-440-046-000 $125.76

10 107 023-440-047-000 125.76

10 108 023-440-048-000 125.76

10 109 023-440-049-000 125.76

10 110 023-440-050-000 125.76

10 111 023-440-051-000 $125.76

10 112 023-440-052-000 125.76

10 113 023-440-053-000 125.76

10 114 023-440-054-000 125.76

10 115 023-440-055-000 125.76

10 116 023-560-001-000 $125.76

10 117 023-560-002-000 125.76

10 118 023-560-003-000 125.76

10 119 023-560-004-000 125.76

10 120 023-560-007-000 125.76

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

65



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

10 121 023-560-008-000 $125.76

10 122 023-560-009-000 125.76

10 123 023-560-010-000 125.76

10 124 023-560-011-000 125.76

10 125 023-560-012-000 125.76

10 126 023-560-013-000 $125.76

10 127 023-560-014-000 125.76

10 128 023-560-015-000 125.76

10 129 023-560-016-000 125.76

10 130 023-560-017-000 125.76

10 131 023-560-018-000 $125.76

10 132 023-560-019-000 125.76

10 133 023-560-020-000 125.76

10 134 023-560-021-000 125.76

10 135 023-560-022-000 125.76

10 136 023-560-025-000 $125.76

10 137 023-560-026-000 125.76

10 138 023-560-027-000 125.76

10 139 023-560-028-000 125.76

10 140 023-560-029-000 125.76

10 141 023-560-030-000 $125.76

10 142 023-560-031-000 125.76

10 143 023-560-032-000 125.76

10 144 023-560-033-000 125.76

10 145 023-560-034-000 125.76

10 146 023-560-035-000 $125.76

10 147 023-560-036-000 125.76

10 148 023-560-037-000 125.76

10 149 023-560-038-000 125.76

10 150 023-560-039-000 125.76
10 151 023-560-040-000 $125.76

Total Assessment Zone 10 $18,989.76

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

66



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

11 1 023-160-001-000 $53.32

11 2 023-160-002-000 53.32

11 3 023-160-003-000 53.32

11 4 023-160-004-000 53.32

11 5 023-160-005-000 53.32

11 6 023-160-006-000 $53.32

11 7 023-160-007-000 53.32

11 8 023-160-008-000 53.32

11 9 023-160-009-000 53.32

11 10 023-160-010-000 53.32

11 11 023-160-012-000 $53.32

11 12 023-160-013-000 53.32

11 13 023-160-014-000 53.32

11 14 023-160-016-000 53.32

11 15 023-160-017-000 53.32

11 16 023-160-018-000 $53.32

11 17 023-160-019-000 53.32

11 18 023-160-020-000 53.32

11 19 023-160-021-000 53.32

11 20 023-160-022-000 53.32

11 21 023-160-023-000 $53.32

11 22 023-160-024-000 53.32

11 23 023-160-025-000 53.32

11 24 023-160-026-000 53.32

11 25 023-160-027-000 53.32

11 26 023-160-028-000 $53.32

11 27 023-160-029-000 53.32

11 28 023-160-030-000 53.32

11 29 023-160-031-000 53.32

11 30 023-160-032-000 53.32

11 31 023-160-033-000 $53.32

11 32 023-160-034-000 53.32

11 33 023-160-035-000 53.32

11 34 023-160-036-000 53.32

11 35 023-160-037-000 53.32
11 36 023-160-038-000 $53.32

Total Assessment Zone 11 $1,919.52

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

67



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 1 021-690-002-000 $145.00

12 2 021-690-003-000 145.00

12 3 021-690-004-000 145.00

12 4 021-690-005-000 145.00

12 5 021-690-006-000 145.00

12 6 021-690-007-000 $145.00

12 7 021-690-008-000 145.00

12 8 021-690-009-000 145.00

12 9 021-690-010-000 145.00

12 10 021-690-011-000 145.00

12 11 021-690-012-000 $145.00

12 12 021-690-013-000 145.00

12 13 021-690-014-000 145.00

12 14 021-690-015-000 145.00

12 15 021-690-016-000 145.00

12 16 021-690-017-000 $145.00

12 17 021-690-018-000 145.00

12 18 021-690-019-000 145.00

12 19 021-690-020-000 145.00

12 20 021-690-021-000 145.00

12 21 021-690-022-000 $145.00

12 22 021-690-023-000 145.00

12 23 021-690-024-000 145.00

12 24 021-690-025-000 145.00

12 25 021-690-026-000 145.00

12 26 021-690-029-000 $145.00

12 27 021-690-030-000 145.00

12 28 021-690-031-000 145.00

12 29 021-690-032-000 145.00

12 30 021-690-033-000 145.00

12 31 021-690-034-000 $145.00

12 32 021-690-035-000 145.00

12 33 021-690-036-000 145.00

12 34 021-690-037-000 145.00

12 35 021-690-038-000 145.00

12 36 021-690-039-000 $145.00

12 37 021-690-040-000 145.00

12 38 021-690-041-000 145.00

12 39 021-690-042-000 145.00

12 40 021-690-043-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

68



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 41 021-690-044-000 $145.00

12 42 021-690-045-000 145.00

12 43 021-690-046-000 145.00

12 44 021-690-047-000 145.00

12 45 021-690-048-000 145.00

12 46 021-690-049-000 $145.00

12 47 021-690-050-000 145.00

12 48 021-690-051-000 145.00

12 49 021-690-052-000 145.00

12 50 021-690-053-000 145.00

12 51 021-700-001-000 $145.00

12 52 021-700-002-000 145.00

12 53 021-700-003-000 145.00

12 54 021-700-004-000 145.00

12 55 021-700-005-000 145.00

12 56 021-700-006-000 $145.00

12 57 021-700-007-000 145.00

12 58 021-700-008-000 145.00

12 59 021-700-009-000 145.00

12 60 021-700-010-000 145.00

12 61 021-700-011-000 $145.00

12 62 021-700-012-000 145.00

12 63 021-700-013-000 145.00

12 64 021-700-014-000 145.00

12 65 021-700-015-000 145.00

12 66 021-700-016-000 $145.00

12 67 021-700-017-000 145.00

12 68 021-700-018-000 145.00

12 69 021-700-019-000 145.00

12 70 021-700-020-000 145.00

12 71 021-700-021-000 $145.00

12 72 021-700-022-000 145.00

12 73 021-700-023-000 145.00

12 74 021-700-024-000 145.00

12 75 021-700-025-000 145.00

12 76 021-700-026-000 $145.00

12 77 021-700-027-000 145.00

12 78 021-700-028-000 145.00

12 79 021-700-029-000 145.00

12 80 021-700-030-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

69



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 81 021-700-031-000 $145.00

12 82 021-700-032-000 145.00

12 83 021-700-033-000 145.00

12 84 021-700-034-000 145.00

12 85 021-700-035-000 145.00

12 86 021-700-036-000 $145.00

12 87 021-700-037-000 145.00

12 88 021-700-038-000 145.00

12 89 021-700-039-000 145.00

12 90 021-700-040-000 145.00

12 91 021-700-041-000 $145.00

12 92 021-700-042-000 145.00

12 93 021-700-043-000 145.00

12 94 021-700-044-000 145.00

12 95 021-700-045-000 145.00

12 96 021-700-046-000 $145.00

12 97 021-700-047-000 145.00

12 98 021-700-048-000 145.00

12 99 021-700-049-000 145.00

12 100 021-700-050-000 145.00

12 101 021-700-051-000 $145.00

12 102 021-710-001-000 145.00

12 103 021-710-002-000 145.00

12 104 021-710-003-000 145.00

12 105 021-710-004-000 145.00

12 106 021-710-005-000 $145.00

12 107 021-710-006-000 145.00

12 108 021-710-007-000 145.00

12 109 021-710-008-000 145.00

12 110 021-710-009-000 145.00

12 111 021-710-010-000 $145.00

12 112 021-710-011-000 145.00

12 113 021-710-012-000 145.00

12 114 021-710-013-000 145.00

12 115 021-710-014-000 145.00

12 116 021-710-015-000 $145.00

12 117 021-710-016-000 145.00

12 118 021-710-017-000 145.00

12 119 021-710-018-000 145.00

12 120 021-710-019-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

70



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 121 021-710-020-000 $145.00

12 122 021-710-021-000 145.00

12 123 021-710-022-000 145.00

12 124 021-710-023-000 145.00

12 125 021-710-024-000 145.00

12 126 021-710-025-000 $145.00

12 127 021-710-026-000 145.00

12 128 021-710-027-000 145.00

12 129 021-710-028-000 145.00

12 130 021-710-029-000 145.00

12 131 021-710-030-000 $145.00

12 132 021-710-031-000 145.00

12 133 021-710-032-000 145.00

12 134 021-710-033-000 145.00

12 135 021-710-034-000 145.00

12 136 021-710-035-000 $145.00

12 137 021-710-036-000 145.00

12 138 021-710-037-000 145.00

12 139 021-710-038-000 145.00

12 140 021-710-039-000 145.00

12 141 021-710-040-000 $145.00

12 142 021-710-041-000 145.00

12 143 021-710-042-000 145.00

12 144 021-720-001-000 145.00

12 145 021-720-002-000 145.00

12 146 021-720-003-000 $145.00

12 147 021-720-004-000 145.00

12 148 021-720-005-000 145.00

12 149 021-720-006-000 145.00

12 150 021-720-007-000 145.00

12 151 021-720-008-000 $145.00

12 152 021-720-009-000 145.00

12 153 021-720-010-000 145.00

12 154 021-720-011-000 145.00

12 155 021-720-012-000 145.00

12 156 021-720-013-000 $145.00

12 157 021-720-014-000 145.00

12 158 021-720-015-000 145.00

12 159 021-720-016-000 145.00

12 160 021-720-017-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

71



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 161 021-720-018-000 $145.00

12 162 021-720-019-000 145.00

12 163 021-720-020-000 145.00

12 164 021-730-001-000 145.00

12 165 021-730-002-000 145.00

12 166 021-730-003-000 $145.00

12 167 021-730-004-000 145.00

12 168 021-730-005-000 145.00

12 169 021-730-006-000 145.00

12 170 021-730-007-000 145.00

12 171 021-730-008-000 $145.00

12 172 021-730-009-000 145.00

12 173 021-730-010-000 145.00

12 174 021-730-011-000 145.00

12 175 021-730-012-000 145.00

12 176 021-730-013-000 $145.00

12 177 021-730-014-000 145.00

12 178 021-730-015-000 145.00

12 179 021-730-016-000 145.00

12 180 021-730-017-000 145.00

12 181 021-730-018-000 $145.00

12 182 021-730-019-000 145.00

12 183 021-730-020-000 145.00

12 184 021-730-021-000 145.00

12 185 021-730-022-000 145.00

12 186 021-730-023-000 $145.00

12 187 021-730-024-000 145.00

12 188 021-730-025-000 145.00

12 189 021-730-026-000 145.00

12 190 021-730-027-000 145.00

12 191 021-730-028-000 $145.00

12 192 021-730-029-000 145.00

12 193 021-730-030-000 145.00

12 194 021-730-031-000 145.00

12 195 021-730-032-000 145.00

12 196 021-730-033-000 $145.00

12 197 021-730-034-000 145.00

12 198 021-730-035-000 145.00

12 199 021-730-036-000 145.00

12 200 021-730-037-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

72



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 201 021-730-038-000 $145.00

12 202 021-730-039-000 145.00

12 203 021-730-040-000 145.00

12 204 021-730-041-000 145.00

12 205 021-730-042-000 145.00

12 206 021-730-043-000 $145.00

12 207 021-730-044-000 145.00

12 208 021-730-045-000 145.00

12 209 021-730-046-000 145.00

12 210 021-730-047-000 145.00

12 211 021-730-048-000 $145.00

12 212 021-740-001-000 145.00

12 213 021-740-002-000 145.00

12 214 021-740-003-000 145.00

12 215 021-740-004-000 145.00

12 216 021-740-005-000 $145.00

12 217 021-740-006-000 145.00

12 218 021-740-007-000 145.00

12 219 021-740-008-000 145.00

12 220 021-740-009-000 145.00

12 221 021-740-010-000 $145.00

12 222 021-740-011-000 145.00

12 223 021-740-012-000 145.00

12 224 021-740-013-000 145.00

12 225 021-740-014-000 145.00

12 226 021-740-015-000 $145.00

12 227 021-740-016-000 145.00

12 228 021-740-017-000 145.00

12 229 021-740-018-000 145.00

12 230 021-740-019-000 145.00

12 231 021-740-020-000 $145.00

12 232 021-740-021-000 145.00

12 233 021-740-022-000 145.00

12 234 021-740-023-000 145.00

12 235 021-740-024-000 145.00

12 236 021-740-025-000 $145.00

12 237 021-740-026-000 145.00

12 238 021-740-027-000 145.00

12 239 021-740-028-000 145.00

12 240 021-740-029-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

73



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 241 021-740-030-000 $145.00

12 242 021-740-031-000 145.00

12 243 021-740-032-000 145.00

12 244 021-740-033-000 145.00

12 245 021-740-034-000 145.00

12 246 021-740-035-000 $145.00

12 247 021-740-036-000 145.00

12 248 021-740-037-000 145.00

12 249 021-740-038-000 145.00

12 250 021-740-039-000 145.00

12 251 021-740-040-000 $145.00

12 252 021-740-041-000 145.00

12 253 021-740-042-000 145.00

12 254 021-740-043-000 145.00

12 255 021-740-044-000 145.00

12 256 021-740-045-000 $145.00

12 257 021-740-046-000 145.00

12 258 021-740-047-000 145.00

12 259 021-740-048-000 145.00

12 260 021-740-049-000 145.00

12 261 021-740-050-000 $145.00

12 262 021-740-051-000 145.00

12 263 021-740-052-000 145.00

12 264 021-750-002-000 145.00

12 265 021-750-003-000 145.00

12 266 021-750-004-000 $145.00

12 267 021-750-005-000 145.00

12 268 021-750-006-000 145.00

12 269 021-750-007-000 145.00

12 270 021-750-008-000 145.00

12 271 021-750-009-000 $145.00

12 272 021-750-010-000 145.00

12 273 021-750-011-000 145.00

12 274 021-750-012-000 145.00

12 275 021-750-013-000 145.00

12 276 021-750-014-000 $145.00

12 277 021-750-015-000 145.00

12 278 021-750-016-000 145.00

12 279 021-750-017-000 145.00

12 280 021-750-018-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

74



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 281 021-750-019-000 $145.00

12 282 021-750-020-000 145.00

12 283 021-750-021-000 145.00

12 284 021-760-001-000 145.00

12 285 021-760-002-000 145.00

12 286 021-760-003-000 $145.00

12 287 021-760-004-000 145.00

12 288 021-760-005-000 145.00

12 289 021-760-006-000 145.00

12 290 021-760-007-000 145.00

12 291 021-760-008-000 $145.00

12 292 021-760-009-000 145.00

12 293 021-760-010-000 145.00

12 294 021-760-011-000 145.00

12 295 021-760-012-000 145.00

12 296 021-760-013-000 $145.00

12 297 021-760-014-000 145.00

12 298 021-760-015-000 145.00

12 299 021-760-016-000 145.00

12 300 021-760-017-000 145.00

12 301 021-760-018-000 $145.00

12 302 021-760-019-000 145.00

12 303 021-760-020-000 145.00

12 304 021-760-021-000 145.00

12 305 021-760-022-000 145.00

12 306 021-760-023-000 $145.00

12 307 021-760-024-000 145.00

12 308 021-760-025-000 145.00

12 309 021-760-026-000 145.00

12 310 021-760-027-000 145.00

12 311 021-760-028-000 $145.00

12 312 021-760-029-000 145.00

12 313 021-760-030-000 145.00

12 314 021-760-031-000 145.00

12 315 021-760-032-000 145.00

12 316 021-760-033-000 $145.00

12 317 021-760-034-000 145.00

12 318 021-760-035-000 145.00

12 319 021-760-036-000 145.00

12 320 021-760-037-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

75



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 321 021-760-038-000 $145.00

12 322 021-760-039-000 145.00

12 323 021-760-040-000 145.00

12 324 021-760-041-000 145.00

12 325 021-760-042-000 145.00

12 326 021-760-043-000 $145.00

12 327 021-760-044-000 145.00

12 328 021-760-045-000 145.00

12 329 021-760-046-000 145.00

12 330 021-760-047-000 145.00

12 331 021-760-048-000 $145.00

12 332 021-760-049-000 145.00

12 333 021-760-050-000 145.00

12 334 021-760-051-000 145.00

12 335 021-770-001-000 145.00

12 336 021-770-002-000 $145.00

12 337 021-770-003-000 145.00

12 338 021-770-004-000 145.00

12 339 021-770-005-000 145.00

12 340 021-770-006-000 145.00

12 341 021-770-007-000 $145.00

12 342 021-770-008-000 145.00

12 343 021-770-009-000 145.00

12 344 021-770-010-000 145.00

12 345 021-770-011-000 145.00

12 346 021-770-012-000 $145.00

12 347 021-770-013-000 145.00

12 348 021-770-014-000 145.00

12 349 021-770-015-000 145.00

12 350 021-770-016-000 145.00

12 351 021-770-017-000 $145.00

12 352 021-770-018-000 145.00

12 353 021-770-019-000 145.00

12 354 021-770-020-000 145.00

12 355 021-770-021-000 145.00

12 356 021-770-022-000 $145.00

12 357 021-770-023-000 145.00

12 358 021-770-024-000 145.00

12 359 021-770-025-000 145.00

12 360 021-770-026-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

76



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 361 021-770-027-000 $145.00

12 362 021-770-028-000 145.00

12 363 021-770-029-000 145.00

12 364 021-770-030-000 145.00

12 365 021-770-031-000 145.00

12 366 021-770-032-000 $145.00

12 367 021-770-033-000 145.00

12 368 021-770-034-000 145.00

12 369 021-770-035-000 145.00

12 370 021-770-036-000 145.00

12 371 021-770-037-000 $145.00

12 372 021-770-038-000 145.00

12 373 021-770-039-000 145.00

12 374 021-770-040-000 145.00

12 375 021-770-041-000 145.00

12 376 021-770-042-000 $145.00

12 377 021-770-043-000 145.00

12 378 021-770-044-000 145.00

12 379 021-770-045-000 145.00

12 380 021-770-046-000 145.00

12 381 021-770-047-000 $145.00

12 382 021-770-048-000 145.00

12 383 021-770-049-000 145.00

12 384 021-770-050-000 145.00

12 385 021-770-051-000 145.00

12 386 021-770-052-000 $145.00

12 387 021-770-053-000 145.00

12 388 021-770-054-000 145.00

12 389 021-770-055-000 145.00

12 390 021-770-056-000 145.00

12 391 021-770-057-000 $145.00

12 392 021-770-058-000 145.00

12 393 021-770-059-000 145.00

12 394 023-540-001-000 145.00

12 395 023-540-002-000 145.00

12 396 023-540-003-000 $145.00

12 397 023-540-004-000 145.00

12 398 023-540-005-000 145.00

12 399 023-540-006-000 145.00

12 400 023-540-007-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

77



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 401 023-540-008-000 $145.00

12 402 023-540-009-000 145.00

12 403 023-540-010-000 145.00

12 404 023-540-011-000 145.00

12 405 023-540-012-000 145.00

12 406 023-540-015-000 $145.00

12 407 023-540-016-000 145.00

12 408 023-540-017-000 145.00

12 409 023-540-018-000 145.00

12 410 023-540-019-000 145.00

12 411 023-540-020-000 $145.00

12 412 023-540-021-000 145.00

12 413 023-540-022-000 145.00

12 414 023-540-023-000 145.00

12 415 023-540-024-000 145.00

12 416 023-540-025-000 $145.00

12 417 023-540-026-000 145.00

12 418 023-540-027-000 145.00

12 419 023-540-031-000 145.00

12 420 023-540-032-000 145.00

12 421 023-540-033-000 $145.00

12 422 023-540-034-000 145.00

12 423 023-540-035-000 145.00

12 424 023-540-036-000 145.00

12 425 023-540-037-000 145.00

12 426 023-540-038-000 $145.00

12 427 023-540-039-000 145.00

12 428 023-540-040-000 145.00

12 429 023-540-041-000 145.00

12 430 023-540-042-000 145.00

12 431 023-540-043-000 $145.00

12 432 023-540-044-000 145.00

12 433 023-540-045-000 145.00

12 434 023-540-046-000 145.00

12 435 023-540-047-000 145.00

12 436 023-540-048-000 $145.00

12 437 023-540-049-000 145.00

12 438 023-540-050-000 145.00

12 439 023-540-051-000 145.00

12 440 023-540-052-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

78



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 441 023-540-053-000 $145.00

12 442 023-540-054-000 145.00

12 443 023-540-055-000 145.00

12 444 023-540-056-000 145.00

12 445 023-540-057-000 145.00

12 446 023-540-058-000 $145.00

12 447 023-540-059-000 145.00

12 448 023-540-060-000 145.00

12 449 023-540-061-000 145.00

12 450 023-540-062-000 145.00

12 451 023-540-063-000 $145.00

12 452 023-540-064-000 145.00

12 453 023-540-065-000 145.00

12 454 023-540-066-000 145.00

12 455 023-540-067-000 145.00

12 456 023-540-068-000 $145.00
12 457 023-540-069-000 145.00

Total Assessment Zone 12 $66,265.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

79



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12A 1 023-540-070-000 $145.00

12A 2 023-540-071-000 145.00

12A 3 023-540-072-000 145.00

12A 4 023-540-073-000 145.00

12A 5 023-540-074-000 145.00

12A 6 023-540-075-000 $145.00

12A 7 023-540-076-000 145.00

12A 8 023-540-077-000 145.00

12A 9 023-540-078-000 145.00

12A 10 023-540-079-000 145.00

12A 11 023-540-080-000 $145.00

12A 12 023-540-081-000 145.00

12A 13 023-540-082-000 145.00

12A 14 023-540-083-000 145.00

12A 15 023-540-084-000 145.00

12A 16 023-540-085-000 $145.00

12A 17 023-540-086-000 145.00

12A 18 023-540-087-000 145.00

12A 19 023-540-088-000 145.00

12A 20 023-540-089-000 145.00

12A 21 023-540-090-000 $145.00

12A 22 023-540-091-000 145.00

12A 23 023-540-092-000 145.00

12A 24 023-540-093-000 145.00

12A 25 023-540-094-000 145.00

12A 26 023-540-095-000 $145.00

12A 27 023-540-096-000 145.00

12A 28 023-540-097-000 145.00

12A 29 023-540-098-000 145.00

12A 30 023-540-099-000 145.00

12A 31 023-540-100-000 $145.00

12A 32 023-540-101-000 145.00

12A 33 023-540-102-000 145.00

12A 34 023-540-103-000 145.00

12A 35 023-540-104-000 145.00

12A 36 021-750-024-000 $145.00

12A 37 021-750-025-000 145.00

12A 38 021-750-026-000 145.00

12A 39 021-750-027-000 145.00

12A 40 021-750-028-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

80



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12A 41 021-750-029-000 $145.00

12A 42 021-750-030-000 145.00

12A 43 021-750-031-000 145.00

12A 44 021-750-032-000 145.00

12A 45 021-750-033-000 145.00

12A 46 021-750-034-000 $145.00

12A 47 021-750-035-000 145.00

12A 48 021-750-036-000 145.00

12A 49 021-750-037-000 145.00

12A 50 021-750-038-000 145.00

12A 51 021-750-039-000 $145.00

12A 52 021-750-040-000 145.00

12A 53 021-750-041-000 145.00

12A 54 021-750-042-000 145.00

12A 55 021-750-043-000 145.00

12A 56 021-750-044-000 $145.00

12A 57 021-750-045-000 145.00

12A 58 021-750-046-000 145.00

12A 59 021-750-047-000 145.00

12A 60 021-750-048-000 145.00

12A 61 021-750-049-000 $145.00

12A 62 021-750-050-000 145.00

12A 63 021-750-051-000 145.00

12A 64 021-750-052-000 145.00

12A 65 021-750-053-000 145.00

12A 66 021-750-054-000 $145.00

12A 67 021-750-055-000 145.00

12A 68 021-750-056-000 145.00

12A 69 021-750-057-000 145.00

12A 70 021-750-058-000 145.00

12A 71 021-750-059-000 $145.00

12A 72 021-750-060-000 145.00

12A 73 021-750-061-000 145.00

12A 74 021-750-062-000 145.00

12A 75 021-750-063-000 145.00

12A 76 021-750-064-000 $145.00

12A 77 021-750-065-000 145.00

12A 78 021-750-066-000 145.00

12A 79 021-750-067-000 145.00

12A 80 021-750-068-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

81



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12A 81 021-750-069-000 $145.00

12A 82 021-750-070-000 145.00

12A 83 021-750-071-000 145.00

12A 84 021-750-072-000 145.00

12A 85 021-750-073-000 145.00

12A 86 021-750-074-000 $145.00

12A 87 021-750-075-000 145.00

12A 88 021-750-076-000 145.00

12A 89 021-750-077-000 145.00

12A 90 021-750-078-000 145.00

12A 91 021-750-079-000 $145.00

12A 92 021-750-080-000 145.00

12A 93 021-750-081-000 145.00

12A 94 021-750-082-000 145.00

12A 95 021-750-083-000 145.00
12A 96 021-750-084-000 $145.00

Total Assessment Zone 12A $13,920.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

82



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

13 1 021-630-003-000 $150.00

13 2 021-630-004-000 150.00

13 3 021-630-005-000 150.00

13 4 021-630-006-000 150.00

13 5 021-630-007-000 150.00

13 6 021-630-008-000 $150.00

13 7 021-630-009-000 150.00

13 8 021-630-010-000 150.00

13 9 021-630-011-000 150.00

13 10 021-630-012-000 150.00

13 11 021-630-013-000 $150.00

13 12 021-630-014-000 150.00

13 13 021-630-015-000 150.00

13 14 021-630-016-000 150.00

13 15 021-630-017-000 150.00

13 16 021-630-018-000 $150.00

13 17 021-630-019-000 150.00

13 18 021-630-020-000 150.00

13 19 021-630-021-000 150.00

13 20 021-630-022-000 150.00

13 21 021-630-023-000 $150.00

13 22 021-630-024-000 150.00

13 23 021-630-025-000 150.00

13 24 021-630-026-000 150.00

13 25 021-630-027-000 150.00

13 26 021-630-028-000 $150.00

13 27 021-630-029-000 150.00

13 28 021-630-030-000 150.00

13 29 021-630-031-000 150.00

13 30 021-630-032-000 150.00

13 31 021-630-033-000 $150.00

13 32 021-630-034-000 150.00
13 33 021-630-035-000 150.00

Total Assessment Zone 13 $4,950.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

June 2014

83



EXHIBIT E 
 

Assessment District and Zone Location 
Assessment Diagram 

 



P.O. BOX 3699
VISALIA CA 93278
TEL: (559) 733-0440
FAX: (559) 733-7821

5110 W. CYPRESS AVENUE









































Z
o
n

e 
3

 

 

























































 
 

 

 

 

Engineering / Surveying 

Planning 

Landscape Architecture 

Biology 

Land Development 

 

 
 

901 East Main Street 
Visalia, California 93292 

(559) 733-0440 
 

6051 North Fresno Street, Suite 200 
Fresno, California 93710 

(559) 449-2400 

3400 Douglas Boulevard, Suite 190 
Roseville, California 95661 

(916) 784-7823 
 

5080 California Avenue, Suite 220 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

(661) 616-2600 
 

Fremming, Parson & Pecchenino, a Quad Knopf Company 
2816 Park Avenue 

Merced, California 95348 
(559) 723-2066,  

 



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-18 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 

CONFIRMING DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENT OF ANNUAL LEVY  
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 FOR LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING 

MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO 1, ZONES 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, & 13. 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets & Highways 
Code Sections 22500 et seq.) (the “Act”), the City Council of the City of Lemoore declared its 
intention to form, conducted all proceedings to form and did form Landscaping and Lighting 
Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of Lemoore (the “District”), and has thereafter levied and 
collected the first assessment and subsequent annual assessments for operation, maintenance and 
service of landscaping, street lighting and other appurtenant improvements which constitute a 
portion of the public street, sidewalk and drainage systems within the District (collectively, the 
“Improvements”) and which provide particular, distinct special benefits to the various lots and 
parcels assessed over and above general benefits conferred on such lots and parcels and the public 
at large; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at the direction of the City Council, the City Engineer has prepared and filed 
with the City Clerk a report entitled “Engineer’s Report and Assessment for Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 
8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A and 13 Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1, dated June 
2014 (the “Engineer’s Report”), to which reference is hereby made, which Engineer’s report 
contains a description of the general nature, location and extent of the existing improvements 
within Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 of the district, an estimate of the 
costs of operating, maintaining and servicing the Improvements, a diagram showing the boundaries 
of the District and Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 therein, the lines and 
dimensions of each lot of parcel of land within Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 
13 and the descriptions of and proposed assessments on the assessable lots and parcels of land 
within Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13; and 
 

WHEREAS,  at a regular meeting on July 1, 2014, the City Council declared its intention to 
levy and collect the annual assessments for operation, maintenance and servicing of the 
Improvements within Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 for the 2014-2015 
fiscal year; and  
  

WHEREAS, the amount of the assessments proposed in the Engineer’s Report for Zones 1, 
2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 for the 2014-2-15 fiscal year are the same or less 
than the amount of the assessments for Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 and 
in all previous fiscal years; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the proceeds of the assessments will be used exclusively to finance the expenses 
for operation, maintenance and servicing of the Improvements for the 2014-2015 fiscal year, which 
operation, maintenance, and servicing will provide particular, distinct special benefits to the 
various lots and parcels in Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13, over and above 
the general benefits conferred on such lots and parcels and the public at large; and 
 

WHEREAS,  no substantial changes will be made to the existing improvements and no new 
improvements will be made for Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 in fiscal 
year 2014-2015; and 

“In God We Trust” 



WHEREAS, the amount of the assessment on each lot or parcel in Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 
8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 is proportional to and no greater than the special benefits conferred 
on such lot or parcel from operation, maintenance and servicing of the Improvements; and 
 

WHEREAS, after notice of the hearing was published pursuant to Streets & Highways Code 
Section 22626(a) and Government Code Section 6061, the City Council conducted a public 
hearing and heard and considered all objections and protests to the proposed assessments; and 

 
 
 
THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemoore resolves, finds and determines as 

follows: 
 

1.   The recitals in this resolution, above, are true and correct.  
 
2.  The territory within Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 of the  

District, whose boundaries are set forth in the Engineer’s Report, will be the territory particularly, 
distinctly and specially benefitted, over and above the general benefits conferred on such territory 
and the public at large, from operation, maintenance and servicing of the Improvements described 
in the Engineer’s Report. 

 
3.  The hearing on the annual levy of assessments in Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 
10,  

11, 12, 12A, and 13 of the District was noticed and held in accordance with the law.  
 
4.  The Engineer’s Report, including the diagram of Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10,  

11, 12, 12A, and 13 and the assessments of the estimated costs of operation, maintenance and 
servicing of the Improvements contained in the Engineer’s Report, and each and every part of the 
Engineer’s Report, is finally adopted, confirmed and approved.  
 
 5.  The assessment diagram showing Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 
12A, and 13 and the lots and parcels of land therein, all as contained in the Engineer’s Report, is 
finally approved and confirmed as the diagram of the lots and parcels within Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 
8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 to be assessed to pay the costs of operation, maintenance and 
servicing of the Improvements described in the Engineer’s Report. 
 
 6.  The assessment of the total amount of the costs and the individual 
assessments thereof on the lots and parcels within Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, 
and 13 in proportion to the special benefits to be conferred on each such lot or parcel from 
operation, maintenance and servicing of the Improvements, and of the expenses incidental thereto, 
as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, is finally approved and confirmed as the annual assessment 
for Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 for the 2014-2015 fiscal year to pay 
such costs. 
 
 7.  The levy of the annual assessments within Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 
10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 for fiscal year 2014-2015, as described in the Engineer’s Report, is hereby 
ordered. 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 



 8.  The City Clerk is authorized and directed to file the diagram of Zones 1, 2, 
3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 of the District and assessments therein, or a certified 
copy thereof, as approved and confirmed by the Council and containing all information and 
statements required Streets & Highways Code Section 3114, with the Kings County Auditor 
immediately after adoption of this resolution. 
 
 9.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 

*     *     *     *     * 
  

Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held on 
the 15th day of July 2014, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 

 
    APPROVED: 
 
 
    _____________________________ 
    William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________ 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS  ) ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE   ) 
 
 I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a Regular 
Meeting held on July 15, 2014. 
 
DATED:  July 15, 2014  
 
  
 Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 

 

“In God We Trust” 



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Public Works  

Department 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3-3 
To: Lemoore City Council  
From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works/Planning  
Date: July 8, 2014  
Subject: Public Hearing – Resolution No. 2014-19 – The Assessment of Annual Levy for 

Fiscal Year 2014-2015 for Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, Zones 1, 
2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the City of Lemoore 

 
Discussion: 
The Engineer’s Report documenting the need for and costs of the proposed assessments was 
presented to City Council on July 1, 2014 as the basis for adoption of the Resolution of Intention to 
Levy and Collect Annual Assessments for fiscal year 2014-2015 within Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 of the 
City of Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1. 
 
The levies for fiscal year 2014-2015 differ from Zone to Zone due to varying amounts of landscape and 
other improvements to be maintained, differing ratios between the amount of landscaping and other 
improvements, and the number of housing units responsible for the maintenance.  Listed below by 
Zone are the current 2013-2014 levies and the proposed 2014-2015 levies. 
 
             2013-2014  2014-2015 

Zone 1 – The Landing, Phases 1, 2, 3    $   736.24  $  535.66 
Zone 2 – Liberty, Phases 1 and 2     $1,043.34  $  684.76 
Zone 3 – Silva Estates 10       $   979.48  $  719.08 
Zone 4 – Parkview Estates      $   522.64  $  497.62 
Zone 5 – East Village Park      $1,247.62  $  825.86 
Zone 6 – Heritage Acres Phase 1     $   646.36  $  453.66 

 
All assessments for 2014-2015 are less than in previous years because of low bid costs for yearly 
maintenance resulting from revised bidding procedures 
 
Budget Impact: 
There will be a decrease due to reduction in assessments. 
 
Recommendation: 
That Council hold the Public Hearing and at the conclusion of the Public Hearing, adopt, by motion, 
Resolution No. 2014-19 Confirming the Diagram and Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 2014-
2015 for Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6. 
 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 



Engineer’s Report and Assessment 
For Zones 1 - 6 

 

 
 
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Lemoore 
 

Kings County, California 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 
Visalia, California 93278 
 

June 2014 Submitted to: 
 
City Council 
City of Lemoore 
Park and Recreation Department 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, California 93245 

 



© Copyright by Quad Knopf, Inc. 
 Unauthorized use prohibited. 
L140206 

 
 

ENGINEER’S REPORT AND ASSESSMENT 
 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
PUBLIC FACILITES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, 

ZONES 1 - 6 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Mayor – William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem – Lois Wynne 

 
 

Council Members 
 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 

Visalia, CA  93278 
Tel. No:  (559) 733-0440 
Fax No:  (559) 733-7821 

harryt@quadknopf.com 
 
 
 

June 2014 
 

mailto:harryt@quadknopf.com


M E M O 

 

To: City Council, City of Lemoore 

 

From: Harry A. Tow, P.E. 

 Engineer of Work 

 

Date: July 1, 2014 

 

Re: City of Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, Zones 1 - 6 

 

At your July 1 meeting, staff will be presenting the Engineer’s Report for Public Facilities 

Maintenance District No. 1, Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6, and the Resolution of Intention to Levy 

Annual Assessments for Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6. 

 

Mailed notices and ballots are not required.  The proposed annual assessments for each Zone are not 

more than the maximum amounts already approved by a majority of property owners in the Zone in 

property owner ballot proceedings conducted in accordance with Proposition 218 in 2006 (Zone 1), 

in 2007 (Zone 2), in 2008 (Zones 3 and 4), in 2012 (Zone 5), and in 2013 (Zone 6). 

 

The maximum annual assessments approved by the property owners in each Zone include an annual 

increase in the assessments according to the corresponding annual increase in the Employee Cost 

Index for total compensation for State and Local Government Workers (the "Index"). 

 

The levies for fiscal year 2014-2015 differ from Zone to Zone due to varying amounts of landscape 

and other improvements to be maintained, differing ratios between the amount of landscaping and 

other improvements, and the number of housing units responsible for the maintenance.  Listed below 

by Zone are the current 2013-2014 levies and the proposed 2014-2015 levies.  No new improvements 

are proposed for these Zones. 

 

Zone Areas Included 2013-14 2014-15 

 

1 The Landing, Phases 1, 2, and 3 $736.24 $528.64 

2 Liberty, Phases 1 and 2 $1,043.34 $676.56 

3 Silva Estates, Phase 10 $979.48 $709.96 

4 Parkview Estates $522.64 $497.52 

5 East Village Park $1,247.62 $818.58 

6 Heritage Acres $646.36 $444.26 

 

The Council does have the right to unilaterally reduce assessments if they choose, but cannot 

increase the assessments beyond the maximum unless approved by the owners in a new property 

owner ballot proceeding. 

 

The public hearing will be scheduled for the City Council meeting on July 15, 2014.  Notice of the 

hearing will be given by publication of the Resolution of Intention once, at least 10 days before the 





 i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

Engineer's Report 
 Certificates of Filing ...............................................................................................................1 

 Introduction .............................................................................................................................2 

 Engineer of Work Statement ...................................................................................................4 

 

Exhibit A 
 Description of Improvements .................................................................................................5 

 

Exhibit B 
 Engineer's Estimate .................................................................................................................9 

 

Exhibit C 
 Method of Apportionment ....................................................................................................17 

 

Exhibit D 
 Assessment Roll ....................................................................................................................19 

 

Exhibit E 
 Assessment District and Zone Location; Assessment Diagram  ..........................................34 

 

 

 



ENGINEER'S REPORT 





City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  2 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore adopted its General Plan with various elements to provide guidelines 

for orderly development within the community.  The City Council further adopted ordinances and regulations 

governing the development of land providing for the installation and construction of certain lighting, 

landscaping, street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities to enhance the quality of life and to benefit the 

value of property. 

 

The requirement for the installation of lighting, landscaping, streets and appurtenant facilities is a condition of 

development provided for in the City's Subdivision Ordinance and is a requirement for issuance of a permit for 

construction of commercial, residential, and planned unit development.  Lighting, landscaping, streets and 

appurtenant facilities generally includes street lights, trees, shrubs, plants, turf, irrigation systems, local street 

paving, parks and necessary appurtenances including curbs, hardscape, monumentation, fencing located in 

public rights-of-ways, medians, parkways, and/or easements adjacent to public rights-of-ways, in and along 

major thoroughfares, primary and secondary arterials, and local streets as defined in the General Plan's 

Circulation Element. 

 

The installation of street lights, landscaping and appurtenant facilities is the responsibility of the subdivider or 

other development/applicant, triggered by the approval of a tentative subdivision map or other development 

application.  When on any given street of the approved system, a majority of the required landscaping has been 

provided, and it has been determined that landscaping in front of, or adjacent to certain already developed 

properties is required to bridge missing gaps, and/or where the future development or redevelopment of 

existing property is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future, the City Council may deem it appropriate to 

retrofit or fill such gaps. 

 

After installation, it is City policy that the servicing, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the 

lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities in turn become the financial 

responsibility of the properties that specially benefit from the facilities. 

 

The City's lighting, landscape, local street paving and parks maintenance and replacement program is 

administered according to the provisions of Proposition 218 (Article XIIID of the California Constitution), 

Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the Municipal Code, which was added by Ordinance No. 2006-01 of the City of 

Lemoore, the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Sections 53750 through 

53754) and, to the extent applicable, the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets and Highways Code 

Part 2, Division 15). 

 

The City cannot feasibly fund by any other method the maintenance and required periodic replacement of such 

facilities which must be installed with new development.  Therefore, the City has determined that such 

maintenance, operation, repair and replacement should be funded through usage of the assessments on 

properties within the boundaries of Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1.  The property owners in each 

Zone of said District enjoy a special benefit from these facilities within the applicable Zone, over and above the 

general benefits received by these property owners and the public generally, and the assessments levied under 

this District fund such benefit. 

 

Payment of the assessments will be made in the same manner and at the same time in as the ad valorem 

property tax for each lot and parcel. 

 

The annual assessment proceedings will be conducted under Ordinance No. 2006-01, Proposition 218, the 

Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act and, to the extent applicable, the Landscaping and Lighting 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  3 

Act of 1972, Sections 22500 through 22679, Part 2, Division 15, of the Streets and Highways Code of the 

State of California. 

 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore will set the time and place for a public hearing in the Resolution of 

Intention. 

 

Notice of the public hearing will be given by publishing the Resolution of Intention once, at least 10 days 

before the date set for the public hearing. 

 

After reviewing testimony, as well as the projected year's costs for the servicing, maintenance, repair and 

replacement of the facilities in the District as herein described, the City Council will set and levy the 

assessments for Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of the District for fiscal year 2014-2015, which runs between July 1 

and June 30. 

 

This report contains the necessary data required to conduct the proceedings and is submitted to the Clerk of the 

City for filing. 

 





EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Improvements 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  5 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 

(Pursuant to City of Lemoore Ordinance No. 2006-01) 

 

 

Location of Landscaping, Lighting, Streets and Appurtenant Facilities 

 

The locations of lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities in the benefit Zones 

within the Assessment District are depicted on the Assessment Diagram as shown in Exhibit "E" herein which 

Diagram includes the following subdivisions, lots and/or parcels: 

 

Zone 1 

 

Boundaries of Zone 1 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 817, The Landing, Phases 1 and 2, recorded in Volume 23 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

60, Kings County Records.  

 

Tract No. 817, The Landing, Phase 3, recorded in Volume 23 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 92, 

Kings County Records.  

 

Zone 2 

 

Boundaries of Zone 2 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 821, Liberty, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 78, Kings 

County Records.  

 

Tract No. 821, Liberty, Phase 2, recorded in volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 87, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 3 

 

Boundaries of Zone 3 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 838, Silva Estates, Phase 10, recorded in Volume 23 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 36, 

Kings County Records.  

 

Zone 4 

 

Boundaries of Zone 4 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 797, Parkview Estates, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 26, Kings 

County Records.  

 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  6 

Zone 5 

 

Boundaries of Zone 5 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 791, East Village Park, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 71, Kings 

County Records.  

 

Zone 6 

 

Boundaries of Zone 6 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 872, Heritage Acres, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 22 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 96, 

Kings County Records.  

 

Plans and Specifications 

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 1 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated September 7, 2004 are incorporated herein by 

reference.  Said plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of 

approval of the tentative map of Tract 817 by Council Resolution No. 2004-47, September 7, 2004, approving 

the development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2004-03.  

  

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 2 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated June 6, 2006, are incorporated herein by reference.  

Said plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of approval of 

the tentative map of Tract 821 by Council Resolution No. 2005-08, February 15, 2005, approving the 

development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2004-05.  

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 3 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated February 27, 2006, are incorporated herein by 

reference.  The Plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of 

approval of the tentative map of Tract 838 by Council Resolution No. 2005-11, March 15, 2005, approving the 

development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2004-07. 

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 4 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated November 6, 2005, are incorporated herein by 

reference.  The Plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of 

approval of the tentative map of Tract 797 by Council Resolution No. 2004-06, February 17, 2004, approving 

the development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2003-03. 

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 5 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  7 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated May 17, 2006, are incorporated herein by reference.  

The Plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of approval of 

the tentative map of Tract 791 by Council Resolution No. 2011-34, August 16, 2011, approving the 

development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2011-02. 

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 6 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated August 31, 2007, are incorporated herein by 

reference.  The Plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of 

approval of the tentative map of Tract 872 by Council Resolution No. 2006-15, May 2, 2006, approving the 

development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2006-02.  Such detailed Plans have been prepared by the project developer and are on 

file with the City Clerk of the City of Lemoore.   

 

Detailed plans for each Zone have been prepared by the project developer and are on file with the City Clerk of 

the City of Lemoore.   

 

Description of Work  

 

The work includes maintaining, operating, repairing and periodically replacing landscaping, street lights, local 

street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities described as follows: 

 

Plants, shrubbery, trees, turf, irrigation systems, entry monuments, local street maintenance, parks, hardscapes, 

walls, fencing,  street lights and appurtenant facilities in public rights-of-way and easements within or 

appurtenant to the boundaries of the applicable benefit Zone of said District. 

 

The locations of such facilities, as previously described, are within the boundaries of the District, and within or 

appurtenant to the boundaries of Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 as shown on the Assessment Diagram, Exhibit "E" 

herein.  Approved plans for landscaping, lighting, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities 

benefiting Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 are filed with the City Clerk and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

Maintenance means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation 

and servicing of the lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities. Maintenance for 

landscaping means, but is not limited to, the repair, removal or replacement of landscaping and walls providing 

for the life, growth, health and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, 

fertilizing and treating for disease or injury and the removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris and other solid 

waste.  Maintenance for street lights means but is not limited to the furnishing of services and materials for the 

ordinary and usual maintenance and repair of street lights including poles, lens and bulb replacement.  

Maintenance for local street paving means but is not limited to the scheduled sealing, capping, and 

remixing/resurfacing of such paving.  Maintenance for trees means, but is not limited to, the trimming and 

required replacement of trees in development–adjacent or development-contained arterial or collector streets, 

medians or parkways, but not street trees on local streets fronting residences.  Maintenance for parks interior to, 

or determined by the Council to provide special benefit to property in, the applicable benefit Zone includes, but 

is not limited to the continuing maintenance and required and required replacement of park facilities, including 

tot lot and playground equipment, trees, park furniture, turf, landscaping and restrooms.  Maintenance of 

sidewalks, curb and gutter includes the required replacement of such improvements only in or fronting parks or 

tot lots or in arterial or collector street parkways or medians adjacent to or contained in the development. 

 

Operating for landscaping improvements means but is not limited to the furnishing of water and electricity for 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  8 

irrigation of the landscaping and the maintenance of any of the appurtenant facilities.  For lighting facilities, 

operating means but is not limited to furnishing the utility power necessary for energizing of electroliers. 

 

The improvements described herein for which maintenance, operating, repair and periodic replacement for, and 

for which assessments are required to fund such maintenance, servicing and periodic replacement, are those 

required as conditions of approval of the vesting tentative maps of Tract 817, Tract 821, Tract 838, Tract 797, 

Tract 791, and Tract 872: 

 

 The final map of Phase 1 of Tract 817 (39 single-family lots), Phase 2 (32 single-family lots), and 

Phase 3 (41 single-family lots) of which constitute Zone 1 hereunder, were approved by the City 

Council on September 6, 2005, June 27, 2007, and July 19, 2011, respectively. 

 The final map of Phases 1 and 2 of Tract 821, the 242 single-family lots of which constitute Zone 2 

hereunder, was approved by the City Council on June 6, 2006. 

 The final map of Phase 10 of Tract 838, the 74 single-family lots and 5 multi-family lots of which 

constitute Zone 3 hereunder, was approved by the City Council on August 10, 2006. 

 The final map of Tract 797, the 39 single-family lots of which constitute Zone 4 hereunder, was 

approved by the City Council on January 17, 2006. 

 The final map of Tract 791, the 81 single-family lots of which constitute Zone 5 hereunder, was 

approved by the City Council on July 29, 2011. 

 The final map of Tract 872, the 97 single-family lots of which constitute Zone 6 hereunder, was 

approved by the City Council on April 2008. 



EXHIBIT B 
 

Engineer's Estimate 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  9 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE 
 

 

Actual costs of maintenance and required periodic replacement of improvements have been determined by the 

Engineer of Work in consultation with the City staff. Such costs are reflected to the extent currently feasible in 

the assessments for Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6.  It should be noted that, based on these unit cost assessments and 

the improvements to be maintained, serviced and operated in these Zones, the actual costs during the past fiscal 

year and projected for this fiscal year may be greater than the proposed assessments.   

 

Table 1 details unit costs for maintenance and replacement for each Zone. Table 2 shows the total costs to be 

assessed to each Zone.  Table 3 estimates the incidental costs required to process the assessments. 

 

TABLE 1A 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 1 
 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 1, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1. Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 817 (112 lots) 

Item Unit O & M Replacement Annual Cost Total 

Landscape Contract 1L.S. - - $4,300 

Street Lights 36 EA $31.08 $27.79 $2,119 

Trees 50 EA $152.30 $6.66 $7,948 

Turf 13,000 S. F. 0 $.054 $702 

Planter 825 S. F. 0 $.066 $54 

Dump Fee 13,825 S. F. 0 0 0 

Block Wall 770 L. F. 0 $.666 $513 

Water/Electricity 13,825 S. F. $.278 $.0663 $4,760 

Park & Tot Lot 

Tot Lot  1 EA $1,267 $1,068 $2,335 

Turf/Planter 8,832 S. F. 0 $.054 $477 

Block Wall 215 L. F. 0 $.666 $143 

Sidewalk 2,340 S. F. 0 $.0548 $128 

Trees 16 EA $152.30 $6.66 $2,543 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (30-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 210,000 S. F. $.0064 0 $1,344 

Crack Filling 210,000 S. F. $.0081 0 $1,701 

1½” Overlay 210,000 S. F. $.0436 0 $9,156 

Remix 210,000 S. F. $.0874 0 $18,354 

SW/Cross Gutter 26,760 S. F. $.0548 0 $1,466 

C & G 405 L. F. $.3838 0 $155 

   Total $58,198 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 1 $58,198 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for total compensation for State and local 

government workers of 122.2 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December, 2013).* 

 

 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  10 

TABLE 1B 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 2 
 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 2, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1. Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 821 (242 lots) 

Item Unit O & M Replacement Annual Cost Total 

Landscape Contract 1.L.S. - - $21,420 

Street Lights 91 EA $31.08 $27.79 $5,357 

Trees 281 EA $152.30 $6.66 $44,668 

Turf 26,360 S. F. 0 $.054 $1,423 

Planter 31,525 S. F. 0 $.066 $2,081 

Dump Fee 57,885 S. F. 0 0 0 

Block Wall 5,525 L. F. 0 $.666 $3,680 

Water/Electricity 57,885 S. F. $.278 $.0663 $19,930 

Park & Tot Lot 

Tot Lot  1 EA $1,267 $1,068 $2,335 

Turf/Planter 52,475 S. F. 0 $.0369 $1,936 

Block Wall 410 L. F. 0 $.666 $273 

Sidewalk 6,000 S. F. 0 $.0548 $329 

Trees 32 EA $152.30 $6.66 $5,087 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 446,325 S. F. $.0050 0 $2,232 

Crack Filling 446,325 S. F. $.0061 0 $2,723 

1½” Overlay 446,325 S. F. $.0329 0 $14,684 

Remix 446,325 S. F. $.0659 0 $29,413 

SW/Cross Gutter 56,990 S. F. $.0412 0 $2,348 

C & G 5,645 L. F. $.2883 0 $1,627 

   Total $161,546 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 2 $161,546 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for total compensation for State and local 

government workers of 122.2 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2013).* 

 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  11 

TABLE 1C 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 3 
 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 3, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1.  Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 838 (74 lots) 

Item Unit O & M Replacement Annual Cost Total 

Landscape Contract 1 L.S. - - $12,800 

Street Lights 31 EA $31.08 $27.79 $1,825 

Trees 70 EA $152.30 $6.66 $11,127 

Turf 8,590 S. F. 0 $.054 $464 

Planter 17,935 S. F. 0 $.066 $1,184 

Dump Fee 26,525 S. F. 0 0 0 

Block Wall 1,825 L. F. 0 $.666 $1,215 

Water/Electricity 26,525 S. F. $.278 $.0663 $9,133 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 115,870 S. F. $.0050 0 $579 

Crack Filling 115,870 S. F. $.0061 0 $707 

1½” Overlay 115,870 S. F. $.0329 0 $3,812 

Remix 115,870 S. F. $.0659 0 $7,636 

SW/Cross Gutter 14,415 S. F. $.0412 0 $594 

C & G 2,750 L. F. $.2883 0 $792 

   Total $51,868 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 3 $51,868 
Number of parcels (single-family lots) in Phase 10 of Tract 838: 74 

Number of parcels (multi-family lots) in Phase 10 of Tract 838: 5 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and 

Local Government workers of 122.2 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2013).* 

 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  12 

TABLE 1D 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 4 
 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 4, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1.  Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 797 (39 lots) 

Item Unit O & M Replacement Annual Cost Total 

Landscape Contract 1 L.S. - - $4,580 

Street Lights 9 EA $31.08 $27.79 $530 

Trees 31 EA $152.30 $6.66 $4,928 

Turf 1,350 S. F. 0 $.054 $73 

Planter 3,360 S. F. 0 $.066 $222 

Dump Fee 4,710 S. F. 0 0 0 

Block Wall 375 L. F. 0 $.666 $250 

Water/Electricity 4,710 S. F. $.278 $.0663 $1,622 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 59,370 S. F. $.0050 0 $297 

Crack Filling 59,370 S. F. $.0061 0 $362 

1½” Overlay 59,370 S. F. $.0329 0 $1,953 

Remix 59,370 S. F. $.0659 0 $3,912 

SW/Cross Gutter 3,860 S. F. $.0412 0 $159 

C & G 565 L. F. $.2883 0 $163 

   Total $19,051 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 4 $19,051 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and 

Local Government workers of 122.2 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2013).* 

 

 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  13 

TABLE 1E 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 5 
 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 5, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1.  Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 791 (81 lots) 

 

Item 

 

Unit 

 

O & M 

 

Replacement 

Annual Cost 

Total 

Landscape Contract 1 L.S. - - $14,855 

Street Lights 27 EA $31.08 $27.79 $1,589 

Trees 33 EA $152.30 $6.66 $5,246 

Planter 14,775 S. F. 0 $.066 $975 

Dump Fee 14,775 S. F. 0 0 0 

Block Wall 1,090 L. F. 0 $.666 $726 

Water/Electricity 14,775 S. F. $.278 $.0663 $5,087 

Park & Tot Lot 

Tot Lot  1 EA $1,267 $1,068 $2,335 

Water Feature 1 EA $416 $312 $728 

Turf/Planter 38,070 S.F. 0 $.0369 $1,405 

Block Wall 525 L. F. 0 $.666 $350 

Sidewalk/Hardscape 6,285 S. F. 0 $.0548 $344 

Trees 38 EA $152.30 $6.66 $6,040 

Dump Fee 38,070 S.F. 0 0 0 

Water/Electricity 

For Turf 

38,070 S.F. $.278 $.0663 $13,108 

Water For Water 

Feature 

1 EA $1,869 0 $1,869 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 93,680 S. F. $.0050 0 $468 

Crack Filling 93,680 S. F. $.0061 0 $571 

1½” Overlay 93,680 S. F. $.0329 0 $3,082 

Remix 93,680 S. F. $.0659 0 $6,174 

Arterial/Collector Streets 

SW/Cross Gutter 5,465 S. F. $.0412 0 $225 

C & G 1,380 L. F. $.2883 0 $398 

   Total $65,575 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 5 $65,575 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and 

Local Government workers of 122.2 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2013).  

 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  14 

TABLE 1F 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 6 

 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 6, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1.  Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 872 (97 lots) 

 

Item 

 

Unit 

 

O & M 

 

Replacement 

Annual Cost 

Total 

Landscape Contract 1 L.S. - - $4,000 

Street Lights 27 EA $31.08 $27.79 $1,589 

Trees 38 EA $152.30 $6.66 $6,040 

Planter 11,138 S. F. 0 $.066 $735 

Dump Fee 11,138 S. F. 0 0 0 

Water/Electricity 11,138 S. F. $278 $.663 $3,835 

Canal Interceptor 

Interceptor Trench 1,420 L. F. 0 $.10 $142 

Interceptor Lift Station 1 EA $160.00 $40.00 $200 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 228,869 S. F. $.0050 0 $1,144 

Crack Filling 228,869 S. F. $.0061 0 $1,396 

1½” Overlay 228,869 S. F. $.0329 0 $7,530 

Remix 228,869 S. F. $.0659 0 $15,082 

Fortune Street (south side) 

SW/Cross Gutter 4,748 S. F. $.0412 0 $196 

C & G 1,145 L. F. $.2883 0 $330 

   Total $42,219
(1) 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 6 $42,219
(1) 

(1)Number of parcels (single-family lots) in Phase 1 of Tract 872 (Zone 6): 33 

Total number of parcels (single-family lots) in Tract 872: 97 

Only 33 of the 97 lots have been constructed. 

Therefore, proportionate share of costs assessable to Zone 6 is (33/97) x $42,219 = $14,363.  These proportionate share costs are less 

than those which would appertain to Zone 6 if it were assessed for the required facilities within and appurtenant thereto if the balance of 

Tract 872 is not constructed, because the total cost of the assessment would be allocated to the 33 built lots only. 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and 

Local Government workers of 122.2 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2013).* 

                                                                 
* The 12-month change in the index from December 2012 to December 2013 was +1.9%.  Such percentage increase 

does not apply to the landscape contract. 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  15 

TABLE 2 

ESTIMATED COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

2014-2015 
 

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $58,198.00  

1 112 112 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 785.68  

   3. Noticing 112.00  

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 112.00  
        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $59,207.68 
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 1   $59,207.68 
        

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $161,546.00  

2 242 242 2. Incidental Costs( See Table 3) 1,697.52  

   3. Noticing 242.00   

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 242.00   
        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $163,727.52 
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 2   $163,727.52 
        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $51,868.00    

3 74 74 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 521.04  

   3. Noticing 74.00   

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 74.00   
        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $52,537.04 
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 3   $52,537.04 
        

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $19,051.00  

4 39 39 2. Incidental Costs( See Table 3) 274.28  

   3. Noticing 39.00   

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 39.00   
        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $19,403.28 
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 4   $19,403.28 
        

        

Zone EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $65,575.00  

5 81 81 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 567.98  

   3. Noticing 81.00  

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 81.00  
                

   Total Costs to Assessment  $66,304.98 
        

   2014-15 Assessment – Zone 5  $66,304.98 
        

        

Zone EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $14,363  

6 33 33 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 231.58  

   3. Noticing 33.00  

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 33.00  

        

   Total Costs to Assessment   $14,660.58 
        

   2014-15 Assessment – Zone 6  $14,660.58 
        

        

TOTAL EDU Lots      

 581 581      



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  16 

TABLE 3 

ESTIMATED INCIDENTAL COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

APRIL 2014 THROUGH MARCH 2015 
 

 Estimated Cost 
Engineering Fees, Legal Fees, and 

City Administrative Costs 
$4,078.08 

  
 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  17 

EXHIBIT C 

RATE AND METHOD OF ASSESSMENT 
 

 

General Discussion 

 

The improvements described in Exhibit “A” are provided for the particular, distinct special benefit directly 

received by each lot or parcel in each benefit Zone of the District, above the benefit received by these lots and 

parcels or the public generally.  Each lot or parcel has been determined to directly and specially benefit 

proportionally by Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).   

 

City noticing and County administrative expenses will be apportioned to each lot or parcel as one unit of 

assessment for each lot/parcel. 

 

The annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs of the facilities and improvements 

benefiting Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of the District described in Exhibit “A” of this Report, are estimated in 

Exhibit “B.” 

 

The City is unable to provide funds for such maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the 

described facilities and improvements.  The facilities and improvements and their maintenance, operation, 

repair and periodic replacement provide equally for each lot and parcel in the District essential safety, lighting, 

property access, security and aesthetically-pleasing public right-of-way landscaping not available to the general 

community.  The value, accessibility, appearance, safety and use of each lot and parcel in the District are 

significantly and directly enhanced by regular maintenance and periodic replacement of these facilities and 

improvements.  These are special benefits distinct and particular to the lots and parcels in this District and not 

realized by the general community.  Therefore, annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement 

of the described facilities and improvements, and the funding thereof, provide direct special benefits to the lots 

and parcels in each Zone of the District, over and above general benefits conferred on real property in the Zone 

or to the public at large. 

 

Moreover, the Engineer has determined that each individual lot and parcel in each Zone in the District 

established by a recorded final subdivision is benefited equally by such annual maintenance and periodic 

replacement.  Each assessed lot and parcel contains, or will contain in accord with the City’s development 

approvals, a single dwelling unit.  Each lot and parcel, within a particular Zone, therefore derives the same 

proportionate special benefit from the assessed facilities and improvements and their regular maintenance and 

periodic replacement. 

 

Accordingly, the individual annual assessment for each lot and parcel in each Zone in the District (the 

“Maximum Annual Assessment”) is determined by dividing the total estimated costs of annual maintenance 

and replacement and related notice and processing fees (for fiscal year 2014-15, set forth in Exhibit “B”) by the 

total number of lots and parcels in the Zone.  The costs of such maintenance and periodic replacement will 

increase each year.  In order to assure continued adequacy of the financing of such costs and, therefore, the 

continued special benefits to the lots and parcels in the District, the Maximum Annual Assessment shall be 

comparably and automatically increased each fiscal year to cover the maintenance and replacement cost 

increases.  The annual increase in the Maximum Annual Assessment shall be in accordance with increases in 

the Employment Cost Index for total compensation for State and Local Government Workers (the “Index”), 

published quarterly by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.  Increases in the Index will track comparably to 

increases in the costs of annual maintenance and periodic replacement of the described facilities and 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6  18 

improvements, since the majority of the maintenance and replacement work is and will be done by City 

employees. 

 

Therefore, the annual assessment each fiscal year on each lot and parcel in the District shall be determined and 

levied according to the above rate and methodology up to, but not more than, the Maximum Annual 

Assessment as increased for that fiscal year by the Index.  The actual annual assessments may be less than or 

up to the Maximum Annual Assessment, as so increased, but cannot exceed the Maximum Annual 

Assessment, as so increased, without approval in a property owner ballot proceeding under Proposition 218 

and the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act.  This methodology for determining Maximum Annual 

Assessments, including annual increases according to the Index, was approved by a majority of property 

owners at a duly noticed and conducted property owner ballot proceeding in 2006 for Zone 1, in 2007 for 

Zone 2, in 2008 for Zones 3 and 4, 2012 for Zone 5, and 2013 for Zone 6.  Therefore, no additional property 

ballot proceeding will be required to increase the annual assessments according to the Index, up to the 

Maximum Annual Assessment. 

 

The actual assessment and Maximum Annual Assessment on each lot and parcel in Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 of 

the District for fiscal year 2014-15 is set forth in Exhibit “D” of this Report.  The Maximum Annual 

Assessments proposed within Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 are proposed to increase from the previous fiscal year.  

 

Hearing Dates 

 

A hearing will be held at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on July 15, 2014.  Individuals will be 

allowed to give testimony.  Final assessments will be amended or adopted on Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 at this 

meeting. The County shall be notified of the final assessment amounts. 

 



EXHIBIT D 
 

Assessment Roll 



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

1 023-600-001-000 $528.64

1 023-600-002-000 528.64

1 023-600-003-000 528.64

1 023-600-004-000 528.64

1 023-600-005-000 528.64

1 023-600-006-000 $528.64

1 023-600-007-000 528.64

1 023-600-008-000 528.64

1 023-600-009-000 528.64

1 023-600-012-000 528.64

1 023-600-013-000 $528.64

1 023-600-014-000 528.64

1 023-600-015-000 528.64

1 023-600-016-000 528.64

1 023-600-017-000 528.64

1 023-600-018-000 $528.64

1 023-600-019-000 528.64

1 023-600-020-000 528.64

1 023-600-021-000 528.64

1 023-600-022-000 528.64

1 023-600-023-000 $528.64

1 023-600-024-000 528.64

1 023-600-025-000 528.64

1 023-600-026-000 528.64

1 023-600-027-000 528.64

1 023-600-028-000 $528.64

1 023-600-029-000 528.64

1 023-600-030-000 528.64

1 023-600-031-000 528.64

1 023-600-032-000 528.64

1 023-600-033-000 $528.64

1 023-600-034-000 528.64

1 023-600-035-000 528.64

1 023-600-036-000 528.64

1 023-600-037-000 528.64

1 023-600-038-000 $528.64

1 023-600-039-000 528.64

1 023-600-040-000 528.64

1 023-600-041-000 528.64

1 023-600-043-000 528.64

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

19



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

1 023-600-044-000 $528.64

1 023-600-045-000 528.64

1 023-600-046-000 528.64

1 023-600-047-000 528.64

1 023-600-048-000 528.64

1 023-600-049-000 $528.64

1 023-600-050-000 528.64

1 023-600-051-000 528.64

1 023-600-052-000 528.64

1 023-600-053-000 528.64

1 023-600-054-000 $528.64

1 023-600-055-000 528.64

1 023-600-056-000 528.64

1 023-600-057-000 528.64

1 023-600-058-000 528.64

1 023-600-059-000 $528.64

1 023-600-060-000 528.64

1 023-600-061-000 528.64

1 023-600-062-000 528.64

1 023-600-063-000 528.64

1 023-600-064-000 $528.64

1 023-600-065-000 528.64

1 023-600-066-000 528.64

1 023-600-067-000 528.64

1 023-600-068-000 528.64

1 023-600-069-000 $528.64

1 023-600-070-000 528.64

1 023-600-071-000 528.64

1 023-600-072-000 528.64

1 023-600-073-000 528.64

1 023-600-074-000 $528.64

1 023-620-001-000 528.64

1 023-620-002-000 528.64

1 023-620-003-000 528.64

1 023-620-004-000 528.64

1 023-620-005-000 $528.64

1 023-620-006-000 528.64

1 023-620-007-000 528.64

1 023-620-008-000 528.64

1 023-620-009-000 528.64

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

20



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

1 023-620-010-000 $528.64

1 023-620-011-000 528.64

1 023-620-012-000 528.64

1 023-620-013-000 528.64

1 023-620-014-000 528.64

1 023-620-015-000 $528.64

1 023-620-016-000 528.64

1 023-620-017-000 528.64

1 023-620-019-000 528.64

1 023-620-020-000 528.64

1 023-620-021-000 $528.64

1 023-620-022-000 528.64

1 023-620-023-000 528.64

1 023-620-024-000 528.64

1 023-620-025-000 528.64

1 023-620-026-000 $528.64

1 023-620-027-000 528.64

1 023-620-028-000 528.64

1 023-620-029-000 528.64

1 023-620-030-000 528.64

1 023-620-031-000 $528.64

1 023-620-032-000 528.64

1 023-620-033-000 528.64

1 023-620-034-000 528.64

1 023-620-035-000 528.64

1 023-620-036-000 $528.64

1 023-620-037-000 528.64

1 023-620-038-000 528.64

1 023-620-039-000 528.64

1 023-620-040-000 528.64

1 023-620-041-000 $528.64

1 023-620-042-000 528.64

Total Assessment Zone 1 $59,207.68

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

21



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-780-001-000 $676.56

2 021-780-002-000 676.56

2 021-780-003-000 676.56

2 021-780-004-000 676.56

2 021-780-005-000 676.56

2 021-780-006-000 $676.56

2 021-780-007-000 676.56

2 021-780-008-000 676.56

2 021-780-009-000 676.56

2 021-780-010-000 676.56

2 021-780-011-000 $676.56

2 021-780-012-000 676.56

2 021-780-013-000 676.56

2 021-780-014-000 676.56

2 021-780-015-000 676.56

2 021-780-016-000 $676.56

2 021-780-018-000 676.56

2 021-780-019-000 676.56

2 021-780-020-000 676.56

2 021-780-021-000 676.56

2 021-780-022-000 $676.56

2 021-780-023-000 676.56

2 021-780-024-000 676.56

2 021-780-025-000 676.56

2 021-780-026-000 676.56

2 021-780-027-000 $676.56

2 021-780-028-000 676.56

2 021-780-029-000 676.56

2 021-780-030-000 676.56

2 021-780-031-000 676.56

2 021-780-032-000 $676.56

2 021-780-033-000 676.56

2 021-780-035-000 676.56

2 021-780-036-000 676.56

2 021-780-037-000 676.56

2 021-780-038-000 $676.56

2 021-780-039-000 676.56

2 021-780-040-000 676.56

2 021-780-041-000 676.56

2 021-780-042-000 676.56

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

22



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-780-043-000 $676.56

2 021-780-044-000 676.56

2 021-780-045-000 676.56

2 021-780-046-000 676.56

2 021-780-047-000 676.56

2 021-780-048-000 $676.56

2 021-780-049-000 676.56

2 021-780-050-000 676.56

2 021-780-051-000 676.56

2 021-780-052-000 676.56

2 021-780-054-000 $676.56

2 021-780-055-000 676.56

2 021-780-056-000 676.56

2 021-780-057-000 676.56

2 021-780-058-000 676.56

2 021-780-059-000 $676.56

2 021-780-060-000 676.56

2 021-780-061-000 676.56

2 021-780-062-000 676.56

2 021-780-063-000 676.56

2 021-780-064-000 $676.56

2 021-780-065-000 676.56

2 021-780-066-000 676.56

2 021-780-068-000 676.56

2 021-780-069-000 676.56

2 021-780-070-000 $676.56

2 021-780-071-000 676.56

2 021-780-072-000 676.56

2 021-780-073-000 676.56

2 021-780-074-000 676.56

2 021-780-075-000 $676.56

2 021-780-076-000 676.56

2 021-780-077-000 676.56

2 021-780-078-000 676.56

2 021-780-079-000 676.56

2 021-780-080-000 $676.56

2 021-790-001-000 676.56

2 021-790-002-000 676.56

2 021-790-003-000 676.56

2 021-790-004-000 676.56

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

23



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-790-005-000 $676.56

2 021-790-006-000 676.56

2 021-790-007-000 676.56

2 021-790-008-000 676.56

2 021-790-009-000 676.56

2 021-790-010-000 $676.56

2 021-790-011-000 676.56

2 021-790-012-000 676.56

2 021-790-013-000 676.56

2 021-790-014-000 676.56

2 021-790-015-000 $676.56

2 021-790-016-000 676.56

2 021-790-017-000 676.56

2 021-790-018-000 676.56

2 021-790-019-000 676.56

2 021-790-021-000 $676.56

2 021-790-022-000 676.56

2 021-790-023-000 676.56

2 021-790-024-000 676.56

2 021-790-025-000 676.56

2 021-790-026-000 $676.56

2 021-790-027-000 676.56

2 021-790-028-000 676.56

2 021-790-029-000 676.56

2 021-790-030-000 676.56

2 021-790-031-000 $676.56

2 021-790-032-000 676.56

2 021-790-035-000 676.56

2 021-790-036-000 676.56

2 021-790-037-000 676.56

2 021-790-038-000 $676.56

2 021-790-039-000 676.56

2 021-790-040-000 676.56

2 021-790-041-000 676.56

2 021-790-042-000 676.56

2 021-790-043-000 $676.56

2 021-790-044-000 676.56

2 021-790-045-000 676.56

2 021-790-046-000 676.56

2 021-790-047-000 676.56

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

24



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-790-048-000 $676.56

2 021-790-049-000 676.56

2 021-790-050-000 676.56

2 021-790-051-000 676.56

2 021-790-052-000 676.56

2 021-790-053-000 $676.56

2 021-790-054-000 676.56

2 021-790-055-000 676.56

2 021-790-056-000 676.56

2 021-790-057-000 676.56

2 021-790-058-000 $676.56

2 021-790-059-000 676.56

2 021-790-060-000 676.56

2 021-790-061-000 676.56

2 021-790-062-000 676.56

2 021-790-064-000 $676.56

2 021-790-065-000 676.56

2 021-790-066-000 676.56

2 021-790-067-000 676.56

2 021-790-068-000 676.56

2 021-790-069-000 $676.56

2 021-790-070-000 676.56

2 021-790-071-000 676.56

2 021-790-072-000 676.56

2 021-790-073-000 676.56

2 021-790-074-000 $676.56

2 021-790-075-000 676.56

2 021-800-001-000 676.56

2 021-800-002-000 676.56

2 021-800-003-000 676.56

2 021-800-004-000 $676.56

2 021-800-005-000 676.56

2 021-800-006-000 676.56

2 021-800-007-000 676.56

2 021-800-008-000 676.56

2 021-800-009-000 $676.56

2 021-800-010-000 676.56

2 021-800-011-000 676.56

2 021-800-012-000 676.56

2 021-800-013-000 676.56

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

25



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-800-014-000 $676.56

2 021-800-015-000 676.56

2 021-800-016-000 676.56

2 021-800-017-000 676.56

2 021-800-018-000 676.56

2 021-800-019-000 $676.56

2 021-800-020-000 676.56

2 021-800-021-000 676.56

2 021-800-022-000 676.56

2 021-800-023-000 676.56

2 021-800-024-000 $676.56

2 021-800-025-000 676.56

2 021-800-026-000 676.56

2 021-800-027-000 676.56

2 021-800-028-000 676.56

2 021-800-029-000 $676.56

2 021-800-030-000 676.56

2 021-800-031-000 676.56

2 021-800-032-000 676.56

2 021-800-033-000 676.56

2 021-800-034-000 $676.56

2 021-800-035-000 676.56

2 021-800-036-000 676.56

2 021-800-037-000 676.56

2 021-800-038-000 676.56

2 021-800-039-000 $676.56

2 021-800-040-000 676.56

2 021-800-041-000 676.56

2 021-800-042-000 676.56

2 021-800-043-000 676.56

2 021-800-044-000 $676.56

2 021-800-045-000 676.56

2 021-800-046-000 676.56

2 021-800-047-000 676.56

2 021-800-048-000 676.56

2 021-800-049-000 $676.56

2 021-800-050-000 676.56

2 021-800-051-000 676.56

2 021-800-052-000 676.56

2 021-800-053-000 676.56

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

26



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-800-054-000 $676.56

2 021-800-055-000 676.56

2 021-800-056-000 676.56

2 021-800-057-000 676.56

2 021-800-058-000 676.56

2 021-800-059-000 $676.56

2 021-800-060-000 676.56

2 021-800-061-000 676.56

2 021-800-062-000 676.56

2 021-800-063-000 676.56

2 021-800-064-000 $676.56

2 021-800-065-000 676.56

2 021-800-066-000 676.56

2 021-800-067-000 676.56

2 021-800-068-000 676.56

2 021-800-069-000 $676.56

2 021-800-070-000 676.56

2 021-810-001-000 676.56

2 021-810-002-000 676.56

2 021-810-003-000 676.56

2 021-810-004-000 $676.56

2 021-810-005-000 676.56

2 021-810-007-000 676.56

2 021-810-008-000 676.56

2 021-810-009-000 676.56

2 021-810-010-000 $676.56

2 021-810-011-000 676.56

2 021-810-012-000 676.56

2 021-810-013-000 676.56

2 021-810-014-000 676.56

2 021-810-016-000 $676.56

2 021-810-017-000 676.56

2 021-810-018-000 676.56

2 021-810-019-000 676.56

2 021-810-020-000 676.56

2 021-810-021-000 $676.56

2 021-810-022-000 676.56

2 021-810-023-000 676.56

2 021-810-024-000 676.56

2 021-810-025-000 676.56

2 021-810-026-000 $676.56

2 021-810-027-000 676.56

Total Assessment Zone 2 $163,727.52

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

27



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

3 023-360-008-000 $709.96

3 023-360-009-000 709.96

3 023-360-010-000 709.96

3 023-360-011-000 709.96

3 023-360-012-000 709.96

3 023-360-013-000 $709.96

3 023-360-014-000 709.96

3 023-360-015-000 709.96

3 023-360-016-000 709.96

3 023-360-017-000 709.96

3 023-360-018-000 $709.96

3 023-360-019-000 709.96

3 023-360-020-000 709.96

3 023-360-021-000 709.96

3 023-360-022-000 709.96

3 023-360-023-000 $709.96

3 023-360-024-000 709.96

3 023-360-025-000 709.96

3 023-360-026-000 709.96

3 023-360-027-000 709.96

3 023-360-028-000 $709.96

3 023-360-029-000 709.96

3 023-360-030-000 709.96

3 023-360-031-000 709.96

3 023-360-032-000 709.96

3 023-360-033-000 $709.96

3 023-360-034-000 709.96

3 023-360-035-000 709.96

3 023-360-036-000 709.96

3 023-360-037-000 709.96

3 023-360-043-000 $709.96

3 023-360-044-000 709.96

3 023-360-045-000 709.96

3 023-360-046-000 709.96

3 023-360-047-000 709.96

3 023-360-048-000 $709.96

3 023-360-049-000 709.96

3 023-360-050-000 709.96

3 023-360-051-000 709.96

3 023-360-052-000 709.96

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

28



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

3 023-360-053-000 $709.96

3 023-360-054-000 709.96

3 023-360-055-000 709.96

3 023-360-056-000 709.96

3 023-360-057-000 709.96

3 023-360-058-000 $709.96

3 023-360-059-000 709.96

3 023-360-060-000 709.96

3 023-360-061-000 709.96

3 023-360-062-000 709.96

3 023-360-063-000 $709.96

3 023-360-064-000 709.96

3 023-360-065-000 709.96

3 023-360-066-000 709.96

3 023-360-067-000 709.96

3 023-360-068-000 $709.96

3 023-360-069-000 709.96

3 023-360-070-000 709.96

3 023-360-071-000 709.96

3 023-360-072-000 709.96

3 023-360-073-000 $709.96

3 023-360-074-000 709.96

3 023-360-075-000 709.96

3 023-360-076-000 709.96

3 023-360-077-000 709.96

3 023-360-078-000 $709.96

3 023-360-079-000 709.96

3 023-360-080-000 709.96

3 023-360-081-000 709.96

3 023-360-082-000 709.96

3 023-360-083-000 $709.96

3 023-360-084-000 709.96

3 023-360-085-000 709.96

3 023-360-086-000 709.96

Total Assessment Zone 3 $52,537.04

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

29



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

4 021-260-004-000 $497.52

4 021-260-005-000 497.52

4 021-260-006-000 497.52

4 021-260-007-000 497.52

4 021-260-008-000 497.52

4 021-260-009-000 $497.52

4 021-260-010-000 497.52

4 021-260-011-000 497.52

4 021-260-012-000 497.52

4 021-260-013-000 497.52

4 021-260-014-000 $497.52

4 021-260-015-000 497.52

4 021-260-016-000 497.52

4 021-260-017-000 497.52

4 021-260-018-000 497.52

4 021-260-019-000 $497.52

4 021-260-020-000 497.52

4 021-260-021-000 497.52

4 021-260-022-000 497.52

4 021-260-023-000 497.52

4 021-260-024-000 $497.52

4 021-260-025-000 497.52

4 021-260-026-000 497.52

4 021-260-027-000 497.52

4 021-260-028-000 497.52

4 021-260-029-000 $497.52

4 021-260-030-000 497.52

4 021-260-031-000 497.52

4 021-260-032-000 497.52

4 021-260-033-000 497.52

4 021-260-034-000 $497.52

4 021-260-035-000 497.52

4 021-260-036-000 497.52

4 021-260-037-000 497.52

4 021-260-038-000 497.52

4 021-260-039-000 $497.52

4 021-260-040-000 497.52

4 021-041-041-000 497.52

4 021-260-042-000 497.52

Total Assessment Zone 4 $19,403.28

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

30



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

5 023-610-001-000 $818.58

5 023-610-002-000 818.58

5 023-610-003-000 818.58

5 023-610-004-000 818.58

5 023-610-005-000 818.58

5 023-610-006-000 $818.58

5 023-610-007-000 818.58

5 023-610-008-000 818.58

5 023-610-009-000 818.58

5 023-610-010-000 818.58

5 023-610-011-000 $818.58

5 023-610-012-000 818.58

5 023-610-013-000 818.58

5 023-610-014-000 818.58

5 023-610-015-000 818.58

5 023-610-016-000 $818.58

5 023-610-017-000 818.58

5 023-610-018-000 818.58

5 023-610-019-000 818.58

5 023-610-020-000 818.58

5 023-610-021-000 $818.58

5 023-610-022-000 818.58

5 023-610-023-000 818.58

5 023-610-024-000 818.58

5 023-610-025-000 818.58

5 023-610-026-000 $818.58

5 023-610-093-000 818.58

5 023-610-092-000 818.58

5 023-610-091-000 818.58

5 023-610-090-000 818.58

5 023-610-033-000 $818.58

5 023-610-034-000 818.58

5 023-610-035-000 818.58

5 023-610-036-000 818.58

5 023-610-037-000 818.58

5 023-610-038-000 $818.58

5 023-610-039-000 818.58

5 023-610-040-000 818.58

5 023-610-041-000 818.58

5 023-610-042-000 818.58

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

31



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

5 023-610-097-000 $818.58

5 023-610-044-000 818.58

5 023-610-045-000 818.58

5 023-610-046-000 818.58

5 023-610-047-000 818.58

5 023-610-048-000 $818.58

5 023-610-049-000 818.58

5 023-610-050-000 818.58

5 023-061-051-000 818.58

5 023-610-052-000 818.58

5 023-610-053-000 $818.58

5 023-610-054-000 818.58

5 023-610-055-000 818.58

5 023-610-056-000 818.58

5 023-610-057-000 818.58

5 023-610-058-000 $818.58

5 023-610-059-000 818.58

5 023-610-060-000 818.58

5 023-610-061-000 818.58

5 023-610-062-000 818.58

5 023-610-063-000 $818.58

5 023-610-065-000 818.58

5 023-610-066-000 818.58

5 023-610-067-000 818.58

5 023-610-068-000 818.58

5 023-610-069-000 $818.58

5 023-610-070-000 818.58

5 023-610-071-000 818.58

5 023-610-072-000 818.58

5 023-610-073-000 818.58

5 023-610-074-000 $818.58

5 023-610-075-000 818.58

5 023-610-076-000 818.58

5 023-610-077-000 818.58

5 023-610-078-000 818.58

5 023-610-079-000 $818.58

5 023-610-080-000 818.58

5 023-610-081-000 818.58

5 023-610-082-000 818.58

5 023-610-083-000 818.58

5 023-610-084-000 $818.58

Total Assessment Zone 5 $66,304.98

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

32



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

6 021-820-001-000 $444.26

6 021-820-002-000 444.26

6 021-820-003-000 444.26

6 021-820-004-000 444.26

6 021-820-005-000 444.26

6 021-820-006-000 $444.26

6 021-820-007-000 444.26

6 021-820-008-000 444.26

6 021-820-009-000 444.26

6 021-820-010-000 444.26

6 021-820-011-000 $444.26

6 021-820-012-000 444.26

6 021-820-013-000 444.26

6 021-820-014-000 444.26

6 021-820-015-000 444.26

6 021-820-016-000 $444.26

6 021-820-017-000 444.26

6 021-820-018-000 444.26

6 021-820-019-000 444.26

6 021-820-020-000 444.26

6 021-820-021-000 $444.26

6 021-820-022-000 444.26

6 021-820-023-000 444.26

6 021-820-024-000 444.26

6 021-820-025-000 444.26

6 021-820-026-000 $444.26

6 021-820-027-000 444.26

6 021-820-028-000 444.26

6 021-820-029-000 444.26

6 021-820-030-000 444.26

6 021-820-031-000 $444.26

6 021-820-032-000 444.26

6 021-820-033-000 444.26

Total Assessment Zone 6 $14,660.58

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 6

June 2014

33



EXHIBIT E 
 

Assessment District and Zone Location 
Assessment Diagram 

 



P.O. BOX 3699
VISALIA CA 93278
TEL: (559) 733-0440
FAX: (559) 733-7821

5110 W. CYPRESS AVENUE

















Zone 5 

 



Zone 6 

 



 
 

 

 

 

Engineering / Surveying 

Planning 

Landscape Architecture 

Biology 

Land Development 

 

 
 

901 East Main Street 
Visalia, California 93292 

(559) 733-0440 
 

6051 North Fresno Street, Suite 200 
Fresno, California 93710 

(559) 449-2400 

3400 Douglas Boulevard, Suite 190 
Roseville, California 95661 

(916) 784-7823 
 

5080 California Avenue, Suite 220 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

(661) 616-2600 
 

Fremming, Parson & Pecchenino, a Quad Knopf Company 
2816 Park Avenue 

Merced, California 95348 
(559) 723-2066,  

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-19 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 

CONFIRMING THE DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENT OF ANNUAL LEVY 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2014-2015 FOR PUBLIC FACILITIES 

MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 AND 6 
 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the Lemoore Municipal Code, as enacted by 
Ordinance No. 2006-01 (the “Ordinance”), and according to the procedures in the Proposition 218 
Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Sections 53750-53753.5, inclusive) (the 
“Implementation Act”), Article XIIID of the California Constitution (“Proposition 218”) and, to the 
extent not inconsistent with the Ordinance, the procedures in the State Landscaping and Lighting Act of 
1972 (Chapter 2 of Part of Division 15 of the California Streets & Highways Code) (the “Landscaping & 
Lighting Act”), the City Council of the City of Lemoore declared its intention to form, conducted all 
proceedings to form and did form Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of Lemoore 
(the “District”), and has thereafter levied and collected the first  annual assessment for maintenance, 
operation, repair and periodic replacement of certain landscaping, street lights, local street paving, parks 
and appurtenant facilities and improvements within the District (the “Services) and which provide 
particular, distinct special benefits to the various lots and parcels assessed over and above general benefits 
conferred on such lots and parcels and the public at large; and 
  
 WHEREAS, at the direction of the City Council, the City Engineer has prepared and filed with 
the City Clerk a report entitled “Engineer’s Report and Assessment for Zones 1 - 6 of Public Facilities 
Maintenance District No. 1, dated June, 2014” (the “Engineer’s Report”), to which reference is hereby 
made, which Engineer’s Report contains a description of the general nature, location and extent of the 
existing facilities and improvements within Zones 1 – 6 of the District, an estimate of the costs of the 
maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the facilities and improvements (the Services), 
a diagram showing the boundaries of the District and Zones 1 – 6 therein, the lines and dimensions of 
each lot or parcel of land with Zones 1 – 6 and the descriptions of and proposed assessments on the 
assessable lots and parcels of land within Zones 1 – 6; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at a regular meeting on July 1, 2014, the City Council declared its intention to levy 
and collect the annual assessments for the costs of providing the Services within Zones 1 – 6 for the 2014-
2105 fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amount of the assessments proposed in the Engineer’s Report for Zones 1 – 6 of 
the District for the 2014-2015 fiscal year are proposed to decrease from the previous fiscal year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proceeds of the assessments will be used exclusively to finance the expenses for 
providing the Services for the 2014-2015 fiscal year, which Services will provide particular, distinct 
special benefits to the various lots and parcels in Zones 1 – 6 and above the general benefits conferred on 
such lots and parcels and the public at large; and 
 



WHEREAS, no substantial changes are proposed to be made in the existing facilities and 
improvements, and no new facilities or improvements are proposed in Zones 1 – 6 in fiscal year 2014-
2015; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amount of the assessment on each lot or parcel in Zones 1 – 6 is proportional to 
and no greater than the special benefits conferred on such lot or parcel from the Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after notice of the hearing was published pursuant to Streets & Highways Code 
Section 22626(a) and Government Code Section 6061, the City Council conducted a public hearing and 
heard and considered all objections and protests to the proposed assessments; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that there is not a majority protest to the proposed 
annual assessments by property owners in Zones 1 – 6; 
 
 THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemoore resolves, finds and determines as 
follows: 
 

1. The recitals in this resolution, above, are true and correct. 
 

2. The territory within Zones 1 – 6 of the District, whose boundaries are set forth in the Engineer’s 
Report, will be the territory particularly, distinctly and specially benefited, over and above the 
general benefits conferred on such territory and the public at large, from the Services described in 
the Engineer’s Report. 
 

3. The hearing on the annual levy of assessments in Zones 1 – 6 of the District was noticed and held 
in accordance with law. 
 

4. The Engineer’s Report, including the diagram of Zones 1 – 6 and the assessment of the estimated 
costs of Services contained in the Engineer’s Report, and each and every part of the Engineer’s 
Report, is finally adopted, confirmed and approved. 
 

5. The assessment diagram showing Zones 1 – 6 and the lots and parcels of land therein, all as 
contained in the Engineer’s Report, is finally approved and confirmed as the diagram of the lots 
and parcels within Zones 1 – 6 to be assessed to pay the costs of the Services described in the 
Engineer’s Report. 
 

6. The assessment of the total amount of the costs and the individual assessments thereof on the lots 
and parcels within Zones 1 – 6 in proportion to the special benefits to be conferred on each such 
lot or parcel from the Services, and of the expenses incidental thereto, as set forth in the 
Engineer’s Report, is finally approved and confirmed as the annual assessment for Zones 1 – 6 
for the 2014-2015 fiscal year to pay such costs. 
 

7. The levy of the annual assessments within Zones 1 – 6 of the District for fiscal year 2014-2015, 
as described in the Engineer’s Report, is hereby ordered. 



 
8. The City Clerk is authorized and directed to file the diagram of Zones 1 – 6 of the District and 

assessments therein, or a certified copy thereof, as approved and confirmed by the Council and 
containing all information and statements required by Streets & Highways Code Section 3114, 
with the Kings County Auditor immediately after adoption of this resolution. 
 

9. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 

Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held on the 15th 
day of July 2014, by the following vote: 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 

 
       APPROVED: 
 
       ____________________________ 
       William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

______________________________ 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         ) ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 
 I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing Resolution 
of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting held on 
July 15, 2014. 
 
DATED:  July 15, 2014 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 
 



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Public Works  

Department 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3-4 
To: Lemoore City Council  
From: David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works/Planning 
Date: July 9, 2014  
Subject: Public Hearing – Resolution No. 2014-20 – Ordering Annexation and 

Inclusion of an Additional Territory as Zone 6A of Public Facilities 
Maintenance District No. 1 and Confirming the Diagram and Assessment of 
Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 for Public Facilities Maintenance 
District No. 1. 

 
Discussion: 
On July 1, 2014 the Council approved Resolution 2014-16, “A Resolution of Intention to  
(i) Annex and Include an Additional Territory in Public Facilities Maintenance District 
(PFMD) No. 1 in the City of Lemoore, and (ii) Levy and Collect Annual Assessments in 
Such Annexed Territory for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 and Thereafter.” 
 
The Boundaries of Zone 6A include the following properties: Tract No. 872, Heritage Acres, 
Phase 2, recorded in Volume 24 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 62, Kings County 
Records and Phase 3, recorded in Volume 24 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 64, 
Kings County Records. 
 
In order for the annexation to be approved and the assessments levied on the lots in the 
Added Territory, the majority of the ballots submitted by property owners within the 
boundary of the Added Territory must consent to the annexation and levy of the 
assessment.  City staff has confirmed that ballots have been sent, and have been returned 
by the property owners to the City.  Votes will be tabulated Tuesday evening during the 
Council meeting.  If the ballots submitted and not withdrawn in favor of the proposed 
annexation exceed the assessment ballots submitted and not withdrawn in opposition, then 
the Added Territory may be included in the PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A. 
 
If Resolution 2014-20 is approved, a fee in the amount of $453.66 will be applied on an 
annual per lot basis, beginning in fiscal year 2014-2015, and will be applied to each lot 
within the newly Added Territory. 
 
 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 



Budget Impact: 
The proposed total assessment for Zone 6A is $29,034.24 for 2014-2015 Tax Year.  
Payments are made through the County Assessor property tax roll; first installment would in 
December 2014 with the second installment paid in April 2015. 
 
Recommendation: 
That Council hold a public hearing on the annexation of Zone 6A of the Public Facilities 
Maintenance District No. 1, the services and the first annual levy of assessments in the 
Added Territory.  After the public hearing, direct the City Clerk to count the ballots. If ballots 
submitted are in favor of the proposed annexation, that the Council, by motion, approve 
Resolution 2014-20 Ordering the Annexation and Inclusion of an Additional Territory as 
Zone 6A in Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1; and Confirming the Diagram and 
Assessment of Annual Levy for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 for the Additional Territory Annexed 
as Zone 6A of Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1.  Authorize and direct the City 
Clerk to file the Diagram of the PFMD including the Added Territory, and assessments 
therein, a Notice of Assessment with respect to the Added Territory, and an amended map 
of the boundaries of the PFMD, incorporating the Added Territory as required by Sections 
3110, 3113 and 3114 of the Streets & Highways Codes, with the Kings County Recorder. 
 
 

 

“In God We Trust” 



Engineer’s Report and Assessment 
For Zone 6A 

 

 
 
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Lemoore 
 

Kings County, California 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 
Visalia, California 93278 
 

June 2014 Submitted to: 
 
City Council 
City of Lemoore 
Park and Recreation Department 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, California 93245 

 



© Copyright by Quad Knopf, Inc. 
 Unauthorized use prohibited. 
L140206 

 
 

ENGINEER’S REPORT AND ASSESSMENT 
 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
PUBLIC FACILITES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, 

ZONE 6A 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Mayor – William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem – Lois Wynne 

 
 

Council Members 
 
 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 

Visalia, CA  93278 
Tel. No:  (559) 733-0440 
Fax No:  (559) 733-7821 

harryt@quadknopf.com 
 
 
 

June 2014 
 

mailto:harryt@quadknopf.com




 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

Engineer's Report 
 Certificates of Filing  ..............................................................................................................1 

 Introduction .............................................................................................................................2 

 Engineer of Work Statement  ..................................................................................................4 

 

Exhibit A 
 Description of Improvements .................................................................................................5 

 

Exhibit B 
 Engineer's Estimate  ................................................................................................................7 

 

Exhibit C 
 Method of Apportionment  .....................................................................................................9 

 

Exhibit D 
 Assessment Roll ....................................................................................................................11 

 

Exhibit E 
 Assessment District and Zone Location; Assessment Diagram  ..........................................13 

 

 

 



ENGINEER'S REPORT 





 

City of Lemoore June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A 2 

INTRODUCTION 

 

 
The City Council of the City of Lemoore adopted its General Plan with various elements to provide guidelines 

for orderly development within the community.  The City Council further adopted ordinances and regulations 

governing the development of land providing for the installation and construction of certain lighting, 

landscaping, street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities to enhance the quality of life and to benefit the 

value of property. 

 

The requirement for the installation of lighting, landscaping, streets and appurtenant facilities is a condition of 

development provided for in the City's Subdivision Ordinance and is a requirement of issuance of a permit for 

construction of commercial, residential, and planned unit development.  Lighting, landscaping, streets and 

appurtenant facilities generally includes street lights, trees, shrubs, plants, turf, irrigation systems, local street 

paving, parks and necessary appurtenances including curbs, hardscape, monumentation, fencing located in 

public rights-of-way, medians, parkways, and/or easements adjacent to public rights-of-ways, in and along 

major thoroughfares, primary and secondary arterials, and local streets as defined in the General Plan's 

Circulation Element. 

 

The installation of street lights, landscaping and appurtenant facilities is the responsibility of the subdivider or 

other development/applicant, triggered by the approval of a tentative subdivision map or other development 

application.  When on any given street of the approved system, a majority of the required landscaping has been 

provided, and it has been determined that landscaping in front of, or adjacent to certain already developed 

properties is required to bridge missing gaps, and/or where the future development or redevelopment of 

existing property is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future, the City Council may deem it appropriate to 

retrofit or fill such gaps. 

 

After installation, it is City policy that the servicing, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the 

lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities in turn become the financial 

responsibility of the properties that specially benefit from the facilities. 

 

The City's lighting, landscape, local street paving and parks maintenance and replacement program is 

administered according to the provisions of Proposition 218 (Article XIIID of the California Constitution), 

Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the Municipal Code, which was added by Ordinance No. 2006-01 of the City of 

Lemoore, the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Sections 53750 through 

53754) and, to the extent applicable, the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets and Highways Code 

Part 2, Division 15). 

 

The City cannot feasibly fund by any other method the maintenance and required periodic replacement of such 

facilities which must be installed with new development.  Therefore, the City has determined that such 

maintenance, operation, repair and replacement should be funded through usage of the assessments on 

properties within the boundaries of Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1.  The property owners in each 

Zone of said District enjoy a special benefit from these facilities within the applicable Zone, over and above the 

general benefits received by these property owners and the public generally, and the assessments levied under 

this District fund such benefit. 

 

Payment for the assessment will be made in the same manner and at the same time in conjunction with the ad 

valorem property tax for each assessed lot or parcel in the District. 

 

After approval of the final map for Tract 872, Heritage Acres, the owner requested that the properties be 

annexed into the City of Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, Zone 6A. The location of the 



 

City of Lemoore June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A 3 

annexed properties is within the boundaries of the District and is shown on the Assessment Diagram, Exhibit 

“E” herein. 

 

The proceedings for annexation and assessment of Zone 6A were conducted under Ordinance No. 2006-01, 

Proposition 218, the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act and, to the extent applicable, the 

Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Sections 22500 through 22679, Part 2, Division 15, of the Streets and 

Highways Code of the State of California. 

 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore will set the time and place for a public hearing. 

 

After reviewing testimony, as well as the projected year's costs for the servicing, maintenance, repair and 

replacement of the facilities in Zone 6A as herein described, the City Council will set the assessment for the 

2014-15 fiscal year, which runs between July 1 and June 30.   

 

This report contains the necessary data required to conduct the proceedings and is submitted to the Clerk of the 

City for filing. 
 





EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Improvements 



 

City of Lemoore June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A 5 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 

(Pursuant to City of Lemoore Ordinance No. 2006-01) 
 

 

Location of Landscaping, Lighting, Streets and Appurtenant Facilities 

 

The locations of lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities in the benefit Zone 

within the Assessment District are depicted on the Assessment Diagram as shown in Exhibit "E" herein which 

Diagram includes the following subdivision, lots and/or parcels: 

 

Zone 6A 

 

Boundaries of Zone 6A include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 872, Heritage Acres, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 24 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 62, 

Kings County Records.  

 

Tract No. 872, Heritage Acres, Phase 3, recorded in Volume 24 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 64, 

Kings County Records.  

 

Plans and Specifications 

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 6A of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated August 31, 2007, are incorporated herein by 

reference.  The Plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of 

approval of the tentative map of Tract 872 by Council Resolution No. 2006-15, May 2, 2006, approving the 

development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2006-02.  Such detailed Plans have been prepared by the project developer and are on 

file with the City Clerk of the City of Lemoore.   

 

Description of Work  

 

The work includes maintaining, operating, repairing and periodically replacing landscaping, street lights, local 

street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities described as follows: 

 

Plants, shrubbery, trees, turf, irrigation systems, entry monuments, local street maintenance, parks, hardscapes, 

walls, fencing,  street lights and appurtenant facilities in public rights-of-way and easements within or 

appurtenant to the boundaries of the applicable benefit Zone of said District. 

 

The location of such facilities, as previously described, are within the boundaries of the District , and within or 

appurtenant to the boundaries of Zone 6A as shown on the Assessment Diagram, Exhibit "E" herein.  

Approved Plans for landscaping, lighting, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities benefiting Zone 

6A are filed with the City Clerk and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

Maintenance means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation 

and servicing of the lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities. Maintenance for 

landscaping means, but is not limited to, the repair, removal or replacement of landscaping and walls, 



 

City of Lemoore June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A 6 

providing for the life, growth, health and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, 

spraying, fertilizing and treating for disease or injury and the removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris and other 

solid waste.  Maintenance for street lights means but is not limited to the furnishing of services and materials 

for the ordinary and usual maintenance and repair of street lights including, poles, lens and bulb replacement.  

Maintenance for local street paving means but is not limited to the scheduled sealing, capping, and 

remixing/resurfacing of such paving.  Maintenance for trees means, but is not limited to the trimming and 

required replacement of trees in development–adjacent or development-contained arterial or collector streets, 

medians or parkways, but not street trees on local streets fronting residences.  Maintenance for parks interior to, 

or determined by the Council to provide special benefit to property in, the applicable benefit Zone includes, but 

is not limited to the continuing maintenance and required replacement of park facilities, including tot lot and 

playground equipment, trees, park furniture, turf, landscaping and restrooms.  Maintenance of sidewalks, curb 

and gutter includes the required replacement of such improvements only in arterial or collector streets, 

parkways, or medians adjacent to or contained in the development. 

 

Operating for landscaping improvements means but is not limited to the furnishing of water and electricity for 

irrigation of the landscaping and the maintenance of any of the appurtenant facilities.  For lighting facilities, 

operating means but is not limited to furnishing the utility power necessary for energizing of electroliers. 

 

The improvements described herein for which maintenance, operating, repair and periodic replacement for, and 

for which assessments are required to fund such maintenance, servicing and periodic replacement, are those 

required as a condition of approval of the tentative map of Tract 872. The final map of Tract 872, the 97 

single-family lots of which constitute Zone 6A hereunder, was approved by the City Council on April 2008. 

 



EXHIBIT B 
 

Engineer's Estimate 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A 7 
 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE 
 

 

Actual costs of maintenance and required periodic replacement of improvements have been determined 

by the Engineer of Work in consultation with the City staff. Such costs are reflected to the extent 

currently feasible in the assessments for Zone 6A.  It should be noted that, based on these unit cost 

assessments and the improvements to be maintained, serviced and operated in this Zone, the actual costs 

during the past fiscal year and projected for this fiscal year may be greater than the proposed assessments.   

 

Table 1 details unit costs for maintenance and replacement. Table 2 shows the total costs to be assessed to 

Zone 6A.  Table 3 estimates the incidental costs required to process the assessments. 

 

TABLE 1 

UNIT COST ESTIMATE - ZONE 6A 
 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 6A, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1.  Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 872 (97 lots) 

 

Item 

 

Unit 

 

O & M 

 

Replacement 

Annual Cost 

Total 

Landscape Contract 1 L.S. - - $4,000 

Street Lights 27 EA $31.08 $27.79 $1,589 

Trees 38 EA $152.30 $6.66 $6,040 

Planter 11,138 S. F. 0 $.066 $735 

Dump Fee 11,138 S. F. 0 0 0 

Water/Electricity 11,138 S. F. $.278 $.0663 $3,835 

Canal Interceptor 

Interceptor Trench 1,420 L. F. 0 $.10 $142 

Interceptor Lift Station 1 EA $160.00 $40.00 $200 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 228,869 S. F. $.0050 0 $1,144 

Crack Filling 228,869 S. F. $.0061 0 $1,396 

1½” Overlay 228,869 S. F. $.0329 0 $7,530 

Remix 228,869 S. F. $.0659 0 $15,082 

Fortune Street (south side) 

SW/Cross Gutter 4,748 S. F. $.0412 0 $196 

C & G 1,145 L. F. $.2883 0 $330 

   Total $42,219
(1) 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 6A $42,219
(1) 

(1)Number of parcels (single-family lots) in Phases 2 and 3 of Tract 872 (Zone 6A): 64 

Total number of parcels(single-family lots) in Tract 872: 97 
Therefore, proportionate share of costs assessable to Zone 6A is (64/97) x $42,219 = $27,856.  These proportionate share costs are less 

than those which would appertain to Zone 6A if it were assessed for the required facilities within and appurtenant thereto if the 

balance of Tract 872 is not constructed, because the total cost of the assessment would be allocated to the 33 built lots only. 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and 

Local Government workers of 122.2 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2013). 

 



City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A 8 
 

TABLE 2 

ESTIMATED COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

2014-2015  
 

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Public Facilities Maintenance Costs $27,856.00   

6A 64 64 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 448.64   

   3. Noticing 64.00   

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Assessment) 64.00   
        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $28,432.64 
        

   2014-15 Assessment - Zone 6A   $28,432.64 

        

 
 

 

TABLE 3 

ESTIMATED INCIDENTAL COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

APRIL 2014 THROUGH MARCH 2015 
 

 Estimated Cost 
Engineering Fees, Legal Fees, and City Administrative Costs $448.64 

  
 



EXHIBIT C 
 

Method of Apportionment 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A  9   

EXHIBIT C 

RATE AND METHOD OF ASSESSMENT 
 
General Discussion 

 

The improvements described in Exhibit “A” are provided for the particular, distinct special benefit directly 

received by each lot or parcel in each benefit Zone of the District, above the benefit received by these lots and 

parcels or the public generally.  Each lot or parcel has been determined to directly and specially benefit 

proportionally by Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).   

 

City noticing and County administrative expenses will be apportioned to each lot or parcel as one unit of 

assessment for each lot/parcel. 

 

The annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs of the facilities and improvements 

benefiting Zone 6A of the District described in Exhibit A of this Report, are estimated in Exhibit “B.” 

 

The City is unable to provide funds for such maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the 

described facilities and improvements.  The facilities and improvements and their maintenance, operation, 

repair and periodic replacement provide equally for each lot and parcel in the Zone essential safety, lighting, 

property access, security and aesthetically-pleasing public right-of-way landscaping not available to the general 

community.  The value, accessibility, appearance, safety and use of each lot and parcel in the Zone are 

significantly and directly enhanced by regular maintenance and periodic replacement of these facilities and 

improvements.  These are benefits distinct and particular to the lots and parcels in this Zone and not realized by 

the general community.  Therefore, annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the 

described facilities and improvements, and the funding thereof, provide direct special benefits to the lots and 

parcels in the Zone, over and above general benefits conferred on real property in the Zone or to the public at 

large. 

 

Moreover, the Engineer has determined that each individual lot and parcel in the Zone established by a 

recorded final subdivision is benefited equally by such annual maintenance and periodic replacement.  Each 

assessed lot and parcel contains, or will contain in accord with the City’s development approvals, a single 

dwelling unit.  Each lot and parcel, within the Zone, therefore derives the same proportionate special benefit 

from the assessed facilities and improvements and their regular maintenance and periodic replacement. 

 

Accordingly, the individual annual assessment for each lot and parcel in the Zone (the “Maximum Annual 

Assessment”) is determined by dividing the total estimated costs of annual maintenance and replacement and 

related notice and processing fees (for fiscal year 2014-15, set forth in Exhibit “B”) by the total number of lots 

and parcels in the Zone.  The costs of such maintenance and periodic replacement will increase each year.  In 

order to assure continued adequacy of the financing of such costs and, therefore, the continued special benefits 

to the lots and parcels in the Zone, the Maximum Annual Assessment shall be comparably and automatically 

increased each fiscal year to cover the maintenance and replacement cost increases.  The annual increase in the 

Maximum Annual Assessment shall be in accordance with increases in the Employment Cost Index for total 

compensation for State and Local Government Workers (the “Index”), published quarterly by the U.S. Bureau 

of Labor Statistics.  Increases in the Index will track comparably to increases in the costs of annual 

maintenance and periodic replacement of the described facilities and improvements, since the majority of the 

maintenance and replacement work is and will be done by City employees. 

 

Therefore, the annual assessment each fiscal year on each lot and parcel in the Zone shall be determined and 

levied according to the above rate and methodology up to, but not more than, the Maximum Annual 



 

City of Lemoore  June 2014 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A  10   

Assessment as increased for that fiscal year by the Index.  The actual annual assessments may be less than or 

up to the Maximum Annual Assessment, as so increased, but cannot exceed the Maximum Annual 

Assessment, as so increased, without approval in a landowner ballot proceeding under Proposition 218 and the 

Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act. 

 

The initial actual assessment on each lot and parcel in Zone 6A of the District for fiscal year 2014-15 is set 

forth in Exhibit “D” of this Report. 

 

Hearing Dates 

 

A public hearing will be held at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on July 15, 2014.  Any protests 

received will be submitted to Council and individuals will be allowed to give testimony.  At this meeting, the 

assessment ballots will be tabulated and the Council will amend or adopt the assessments.  Final assessments, 

commencing with the 2014-15 fiscal year, will be levied on Zone 6A at this meeting.  The County shall be 

notified of the final assessment amounts. 



EXHIBIT D 
 

Assessment Roll 



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

6A 021-830-002-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-003-000 444.26

6A 021-830-004-000 444.26

6A 021-830-005-000 444.26

6A 021-830-006-000 444.26

6A 021-830-007-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-008-000 444.26

6A 021-830-009-000 444.26

6A 021-830-010-000 444.26

6A 021-830-011-000 444.26

6A 021-830-012-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-013-000 444.26

6A 021-830-014-000 444.26

6A 021-830-015-000 444.26

6A 021-830-016-000 444.26

6A 021-830-017-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-018-000 444.26

6A 021-830-019-000 444.26

6A 021-830-020-000 444.26

6A 021-830-021-000 444.26

6A 021-830-022-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-023-000 444.26

6A 021-830-024-000 444.26

6A 021-830-025-000 444.26

6A 021-830-026-000 444.26

6A 021-830-027-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-028-000 444.26

6A 021-830-029-000 444.26

6A 021-830-030-000 444.26

6A 021-830-031-000 444.26

6A 021-830-032-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-033-000 444.26

6A 021-830-034-000 444.26

6A 021-830-036-000 444.26

6A 021-830-037-000 444.26

6A 021-830-038-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-039-000 444.26

6A 021-830-040-000 444.26

6A 021-830-041-000 444.26

6A 021-830-042-000 444.26

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A

June 2014

11



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2014-15

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

6A 021-830-043-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-044-000 444.26

6A 021-830-045-000 444.26

6A 021-830-046-000 444.26

6A 021-830-047-000 444.26

6A 021-830-048-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-049-000 444.26

6A 021-830-050-000 444.26

6A 021-830-051-000 444.26

6A 021-830-052-000 444.26

6A 021-830-053-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-054-000 444.26

6A 021-830-055-000 444.26

6A 021-830-056-000 444.26

6A 021-830-057-000 444.26

6A 021-830-058-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-059-000 444.26

6A 021-830-060-000 444.26

6A 021-830-061-000 444.26

6A 021-830-062-000 444.26

6A 021-830-063-000 $444.26

6A 021-830-064-000 444.26

6A 021-830-065-000 444.26

6A 021-830-066-000 444.26

Total Assessment Zone 6A $28,432.64

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6A

June 2014

12



EXHIBIT E 
 

Assessment District and Zone Location 
Assessment Diagram 

 



P.O. BOX 3699
VISALIA CA 93278
TEL: (559) 733-0440
FAX: (559) 733-7821

5110 W. CYPRESS AVENUE



Zone 6A 

 



 
 

 

 

 

Engineering / Surveying 

Planning 

Landscape Architecture 

Biology 

Land Development 

 

 
 

901 East Main Street 
Visalia, California 93292 

(559) 733-0440 
 

6051 North Fresno Street, Suite 200 
Fresno, California 93710 

(559) 449-2400 

3400 Douglas Boulevard, Suite 190 
Roseville, California 95661 

(916) 784-7823 
 

5080 California Avenue, Suite 220 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

(661) 616-2600 
 

Fremming, Parson & Pecchenino, a Quad Knopf Company 
2816 Park Avenue 

Merced, California 95348 
(559) 723-2066,  

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2014-20 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
(1) ORDERING ANNEXATION AND INCLUSION OF AN ADDITIONAL TERRITORY 

AS ZONE 6A OF PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1; AND 
 

(2) CONFIRMING THE DIAGRAM AND ASSESSMENT OF ANNUAL LEVY FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2014-2015 FOR AN ADDITIONAL TERRITORY ANNEXED TO AND INCLUDED 

AS ZONE 6A OF PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the Lemoore Municipal Code, as enacted by 
Ordinance No. 2006-01 (the “Ordinance”), and according to the procedures in the Proposition 218 
Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Sections 53750-53753.5, inclusive) (the 
“Implementation Act”), Article XIIID of the California Constitution (“Proposition 218”) and, to the 
extent not inconsistent with the Ordinance, the procedures in the State Landscaping and Lighting Act of 
1972 (Chapter 2 of Part of Division 15 of the California Streets & Highways Code) (the “Landscaping & 
Lighting Act”), the City Council of the City of Lemoore declared its intention to form, conducted all 
proceedings to form and did form Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 of the City of Lemoore 
(the “PFMD”), including different zones therein, and has thereafter levied and collected annual 
assessments for maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of landscaping, street lights, 
local streets, parks and other appurtenant facilities an improvements within each zone described as 
follows:  

Plants, shrubbery, trees, turf, irrigation systems, entry monuments, local street maintenance, 
parks, hardscapes, walls, fencing, playground, water feature, street lights and appurtenant 
facilities in public rights-of-way easements within the proposed boundaries of the PFMD, 

 
(collectively, the “Facilities and Improvements”) which provide particular, distinct special benefits to the 
various lots and parcels assessed over and above the general benefits conferred on such lots and parcels 
and the public at large; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City has determined that lots and parcels within Tract No. 872, Phase 2 and 
Phase 3 (Heritage Acres), in the City of Lemoore, California (the “Added Territory”), receive such special 
benefits from the Facilities and Improvements with the Added Territory and therefore should be annexed 
to and included in the PFMD as Zone 6A thereof, and be subject to levy of annual assessments for the 
cost of maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of such Facilities and Improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, at the direction of the City Council, the City Engineer has prepared and filed with 
the City Clerk a report entitled “Engineer’s Report and Assessment for Zone 6A, Public Facilities 
Maintenance District No. 1, dated June 2014 (the “Engineer’s Report”), to which reference is hereby 
made, which Engineer’s Report contains a description of the existing Facilities and Improvements 
specially benefiting the lots and parcels within the Added Territory, the boundaries of the Added Territory 
proposed to be annexed to the PFMD as Zone 6A thereof in these proceedings, the Facilities and 
Improvements existing in and proposed for the Added Territory, and the general location and proposed 
assessments on the assessable lots and parcels of land within the Added Territory; and 



 WHEREAS, the City Engineer also has prepared and filed with the City Clerk an amended map 
of the boundaries of the PFMD, incorporating the Added Territory within the boundaries as Zone 6A of 
the PFMD, as proposed in these proceedings; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on July 1, 2014 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2014-16, “A Resolution of 
Intention to (i) Annex and Include an Additional Territory in Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 
in the City of Lemoore, and (ii) Levy and Collect Annual Assessments in Such Annexed Territory for 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015 and Thereafter” (the “Resolution of Intention”), whereby the City Council 
declared its intention to annex and include the territory within Tract No. 872, Phase 2 and Phase 3, as 
Zone 6A of the PFMD and to levy and collect annual assessments within the Added Territory for 
maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the Facilities and Improvements specially 
benefiting the lots and parcels within such Added Territory, commencing with the 2014-2015 fiscal year; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proceeds of the annual assessments will be used exclusively to finance the 
expenses for operation and maintenance of the Facilities and Improvements benefiting the lots and parcels 
within the Added Territory for the 2014-2015 fiscal year or other fiscal year for which such assessments 
are levied, which operation and maintenance will provide particular, distinct special benefits to the 
various lots and parcels in the Added Territory, over and above the general benefits conferred on such lots 
and parcels and the public at large; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amount of the assessment to be levied on each lot or parcel in the Added 
Territory for the 2014-2015 fiscal year, as proposed in the Engineer’s Report, is proportional to and no 
greater than the special benefits conferred on such lot or parcel from the maintenance, operation, repair 
and periodic replacement of the Facilities and Improvements described in the Engineer’s Report; and 
 
 WHEREAS, after notice by mail to the record owner of all lots and parcels within the Added 
Territory, as shown in the last equalized assessment roll of the County of Kings, the State Board of 
Equalization assessment roll or as known to the City Clerk, as required by Streets & Highways Code 
Section 22588 and Government Code Section 53753, the City Council conducted a public hearing and 
heard and considered all objections and protests to the proposed assessments; and, at the conclusion 
thereof, the City Clerk tabulated all assessment ballots submitted and not withdrawn in support of or in 
opposition to the proposed annexation and assessment of the lots and parcels in the Added Territory, and 
announced the results; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined, based on such ballot tabulation, that a majority 
protest to the proposed annexation and assessment of the lots and parcels within the Added Territory does 
not exist, in that the assessment ballots submitted and not withdrawn in favor of the proposed annexation 
and assessment exceed the assessment ballots submitted and not withdrawn in opposition; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has further determined that all of the property owners within the 
Added Territory either have consented to the annexation to and inclusion in Zone 6A of the PFMD and 
the levy of the assessments proposed for the 2014-2015 fiscal year or have failed to file a majority protest 
against the proposed annexation and annual assessment in the manner provided by law; 



 THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemoore resolves, finds and determines as 
follows: 
 

1.  The recitals, findings and determinations in the Resolution of Intention are hereby restated and 
confirmed.  The recitals in the Resolution of Intention and in this resolution, above, are true and correct. 

2.  All territories within Tract No. 872, Phase 1 and Phase 2 whose boundaries are set forth in the 
Engineer’s Report on file with the City Clerk, are annexed to and made part of City of Lemoore Public 
Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 as Zone 6A thereof.   The map of the boundaries of the PFMD, 
prepared by the City Engineer and showing annexation of the Added Territory as Zone 6A thereof, is 
hereby approved. 

3.  The Added Territory, whose boundaries are set forth in the Engineer’s Report, will be particularly, 
distinctly and specially benefited, over and above the general benefits conferred on such territory and the 
public at large, from maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the Facilities and 
Improvements described in the Engineer’s Report. 

4.  The hearing on the annexation of the territory within the Added Territory as Zone 6A of the 
PFMD and the levy of annual assessments therein, commencing with 2014-2015 fiscal year, was noticed 
and held in accordance with law. 

5.  The Engineer’s Report, including the diagram of the Added Territory as Zone 6A of the PFMD 
and the assessment therein of the estimated costs of maintenance, operation, repair and periodic 
replacement of the Facilities and Improvements contained in the Engineer’s Report, and each and every 
part of the Engineer’s Report, is finally adopted, confirmed and approved. 

6.  The assessment diagram showing the lots and parcels of land within the Added Territory as part of 
Zone 6A of the PFMD, all as contained in the Engineer’s Report, is finally approved and confirmed as the 
diagram of the lots and parcels within the Added Territory to be assessed to pay the costs of maintenance, 
operation, repair and periodic replacement of the Facilities and Improvements described in the Engineer’s 
Report. 

7.  The assessment of the total amount of the costs and the individual assessments thereof on the lots 
and parcels within the Added Territory in proportion to the direct special benefits to be conferred on each 
such lot or parcel from maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the Facilities and 
Improvements, and of the expenses incidental thereto, as set forth in the Engineer’s Report, is finally 
approved and confirmed as the assessment for the 2014-2015 fiscal year to pay such costs. 

8.  The annexation and inclusion of the Added Territory as Zone 6A of the PFMD, and the levy of the 
annual assessments on all lots and parcels within the Added Territory for fiscal year 2014-2015, as 
described in the Resolution of Intention and the Engineer’s Report, are hereby ordered. 

9.  The City Clerk is authorized and directed to file the diagram of the PFMD, including the Added 
Territory as Zone 6A thereof, and assessments therein, as approved and confirmed by the Council and 
containing all information and statements required by Section 3114 of the Streets & Highways Code, with 
the Kings County Recorder immediately after adoption of this resolution.  The City Clerk is further 
authorized and directed to record a notice of assessment with respect to the Added Territory pursuant to 
Streets & Highways Code Section 3114.  The City Clerk is further authorized and directed to file the 



amended map of the boundaries of the PFMD, incorporating the Added Territory within Zone 6A, as 
approved by the City Council and containing all information and statements provided for in Streets & 
Highways Code Sections 3110 and 3113, with the Kings County Recorder not later than 10 days after the 
date this resolution is adopted. 

10.  This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

*  *  *  *  * 

Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held on the 15th 
day of July 2014, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAINING: 
 
       APPROVED: 
 
       ____________________________ 
       William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         ) ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 
 I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing Resolution 
of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting held on 
July 15, 2014. 
 
DATED:  July 15, 2014 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 
 



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Office of the  

City Manager 
 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 3-5 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Jeff R. Laws, City Manager  
Date: July 7, 2014  

Subject: Public Hearing – Resolution 2014-21 - Approval of Joint Exercise of 
Powers Agreement and Issuance of Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds 
by the California Statewide Communities Development Authority 

 
Discussion: 
Highridge Costa Housing Partners, LLC (the Developer) has submitted an application 
(Attachment A) to the California Statewide Communities Development Authority (the 
Authority) for the financing of the acquisition and rehabilitation of an affordable 
multifamily housing project, known as the Montclair Apartments, through the issuance of 
tax-exempt multifamily housing revenue bonds (the Bonds) in an aggregate principal 
amount not to exceed 5 million (the Project).  The proposed project consists of 80 units, 
to be acquired and rehabilitated at 150 South 19th Avenue.  The project is expected to 
be 100% affordable with unit rents restricted at 50% and 60% of the area median 
income. 
 
The Bonds will be tax-exempt private activity bonds for the purposes of the Internal 
Revenue Code and, as such, require the approval of the elected body of the 
governmental entity having jurisdiction over the areas where the project to be financed 
is located.  The City of Lemoore has no obligation to repay the bond indebtedness, and 
will not be named in any of the disclosure documents, describing the bonds or proposed 
financing. 
 
In 2003, the City joined the Authority as a program participant allowing the Authority to 
issue such bonds to the Villa San Joaquin Apartments (Attachment B, Resolution 2003-
43).  The full text of the amended and restated Joint Exercise of Power Agreement, 
Resolution 2003-42, is included as Attachment C.   
 
The City must now conduct a public hearing (Tax and Equity Fiscal Responsibility Act 
“TEFRA” hearing) on the proposed financing.  Although the Authority (not the city) will 
be the issuer of the tax-exempt revenue bonds for the Developer, the financing cannot 
proceed without the City, as the governmental entity having jurisdiction over the site, 
approving of the Authority’s issuance of indebtedness.   
 
 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 



Budget Impact: 
None. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
That Council hold the Public Hearing and at the conclusion of the Public Hearing, adopt 
by motion, Resolution 2014-21 approving the issuance by the California Statewide 
Communities Development Authority of multifamily housing revenue bonds for the 
Montclair Apartments. 
 
 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 



Item 3-5 Attachment A













Item 3-5 Attachment B







Item 3-5 Attachment C







RESOLUTION NO. 2014-21 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE  
APPROVING THE ISSUANCE BY THE CALIFORNIA STATEWIDE  

COMMUNITIES DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF MULTIFAMILY  
HOUSING REVENUE BONDS FOR THE MONTCLAIR APARTMENTS 

 
 
 At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on July 
15, 2014 at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member _______________, seconded 
by Council Member _______________, and carried that the following Resolution be adopted. 
 
 WHEREAS, the California Statewide Communities Development Authority (the 
“Authority”) is authorized pursuant to the provisions of California Government Code Section 6500 
et seq. and the terms of an Amended and Restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated as of 
June 1, 1988 (the “Agreement”), among certain local agencies throughout the State of California, 
including the City of Lemoore (the “City”), to issue revenue bonds in accordance with Chapter 7 of 
Part 5 of Division 31 of the California Health and Safety Code for the purpose of financing 
multifamily rental housing projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Montclair Lemoore AR, L.P., a limited partnership or related entities, has 
requested that the Authority adopt a plan of financing providing for the issuance of multifamily 
housing revenue bonds (the “Bonds”) in one or more series issued from time to time, including bonds 
issued to refund such revenue bonds in one or more series from time to time, and at no time to exceed 
$5,000,000 in outstanding aggregate principal amount, to finance the acquisition and rehabilitation 
of a 80-unit multifamily rental housing project located at 150 South 19th Avenue, Lemoore, 
California, generally known as Montclair Apartments (the “Project”) and operated by ConAm 
Management Corporation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Bonds or a portion thereof will be “private activity bonds” for purposes of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 147(f) of the Code, prior to their issuance, private activity 
bonds are required to be approved by the “applicable elected representative” of the governmental 
units on whose behalf such bonds are expected to be issued and by a governmental unit having 
jurisdiction over the entire area in which any facility financed by such bonds is to be located, after a 
public hearing held following reasonable public notice; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the members of this City Council (this “City Council”) are the applicable 
elected representatives of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there has been published, at least 14 days prior to the date hereof, in a newspaper 
of general circulation within the City, a notice that a public hearing regarding the Bonds would be 
held on a date specified in such notice; and 
 



 
 
 WHEREAS, such public hearing was conducted on such date, at which time an opportunity 
was provided to interested parties to present arguments both for and against the issuance of the Bonds; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is also requesting that the City Council approve the issuance 
of any refunding bonds hereafter issued by the Authority for the purpose of refinancing the Bonds 
which financed the Project (the “Refunding Bonds”), but only in such cases where federal tax laws 
would not require additional consideration or approval by the City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it is intended that this resolution shall constitute the approval of the issuance of 
the Bonds required by Section 147(f) of the Code and Section 9 of the Agreement;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LEMOORE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct. 
 
 Section 2. The City Council hereby approves the issuance of the Bonds and the 
Refunding Bonds by the Authority.  It is the purpose and intent of the City Council that this resolution 
constitute approval of the Bonds for the purposes of (a) Section 147(f) of the Code and (b) Section 9 
of the Agreement. 
 
 Section 3. The officers of the City are hereby authorized and directed, jointly and 
severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver any and all documents that they deem 
necessary or advisable in order to carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of 
this resolution and the financing approved hereby.  
 

Section 4. The adoption of this Resolution is solely for the purpose of meeting the 
requirements of the Code and shall not be construed in any other manner, the City nor its staff having 
fully reviewed or considered the financial feasibility of the Project or the expected financing or 
operation of the Project with regards to any State of California statutory requirements, and such 
adoption shall not obligate (i) the City to provide financing to the Borrower for the acquisition, 
rehabilitation and development of the Project or to issue the Obligations for purposes of such 
financing; or (ii) the City, or any department of the City, to approve any application or request for, or 
take any other action in connection with, any environmental, General Plan, zoning or any other permit 
or other action necessary for the acquisition, rehabilitation, development or operation of the Project. 
 
 Section 5. The City Clerk shall forward a certified copy of this Resolution and a copy of 
the affidavit of publication of the hearing notice to: 
 
    Justin Cooper, Esq. 
    Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP 
    405 Howard Street 
    San Francisco, California  94105 
 
 Section 5. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage. 

 2 
   



 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore at a regular meeting 

held on the 15th day of July, 2014 by the following vote: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAINING: 

 
 
 
ATTEST:   APPROVED: 
 
 
 
         
Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk  William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS         ) ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE         ) 
 
 I, Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a Regular 
Meeting held on July 15, 2014. 
 
DATED:  July 15, 2014 
 
       _______________________________ 
       Mary J. Venegas, City Clerk 
 

 3 
   



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

Public Works 
Department 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6735 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

Staff Report 
ITEM 4-1 

To: Lemoore City Council 
From: Lauren Apone, Administrative Analyst 
Date: July 8, 2014 
Subject: Purchase of CNG Refuse Vehicle  

Discussion: 

In 2010, the City of Lemoore was awarded $1 million in CMAQ money from Caltrans to 
purchase alternative fuel vehicles.  Our intention at the time was to stagger the 
purchase of these vehicles in order to meet the Caltrans requirement that we invoice for 
one item each year to keep the grant current.  To this date, we have purchased a CNG 
street sweeper and two CNG side loading refuse vehicles with this funding.  Other CNG 
vehicles have been purchased with other grants. 

The $142,680.50 remaining must be used and the vehicle must be received in time to 
close out the grant in June of 2015.  With the current lead time on these vehicles, it is 
imperative that we start the bidding process now to meet this deadline.  If we do not 
meet this deadline, the remaining grant money will be forfeited.  In addition, CMAQ 
grants no longer allow the agencies to receive full reimbursement for CNG vehicles, 
only reimbursement for the incremental cost between a diesel and a CNG vehicle.  This 
grant, since it was awarded before this rule change, has been grandfathered in and is 
the City’s last opportunity to get the full value of a CNG vehicle paid for. 

Staff is requesting that we purchase an additional side loading refuse vehicle with the 
remaining funding.  The City’s contribution to this vehicle would be $160,000, to be paid 
out of the Refuse Asset Replacement Fund. 

The new trucks would produce fuel savings for the City.  The City’s price of CNG 
fluctuates based on the amount of public usage the station gets, but the June 2014 
price per gallon equivalent was $1.34.  Currently, the maximum price to the City is set at 
$1.75/gal.  Compared to the roughly $4.00/gallon cost of diesel, this saves the City 
approximately $17,000 annually per side loading refuse vehicle. 

Budget Impact: 

The new side loading refuse vehicle will cost the City approximately $160,000, to be 
paid out of the Refuse Fund’s Asset Replacement Account.  The fuel savings 
associated with this CNG vehicle is approximately $17,000/year. 

“In God We Trust” 



 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that Council, by motion, approve a budget adjustment in the amount 
of $160,000 to be paid from the Refuse Asset Replacement Fund to purchase a new 
CNG side loading refuse vehicle. 
 

“In God We Trust” 



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

Public Works/ 
Planning 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone (559)  924-6704 
  FAX (559)  924-6708 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

Staff Report 
ITEM 4-2 

To: Lemoore City Council 
From: Judy Holwell, Project Manager 
Date: July 7, 2014 
Subject: Planning Update  

Discussion 

The last Planning Update was presented to Council on May 6, 2014.  At that time, Council 
requested that Planning Updates continue to be provided on a quarterly basis.  June 30 
marked the end of the fiscal year.  Included in the Update is a listing of the various types of 
planning applications received and processed, and the cost to perform the planning services. 
A listing of planning applications, including the number of days to process them, is provided 
to Council the second meeting of every month in the Activity Update.  

The table below indicates the number and type of planning applications received and 
processed.  Since we have been tracking the number of application from May 1, 2013 when 
the Planning Department was eliminated, I decided to end the fiscal year out including the 
two months from the prior year.  Therefore, the numbers below indicate applications received 
from May 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014.  The next quarterly update will chart the application 
received and processes in the 2014-2015 fiscal year.  Applications listed below that have not 
been processed will carry over to next year. 

Received Processed 
Administrative Site Plan Review 3 2 
Administrative Use Permit 3 3 
Administrative Zone Clearance 3 3 
Assigned Addresses 33 33 
Conditional Use Permit 2 0 
General Plan Amendment 2 1 
Home Occupations 26 26 
Large Daycare 1 1 
Lot Line Adjustment 1 1 
Major Site Plan Review 2 1 
Minor Deviation 3 3 
Planned Unit Development 1 1 
Plot Plan Review 114 114 
Preliminary Site Plan Review 2 2 
Sign Approval 24 24 

“In God We Trust” 



Temporary Use Permit 2 2 
Tentative Subdivision Map 1 1 
Zone Change 2 1 
 
As can been seen in the numbers listed above, planning services are picking up slightly.  One 
hundred and fourteen new homes have been approved in Lemoore.  Many of the homes 
have already been built, while others are still under construction.  Several residents have 
opted to start home businesses, which can be expected when there is a lack of job 
opportunities in the area.  A few technical applications were received recently.  Two of them 
will be discussed during the July 14 Planning Commission meeting, and the others are 
scheduled for an August meeting, due to timing and noticing requirements.     
 
Much of staff’s time is spent assisting the public by answering questions regarding permitted 
uses, setback requirements, conditions of approval, placement of accessory structures (e.g. 
carports, out-buildings, pools, patios, awnings, potential signage, etc.), property ownership, 
and other planning related inquiries.  When answering questions received by phone or email, 
the typical turnaround time is one to two business days depending on the complexity of the 
request.  Staff continues to strive to be as responsive as possible for our customers.  
Additionally, we make every possible effort to find ways to approve projects.   
 
After the elimination of the Planning Department, Council approved a contract with Quad 
Knopf in the amount of $100,000 to provide technical planning services.  The amount 
expended for such services, however, came in well under budget.  The table below indicates 
the total cost for technical planning services during the contract period of June 2013 through 
July 2014.   
    
Quad Knopf Services Budgeted Expenditures Total 
 
Technical Planning Services – May 2013  $  4,432 $  4,432 
(Not included in contract total) 
 
Technical Planning Services $100,000 
     June 2013 (FY 12/13)   $  4,683  
     July-June  (FY 13/14)  $39,768 $44,451 
    
As shown above, the total amount expended for technical planning services during the 
contract period of June 2013 through July 2014 (13 months) was $44,451, which averages 
just over $3,400 per month.  The amount expended reflects the lack of applications received 
due to the lagging economy.  However, as stated above, the number of recent applications 
received may be an indication that the economy is picking up slightly.  
 
The cost to update the Zoning Ordinance was reported in a prior report to Council.  However, 
since this report finishes out the fiscal year, I thought it should be included.  The update to 
the Zoning Ordinance was completed within budget at a cost of $29,998 and it became 
effective February 6, 2014.  The budgeted amount was $30,000.   
 
In addition to the expenditures listed above for services provided by Quad Knopf, other costs 
necessary to provide planning services are identified in the following table: 
 
 Estimated 

“In God We Trust” 



Miscellaneous Planning Expenditures Budgeted Expenditures 

Professional Contract Services 
GIS $ 5,000 $ 5,000 
FEMA 573 573 
LAFCO 3,618 3,618 

Operating Supplies 1,200 1,200  
Printing & Publications 1,000 1,000 
Utilities 1,200 1,200 
Training (Planning Institute for Commissioners) 10,000 1,420 
Rentals & Leases 2,600 2,600 

Total $25,191 $16,611 

As you can see, the cost to perform planning services for the year was well under budget. 
The total amount budgeted for technical planning services and miscellaneous expenditures 
was $125,191.  The total amount expended was $61,062 – less than half the amount 
expected.  It is important to note, however, that the savings was primarily due to the slow 
economy.  If the recent upturn in applications received is any indication of the 2014-2015 
fiscal year’s activities, then Council may see an increase in expenditures for planning 
services.  

Budget Impact 
None. 

Recommendation 
None. For informational purposes only. 

“In God We Trust” 



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 
 Maintenance & Fleet 

Divisions 
 

711 W. Cinnamon Dr. 
Lemoore * CA 93245 

Phone *(559) 924-6739 
FAX * (559) 924-6808 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

 

                    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

 

 
Staff Report 

 ITEM 4-3 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director  
Date: July 8, 2014  

Subject: Capital Improvement Program Budget Adjustment for C/O 8 CMC 
Commercial Kitchen 

 
 
Discussion: 
 
At the time the approved $88,000 2013-2015 CIP CMC Commercial Kitchen project cost 
of was analyzed, the design of other City facility commercial kitchens, such as the Civic 
Center, Fire Department, and Veterans Hall, were used as models for requirements 
needed.  Recent correspondence to design kitchen floor plans has resulted in the Kings 
County Health Department’s demand for the newest upgrades and more stringent 
regulations for commercial kitchens.  The City is now required to install an air curtain, 
special hoods, and multiple sinks for cooking, cleaning and hand washing as well as 
other requirements to the facility.  The additional cost to implement these regulations is 
$30,000.   
 
 
 

Budget Impact: 
 
The 2013-15 Capital Improvement Project C/O 8 Commercial Kitchen is funded from 
Community Recreation Facilities (074C – 4630A) which, upon adjustment approval, is 
expected to have a remaining balance of $50,624 at the end of June 30, 2015. The 
combined Parks and Recreation Impact Fee Fund (074) is expected to have an overall 
remaining total of $2,014,971. 
 
 
 

Recommendation: 
 
That the City Council, by motion, approve the additional $30,000 funding to complete the 
CMC Commercial Kitchen CIP Project 074C-4630A for a total overall cost of $118,000. 
 
 

“In God We Trust” 



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Mayor Pro Tem 

Office of the 
City Manager 

119 Fox Street 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

Lois Wynne 
Council Members 

Eddie Neal 
Willard Rodarmel 

    City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

Staff Report 
ITEM 4-4 

To: Lemoore City Council 
From: Jeff Laws, City Manager 
Date: July 9, 2014 
Subject: Annexation of City’s Boundary Limits across the Main East Canal to 17th 

Avenue 

Discussion: 

Mr. Loy Wedderburn, President of WK Nursery, Inc. was placed on the July 1, 2014 
agenda to discuss the City’s policy regarding moving the City of Lemoore’s boundary 
limits across the main east canal to 17th Avenue.  Council agreed to consider the 
request to annex the City’s boundary limits across the Main East Canal to 17th Avenue.  
Mr. Wedderburn is again requesting Council’s direction in this matter. 

Budget Impact: 

None. 

Recommendation: 

None.  For City Council discussion and direction. 

“In God We Trust” 



Mayor 
William Siegel 

Office of the 
City Manager

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 

  City of 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

To: Lemoore City Council 
From: Jeff Laws, City Manager 
Date: July 10, 2014 
Subject:   Activity Update 

Reports 

 Building Report June 2014 

 Lemoore Volunteer Fire Department Report June 2014 

 Planning Applications January 1 – June 24, 2014 

 Refuse Report June 2014 

 Water Production Report June 2014 

Trip Report 
 Johns – Basic SWAT Training

Invitation 
 City of Corcoran Centennial Celebration

“In God We Trust” 

119 Fox Street
Lemoore, CA  93245
Phone: (559) 924-6700
FAX:      (559) 924-9003



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

JUNE 2014
Permit # A.P.N Owner Information Site Address Work Description Valuation Bldg Plumb Elect Mech Seismic
1401-054 023-470-007 LEPRINO FOODS 

COMPANY
351 N BELLE HAVEN DR LW CRYSTALLIZER  

BUILDING EXPANSION 
FOR LEPRINO FOODS

800,000.00 4,130.00 685.00 1,024.10 54.00 168.00

1403-030 020-017-013 CROWN CASTLE MU  
LLC  LESSEE

541 G ST REMOVE AND REPLACE 3 
SPRINT ANTENAS, 
INSTALL 3 NEW REMOTE 
RADIOS.  MODIFY ONE 
EXISTING GROUND 
MOUNT EQUIPMENT 
CABINET.

20,000.00 288.00 0.00 46.00 0.00 4.20

1405-050 023-360-075 ESPINOZA, OCTAVIANO  
JR & LAURA  H/W

1735 MORRO LN SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 20 PANELS

13,928.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.39

1405-052 021-830-037 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1026 GENEVA DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 
SYSTEM, 8 PANELS

4,420.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.50

1405-058 021-830-024 WATHEN CASTANOS 
LEMOORE 872  LP

882 LEGEND DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2 
CAR GARAGE, 1,711 SQ, 
ELEV. A, WITH BAY 
WINDOW AT DINING

128,620.36 1,040.00 111.00 74.89 30.00 12.86

1405-061 021-830-024 WATHEN CASTANOS 
LEMOORE 872  LP

884 LEGEND DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2,160 
SQ, ELEV. A, PATIO 
COVER, BAY WINDOW AT 
MASTER BEDROOM

165,493.00 1,225.00 153.00 91.16 30.00 16.55

1405-062 023-170-006 CRANE, CLARA A 660 W IONA AVE INSTALL STANDBY 
EMERGENCY BACK UP 
GENERATOR

25,000.00 350.50 0.00 63.50 0.00 2.50

1405-066 021-830-049 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1074 GENEVA DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2 
CAR GARAGE, 1,727 SQ, FT 
ELEV. A, WITH BAY 
WINDOW AT DINING & 
MASTER BED ROOM

129,740.36 1,045.00 111.00 75.45 30.00 12.97

1405-073 021-830-055 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1081 GENEVA CT SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2,160 
SQ, ELEV. B, NO OPTIONS

164,298.00 1,220.00 153.00 90.60 30.00 16.43

1405-074 021-830-066 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1037 HEIRLOOM WY SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2 
CAR GARAGE, 1,695  SQ, 
ELEV. B, PATIO COVER

128,912.86 1,040.00 111.00 74.89 30.00 12.89

1406-001 020-211-001 MC NULTY  1989 TRUST 1390 CYPRESS LN TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 30 
YR COMP

9,000.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.90



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

JUNE 2014
1406-002 021-830-064 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1043 GENEVA DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2 

CAR GARAGE, 1,695 SQ, 
ELEV. A, NO OPTIONS

127,500.36 1,035.00 111.00 74.33 30.00 12.75

Permit # A.P.N Owner Information Site Address Work Description Valuation Bldg Plumb Elect Mech Seismic
1406-003 021-830-048 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1070 GENEVA DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2,160 

SQ, ELEV.B, NO OPTIONS, 
10' EASEMENT IN REAR 
YARD FOR INTERCEPTOR 
LINE.

164,298.00 1,220.00 153.00 90.60 30.00 16.43

1406-004 021-830-037 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1026 GENEVA DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2 
CAR GARAGE, 1,695 SQ FT, 
ELEV. B, NO OPTIONS

127,500.36 1,035.00 111.00 74.33 30.00 12.75

1406-005 021-830-047 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1066 GENEVA DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2-
CAR GARAGE, 1,470 SQ FT, 
ELEV. A, BAY WINDOW AT 
DINING ROOM AND 
MASTER BEDROOM, 10' 
EASEMENT FOR 
INTERCEPTOR LINE.

113,290.96 965.00 111.00 66.45 30.00 11.33

1406-006 021-830-043 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1050 GENEVA DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2 
CAR GARAGE, 1,934 SQ, 
ELEV. B, BAY WINDOW AT 
DINING, PATIO COVER

145,820.40 1,125.00 111.00 82.69 30.00 14.58

1406-007 021-830-058 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1067 GENEVA DR SFR, 2-STORY, 3-CAR 
GARAGE, 2,236 SQ FT., 
ELEV. A, NO OPTIONS

169,235.88 1,245.00 139.00 93.26 30.00 16.92

1406-008 021-830-058 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1042 GENEVA DR SFR, 2-STORY, 2-CAR 
GARAGE, ELEV. A, 
EXPANDED LIVING 
AREA(BEDROOM  5), 
PATIO COVER, 10' 
EASEMENT IN REAR FOR 
INTERCEPTOR LINE.

181,009.96 1,305.00 139.00 100.33 30.00 18.10

1406-009 021-740-035 ASPRER, JUSTIN P & 
JENNYLEE M  H/W

1590 BUTTERNUT ST SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM

17,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.70

1406-011 021-490-055 HUTTON, CALVIN L & 
KAREN M  H/W

785 WILDWOOD DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 22 PANELS

22,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 2.20

1406-012 021-830-026 WATHEN CASTANOS 
LEMOORE 872  LP

886 LEGEND DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 8 PANELS

4,420.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.50



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

JUNE 2014
1406-013 021-830-045 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1058 GENEVA DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 

SYSTEM, 8 PANELS
4,420.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.50

Permit # A.P.N Owner Information Site Address Work Description Valuation Bldg Plumb Elect Mech Seismic
1406-014 021-830-047 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1066 GENEVA DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 

SYSTEM, 8 PANELS
4,420.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.50

1406-015 023-080-010 HOWE 2006 REVOCABLE 
TRUST

544 PHILAN CIR ADD TO EXISTING 
LEACHLINE

0.00 0.00 60.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1406-016 021-830-038 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1030 GENEVA DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 8 PANELS

4,420.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.50

1406-017 021-790-040 WHITE, GARY E 1093 FREEDOM DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 30 PANELS

16,907.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.69

1406-018 021-100-029 MERAZ, VALENTIN J & 
LORI M  H/W

1002 BOXWOOD LN ALUMINUM PATIO COVER 
378 SQ FT.

27,060.00 170.00 0.00 15.75 0.00 2.71

1406-020 020-092-028 KAUFMANN, CARL C & 
JUDY L  H/W

210 HEINLEN ST TENANT IMPROVEMENT 
FOR DENTAL OFFICE,

8,000.00 138.00 27.00 15.00 0.00 1.68

1406-021 021-140-029 PALOMO, AIDA 856 CARLA DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 18 PANELS

19,099.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.91

1406-022 021-470-014 SMITH, ANTHONY & 
DELORES  H/W

986 KENSINGTON AVE A/C CHANGEOUT, 13 SEER, 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1406-023 023-090-017 STEELE, DONALD F & 
MARILYN D  H/W

146 HOTCHKISS DR A/C CHANGEOUT, 13 SEER 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1406-024 023-350-048 RICHARDSON, LAURINE 
J

699 CRESCENT AVE SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 41 PANELS

22,653.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 2.27

1406-025 023-160-037 HERNANDEZ, GERARDO 715 OTERO ST SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 18 PANELS

10,144.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.01

1406-027 023-190-004 DE ANDA, JOSE R JR 736 MIKE LN A/C CHANGEOUT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00
1406-028 021-310-005 TANGLEWOOD 

LEMOORE
265 E HFD-ARM RD DEMOLITION OF 

APARTMENT COMPLEX 
DUE TO FIRE

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1406-029 021-390-039 SCHWARZENBACH, 
KAREN A

125 W SPRING LN A/C CHANGEOUT, 13 SEER, 
4 TON

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1406-030 020-212-004 COELHO, DIAMANTINO 
& EVA  H/W

1285 CYPRESS LN A/C CHANGEOUT, 4 TON, 
13 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

JUNE 2014
1406-032 021-510-033 AHLIN, JOSEPH L & ANN 

M  TRUST
654 HUNTINGTON CT INSTALLING A NEW 

WALK IN SHOWER WITH 
ELECTRICITY.  
RELOCATING PLUMBING 
ABOUT 6"

2,000.00 63.25 20.00 16.50 0.00 0.50

Permit # A.P.N Owner Information Site Address Work Description Valuation Bldg Plumb Elect Mech Seismic
1406-033 024-051-035 ENTERPRISE & 

COMMERCE LLC
1500 ENTERPRISE DR SIGNS FOR ENTERPRISE 

AND COMMERCE 
BUILDING (1) 
ILLUMINATED AND (1) 
NON ILLUMINATED

2,500.00 75.50 0.00 33.00 0.00 0.53

1406-034 023-360-056 DALEY ENTERPRISES 
INC

1601 BIG SUR DR SFR, 8, 241 SQ FT, 
MONTEVIDEO 4 B PLAN,

153,016.20 1,165.00 20.00 71.58 30.00 15.30

1406-035 023-190-004 DE ANDA JR, JOSE R 736 MIKE LN TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 30 
YR COMP

4,800.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1406-036 021-420-015 MANDUJANO, JOSE M & 
MARGARITA  H/W

1567 N LEMOORE AVE HVAC CHANGEOUT, 3.5 
TON, 14 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1406-037 021-830-061 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1055 GENEVA DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 8 PANELS

4,420.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.50

1406-038 021-580-010 DOMINGUEZ, PETE & 
MYRIAM L  H/W

692 BRENTWOOD DR SOLAR, ROOF MOUNTY 
SYSTEM

23,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 2.30

1406-039 021-790-049 SIMMONS, MATTHEW S 988 PRIVILEGE WAY SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT, 
SOLAR SYSTEM 20 
PANELS

15,000.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 1.50

1406-040 021-120-018 WREN, MARTON & 
NENITA  H/W

1011 GENEVA DR A/C REPLACEMENT, 4TON, 
13 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1406-041 023-330-020 MURPHY, GLENN D & 
DEBORAH J  H/W

695 MONTECITO CT A/C CHANGEOUT, 5 TON, 
14 SEER, CONDENSOR 
AND COIL

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1406-044 020-012-008 SALAZAR, GREGORIA M 625 HILL ST SOLAR, ROOF MOUNT,  13 
PANELS

7,326.00 125.00 0.00 15.00 0.00 0.73



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

JUNE 2014
1406-046 023-220-027 WILLOUGHBY, JAMES K 57 S CAMBRIDGE DR INSTALL 20 AMP 

BREAKER, REPLACE 
OUTLET TO ORIGINAL 
LOCATION, TEAR OFF, 
RESHEET, 30 YR COMP, 
REPAIR CRACKS IN 
CEILING OF KITCHEN

8,500.00 105.00 0.00 16.50 0.00 0.85

1406-047 020-093-003 STEELY  FAMILY 
REVOCABLE TRUST

241 C ST A/C CHANGEOUT, 4 TON, 
13 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1406-048 023-380-077 HAYES, ROBIN L 529 S ACACIA DR TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 
INSTALL LANDMARK 
COMP

4,000.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

Permit # A.P.N Owner Information Site Address Work Description Valuation Bldg Plumb Elect Mech Seismic
1406-049 020-111-037 OLAGUE, JULIO R & 

LINDA  H/W 50%
184 E D ST REPLACE EXISTING TUB 

WITH WALK IN TUB, ADD 
20 AMP BREAKER, 2 
OUTLETS GFCI.

0.00 0.00 27.00 16.50 0.00 0.00

1406-050 020-076-010 HILL, TED H & BETTIE J  
REVOCABLE TRUST

102 N CAMBRIDGE DR REPLACE EXISTING TUB 
WITH WALK-IN TUB, 20 AMP 
BREAKER,  2 OUTLETS, GFCI

0.00 0.00 27.00 16.50 0.00 0.00

1406-051 023-600-034 ESQUER, ROBERT & 
MARISOL  H/W

1368 ATLANTIC AVE COIL REPLACEMENT 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22.00 0.00

1406-052 021-170-031 GARCIA, ROCIO 1213 BELINDA DR HVAC REPLACEMENT, 3.5 
TON, 13 SEER

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.00 0.00

1406-063 021-830-038 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1030 GENEVA DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 3 
CAR GARAGE, 1,711 SQ, 
ELEV. A, WITH BAY 
WINDOW AT DINING, 10' 
EASEMENT IN REAR FOR 
INTERCEPTOR LINE.

132,902.96 1,060.00 111.00 74.89 30.00 13.29

1406-065 021-830-045 WATHEN-CASTANOS 1058 GENEVA DR SFR, 2-STORY, 3-CAR 
GARAGE, 2,236 SQ FT., 
ELEV. B, PATIO COVER, 10' 
EASEMENT FOR 
INTERCEPTOR LINE

170,435.88 1,250.00 139.00 93.26 30.00 17.04



CITY OF LEMOORE
NEW PERMIT ISSUED REPORT

JUNE 2014
1406-067 021-830-026 WATHEN CASTANOS 

LEMOORE 872  LP
886 LEGEND DR SFR, SINGLE STORY, 2-

CAR GARAGE, 1,486 SQ FT, 
ELEV. A, BAY WINDOW AT 
DINING ROOM

112,170.96 960.00 111.00 67.01 25.00 11.22

1406-068 020-203-026 GLADDEN, LARRY & 
CERDENIA  FAMILY 
TRUST

39 ACACIA DR TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 30 
YR COMP

7,830.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.78

1406-071 020-131-033 MACHADO, 
CHRISTOPHER A

36 N LEMOORE AVE TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 
COMPOSITE

2,500.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50

1406-074 021-210-051 JOHNSON, JARED E & 
LISA M  H/W

501 E. HAZELWOOD DR SOLAR ROOF MOUNT 
SYSTEM, 40 PANELS, AND 
NEW 125 AMP MAIN 
SERVICE PANEL UPGRADE

22,100.00 125.00 0.00 33.50 0.00 2.21

Permit # A.P.N Owner Information Site Address Work Description Valuation Bldg Plumb Elect Mech Seismic
1406-081 021-150-068 NORTON, RICHARD 901 BANYAN DR TEAR OFF, RESHEET, 30 

YR DIM.
6,100.00 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.61

63 Permits 3,457,213.50 26,010.25 2,741.00 2,832.57 1,191.00 438.08



JUNE 2013 - CALENDAR YEAR LVFD MONTHLY CALLS

NAME
WEEK 

1
WEEK 

2
WEEK 

3 
WEEK 

4
WEEK 

5
MEETINGS / 

DRILLS
FIRES / 

GEN EMT
Training / 
MISC.

MONTLY 
TOTAL

FIRES / 
YTD

EMT / 
YTD

MISC. / 
YTD

MEETINGS / 
DRILLS YTD

YEAR TO 
DATE TOTAL YTD %

TOTAL DISPATCHED 1 1 1 1 0 4 32 94 10 140 95 702 23 25 845 100%
50 BILLINGSLEY, C. 0 1 1 1 0 3 18 36 0 57 39 258 1 21 319 38%
85 BING, A. 0 1 1 1 0 3 19 35 0 57 42 179 16 238 28%
49 BORBA, R. 1 1 0 0 0 2 21 51 10 84 54 307 19 18 398 47%
76 DAVIS, B. 1 1 0 1 0 3 12 24 0 39 28 164 1 17 210 25%
82 DAY, T. 1 1 1 0 0 3 10 24 9 46 17 126 14 18 175 21%
84 DUFF, G. 1 1 1 1 0 4 14 32 0 50 39 177 1 21 238 28%
27 FOLKS, S. 1 1 1 1 0 4 16 34 0 54 42 159 0 24 225 27%
8 GERMAN, B. 1 1 1 1 0 4 14 36 0 54 44 256 1 24 325 38%
80 GERMAN, J. 9 45 0 7 61 7%
2 GIBSON, J 1 1 1 1 0 4 21 35 0 60 58 305 3 21 387 46%
78 GIBSON, J., JR. 1 1 1 1 0 4 15 31 8 58 50 257 15 24 346 41%
48 GIBSON, P 1 1 1 1 0 4 19 41 0 64 59 325 4 25 413 49%
52 HOTCHKISS, R. 1 0 0 1 0 2 9 7 0 18 31 148 5 22 206 24%
11 JONES, D. 1 1 0 1 0 3 18 33 0 54 54 291 2 21 368 44%
56 LUIS, J. 1 1 0 1 0 3 6 13 0 22 25 131 1 20 177 21%
17 LUIS, R. 0 1 1 0 0 2 19 45 0 66 51 200 2 21 274 32%
36 LYONS, S. 1 1 1 1 0 4 26 57 0 87 65 358 5 21 449 53%
35 MADDOX, E. 1 0 1 1 0 3 7 15 0 25 16 113 2 17 148 18%
77 MARTIN, A. 1 1 1 1 0 4 12 40 9 65 50 288 16 23 377 45%
79 NAIL, N. 0 0 1 1 0 2 6 14 0 22 23 147 2 20 192 23%
81 NEWTON, M. 1 0 1 1 0 3 2 17 0 22 11 78 0 21 110 13%
73 NOBLE, E. 1 0 1 1 0 3 16 23 10 52 42 147 15 24 228 27%
19 OSPITAL, D. 1 1 1 1 0 4 20 34 0 58 57 253 4 25 339 40%
23 PARKS, R. 1 1 0 1 0 3 8 18 0 29 28 139 4 23 194 23%
87 POWERS, J. 1 1 1 1 0 4 26 62 9 101 77 445 17 25 564 67%
68 REED, K. 1 1 1 1 0 4 21 38 10 73 56 251 18 25 350 41%
83 REED, M. 1 1 1 1 0 4 27 56 0 87 72 397 3 25 497 59%
72 REED, N. 1 1 1 1 0 4 21 28 0 53 62 207 1 25 295 35%
62 ROSSITER, B. 1 1 1 0 0 3 20 32 0 55 49 262 5 22 338 40%
24 SCHALDE, C. 1 1 1 0 0 3 13 36 0 52 35 216 3 19 273 32%
38 SMITH, J. 1 1 1 1 0 4 9 14 10 37 17 70 16 19 122 14%
29 STEVENS, C. 1 1 1 1 0 4 18 31 9 62 48 126 16 25 215 25%
65 STINGER, S. 1 1 1 1 0 4 9 16 0 29 33 162 2 22 219 26%
59 STUMBAUGH, J. 1 1 1 0 0 3 16 35 10 64 41 141 16 19 217 26%
86 YOUNG, S. 1 1 1 1 0 4 19 37 10 70 47 164 17 22 250 30%

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0%

30 29 28 28 0 527 1080 104 1826
$9,130.00 ACCOUNT # 4222-4310



City of Lemoore 
Planning Applications 

2014

Date 
Submitted File No. Project Description Business/Applicant No. Address/Location APN No.

Date 
Approved   
or 
(Denied)

No. of 
Business 
Days to 
Process

06/25/14 2014-03 Conditional Use Permit - 
Cinnamon Villas Senior Living 
Complex, Phase 2                           
* Public Hearing Scheduled - 
Planning Commission 8-11-14

Pacific West 
Communities, Inc.

South East Corner of 
W. Cinnamon Drive 
and Follett Street

021-500-007 In Process *

06/25/14 2014-02 Major Site Plan Review -                 
Cinnamon Villas Senior Living 
Complex, Phase 2                           
* Public Hearing Scheduled -          
Planning Commission 8-11-14

Pacific West 
Architecture, Inc.

South East Corner of 
W. Cinnamon Drive 
and Follett Street

021-500-007 In Process *

06/20/14 2014-01 Zone Change -                               
B & L Moving & Storage -                
* Public Hearing Scheduled -          
Planning Commission 8-11-14        

Jeffrey Kemper 847 & 
849 

Champion Street 023-150-017 In Process *

06/20/14 2014-01 General Plan Amendment -             
B & L Moving & Storage -                
* Public Hearing Scheduled -          
Planning Commission 8-11-14

Jeffrey Kemper 847 & 
849 

Champion Street 023-150-017 In Process *

06/19/14 2014-15 Home Occupation -                         
Home Office - Carpet Cleaning

Matthew Garcia 424 Skaggs Street 020-162-013 06/20/14 1

06/19/14 2014-14 Home Occupation -                         
Home Office - DJ Entertainment 

Isabel Acevedo 1455 Stinson Drive 023-530-022 06/20/14 1

06/12/14 2014-13 Home Occupation -                         
Home Office - Mobile Dental 
Hygiene Services

Megan Polson 531 Brentwood Drive 021-530-003 6/12/2014 Same Day

* Reason for delay listed in Project Description. 1



City of Lemoore 
Planning Applications 

2014

06/05/14 2014-02 Conditional Use Permit -                 
Recreational BMX Track -               
* Public Hearing Scheduled -          
Planning Commission 7-14-14

Framework Racing Undeveloped Property 024-080-069 In Process *

06/04/14 2014-12 Home Occupation Permit -              
Home Office -                                  
Online Photography Sales

William Burris 301 Augusta Ave 023-620-014 06/09/14 3

05/30/14 2014-13 Sign Approval -                                
Monument Sign and Wall Sign

Virgil Beard - E & C 
Industrial Park

1500 Enterprise Drive 024-051-035 06/05/14 4

05/30/14 2014-01 Minor Deviation -                             
Setback Requirements - Tract 
783, Phase 2, Lot 14

Raven Homes 1218 Paradise Loop 024-380-018 06/20/14 15

05/30/14 2014-01 Conditional Use Permit -                 
MicroBrewery -                                
*Public Hearing Scheduled -           
Planning Commission 7-14-14

Bird Street Brewing, 
Inc. - Philip Wren

238 C Street 020-092-025 In Process *

05/29/14 2014-11 Home Occupation Permit -              
Home Office - HVAC 

Brad Morris - AirWorx 1229 Acacia Court 020-212-038 05/29/14 Same Day

05/29/14 2014-01 Administrative Use Permit -             
Medical Transportation Services

Atiklet Meheretv 111 E. Hanford-Armona 
Road

021-310-003 05/29/14 Same Day

05/21/14 2014-10 Home Occupation Permit -              
Home Office - Lawn Service 

Antonio Perez Corona 390 Brooks Court, Apt. A 023-140-018 05/22/14 1

05/16/14 2014-09 Home Occupation Permit -              
Home Office - Property 
Maintenance Business

Jeannette Hanes 1668 Homestead Way 023-440-012 05/16/14 Same Day

05/15/14 2014-12 Sign Approval -                                
Two Freestanding Signs                 
*Incomplete Application

Amazing Grace 
Christian Fellowship

193 Hamlet Street 020-191-013 06/09/14 16*

05/13/14 2014-08 Home Occupation Permit -           
Handyman 

John Warner 328 E. Hazelwood Drive 021-210-009 5/16/2014 3

05/05/14 2014-10 Sign Approval -                                
Wall Sign 

Casa Blanca 340 N. Lemoore Avenue 021-031-029 05/08/14 3

* Reason for delay listed in Project Description. 2



City of Lemoore 
Planning Applications 

2014

04/23/14 2014-09 Sign Approval -                                
Wall Sign 

Save Mart 105 W.Hanford-Armona 
Road

021-380-005 05/01/14 6

04/09/14 2014-07 Sign Approval Application -             
Wall and Monument Signage

Boost Mobile 1114 N. Lemoore Avenue 021-300-009 04/14/14 3

03/26/14 2014-05 Home Occupation Permit -              
Home Office - Credit Repair 
Assistance

Mariela O'Leary 985 Legacy Drive 021-820-011 03/27/14 1

03/20/14 2014-05 Sign Approval-                                 
Wall and Monument Signage

United Health Centers 1260 N. Lemoore Avenue 021-300-009 03/21/14 1

03/18/14 2104-04 Sign Approval -                                
Wall and Use of Existing Pole 
Sign

Bryan Burnes 700 N. Lemoore Avenue 021-350-002 03/18/14 Same Day

03/17/14 2014-03 Sign Approval -                                
Wall, Hanging and Canopy 

Décor a lemoore 242 Heinlen Street 020-092-018 03/17/14 Same Day

03/10/14 2014-12 Home Occupation Permit -              
Home Office (Only) - Tree Service  
*Incomplete Application-                 
(Trucks over 3/4 ton and 
Employees not permitted)

Antonio 's Tree Service 900 19th Avenue 021-620-004 07/08/14 84

03/04/14 2014-01 Site Plan Review (Major) - 
Wastewater Treatment Plant           
* Presently under NAFFA review

Agusa 1505 S. 19th Avenue 024-051-021 In Process *

02/28/14 2014-04 Home Occupation Permit -       
Home Office -  Online Sales -      
"T-Shirt" Printing

Travis Frazier 951 Makenna Street 021-630-025 02/28/14 Same Day

02/06/14 2014-01 Site Plan Review                             
(Administrative) -                   
Façade Improvements

Las Espuelas 55 E. "D" Street,        
Suites A-D

020-300-011 
020-300-012

02/18/14 7

01/24/14 2014-03 Home Occupation Permit -        
Home Office - Mobile Power 
Washing

Brian Tourville 1030 Par Avenue 024-360-029 01/27/14 1

* Reason for delay listed in Project Description. 3



 Refuse Report

33%

55%

12%

2014 Residential Refuse Breakdown, Year to Date

GREEN CAN

BLACK CAN

BLUE CAN

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

COMMERCIAL
RECYCLING

COMMERCIAL
TRASH

GREEN CAN BLACK CAN BLUE CAN

To
ns

Refuse Tonnages Through June 2014

2013 2014



PEAK DAY GALLONS MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY CUBIC FEET*

JANUARY 6,143,000 157,273,000 21,025,802

FEBRUARY 7,012,000 136,619,000 18,264,572

MARCH 6,590,000 167,168,000 22,348,663

APRIL 8,190,000 191,304,000 25,575,401

MAY 8,874,000 242,530,000 32,423,797
 
JUNE 9,933,000 265,231,000 35,458,690
 
JULY

AUGUST

SEPTEMBER    

OCTOBER    

NOVEMBER    

DECEMBER    
 

TOTAL: 46,742,000 1,160,125,000 155,096,925

* Gallons ÷7.48 = Cubic Feet

CITY OF LEMOORE
WATER PRODUCTION

2014



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
MONTH PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS PEAK DAY GALLONS
JANUARY 5,389,000 4,396,000 5,133,000 5,066,000 6,143,000
FEBRUARY 4,625,000 4,932,000 5,499,000 5,604,000 7,012,000
MARCH 6,010,000 4,708,000 6,249,000 6,609,000 6,590,000
APRIL 6,426,000 7,607,000 6,729,000 8,828,000 8,190,000
MAY 8,855,000 8,173,000 8,877,000 9,666,000 8,874,000
JUNE 9,666,000 9,339,000 11,154,000 10,978,000 9,933,000
JULY 10,235,000 10,656,000 10,512,000 10,547,000
AUGUST 9,572,000 9,710,000 10,465,000 10,176,000
SEPTEMBER 9,302,000 10,137,000 9,712,000 9,688,000
OCTOBER 8,571,000 7,822,000 8,380,000 8,225,000
NOVEMBER 5,972,000 7,414,000 6,459,000 6,910,000
DECEMBER 4,497,000 4,964,000 5,327,000 5,615,000

TOTAL 89,120,000 89,858,000 94,496,000 97,912,000 46,742,000
* Gallons ÷ 7.48 = cubic feet

WATER PRODUCTION
CITY OF LEMOORE



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
MONTH MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE MONTHLY GALLONAGE

JANUARY 128,423,000 117,353,000 138,630,000 132,348,000 157,273,000
FEBRUARY 114,061,000 111,965,000 133,667,000 129,994,000 136,619,000
MARCH 149,574,000 126,662,000 158,741,000 170,017,000 167,168,000
APRIL 157,303,000 156,861,000 165,356,000 211,201,000 191,304,000
MAY 206,732,000 228,233,000 242,101,000 262,385,000 242,530,000
JUNE 259,737,000 242,330,000 278,757,000 291,387,000 265,231,000
JULY 292,047,000 281,784,000 294,826,000 296,652,000
AUGUST 272,606,000 278,577,000 293,321,000 282,965,000
SEPTEMBER 245,737,000 255,360,000 258,447,000 254,390,000
OCTOBER 204,034,400 200,195,000 218,003,000 223,710,000
NOVEMBER 144,578,900 154,815,006 157,856,000 172,908,000
DECEMBER 121,204,000 134,505,000 131,258,000 _151,140,000
TOTAL: 2,296,037,300 2,288,640,006 2,470,963,000 2,427,957,000 1,160,125,000
* Gallons ÷ 7.48 = cubic feet

CITY OF LEMOORE
WATER PRODUCTION






	Agenda 7-15-14
	SS Item 1-1 - Staff Report - Prop 218 Assessment
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	Study
	Session Item
	SS-1
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director
	Date:
	July 9, 2014
	Subject:
	Proposal for Prop 218 Assessment





	SS Item 1-2 - Proposal for Prop 218 Assessment 6-26-2014
	SS Item 2 - Staff Report - Utilization of Sungard Pentamation eGov system
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Mayor Pro Tem
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM NO.
	SS-2
	To:
	City Council
	From:
	Nancy Vernon, Accountant
	Date:
	July 9, 2014
	Subject:
	Utilization of Sungard (Pentamation), “eGov” system




	Council Members

	Item 2-1 - Minutes 7-1-14
	Item 2-2 - Warrant Register 2013-2014 July 10 2014
	MJ715P13-ETA
	MJ715P13-GLTA
	MJ715P13-RTA

	Item 2-3 - Warrant Register 2014-2015 July 10 2014
	MJ0715P1-ETA
	MJ0715P1-GLTA

	Item 2-4 - Successor Agency Warrant Register 2014-2015 July 10
	Item 3-1-1 - Staff Report - Urban Water Management Plan
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM
	3-1
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works/Planning 
	Date:
	July 8, 2014
	Subject:







	Item 3-1-2 - Urban Water Attachments A B C
	Item 3-1-3 - Lemoore Urban Water Mgmt Plan - Revised May 2014
	CITY COUNCIL
	TABLE OF CONTENTS.pdf
	Chapter Two - Service Area
	Chapter Three - Water Supply (Groundwater)
	Chapter Four - Water Demand and Water Supply
	Chapter Five - Reliability Planning
	Chapter Six- Supply and Demand Comparison
	Chapter Seven- Water Demand Management Measures
	Chapter Eight- Water Shortage Contingency Plan
	Chapter Nine- Water Recycling
	LIST OF TABLES
	Table    Page
	No.  Title No.

	LIST OF FIGURES
	Figure    Page
	No.  Title No.

	LIST OF ACRONYMS

	Ch. 02- Service Area.pdf
	REGIONAL LOCATION
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure

	Ch. 03- Water Supply.pdf
	Figure
	SUBBASINS, TULARE LAKE HYDROLOGIC REGION
	Figure
	GROUNDWATER ELEVATION CONTOURS IN SPRING 1989
	Figure
	GROUNDWATER ELEVATION CONTOURS IN SPRING 2001
	Figure
	LOWER KINGS BASIN GWMP UPDATE GROUNDWATER TRENDS FOR AREA C
	Figure
	WELL LOCATIONS

	Ch. 08- Water Shortage Contingency Plan.pdf
	CHAPTER EIGHT – WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN
	Guide for Declaring Water Shortage Stages
	Water Usage Reduction Objectives


	Ch. 09- Water Recycling.pdf
	CHAPTER NINE – WATER RECYCLING


	Item 3-1-4 - Resolution 2014-17 Urban Water Managment
	Item 3-2-1 - Staff Report - LLMD Annual Assesment Levy
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM
	3-2
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works/Planning
	Date:
	July 8, 2014
	Subject:







	Item 3-2-2 - LLMD Engineer's Report Zones 1-13
	00 Cover_2014_ zones 1-13
	01 coverpage inside_2014_zones 1-13
	02 Memo to City Council
	03 Table of Contents
	03A Divider
	04 Certificates of Filing
	05 Introduction
	06 Work of Statement
	06A Divider
	07 Exhibit A
	07A Divider
	08 Exhibit B
	08A Divider
	09 Exhibit C
	09A Divider
	10 Final Assessment Roll 2014
	10A Divider
	11 Maintainance District No.1
	12 APN Maps
	13 Cover Back new address

	Item 3-2-3 - Resolution 2014-18 - LLMD Levy
	Item 3-3-1 - Staff Report - PFMD Annual Assessment Levy
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM
	3-3
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works/Planning
	Date:
	July 8, 2014
	Subject:





	Item 3-3-2 - PFMD Engineer's Report Zones 1-6
	00 Cover_2014_ zones 1-6
	09A Divider
	10 Exhibit D - Public Facilities - Zones 1-6
	10A Divider
	11 PFMD 1 vicinity map
	12 Zone 1 Tract 817 APN Map
	13 Zone 2 Book 21, Pg 78
	14 Zone 2 Book 21, Pg 79
	15 Zone 2 Book 21, Pg 80
	16 Zone 2 Book 21, Pg 81
	17 Zone 3 Tract 838 APN Map
	18 Zone 4 Tract 797 APN Map
	19 Zone 5 Tract 791 APN Map
	20 Zone 6 Tract 872 APN Map
	21 Cover Back new address

	Item 3-3-3 - Resolution - 2014-19 - PFMD Levy
	Item 3-4-1 - Staff Report - PFMD Annex 6A
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM
	3-4
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	David Wlaschin, Director of Public Works/Planning
	Date:
	July 9, 2014
	Subject:







	Item 3-4-2 - PFMD Engineer's Report Zone 6A
	00 Cover_2014_ zone 6A
	01 coverpage inside_2014_zone 6A
	02 Memo to City Council
	03 Table of Contents
	03A Divider
	04 Certificates of Filing
	05 Introduction
	06 Engineer of Work Statement
	06A Divider
	07 Exhibit A - Description of Improvements
	07A Divider
	08 Exhibit B - Engineer's Estimate Tr. 872
	08A Dividers
	09 Exhibit C - Method Of Assessment
	09A Dividers
	10 Exhibit D - County Assessors Roll-zone 6A
	10A Divider
	11 PFMD Zone 6A vicinity map
	12 APN Map
	13 Cover Back new address

	Item 3-4-3 - Resolution 2014-20 - PFMD 6A Annex and Levy
	Item 3-5-1 - Staff Report - TEFRA
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM
	3-5
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	Jeff R. Laws, City Manager
	Date:
	July 7, 2014
	Subject:





	Item 3-5-2 - Att A - Montclair Apartments Application
	Item 3-5-3 - Att B - Resolution 2003-43 Bonds to Villa San Joaquin
	Item 3-5-3 - Att C - Resolution 2003-42 Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement
	Item 3-5-4 - Resolution 2014-21 - TEFRA
	Item 4-1 - Staff Report - CNG Refuse Vehicle Purchase
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM
	4-2
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	Lauren Apone, Administrative Analyst
	Date:
	July 8, 2014
	Subject:
	Purchase of CNG Refuse Vehicle 





	Item 4-2 - Staff Report - Planning Update 2014-7-7.doc
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM
	4-1
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	Judy Holwell, Project Manager
	Date:
	July 7, 2014
	Subject:
	Planning Update 





	Item 4-3 - CIP Budget Adjustment - CO 8 CMC Commercial City Kitchen
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM
	4-3
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director
	Date:
	July 8, 2014
	Subject:





	Item 4-4  - Staff Report - Annexation of City Boundary Limits
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Lois Wynne
	Council Members
	                    City of
	LEMOORE
	Staff Report
	ITEM
	                   4-4
	To:
	Lemoore City Council
	From:
	Jeff Laws, City Manager
	Date:
	July 9, 2014
	Subject:





	AU-0 - Activity Update Memo 7-15-14
	Mayor
	William Siegel

	Mayor Pro Tem
	Lois Wynne

	                        City of
	LEMOORE

	Council Members
	From: Jeff Laws, City Manager
	Date: July 10, 2014

	AU-1 - Building Permit Report - June 2014
	Building Permits System

	AU-2 - LVFD Monthly Call Update - June 2014
	AU-3 - Planning Applications Update 7-10-14
	AU-4 - Refuse Report - June 2014
	2013AND2014

	AU-5 - Water Production Report - June 2014
	WTRCF14
	Sheet1

	WTRPDG14
	Sheet1

	WTRPRO14
	Sheet1


	AU-6 - Trip Report - Johns
	AU-7 - Invitation - Corcoran Centennial Celebration



